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Certain Defined Terms

References in this report to the “Company” and tHidge” mean SandRidge Energy, Inc., including its consddid subsidiaries a
variable interest entities of which it is the primdeneficiary. In addition, this report includesrhs commonly used in the oil and natural
industry, which are defined in the “Glossary of &ild Natural Gas Terms” beginning on page 25.

Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Various statements contained in this report, indgdhose that express a belief, expectation, @niion, as well as those that are
statements of historical fact, are forwdodking statements within the meaning of SectioA 27 the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
“Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Secusitlexchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchard®.A'hese statements generally
accompanied by words that convey projected futuesnts or outcomes. These forwdodking statements may include projections andresg:
concerning the Compars/’capital expenditures, liquidity, capital resogread debt profile, pending dispositions, the tgmand success
specific projects, outcomes and effects of litigati claims and disputes, elements of the Compalyisiness strategy, compliance 1
governmental regulation of the oil and natural gahistry, including environmental regulations, dsdions and divestitures and the efft
thereof on the Company’s financial condition anbeotstatements concerning the Compargperations, financial performance and finai
condition. Forward-looking statements are generallgompanied by words such as “estimate,” “assurfteyget,” “project,” “predict,”
“believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “potential,” “cold,” “may,” “foresee,” “plan,” “goal,” “should,” fntend” or other words that convey 1
uncertainty of future events or outcomes. The Campgaas based these forwdobking statements on its current expectations asslimptior
about future events. These statements are basertin assumptions and analyses made by the Comipalight of its experience al
perception of historical trends, current conditiansl expected future developments as well as fdbtrs the Company believes are approg
under the circumstances. The actual results orlojewents anticipated may not be realized or, eVenbstantially realized, may not have
expected consequences to or effects on the Congpauginess or results. Such statements are nadrgeas of future performance and ac
results or developments may differ materially frthmose projected in such forward-looking statemeTitese forwardeoking statements spe
only as of the date hereof. The Company disclainysabligation to update or revise these forwkoking statements unless required by
and it cautions readers not to rely on them undwiiile the Companyg management considers these expectations and @gswsnto b
reasonable, they are inherently subject to sigmifidusiness, economic, competitive, regulatory @her risks, contingencies and uncertail
relating to, among other matters, the risks ane:ttamties discussed in “Risk Factors” in Item 1fAhas report, including the following:

» risks associated with drilling oil and natural geals;

» the volatility of oil, natural gas and NGL pric

* uncertainties in estimating oil, natural gas and_N€serves

» the need to replace the oil, natural gas and NG&obmpany produce

» the Compang ability to execute its growth strategy by drifliwells as planne

» the amount, nature and timing of capital exptmds, including future development costs, requiedievelop the Compary’
undeveloped areas;

» concentration of operations in the Mitbntinent region of the United Sta!

e economic viability of certain natural gas protioic in west Texas due to high GContent

» risks associated with obligations to deliver iminam volumes of natural gas and/or @@hder longterm contract:
» limitations of seismic dat

» the potential adverse effect of commodity pdeelines on the carrying value of the Compargil and natural properti
* severe or unseasonable weather that may advefsty productior

» availability of satisfactory oil, natural gas an@Nmarketing and transportatic

» availability and terms of capital to fund capitapenditures

» amount and timing of proceeds of asset monetizs;

» substantial existing indebtedne

» limitations on operations resulting from debt riesibns and financial covenar

» potential financial losses or earnings reductisomfcommodity derivative

» potential elimination or limitation of tax incenés

» competition in the oil and natural gas indus

* general economic conditions, either internationatlglomestically or in the areas where the Compupayate:




» costs to comply with current and future governmierggulation of the oil and natural gas industngliiding environmental, hea
and safety laws and regulations, and regulatiotis mspect to hydraulic fracturing; and

» the need to maintain adequate internal control @imancial reporting




PART |
Iltem 1. Business

GENERAL

SandRidge Energy, Inc. is an oil and natural gaspamy with a principal focus on exploration anddarction activities in the Mid-
Continent region of the United States. The Companps and operates additional interests in west §exa owned interests in the Gul
Mexico and Gulf Coast until February 2014, as dised under “2014 Divestiture” below.

As of December 31, 2013 , the Company had 4,388sgr@,246.het) producing wells, a substantial portion of Whitcoperates, ar
approximately 3,624,000 gross ( 2,438,000 net) totees under lease. As of December 31, 2013 Ctmepany had 30 rigs drilling in the Mid-
Continent, one rig drilling in the Gulf of Mexicad three rigs drilling in west Texas. Total estiathproved reserves as Bécember 31, 20:
were 433.4 MMBoe, of which approximately 64% wereved developed.

The Company also operates businesses and infrasgusystems that are complementary to its prinegloration and productis
activities, including gas gathering and process$agiities, marketing operations, a saltwater dg&gasystem, an electrical transmission sy
and a drilling rig and related oil field servicessiness. As of December 31, 2013 , the Companyli;ngrrig fleet consisted of 2dperatione
rigs. These complementary businesses provide thep&oy with operational flexibility and an advantage cost structure by reducing
dependence on third parties for the services peaviny these businesses.

The Companys principal executive offices are located at 12hé&b S. Kerr Avenue, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73H0@ thi
Company'’s telephone number is (405) 429-5500. SmiggRmakes available free of charge on its websiteww.sandridgeenergy.coits
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports amn¥10-Q, current reports on Formk8and amendments to those reports as soi
reasonably practicable after the Company electadlgidiles such material with, or furnishes it tine Securities and Exchange Commis
(“SEC”). Any materials that the Company has fileifhvthe SEC may be read and copied at the SE@blic Reference Room at 100 F St
N.E., Room 1580, Washington D.C. 20549 or accegfsethe SE('s website address atww.sec.gov.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

SandRidge’s mission is to become a high-returnwtireriented resource conversion company focusetarMid-Continent region «
the United States. The sale of its Gulf of Mexical &Gulf Coast oil and natural gas properties, dised under “2014 Divestiturdfelow
represents a major step toward the achievemehiabinission, by positioning SandRidge as a liqigti-Mid-Continent company. In pursuit
its mission, the Company focuses on the followimgtsgies:

« Concentrate in Core Operating Areghe Company’s primary area of operation is the Kahtinent area of Oklahoma and Kansas
concentrating in this core area, the Company is &bli) further build and utilize its technicalpettise in order to interpret geologi
and operational opportunities, (ii) achieve ecoresrof scale and breadth of operations, both of wwhiglp to control costs, (iii) ta
advantage of investments in infrastructure inclgdatectrical delivery and produced water dispogatesns and (iv) opportunistica
grow its holdings through acquisitions, farmoutsl @perations in this area to achieve productionrasdrve growth. Additionally,
operator of a majority of its wells, the Companys Hikexibility to utilize these competitive advanésgyto deliver strong, sustaina
returns.

« Develop Key Infrastructure SysterBy constructing a produced water disposal systednedectrical delivery system to service its Mid-
Continent properties, the Company is able to predatand natural gas more efficiently and, therefonore economically, giving il
competitive advantage over other operators inrthel area.

 Focus on Cost Efficiency and Capital Allocati. By leveraging its experienced workforce, scalabjgerational structure a
infrastructure systems, the Company is able toexehcost efficiencies and sustainable returnsenMid-Continent area. With a foc
on loweryisk, high rate of return and repeatable drillifgportunities with long economic lives, the Comp&mag made improvements
its completion designs, well site production fdigh, utilization of pad drilling and spud-gpud cycle time to further reduce its «
structure in the Mid-Continent.




* Focus on Reservoirs with Known Hydrocarbon Produt. The Company focuses its development efforts pilyjnan conventiona
shallow, loweost, permeable carbonate reservoirs with decdda®duction history. The nature of these resesvaltows the Compal
to execute lowrisk, repeatable drilling programs with predictapteduction profiles and a higher certainty of emwoit returns. Furthe
due to these low pressure and shallow charactesistie Company is able to maintain a loest operating structure and manage se
costs.

« Maintain Flexibility. The Company has muljiear inventories of both oil and natural gas dnrjjliocations within its core operating a
Additionally, the Company maintains its own fleétailling rigs through its wholly owned drillingg business. Maintaining inventor
of both oil and natural gas drilling locations aslias its own drilling rigs allows the Company eéiciently direct capital towa
projects with the most attractive returns.

« Mitigate Commodity Price Ris. The Company enters into derivative contracts itigate commodity price volatility inherent in tlod
and natural gas industry. By increasing the pradbitity of cash inflows for a portion of its futuproduction, the Company is better ¢
to mitigate funding risks for its longer term deM@inent plans and lock-in rates of return on itstahprojects.

» Pursue Opportunistic Acquisition. The Company periodically reviews acquisition &isgto complement its existing asset t
Accordingly, the Company selectively identifies Isuargets based on several factors including watalue, hydrocarbon mix a
location and, when appropriate, seeks to acquéen tht a discount to other opportunities.

« Asset MonetizatiorThe Company periodically evaluates its propertiegléntify opportunities to monetize assets to fon@cceleral
development within its area of focus, and may usegeds realized from such transactions to fundithéng and development of
core area, for general corporate purposes orite irporate debt.

2013 Divestiture

Sale of Permian PropertieQn February 26, 2013, the Company sold its oil metdiral gas properties in the Permian Basin areges
Texas, excluding the assets associated with thdR8dge Permian Trust area of mutual interest, {ermian Properties™jor net proceeds
$2.6 billion , including postlosing adjustments that were finalized in thedjuarter of 2013. The Company used a portion ®@ktie procee
to fund the redemption of approximately $1.1 billiaggregate principal amount of outstanding semes and has used and expects to us
remaining proceeds to fund its capital expenditureshe Mid-Continent and for general corporatepmses. Including final postosing
adjustments, the Company recorded a non-cash lodbensale of $398.9 million , of which $71.7 nuliwas allocated to noncontrolli
interests. Additionally, the Company settled a iporbf its existing oil derivative contracts in Fahry 2013 prior to their contractual maturi
to reduce volumes hedged in proportion to the guatied reduction in daily production volumes duethte sale, which resulted in a loss
settlement of approximately $ 29.6 million .

2014 Divestiture

Sale of Gulf of Mexico and Gulf Coast Properti@n February 25, 2014, the Company sold certairtso§ubsidiaries that own |
Company’s Gulf of Mexico and Gulf Coast oil and urat gas properties (collectively, the “Gulf Prajes”), for $750.0 million, subject "
purchase price and post-closing adjustments, anthdlgers assumption of approximately $370.0 million ofitetl asset retirement obligatic
Under the agreement, the Company agreed to gueraetéain plugging and abandonment obligationscéatsal with the Gulf Properties
behalf of the buyer for a period of up to one ydaiditionally, as part of the agreement, the buyas agreed to indemnify the Company for
costs it may incur as a result of the guarante@ Thmpany retained a 2% overriding royalty intefastertain exploration prospects. -
Company expects to use the proceeds from thesé&lad its drilling in the Mid-Continent.

At December 31, 2013, the Gulf Properties had aatsat proved reserves of 56.8 MMBoe with an es&ua®V-10 value of$1.1
billion . See discussion of PV-10 under “—Proveds&ees.” For a reconciliation of PAO to Standardized Measure of Discounted Net
Flows (“Standardized Measure”), see “Managemeni&ission and Analysis - Overview! Item 7 of this report. The estimated Standad
Measure attributable to the Gulf Properties was@pmately $842.5 million at December 31, 2013. Huor year ended December 31, 2
production, revenues and expenses, including diperating expenses, depletion, accretion of agdeément obligations and general
administrative expenses, for the Gulf Propertiesevl®.1 MMBoe, $627.2 million and $492.0 milliorespectively.

2




BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND PRIMARY OPERATIONS

The Company operates in three business segmemigration and production, drilling and oil fieldrsees and midstream servic
Financial information regarding each segment iviged in Item 7 “Managemerst’Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiond &esult
of Operations” and “Note 22 —Business Segment médion” to the Compang’ consolidated financial statements in Item 8 & thport. Th
information below includes the activities of Sandif Mississippian Trust | (the “Mississippian Trdgt SandRidge Permian Trust (
“Permian Trust”) and SandRidge Mississippian Trhligthe “Mississippian Trust II”) (collectively, # “Royalty Trusts”),including amount
attributable to noncontrolling interest, all of whiare included in the exploration and productiegnsent.

Exploration and Production

The Company explores for, develops and producesndilnatural gas, with a primary focus on increadm reserves and productior
the Mid-Continent. The Company operates substantiallyfatisovells in this area and also operates welld anwns leasehold positions in w
Texas and owned interests in the Gulf of Mexico @udf Coast until February 2014.

The following table presents information concernitig Companys exploration and production activities by geograpdrea ¢
operation as of December 31, 2013, unless othemaged.

Estimated Net

Proved Daily Reserves/ Capital
Reserves PV-10 Production Production Gross Net Expenditures
(MMBoe) (In millions)(1) (MBoe/d)(2) (Years)(3) Acreage Acreage (In millions) (4)
Area
Mid-Continent 3022 % 3,427 .« 52.1 15.¢ 2,621,01 1,849,24. $ 945.(
Gulf of Mexico / Gulf Coast 56.¢ 1,088.¢ 247 6.2 882,93 494,06 197.1
West Texas 74.: 675.% 11.¢€ 17.1 120,21° 95,17( 198.2
Total 433.¢ % 5,191.¢ 88.7 13.4 3,624,16! 2,438,48 % 1,340.:
(1) For a reconciliation of PV-10 to StandardiMédasure, see “—Proved Reserves.” The Company's $taadardized Measure w#d.C

billion at December 31, 2013 .
2 Average daily net production for the month of Debem2012

3 Estimated net proved reserves as of Decenthe2® 3divided by production for the month of December2@hnualizec
4 Capital expenditures for the year ended Deegr8lh, 2013n an accrual bas
Properties

Mid-Continent

The Company held interests in approximately 2,61,@ross ( 1,849,000et) leasehold acres primarily in Oklahoma and Kara
December 31, 2013 . Associated proved reservesegrbber 31, 2013 totaled 302BvBoe, 60% of which were proved developed rese
based on estimates prepared by Cawley, Gillespdsgbciates, Inc., (“CG&A”) and the Company’s interengineers. The Compasyihterest
in the Mid-Continent as of December 31, 2013 inetlid,858 gross ( 1,038mt) producing wells with an average working ins¢i@f 56%. Th
Company had 30 rigs operating in the Mid-Contingmtof December 31, 2013f which 26 were drilling horizontal wells, threesre drilling
vertical wells and one was drilling a saltwaterpdisal well. The Company drilled a total of 434 horital wells, 49 vertical wells and
saltwater disposal wells in this area during 2013.

Mississippian FormationA key target for exploration and development wittfie Mid-Continent area is the Mississippian formai
which is an expansive carbonate hydrocarbon sykieated on the Anadarko Shelf in northern Oklah@md Kansas. The top of this formal
is encountered between approximately 4,000 and)7#&t and lies stratigraphically between the Pgrasianaged Morrow formation and t
Devonianaged Woodford Shale formation. The Mississippiamfation can reach 1,000 feet in gross thicknesstlamdargeted porosity zone
between 50 and 100 feet in thickness. At Decembge@13, the Company had approximately 2,535,000 gro€8981000 net) acres under le
in the Mississippian formation, of which approxielgt58,000 gross (46,000 net) acres were includekd Mississippian Trust
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Il area of mutual interest. As the Company fulfillés drilling obligation to the Mississippian Ttdsn April 2013, the associated area of mu
interest terminated.

The Company has drilled approximately 1,060 wetisthis formation as of December 31, 2013From December 31, 2012
December 31, 2013, the number of the Compmapydducing horizontal wells in the Mississippiannfiation increased from 649 to 1,167. Of
wells the Company drilled in the Mississippian fation during 2013, 86 wells are subject to the ltyyiaterests of the Mississippian Trust
Mississippian Trust Il.

The Company’s saltwater disposal system, constiuséginning in 2007, and electrical infrastructwenstructed by the Compasy’
midstream services segment beginning in 2009, tasstke economically efficient production of oih@ natural gas in the MiGontinent. Th
saltwater disposal system, which included more thad active wells and approximately 865 miles athgeng lines at December 31, 2013
reduces the overall cost of water disposal, whicectly reduces production costs. The Comparsfectrical infrastructure, which consiste:
approximately 780 miles of power lines and fivestations at December 31, 2013, coordinates theedglof electricity to the Company’s Mid-
Continent operations at a lower cost than eletyrigiovided by orsite generation. Additionally, by building its owmfrastructure in these ru
areas, the Company has been able to provide suffielectricity to its operations. The Companyls® @ble to obtain lower electrical rates b
on aggregated volumes.

Gulf Properties

The Company’s Gulf Properties include oil and ratgas properties in the Gulf of Mexico and thef@dast. The Company’Gulf o
Mexico operations, a substantial portion of whicéregvacquired during the second quarter of 2012 thighacquisition of Dynamic Offshc
Resources, LLC (the “Dynamic Acquisitiongnd other Gulf of Mexico properties, primarily extefrom the coast to more than 100 n
offshore and occur in federal and state waters dépths ranging from 10 to 1,380 feet. The CommiBulf of Mexico oil and natural g
properties are shallowater assets, with the exception of the Bullwinfiddd, which is a deepwater asset. Additionallye thompany owns ¢
and natural gas interests in the Gulf Coast arééchnencompasses the coastal plain from the soutist tip of Texas through the soutt
portion of Louisiana.

As of December 31, 2013 , the Company’s Gulf Prigeiconsisted of approximately 883,000 gross (@I net) leasehold acreés34
gross ( 370.0 net) productive wells and approxifg&@80 miles of pipeline gathering systems. Assmtigroved reserves Becember 31, 20:
were approximately 56.8IMBoe, of which 70% were proved developed. The Camypoperates approximately 97% of these assetsd lma
PV-10 values as of December 31, 2013 . The Compadyone rig operating in the Gulf Properties aPetember 31, 2013 In the Gul
Properties, the Company drilled a total of sevearafed wells, participated in the drilling of fomon-operated wells, performed 19 oper:
recompletions and participated in 14 non-operadedmpletions during 2013.

The Companys pipeline gathering systems in the Gulf of Mexiow/uding the Bullwinkle platform, which serves agprocessing hi
for deepwater production, gather and transportymrtion from third-party fields for which the Compareceives production handling revenues.

As discussed in “2014 Divestiturabove, the Company sold its Gulf Properties arated|pipeline gathering systems in February 2
West Texas

The Companys west Texas oil and natural gas properties includgerties in the Permian Basin and the West Té&xaerthrus
(“WTQO"). In February 2013, the Company sold all of its aillanatural gas properties in the Permian Basirerdtian those assets attributabl
the Permian Trust’ area of mutual interest. The Permian Basin estémdbughout southwestern Texas and southeastevivixico and is or
of the largest, most active and longest-producihbasins in the United StateBhe WTO is an area located in Pecos and Terrelh@esiin wes
Texas and is associated with the Marathon-Ouafblifaand thrust belt that extends easttheast across the United States into the Apbile
Mountain Region.

The Company held interests in approximately 120,@00ss ( 95,000 net) leasehold acres in west Tak&ecember 31, 20130f
which approximately 16,000 gross (15,000 net) aerer® included in the Permian Trus#rea of mutual interest. Associated proved resea
December 31, 2013 were 74.3 MMBoe, 77% of whichewproved developed reserves. The Comparngterests in west Texas as
December 31, 2013 included 1,896 gross ( 1,838&2pneducing wells with an average working intereE®7%. The Company had thrags
operating in west Texas as of December 31, 2013Jeled 213 wells in this area during 2013, of ahi202 were subject to the Permian Trust’
royalty interest. Low natural gas prices contintedimit development activity in the WTO, primarily natural gagroducing region, durir
2013.




Pursuant to a 30-year treating agreement with @otéd Petroleum Corporation (“Occidentalthe Company delivers natural |
produced in the WTO to Occidental's G@eatment plant in Pecos County, Texas (the “Cgrilant”), and Occidental removes G@om the
Companys delivered production volumes of natural gas. Qwmmpany retains all methane gas after treatmentietJthe agreement, 1
Company is required to deliver a total of approxeha3,200 Bcf of CQ, during the agreement period. At December 31, 2@pBroximatel
3,000 Bcf of CO,remained to be delivered. The Company is obligabepgay Occidental $0.25 per Mcf to the extent mimmannual CQ
volume requirements are not met. Additionally, @ @volumes delivered by the Company over the ternhefagreement do not reach 3,218,
the Company is obligated to pay Occidental $0.70Mef for such undelivered C@volumes at the end of the agreement term in 2@&se:
upon natural gas production levels in 2013 , thenfany accrued $32.7 million for amounts relateth®® Companys shortfall in meeting i
2013 annual delivery obligations, which was inclidie production expense for the year ended DeceBihe?013. Based on current projec
natural gas production levels, the Company expctccrue between approximately $30.0 million aBd@.$ million during the year endi
December 31, 2014 for amounts related to the Cowipaanticipated shortfall in meeting its 2014 anndelivery obligations. Due to t
sensitivity of drilling activity to market price®ff natural gas, the Company is unable to estim@d@ianal amounts it may be obligated to
under the agreement in subsequent periods; howdveafural gas prices remain low, drilling activiwill likely remain very limited, whic
would result in additional shortfall payments inute periods.

Proved Reserves
Preparation of Reserve Estimates

The estimates of oil, natural gas and NGL reseirvéisis report are based on reserve reports, suliits all of which were prepared
independent petroleum engineers. To achieve rebonartainty, the Comparg/engineers relied on technologies that have besrodstrate
to yield results with consistency and repeatabilliye technologies and economic data used to dstitha Companyg proved reserves inclui
but are not limited to, well logs, geological magsismic data, well test data, production datdptical price and cost information and prop
ownership interests. This data was reviewed byouarilevels of management for accuracy, before d@tigun with independent petrolel
engineers. Such consultation included review ofperties, assumptions and any new data availablernal reserves estimates
methodologies were compared to those prepared dspéndent petroleum engineers to test the resestasates and conclusions before
reserves estimates were included in this repoet. ddturacy of the reserve estimates is dependeantiog factors, including the following:

< the quality and quantity of available data andehgineering and geological interpretation of trett

« estimates regarding the amount and timing of futasts, which could vary considerably from actusts
« the accuracy of mandated economic assumptionsasutite future price of oil and natural gas;

« the judgment of the personnel preparing the estis

SandRidge’s Senior Vice Presidenterporate Reservoir Engineering is the technicasqe primarily responsible for overseeing
preparation of the Compargyreserves estimates. He has a Bachelor of Scilegree in Petroleum Engineering with over 30 yearsractica
industry experience, including over 28 years oineating and evaluating reserve information. In #ddi SandRidge’s Senior Vice President
Corporate Reservoir Engineering has been a ceffiefessional engineer in the state of OklahomeesR007 and a member of the Socie!
Petroleum Engineers since 1980.

SandRidges Reservoir Engineering Department continually rwoyai asset performance, making reserves estimgtsstaebnts, &
necessary, to ensure the most current reservoimiation is reflected in reserves estimates. Resefermation includes production historie:
well as other geologic, economic, ownership andrergging data. The corporate Reservoir departmemesgtly has a total of 17 futlme
employees, comprised of five degreed engineerslanehgineering analysts/technicians with a minimafra fouryear degree in mathemati
economics, finance or other business or scient fie

The Company maintains a continuous education pnogfar its engineers and technicians on new teclyiedo and indust
advancements and also offers refresher trainingasic skill sets.




In order to ensure the reliability of reservesraates, internal controls within the reserve esiiongbrocess include:
* no employees compensation is tied to the amount of resenawded

* reserves estimates are prepared by experienceggisangineers or under their direct supervis

» the Reservoir Engineering Department reporesatly to the Compang’ Chief Operating Office

» the Reservoir Engineering Department follows poghensive SECempliant internal policies to determine and repgmvec
reserves including:

» confirming that reserves estimates include all prips owned and are based upon proper working retdevenu
interests;

* reviewing and using in the estimation process getaided by other departments within the Comparchsas Accounting
and

» comparing and reconciling internally generatedmesseestimates to those prepared by third pe

Each quarter, the Senior Vice President—CorporateRoir Engineering presents the status of thepaags reserves to a commit
of executives, which subsequently approves all geanin the event the quarterly updated resentenages are disclosed, the aforementic
review process is evidenced by signatures fronStr@or Vice President—Corporate Reservoir Engingesind the Chief Financial Officer.

The Reservoir Engineering Department works closét its independent petroleum consultants at decial year end to ensure
integrity, accuracy and timeliness of annual incefemt reserves estimates. These independentlyapeeereserves estimates are reviewe
the Audit Committee, as well as the Chief Finan&xficer, Senior Vice President of Accounting, Vi€eesident of Internal Audit, Vi
President of Financial Reporting and General Cduasd are approved as the Compangbrporate reserves. In addition to reviewing
independently developed reserve reports, the AToibhmittee annually meets with the principal engiaeeho are primarily responsible for
reserve reports. The Audit Committee also peridljicaeets with the other independent petroleum ottasts that prepare estimates of prc
reserves.

The table below shows the percentage of the Compdasal proved reserves for which each of the ieddpnt petroleum consulta
prepared reports of estimated proved reserved,afaiural gas and NGLs for the years shown.

December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Cawley, Gillespie & Associates, Inc. 64.€% —% —%
Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. 21.5% 72.1% 80.5%
Lee Keeling and Associates, Inc. —% 24.%% 15.6%
Total 86.1% 97.% 96.1%

The remaining 13.9% , 2.4% and 3.9% of the Commamgtimated proved reserves as of December 31, 2@Q032 and 2011
respectively, were based on internally prepareeagss.

Copies of the reports issued by the Company’s iedéent petroleum consultants with respect to thegamy’s oil, natural gas a
NGL reserves for substantially all geographic lawa as ofDecember 31, 20138re filed with this report as Exhibits 99.1 and 29The
geographic location of the Company’s estimated @doreserves prepared by each of the independenteqaeh consultants as &fecember 3:
2013 is presented below.

Geographic Locations—by Area by State
Cawley, Gillespie & Associates, Inc. Mid-Continent - KS, OK

Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. Permian Basi X
Gulf of Mexico
Gulf Coast—LA, TX

The qualifications of the technical personnel atheaf these firms primarily responsible for oveisgethe firm's preparation of tt
Company'’s reserves estimates included in this teperset forth below. These qualifications meetxareed the Society of Petroleum Engineers’
standard requirements to be a professionally dedlReserve Estimator and Auditor.




Cawley, Gillespie & Associates, Inc.

* more than 26 years of practical experience in peir engineering and more than 24 years of expegiestimating and evaluat
reserve information;

» aregistered professional engineer in the stalerés; an

» aBachelor of Science Degree in Petroleum Enging:

Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Ir

» practical experience in petroleum engineering ragd@iom more than 14 years to more than 25 yeatsaperience estimating ¢
evaluating reserve information ranging from mormnthine years to more than 20 years;

» Licensed Professional Engineers in the states g and Louisiana and Licensed Professional Gatstiein the State of Texi
and

» Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil EngineeringclBgor of Science Degree in Mechanical EngineerBaghelor of Scienc
Degree in Geology, Master of Science Degree in @goand Master of Business Administration Degree.

Lee Keeling and Associates, Inc.

* more than 57 years of practical experience in p&iro engineering and more than 53 years estimatinh evaluating reser
information;

» aregistered professional engineer in the sta@ktdhoma; an

» aBachelor of Science Degree in Petroleum Enging:
Technologies

Under SEC rules, proved reserves are those quantfioil, natural gas and NGLs, which, by analggigeoscience and engineel
data, can be estimated with reasonable certaintyeteconomically producible, based on prices ueeestimate reserves, from a given
forward from known reservoirs, and under existimgreomic conditions, operating methods, and govenmtmegulations prior to the time
which contracts providing the right to operate expunless evidence indicates that renewal is redip certain. The term “reasonable certainty”
implies a high degree of confidence that the qtiastiof oil, natural gas and/or NGLs actually rez@d will equal or exceed the estim
Reasonable certainty can be established usingitp@sithat have been proved effective by actualyartion from projects in the same reser
or an analogous reservoir or by other evidencegushiable technology that establishes reasonabtaioty. Reliable technology is a groupin
one or more technologies (including computationathuds) that have been field tested and have beraprstrated to provide reasonably ce
results with consistency and repeatability in therfation being evaluated or in an analogous fonati

The area of a reservoir considered proved incl@@i¢se area identified by drilling and limited Hfiyid contacts, if any, and (ii) adjact
undrilled portions of the reservoir that can, widasonable certainty, be judged to be continuotis tvand to contain economically produci
oil, natural gas or NGLs on the basis of availajg#escience and engineering data. In the abserdatabn fluid contacts, proved quantities
reservoir are limited by the lowest known hydrocerd as seen in a well penetration unless geosciengineering or performance data
reliable technology establish a lower contact wéthsonable certainty.

Where direct observation from well penetrations thefined a highest known oil elevation and the pitéé exists for an associated
cap, proved oil reserves may be assigned in thietatally higher portions of the reservoir onlyg€oscience, engineering or performance
and reliable technology establish the higher caméth reasonable certainty.

Reserves that can be produced economically thrapglication of improved recovery techniques (sugtilad injection) are include
in the proved classification when (i) successfstitey by a pilot project in an area of the resarwath properties no more favorable than in
reservoir as a whole, the operation of an instgiedyram in the reservoir, or an analogous resgraoiother evidence using reliable techno
establishes the reasonable certainty of the engngeanalysis on which the project or program wased and (ii) the project has been appr
for development by all necessary parties and estithcluding governmental entities.
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Existing economic conditions include prices andtcas which economic producibility from a reserv@rto be determined.
determining the amount of proved reserves, theepuged must be the average price during thend2th period prior to the ending date of
period covered by the reserve report, determineghasnweighted arithmetic average of the first-d&yhe-month price for each month witt
such period, unless prices are defined by contshatuangements, excluding escalations based wgorefconditions.

The estimates of proved developed reserves includéuk reserve report were prepared using declimee analysis to determine
reserves of individual producing wells. After estiting the reserves of each proved developed wellas determined that a reasonable lev
certainty exists with respect to the reservesdhatbe expected from close offset undeveloped \vettse field.

Reporting of Natural Gas Liquids

Natural gas liquids, or NGLs, are produced as altre$ the processing of a portion of the Companyatural gas production stream
December 31, 2013 , NGLs comprised approximatet D4 the Company total proved reserves on a barrel equivalenskasil represent
volumes to be produced from properties where thengamy has contracts in place for the extraction sewhrate sale of NGLs. NGLs
products sold by the gallon. In reporting proveskerges and production of NGLs, the Company hasided production and reserves in bar
The extraction of NGLs in the processing of natgid reduces the volume of natural gas availablsdie. All production information related
natural gas is reported net of the effect of ajpgection in natural gas volumes resulting from thecpssing and extraction of NGLs.
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Reserve Quantities, PV-10 and Standardized Measure

The following estimates of proved oil, natural geml NGL reserves are based on reserve reports Beogimber 31, 2013 , 2052
2011, substantially all of which were prepared by inelegent petroleum engineers. The estimates inclesierves attributable to the Roy:
Trusts, including amounts associated with noncdlimgpinterest. The PVEO values shown in the table below are not intertdepresent tt
current market value of the Company’s estimated/gutoreserves as of the dates shown. The resereetsepere based on the Company’
drilling schedule and the average price during tBemonth periods ended December 31, 2013 , 20122ahdl , using first-day-of-therontt
prices for each month. The Company estimates fabaimately 88% of its current proved undevelopeskrves will be developed by the
of 2016 and all of its current proved undevelopeskrves will be developed by the end of 2018. Ee#ical Accounting Policies and Estimates”
in Item 7 of this report for further discussionusfcertainties inherent to the reserves estimates.

December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Estimated Proved Reserves(1)
Developed

Oil (MMBBDlIs) 83.¢ 136.¢ 101.¢

NGL (MMBblIs) 35.¢ 33.¢ 17.1

Natural gas (Bcf) 951.¢ 896. 670.2

Total proved developed (MMBoe) 278.: 319.¢ 230.¢
Undeveloped

Oil (MMBbls) 58.7 125.¢ 112.¢

NGL (MMBBblIs) 23.% 34.2 13.2

Natural gas (Bcf) 438.¢ 518.: 684.7

Total proved undeveloped (MMBoe) 155.1 246.( 240.2
Total Proved

Oil (MMBBblIs) 142.¢ 262.( 214.t

NGL (MMBBblIs) 59.1 68.( 30.2

Natural gas (Bcf) 1,390.: 1,415.( 1,355.!

Total proved (MMBoe)(2) 433.¢ 565.¢ 470.¢
PV-10 (in millions)(3) $ 5191.¢ $ 7,488.c $ 6,875.¢
Standardized Measure of Discounted Net Cash Flowsi(lions)(2)(4) $ 4,017.¢ % 5,840.. $ 5,216.!
@ The Company’s estimated proved reserves amdutiure net revenues, PV-10 and Standardized Meagere determined using a 12-

month average price for oil and natural gas. Theeprused in the Compasyexternal and internal reserve reports yield weit
average wellhead prices, which are based on indegspand adjusted for transportation and regipriaé differentials. The index pric
and the equivalent weighted average wellhead peaoeshown in the table below.

Weighted average

Index prices wellhead prices
Oil Natural gas oIl Natural gas
(per Bbl) (per Mcf) (per Bbl)(a) NGL (per Bbl) (per Mcf)
December 31, 2013 $ 93.4: $ 367 $ 9561 $ 31.4C % 3.6&
December 31, 2012 $ 9121 % 27¢ % 916t % 326 % 2.2¢€
December 31, 2011 $ 9271 % 41z % 91.3t $ 46.3: % 4.0¢€
€)) At December 31, 2013 a2@12, the weighted average wellhead oil price ghéi than the index price as a result of favol

location differentials for production in the Gulf exico.
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(2 Estimated total proved reserves and Standardizeasie include amounts attributable to noncontigliimerests, as shown in
following table:

Estimated Proved

Reserves Standardized Measure

(MMBoe) (In millions)
December 31, 2013 20¢ % 781.€
December 31, 2012 38z % 952.7
December 31, 2011 26.4 % 932.¢

See “Note 24 —Supplemental Information on Oil andtudal Gas Producing Activities” to the Compayonsolidated financi
statements in Item 8 of this report for additiomaflormation regarding reserve and Standardized Mreasmounts attributable
noncontrolling interests.

3) PV-10 is a noiGAAP financial measure and represents the presdoé\of estimated future cash inflows from provéddratural ga
and NGL reserves, less future development and ptmtucosts, discounted at 10% per annum to refiiethg of future cash flows ai
using 12-month average prices for the years endszbmber 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 . RVdiffers from Standardized Meas
because it does not include the effects of incaamed on future net revenues. Neither F0/nor Standardized Measure represen
estimate of fair market value of the Company’sasill natural gas properties. PV-10 is used by thasiny and by the Comparsy’
management as an arbitrary reserve asset valuauragascompare against past reserve bases anedbe/e bases of other busir
entities that is not dependent on the taxpayingustaf the entity. The following table provides ecaonciliation of the Company’
Standardized Measure to PV-10:

December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In millions)
Standardized Measure of Discounted Net Cash Flows $ 4,017.¢ $ 5,840.c $ 5,216.
Present value of future income tax discounted & 10 1,174.( 1,648.( 1,659.¢
PV-10 $ 5191.¢ $ 7,488.c $ 6,875.¢
4) Standardized Measure represents the present vagstimated future cash inflows from proved oiltural gas and NGL reserves, |

future development and production costs, and inctamexpenses, discounted at 10% per annum tccteiieing of future cash flov
and using the same pricing assumptions used talatdcPV-10. Standardized Measure differs from FVas Standardized Meas
includes the effect of future income taxes.

Proved Reserves - Mid-ContinenProved reserves in the M@entinent, primarily the Mississippian formationcieased from 14&
MMBoe at December 31, 2011 to 235.8 MMBoe at Decamn3d, 2012 and to 302MMBoe at December 31, 2013, comprising a signifi
portion of the additions to the Compasyproved reserves in both years. The reservebwtilile to producing wells and the continuity of
formation over the development area further suppamved undeveloped classification of locationshimitclose proximity to the producing we
Data from both the Company and operators of offsgis with which it has exchanged technical dataalestrate a consistency in this forma
and the fluids in place over an area much largan the development area. In addition, direct megsent from other producing wells was
used to confirm consistency in reservoir propersigsh as porosity, thickness and stratigraphicaromity. These wells all encountered pro
reserves in the Mississippian formation. The prouedeveloped locations within the development ameagenerally parallel offsets to
horizontal wells drilled and producing to date.

Proved Reserves - West TeXas2013, the Company sold the Permian Propertieisasissed in “2013 Divestiturelbove. As a resu
proved reserves in the Permian Basin decrease®®® MMBoe. During 2012, proved reserves in theniam Basin, excluding productic
increased by 59.5 MMBoe, primarily due to extensiand discoveries associated with successfulrdyilih the Central Basin Platform, wh
were slightly offset by downward revisions due st pricing. The Permian Basin provides accessh@low, permeable carbonate resen
with decades of production history and predictginteluction profiles.
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Proved Undeveloped Reservéle following table summarizes activity associatgth proved undeveloped reserves during the pe
presented:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Reserves converted from proved undeveloped to drdeeeloped (MMBoe) 44.¢ 42.¢€ 50.%
Drilling capital expended to convert proved undepeld reserves to proved

developed reserves (in millions) $ 437¢ % 718.2 9 817.(

Excluding asset sales, the Company recognized adution to oil, natural gas and NGL reserves @ssed with proved undevelog
properties of 42 MMBoe for the year ended Decendier2013. Reserves added from extensions and disesvtotaled 67 MMBoe, primar
from horizontal drilling in the Mississippian fortian in the MidContinent, which includes 10 MMBoe of proved undeped reserves book
and converted during 2013. These additions wersebfby downward reserve revisions of 25 MMBoe, prity from the Mississippie
formation, due to the removal of proved undevelogiting locations not expected to be drilled viitla five year period. These revisions we
result of the Compang’ ongoing efforts to optimize its drilling plan Wit the Mississippian formation and reevaluatingicipated drillin
locations. Approximately 35 MMBoe of proved undedd reserves at December 31, 2012 were converfgved developed reserves du
2013.

The Company recognized a net addition to oil, redtgas and NGL reserves associated with provedvedaiged properties, excludi
asset sales and purchases of reserves, for theepdad December 31, 2012. Additional reserveshatable to extensions and discove
primarily in the MidContinent area and Permian Basin area in west Taxas result of successful drilling. These addgiwere partially offs
by downward revisions of reserve quantities pritgarom the Pifion Field in the WTO as a result @iver natural gas index prices, and,
lesser extent, downward revisions of reserve gtiesitiiue to well performance in the Mid-Continentidg 2012. The 12aonth average natu
gas index price of $4.12 per Mcf for 2011 decredse®P.76 per Mcf for 2012.

Excluding asset sales, the Company recognized adution to oil, natural gas and NGL reserves @ssed with proved undevelog
properties in 2011. Additional reserves attributatnl extensions and discoveries, primarily in tieeni®an Basin and Micontinent areas as
result of successful drilling, more than offset awvard revisions of reserve quantities from the Rifideld in the WTO as a result of lov
natural gas index prices. The 12-month averageaalagas index price of $4.38 per Mcf for 2010 desesl to $4.12 per Mcf for 2011.

For additional information regarding changes in @@mnpany’s proved reserves during the three yeatedeDecember 31, 201201:

and 2011 see “Note 24 —Supplemental InformationOdinand Natural Gas Producing Activities” to the Mjmanys consolidated financi
statements in Item 8 of this report.
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Significant Fields

Qil, natural gas and NGL production for fields antng more than 15% of the Compasiyotal proved reserves at each year en
presented in the table below. The Mississippi Likh@rizontal, FuhrmamMascho and Pifion fields each contained more th&s b the
Company’s total proved reserves at December 313,20012 or 2011 .

oil Natural Gas Total
(MBbls) NGL (MBbls) (MMcf) (MBoe)

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Mississippi Lime Horizontal 6,901 1,311 52,61¢ 16,98:
Year Ended December 31, 2012

Mississippi Lime Horizontal 4,53¢ 10C 33,03 10,14

Fuhrman-Mascho 4,104 561 1,76¢ 4,96(
Year Ended December 31, 2011

Mississippi Lime Horizontal 1,20¢ 6 8,33z 2,59¢

Fuhrman-Mascho 3,28: 487 1,63: 4,041

Pifion 41 — 28,24¢ 4,74¢

Mississippi Lime Horizontal FieldThe Mississippi Lime Horizontal Field is located the Anadarko Shelf in northern Oklahoma
Kansas and produces from the Mississippian formaflthe Company’s interests in the Mississippi Likh@rizontal Field as obecember 3:
2013 included 1,181 gross (730.9 net) producindsveeld a 62% average working interest in the prioduarea.

Fuhrman-Mascho FieldThe FuhrmarMascho Field is located near the center of the I@eBiasin Platform in the Permian Basin
produces from the Graybuan Andres formation from average depths of apprately 4,500 to 5,000 feet. The Company sold pitigs
located in the Fuhrman-Mascho field and elsewhethé Permian Basin in February 2013 as discusstDil3 Divestiture” above.

Pifion Field.The Pifion Field lies along the leading edge of WHEO in Pecos County, Texas. The primary reservaiesthe Tesni
sands (depths ranging from 3,500 to 6,000 feeg),Wharwick Caballos chert (depths ranging from 5,69®,000 feet) and the Dugout Cr
Caballos chert (depths ranging from 7,000 to 10f@@€). Low natural gas prices continue to limivelepment activity in this area.

Production and Price History

The following tables set forth information regamglithe Company net oil, natural gas and NGL production and @epaice and co:
information for each of the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Production Data
Oil (MBbls) 14,27¢ 15,86¢ 9,99:
NGL (MBbls) 2,291 2,09¢ 1,83¢
Natural gas (MMcf) 103,23: 93,54¢ 69,30¢
Total volumes (MBoe) 33,77¢ 33,55! 23,38
Average daily total volumes (MBoe/d) 92.t 91.7 64.1
Average Prices(1)
Oil (per Bbl) $ 97.5¢ $ 91.7¢ % 90.31
NGL (per Bbl) $ 35.1¢ $ 33.1C $ 44.5¢
Natural gas (per Mcf) $ 336 % 24¢ % 3.5C
Total (per Boe) $ 53.8¢ $ 52.4: $ 52.47
Q) Prices represent actual average prices for thegepresented and do not include effects of devivatansaction
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Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Expenses per Boe
Lease operating expenses
Transportation $ 12¢ $ 0.8¢ % 0.71
Processing, treating and gathering(1) 1.0t 1.1¢ 1.5¢
Other lease operating expenses(2) 12.6( 11.5¢ 10.7¢
Total lease operating expenses $ 149 $ 13.6: % 13.0¢
Production taxes(3) $ 096 $ 141 $ 1.97
Ad valorem taxes $ 03¢ $ 05¢ $ 0.7¢
1) Includes costs attributable to gas treatmenémove CQand other impurities from natural g

(2) For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 28%2udes $32.7 million and $8.5 millignrespectively, for amounts related to
Company’s shortfall in meeting its annual €@elivery obligations under a CQreating agreement as described under “—Propetties
West Texas” above.

3) Net of severance tax refun

Productive Wells

The following table sets forth the number of prattewells in which the Company owned a workingeneist at December 31, 2013
Productive wells consist of producing wells andlgvebpable of producing, including oil wells awagficonnection to production facilities ¢
natural gas wells awaiting pipeline connectionscommence deliveries. Gross wells are the total munad producing wells in which tl
Company has a working interest and net wells aestim of the Company’s fractional working interestgied in gross wells.

Oil Natural Gas Total
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
Area
Mid-Continent 1,32¢ 805.: 532 233.2 1,85¢ 1,038.t
Gulf of Mexico / Gulf Coast 317 189.: 317 180.7 634 370.(
West Texas 1,00¢ 988.( 887 850.2 1,89¢ 1,838.:
Total 2,652 1,982.¢ 1,73¢€ 1,264.. 4,38¢ 3,246."

Developed and Undeveloped Acreage

The following table sets forth information regarglitthe Company’s developed and undeveloped acreédgecamber 31, 2013 :

Developed Acreage Undeveloped Acreage
Gross Net Gross Net
Area
Mid-Continent 561,87¢ 362,74( 2,059,14i 1,486,50
Gulf of Mexico / Gulf Coast 640,50: 340,14t 242,43 153,92¢
West Texas 52,32: 46,77¢ 67,89t 48,39¢
Total 1,254,70: 749,66 2,369,461 1,688,82.
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Many of the leases comprising the undeveloped gersat forth in the table above will expire at émel of their respective prime
terms unless production from the leasehold acresagstablished prior to such date, in which evieatli¢ase will remain in effect until product
has ceased. The following table sets forth as aebBwer 31, 2018he expiration periods of the gross and net atrasare subject to leases in
undeveloped acreage summarized in the above table.

Acres Expiring

Gross Net

Twelve Months Ending

December 31, 2014 1,043,63. 738,56
December 31, 2015 371,26¢ 275,56(
December 31, 2016 491,11: 366,52:
December 31, 2017 and later 146,97- 105,73!
Other(1) 316,48:¢ 202,44t
Total 2,369,46 1,688,82.
@ Leases remaining in effect until development effart production on the developed portion of theipalar lease has ceas

Included in the acreage set to expire during thelvev months ending December 31, 2014, as preséntéide table above, &
approximately 1,026,000 gross (722,000 net) aeréke MidContinent area. The Company has options to extemdetses on a portion of t
acreage set to expire in the Mbntinent in 2014 and expects to exercise suclpir hold by production approximately 30% of sacleag
based on current drilling and operational plans.

Drilling Activity

The following table sets forth information with pest to wells the Company completed during thegplsrindicated. The informati
presented is not necessarily indicative of futueefgrmance, and should not be interpreted to ptemey correlation between the numbe
productive wells drilled and quantities or economddue of reserves found. Productive wells are eéhihat produce commercial quantitie
hydrocarbons, regardless of whether they produeasonable rate of return. Gross wells refer taate number of wells in which the Comp:i
had a working interest and net wells are the suth@fCompany'’s fractional working interests ownedjioss wells. As of December 31, 2013
the Company had 102 gross (78.0 net) operated drdling, completing or awaiting completion.

2013 2012 2011
Gross Percent Net Percent Gross Percent Net Percent Gross Percent Net Percent
Completed Wells
Development
Productive 607 98.1% 482.% 98.1% 1,05¢ 99.£% 930.¢ 99.8% 89t 99.7% 850.( 99.7%
Dry 12 1.5% 9.t 1.£% 2 0.2% 1.7 0.2% 3 0.2% 2.6 0.2%
Total 61¢ 100.(% 491.¢ 100.(% 1,05¢ 100.% 932.¢ 100.% 89¢ 100.% 852.¢ 100.(%
Exploratory
Productive 44 80.(% 31.C 79.2% 32 97.(% 24.% 96.(% 38 100.% 33.7 100.(%
Dry 11 20.(% 8.1 20.7% 1 3.C% 1.C 4.C% — —% — —%
Total 55 100.(% 39.1 100.(% 33 100.% 258 100.% 38 100.% 33.7 100.(%
Total
Productive 651 96.6%  513. 96.7%  1,08¢ 99.7%  955. 99.7% 93z 99.7%  883. 99.7%
Dry 23 3.4% 17.€ 3.5% 3 0.2% 2.7 0.2% 3 0.2% 2.8 0.2%
Total 674 100.(% 530.¢ 100.(% 1,08¢ 100.% 957.¢ 100.% 93¢ 100.% 886.¢ 100.(%
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The following table sets forth information with pest to the rigs operating on the Company’s acréggeea as of December 31, 2013

Owned Third-Party Total
Mid-Continent 8 22 30
Gulf of Mexico / Gulf Coast — 1 1
West Texas 3 — 3
Total 11 23 34

Marketing and Customers

The Company sells oil, natural gas and NGLs torgewsaof customers, including utilities, oil andtneal gas companies and trading
energy marketing companies. The Company had thrst®mers that individually accounted for more th8fo of its total revenue during 20
See “Note 22 —Business Segment Information” to @wmpanys consolidated financial statements in Item 8 @ tieport for addition:
information on its major customers. The numbereaidily available purchasers for the Compargroducts and the demand for such comm
products makes it unlikely that the loss of a stnglistomer in the areas in which the Company #slfroducts would materially affect its sa
The Company does not have any material commitmentieliver fixed and determinable quantities of aild natural gas in the future ur
existing sales contracts or sales agreements.

Title to Properties

As is customary in the oil and natural gas indygtig Company initially conducts a preliminary ewiof the title to its properties 1
which it does not have proved reserves. Prior éocthmmencement of drilling operations on those gntigs, the Company conducts a thorc
title examination and performs curative work widspect to significant defects. To the extent dglliitle opinions or other investigations ref
title defects on those properties, the Companygeally responsible for curing any title defectsta expense. The Company generally will
commence drilling operations on a property untihds cured any material title defects on such ptgpén addition, prior to completing
acquisition of producing oil and natural gas leaske Company performs title reviews on the moghificant leases, and depending on
materiality of properties, the Company may obtaiiriling title opinion or review previously obtagd title opinions. To date, the Company
obtained drilling title opinions on substantiall af its producing properties and believes thatas good and defensible title to its produ
properties. The Comparg/oil and natural gas properties are subject ttomary royalty and other interests, liens for cotrxes and oth
burdens, which the Company believes do not malgiigkrfere with the use of, or affect its carnyimalue of, the properties.

Drilling and Oil Field Services

Drilling and related oil field services provided llye Company to its exploration and production hes$s and to third parties
described below.

Drilling Operations

The Company drills for its own account in northveest Oklahoma, Kansas and west Texas through ittngrand oil field service
subsidiary. In addition, the Company drills welds bther oil and natural gas companies, primarilwest Texas. The Company believes
drilling with its own rigs allows it to control ctssand maintain operating flexibility. The Compasyig fleet is designed to drill in its spec
areas of operation and has an average of over 8&2power and an average depth capacity of gréearl0,500 feet. As dbecember 3:
2013, the Company'’s drilling rig fleet consistd?@ operational rigs with 11 of these rigs workimg Company-owned properties in the Mid-
Continent and west Texas.

The Company obtains its drilling contracts throwgther competitive bidding or direct negotiationghwcustomers. The Comparsy’
drilling contracts generally provide for compensaton a daywork or footage basis. Contract terrfeyed by the Company generally depen
the complexity and risk of operations, the site drilling conditions, the type of equipment dis¢éhe anticipated duration of the work tc
performed and prevailing market rates.
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Qil Field Services

The Companys oil field services business conducts operatibas together with its drilling services, complem#s exploration an
production business. Oil field services includevmtimg pulling units, trucking, rental tools, lo@at and road construction and roustal
services to the Company as well as to third parties

Customers

During 2013, the Company performed approximateBo®4 its drilling and oil field services in supportits exploration and producti
business. For the years ended December 31, 2@2,ghd 2011 , the Company generated revenuesd $6llion , $116.6 million an$103.:
million , respectively, for drilling and oil fieldervices performed for third parties.

Capital Expenditures

The Company’s capital expenditures for 2013 relabeits drilling and oil field services were $7.4llian . The Company has budge
approximately $15.0 million in capital expenditune2014 for its drilling and oil field servicesgaent.

Midstream Services

The Companys midstream services segment primarily providekeagatg, compression and treating services of negasin west Tex:
and coordinates the delivery of electricity to t8empanys exploration and production operations in the M&ppian formation. Tt
Companys midstream operations and assets serve its eiptorand production business as well as other mdl aatural gas companies
described below.

Marketing

Through Integra Energy, L.L.C., a wholly owned ddlasy, the Company buys and sells natural gas fwetis it operates and we
operated by third parties within its west Texasrafiens. The Company generally buys and sells ahggas on simultaneous contracts usi
portfolio of baseload and spot sales agreemengsititthl volumes are bought and sold on monthly daity contracts using a combinatior
published pricing indices to eliminate price expesu

The Company conducts thorough credit checks gf@#ntial purchasers and minimizes its exposuredoyracting with multiple partit
each month. The Company does not engage in anyredgtivities with respect to these contracts. Tieenpany manages several interrup
natural gas transportation agreements in ordeake advantage of price differentials or to secwailable markets when necessary.
Company currently has 75,000 MMBtu per day of finansportation service subscribed on the Kihtinent Express Pipeline through Me
2014, which then changes to 50,000 MMBtu per dajahkContinent Express Pipeline through March 2088e “Note 15 -Eommitments ar
Contingencies” to the Compamytconsolidated financial statements in Item 8 @ tkeport for additional information on the contraad fee:
associated with the firm transportation service.

Mid-Continent

The Company has constructed an electrical trangmisystem in the Midsontinent area to coordinate the delivery of eleityrto the
Company'’s operations in the area. See discussitreddlectrical transmission system under “—Prager-Mid-Continent.”

West Texas Gas Treating Plants

The Company owns the PilsePeak gas treating plant and the Grey Ranch gasng plant, both located in Pecos County, Texae
has a 50% interest in the partnership that ledse&tey Ranch plant from the Company under a leggiing in 2020. During 2013 and 20
the Company recorded impairments of $9.9 million &79.3 million , respectively, on these plants #imel Company’s CQ compressio
facilities due to the anticipation that their fiduuse would be limited. Throughout 2012, the Comgpdiverted its high CQ natural ga
production from its gas treating plants to the @gntPlant while it was being tested and commissioridépon substantial completion of
Century Plant in late 2012, natural gas volumeweedd by the Company for processing at the Cerfleyt became subject to the terms o
30-year treating agreement with Occidental, whichtains minimum CQ delivery requirements. All natural gas producedhi@ WTO durin
2013 was processed at the Century Plant. See fuligmission of the treating agreement under “—entigs—West Texas”
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above. Due to the continued decline in naturalpgeduction in the WTO resulting from the lack oilldrg activity in the area, volumes currer
produced in the WTO and delivered to the CentuanPlor processing are not sufficient to use athefavailable treating capacity at the Cer
Plant. Due to the sensitivity of drilling activitp market prices for natural gas, drilling activitythe WTO will likely remain very limited
natural gas prices remain low.

The Company is party to a gas gathering agreenmeh&a operations and maintenance agreement witmRi@athering Company, LL
(“PGC") related to the Compars/properties located in the Pifion Field in westaBexUnder the gas gathering agreement, the Contpex
dedicated the Pifion Field acreage for priority ggtly services for a period of 20 years and wilf pafee for such services. See “Note-15
Commitments and Contingencies” to the Comparggnsolidated financial statements in Item 8 & thport for additional information on 1
contractual fees associated with the gas gathagngement.

Customers

During 2013, the Company performed approximatel9o6df its midstream services in support of its exdiora and productic
business. For the years ended December 31, 200R,&hd 2011 , the Company generated revenuestaf #illion, $38.8 million and65.2
million , respectively, from midstream servicesfpaned for third parties.

Capital Expenditures

The growth of the Company’midstream assets is driven by its oil and natyaal exploration and production operations. Histdhy,
pipeline and facility expansions are made when avded by the increase in production or the devetogrof additional acreage. During 2C
the Company spent $55.7 milliam capital expenditures primarily to install elécaél and compression infrastructure. The Comparsythaigete
approximately $60.0 million in 2014 capital expdodés for its midstream services segment.

COMPETITION

The Company believes that its leasehold acreaggiqmsdrilling and oil field services businessesidstream assets, geograf
concentration of operations, vertical integratiowl &echnical and operational capabilities enabte tompete effectively with other explorat
and production operations. However, the oil andirtgas industry is intensely competitive, and @menpany faces competition in each o
business segments.

The Company competes with major oil and naturalagaspanies and independent oil and natural gas aoiep for leases, equipme
personnel and markets for the sale of oil, natgaal and NGLs. Many of these competitors are firaiycstronger than the Company, but €
financially troubled competitors can affect the keirbecause of their need to sell oil, naturalayad NGLs at any price to maintain cash fl
Certain companies may be able to pay more for mioduproperties and undeveloped acreage. In additiese companies may have a gr
ability to continue exploration activities duringeniods of low oil, natural gas and NGL prices. TBempanys larger or fully integrate
competitors may be able to absorb the burden dftiegi and any future federal, state and local land regulations more easily than
Company can, which would adversely affect its catitige position. The Compang’ ability to acquire additional properties and tscdve
reserves in the future depends on its ability taleate and select suitable properties and to comsuentransactions in a highly competi
environment. In addition, because the Company éasiffinancial and human resources than many coepanits industry, the Company n
be at a disadvantage in bidding for exploratoryspezts and producing oil and natural gas properties

Qil, natural gas and NGLs compete with other foohsnergy available to customers, primarily baseggce. These alternate forms
energy include electricity, coal and fuel oils. @ges in the availability or price of oil, naturalggand NGLs or other forms of energy, as we
business conditions, conservation, legislationulagns and the ability to convert to alternatel$uand other forms of energy may affect
demand for oil, natural gas and NGLs.

With respect to the Comparsydrilling business, the Company believes the tgge, and condition of its drilling rigs, the qualdf its
crews and the responsiveness of its managementagjgrenable the Company to compete effectivelyweeer, to the extent the Company d
for third parties, it encounters substantial coritipet from other drilling contractors. The Compasyrimary market area is highly competit
The drilling contracts for which the Company congseare usually awarded on the basis of competiiide The Company may, based on
economic environment at the time, determine thatketaconditions and profit margins are such thattiaet drilling for third parties is not
beneficial use of its resources.
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The Company believes pricing and rig availabilitg ¢he primary factors its potential customers @®rsin determining which drillin
contractor to select. While the Company must be paditive in its pricing, its competitive strategergerally emphasizes the quality of
equipment and the experience of its rig crews ffemintiate it from its competitors. This strateigyless effective when demand for drill
services is weak or there is an oversupply of figese conditions usually result in increased prampetition, which makes it more difficult
the Company to compete on the basis of factorg ditfae price. Many of the Compagytompetitors have greater financial, technical cthe
resources than the Company does. Their greatebititipa in these areas may enable them to betitfrstand industry downturns and be
retain skilled rig personnel.

The Company believes its geographic concentratiaperations enables it to compete effectivelytsmidstream business. Most of
Company’s midstream assets are integrated witpraduction. However, with respect to thjpdrty natural gas and acquisitions, the Com
competes with companies that have greater finaacidl personnel resources than it does. These cossparay have a greater ability to p
their services below the Company’s prices for samslervices.

SEASONAL NATURE OF BUSINESS

Generally, demand for oil and natural gas decredsesg the summer months and increases duringviier months. Certain natu
gas users utilize natural gas storage facilitied purchase some of their anticipated winter requinets during the summer, which can le:
seasonal demand fluctuations. Seasonal weatheitiomsdand lease stipulations can limit the Compardrilling and producing activities a
other oil and natural gas operations in a portibitsooperating areas. These seasonal anomaliepaschallenges for meeting the Company’
well drilling objectives, can delay the installatiof production facilities, and can increase coiitipet for equipment, supplies and persol
during certain times of the year, which could léadhortages and increase costs or delay the Corspaperations.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS
General

The exploration, development and production ofamitl natural gas are subject to stringent and cdmepseive federal, state, trik
regional and local laws and regulations governing discharge of materials into the environment thevise relating to environmer
protection or to employee health and safety. THass and regulations may, among other things, reqoérmits to conduct drilling, wa
withdrawal and waste disposal operations; goveenattmounts and types of substances that may besdidmy released into the environm
limit or prohibit construction or drilling activi¢is or require formal mitigation measures in sersiireas such as wetlands, wilderness are
areas inhabited by endangered or threatened spesigsre investigatory and remedial actions tagate pollution conditions arising from 1
Companys operations or attributable to former operationgpose restrictions designed to protect employees fexposure to hazardc
substances; and impose obligations to reclaim Aaddon well sites and pits. Failure to comply witese laws and regulations may result it
assessment of sanctions, including monetary pesalfie imposition of remedial obligations and idseiance of orders enjoining operation
affected areas. Pursuant to such laws, regulatindgermits, the Company may be subject to opeati@strictions and has made, and ex|
to continue to make, capital and other compliangeerditures.

Increasingly, restrictions and limitations are lgepiaced on activities that may affect the envirenm Any changes in environmer
laws and regulations or iaterpretation of enforcement policies that resultnore stringent and costly construction, drillimgater manageme
completion, waste handling, storage, transportpadial, or remediation requirements or emission ischérge limits could have a mate
adverse effect on the Company. Moreover, accideakahses or spills may occur in the course ofabmpanys operations, and there can b
assurance that the Company will not incur signifiazosts and liabilities as a result of such redeas spills, including any thirgarty claims fo
damage to property and natural resources or pdrsgngy.

The following is a summary of the more significaisting environmental and employee, health anétgdhws and regulatio
applicable to the oil and natural gas industry famdvhich compliance may have a material advergeirthon the Company.
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Hazardous Substances and Wastes

The Company currently owns, leases, or operatesb,irathe past has owned, leased, or operated, piepehat have been usec
explore for and produce oil and natural gas. Then@any believes it has utilized operating and diappsactices that were standard in
industry at the applicable time, but hydrocarbond wastes may have been disposed or released wmder the properties owned, leasec
operated by the Company or on or under other logsativhere these hydrocarbons and wastes have éleem for treatment or disposal.
addition, certain of these properties have beemnatge by third parties whose treatment and dispmsedlease of hydrocarbons and wastes
not under the Comparg/’control. These properties and wastes disposeeaihenay be subject to the Comprehensive Enviroteh&espons
Compensation, and Liability Act, as amended (“CERQL.the Resource Conservation and Recovery Acgraended (“RCRA”and analogot
state laws. Under these laws, the Company coulce@peired to remove or remediate previously disposastes, to investigate and clear
contaminated property and to perform remedial dperato prevent future contamination or to pay eanall of the costs of any such action.

CERCLA, also known as the Superfund law, and coaigarstate laws impose joint and several liabiiiyhout regard to fault «
legality of conduct on certain classes of persoh® \are considered to be responsible for the reledse “hazardous substanceito the
environment. These persons include current and prmers or operators of the site where the releaserred and entities that dispose
arranged for the disposal of the hazardous sulesasicthe site. Under CERCLA, these “responsibleqms”’may be subject to strict, joint a
several liability for the costs of cleaning up tha&zardous substances that have been releasechantenvironment, for damages to nat
resources and for the costs of certain environrhanthhealth studies. In addition, it is not uncoomnfior neighboring landowners and other t
parties to file claims for personal injury, naturesource damage, and property damage allegedbedawy the release of hazardous subst
into the environment. CERCLA also authorizes theiEemmental Protection Agency (“EPA'@nd, in some instances, third parties to a
response to threats to the public health or th&r@mwent and to seek recovery from the responsilaleses of persons the costs the third pi
incur. The Company uses and generates materidtseiourse of its operations that may be regulatethazardous substances. To dat
Companyewned or operated site has been designated aseaf@ugp site, and the Company has not been idethtéfgea responsible party for :
Superfund site.

The Company also generates wastes that are stibjdet requirements of RCRA and comparable stateitss. RCRA imposes st
requirements on the generation, transportationjfrtrent, storage, disposal and cleanup of hazamaedisionhazardous wastes. Drilling fluic
produced waters and other wastes associated wéthextploration, production and/or development ofderwil and natural gas are curre
exempt from regulation as hazardous wastes und&ARElowever, it is possible that certain oil andumal gas exploration and product
wastes now classified as nbazardous could be classified as hazardous wasths future. In September 2010, the Natural RessuDefens
Council filed a petition for rulemaking with the ERrequesting reconsideration of the RCRA exempfion exploration, production, a
development wastes. To date, the EPA has not takgformal action on the petition. Any change iea RCRA exemption for such wastes cc
result in an increase in costs to manage and dispbg/astes. In the course of the Compamyperations, it generates petroleum hydroce
wastes and ordinary industrial wastes that areestibp regulation under the RCRA. The Company betidt is in substantial compliance with
regulations regarding the handling and disposallaind natural gas wastes from its operations.

Air Emissions

The Clean Air Act, as amended, the Outer Continedkeelf Lands Act (the “OCSLA™and comparable state laws and regula
restrict the emission of air pollutants from maoyrges and also impose various permitting, momi¢peind reporting requirements. These
and regulations may require the Company to obtegrapproval for the construction or modification ofteén projects or facilities expectec
produce or significantly increase air emissionstaimb and strictly comply with air permit requirenteror utilize specific equipment
technologies to control emissions. Obtaining pesrhés the potential to delay the development cdirwil natural gas projects. The Company
be required to incur certain capital expenditumsdir pollution control equipment or other air ssionsrelated issues as a result of <
requirements. Additionally, violations of lease ditions or regulations related to air emissions eggult in civil and criminal penalties, as v
as potential court injunctions curtailing operaticend canceling leases. Such enforcement liabiliten result from either governmenta
citizen prosecution.

In August 2012, the EPA issued final regulatioret #sstablished new air emission controls for oil aatural gas production and nat
gas processing, including, among other things, sewrce performance standards for volatile organimpounds that would apply to ne
hydraulically fractured wells, existing wells thate refractured, compressors, pneumatic controllersagmwessels and natural gas proce:
plants placed in service after August 2011. Howgwver
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April 2013, the court granted the ERAMotion for an abeyance until May 30, 2014 of ledellenges to the regulations in order to pettim
EPA to reconsider and potentially revipertions of its rules. On September 30, 2013, tR&A Hled a status report indicating that it \
continuing its reconsideration of the regulationd &as in the process of developing revised rdiasit planned to propose by April 30, 2C
The EPA has also implemented an engine emissitinggsrogram to ensure certain categories of esgidepending on the date manufactt
meet the EPA emission standards. The federal staddaengines manufactured before 2006 also reglemission testing on engines gre
than 500 horsepower and strict engine maintenalares o be in place by October 2013. The Compamently has such maintenance plar
place.

Water Discharges

The Federal Water Pollution Act, as amended (tHed Water Act”),and analogous state laws impose restrictions aitd sontrols
regarding the discharge of pollutants into navigalhters. Pursuant to these laws and accompangmgdations, permits must be obtaine
discharge produced waters and sand, drilling fluitigl cuttings and other substances related &dth and natural gas industry into onsh
coastal and offshore waters of the United Statestaie waters. Any such discharge of pollutants megulated waters must be performe
accordance with the terms of the permit issuedhgyBEPA or the analogous state agency. The Cleaer\Wat and other laws, such as
OCSLA, require the Company to develop and implenggmill response plans intended to prepare the owhehe facility to respond to
hazardous substance or oil discharge. In addisipifi, prevention, control and countermeasure rexménts under federal law require approp
containment berms and similar structures to hefwemt the contamination of navigable waters oriaijg shorelines in the event of a s
rupture or leak from an onshore, or offshore, fgcilThe Clean Water Act and analogous state ldas equire individual permits or cover:
under general permits for discharges of storm waiteoff from certain types of facilities.

The Clean Water Act further imposes certain dugéied liabilities on “responsible partiesélated to the prevention of oil spills ¢
damages resulting from such spills in, or threaignuUnited States waters, including the Outer Gamtial Shelf or adjoining shorelines. A lig
responsible party includes the owner or operat@modnshore facility, vessel, or pipeline that soarce, or a potential threat, of an oil disch
or, in the case of offshore facilities, the lessepermittee of the area in which a dischargingifgaés located. The Clean Water Act assigns j
and several strict liability, without regard to kato each liable party for all containment antiremoval costs and a variety of public and pri
damages including, but not limited to, the costsesponding to a release of oil, natural resousraaties, and economic damages suffer:
persons adversely affected by an oil spill. Althowtefenses exist to the liability imposed by theddl Water Act, they are limited. If an
discharge or substantial threat of discharge wectur, the Company may be liable for costs amdadges, which costs and damages cou
material to its results of operations and finanpidition.

Climate Change

In December 2009, the EPA published its findingg #missions of C@, methane and certain other greenhouse gases (“Glpeeser
an endangerment to public health and the envirohbretause emissions of such gases are, accordihg #PA, contributing to warming of 1
Earth’s atmosphere and other climatic changes. Thesimdsdllow the EPA to adopt and implement reguteithat restrict emissions of GH
under existing provisions of the Clean Air Act. Acdingly, the EPA has adopted rules that requirdaction in emissions of GHGs from mc
vehicles and also trigger Clean Air Act constructemd operating permit review for GHG emissionsriroertain stationary sources. ERA’
endangerment finding and GHG rules were upheldhlbyUnited States Court of Appeals for the D.C. @irin a June 2012 decision, an
petition for review of the case by the entire DQZrcuit was denied in December 2012.

The EPA has also adopted rules requiring the reygpdaf GHG emissions from oil and natural gas puaiiten and processing facilities
the United States on an annual basis. The Compaligves it has complied with all applicable repmgtirequirements to date. However,
adoption and implementation of any regulations igipg reporting obligations on, or limiting emisssoaf GHG gases from, the Company’
equipment and operations could require it to iraxditional costs to reduce emissions of GHGs aatatiwith its operations or could adver:
affect demand for the oil and natural gas it predud-inally, to the extent increasing concentratiohGHGs in the Eartk’atmosphere m
produce climate changes that have significant ply®ffects, such as increased frequency and $gwdrstorms, droughts, floods and of
climatic events. Such events could have a matadia¢rse effect on the Company and potentially stitiee Company to further regulation.

In addition, Congress has considered legislatioretiuce emissions of GHGs and more than lwigof the states have begun tal
actions to control and/or reduce emissions of GH@Emarily through the adoption of a climate chaagéon plan, completion of GHG emiss
inventories and/or regional GHG cap and trade pnogr Any future federal laws
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or implemented regulations that may be adopteddtiress GHG emissions could require the Companyaariincreased operating co
adversely affect demand for the oil and natural thas the Company produces and have a materiarselwffect on the Comparsybusines
financial condition and results of operations.

Endangered Species

The federal Endangered Species Act (the “ES&%tricts activities that may affect endangerethoeatened species or their habi
The Company believes its operations are in subatarumpliance with the ESA. If endangered speeieslocated in areas of the underly
properties where the Company wishes to conducimseisurveys, development activities or abandonnugdrations, the work could
prohibited or delayed or expensive mitigation mayréquired. Moreover, as a result of a settlempptaved by the U.S. District Court for -
District of Columbia on September 9, 2011, the WiSh and Wildlife Service is required to consitigting more than 250 species as endang
under the ESA. Under the September 9, 2011 seftiertiee federal agency is required to make a deétation on listing of the species
endangered or threatened over the six-year peridohg with the agencg’ 2017 fiscal year. The designation of previousigrotected species
threatened or endangered in areas where undegyoperty operations are conducted could cause ¢mep@ny to incur increased costs ari:
from species protection measures or could reslilnitations on its exploration and production gittes that could have an adverse impact ¢
ability to develop and produce reserves. In padiguhe Lesser Prairie Chicken, which inhabitstipos of Colorado, Kansas, Nebraska, |
Mexico, Oklahoma and Texas, is due for a deterngnain listing as threatened in March of 2014. Thpact of a determination for listing 1
Lesser Prairie Chicken as threatened is unknowthigtime. The Company is an active participantvarious agency and industry commiti
that are developing or addressing various EPA déner dederal and state agency programs to minipazential impacts to business activity.

Employee Health and Safety

The Companys operations are subject to a number of federalstateé laws and regulations, including the fed®wedupational Safe
and Health Act, as amended (“OSHA&Rd comparable state statutes, whose purposepiwtiect the health and safety of workers. In add
the OSHA Hazardous Communication Standard reqtirasinformation be maintained concerning hazardoaterials used or produced in
Company'’s operations and that this information b®vided to employees. Pursuant to the Emergenaynitlg and Community Right-t&now
Act, also known as Title 1l of the federal SuperduAmendment and Reauthorization Act, businessasstbre threshold amounts of chemi
that are subject to OSH#&'Hazardous Communication Standard must submitrivgftion to state and local authorities in orderfgoilitate
emergency planning and response. That informatigenerally available to the public. The Comparliebes that it is in substantial complial
with all applicable laws and regulations relatingiorker health and safety.

State Regulation

The states in which the Company operates, along sgine municipalities and Native American tribaaas, regulate some or all of
following activities: the drilling for, and the pdaction and gathering of, oil and natural gas,uditig requirements relating to drilling perrr
the location, spacing and density of wells, unite@aand pooling of interests, the method of drdli casing and equipping of wells, the protec
of fresh water sources, the orderly developmertosfimon sources of supply of oil and natural gas,dperation of wells, allowable rates
production, the use of fresh water in oil and reltgas operations, saltwater injection and dispopatations, the plugging and abandonme
wells and the restoration of surface properties,pgirevention of waste of oil and natural gas ressrthe protection of the correlative right
oil and natural gas owners and, where necessaydid unfair, unjust or discriminatory service, fiees, terms and conditions for the gathe
of natural gas. These regulations may affect thmbar and location of the Compaayiells and the amounts of oil and natural gasrtieat be
produced from the Company’s wells, and increasedtisés of the Company’s operations.

Hydraulic Fracturing

Oil and natural gas may be recovered from certdithe Companys oil and natural gas properties through the uséydfaulic
fracturing, combined with sophisticated drillingydtaulic fracturing, which involves the injectiofi water, sand and chemicals under pres
into formations to fracture the surrounding rockl atimulate production, is typically regulated ligts oil and gas commissions. However.
EPA has asserted federal regulatory authority megtain hydraulic fracturing practices, includingetuse of diesel, kerosene and sir
compounds in the fracturing fluid. In August 201t#% EPA issued final Clean Air Act regulations gmieg performance standards, including
the capture of air emissions released during hyidrétacturing. However, in January 2013 the EP/Arsitted an unopposed motion to
United States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Ciragieking to stay legal challenges to the ClearA&irregulations while it reconsiders porti
of the new rules. Also, federal legislation prewlyuwas introduced, but not enacted, to providddderal regulation of
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hydraulic fracturing and to require disclosure loé themicals used in the fracturing process. In ¥@i2, the Bureau of Land Managen
within the U.S. Department of the Interior issuegraposed rule containing disclosure requirementsather mandates for hydraulic fractu
on federal lands, but in January 2013 it announicatlit would be submitting a revised rule propo3#&lat revised proposed rule was publis
for public comment in May 2013. The Departmentraétior is now analyzing the comments and is exggetd promulgate a final rule someti
in 2014 and 2015.

Certain states in which the Company operates, dimiuTexas, Kansas and Oklahoma, and municipatitiesein, have adopted, or
considering adopting, regulations that have imppsedhat could impose, more stringent permittidigclosure, disposal and well construc
requirements on hydraulic fracturing operations. &ample, in February 2012, the Railroad CommissibTexas implemented the Fractu
Disclosure Rule requiring public disclosure of tilé chemicals in fluids used in the hydraulic faaictg process. Local ordinances or o
regulations may regulate or prohibit the perforreantwell drilling in general and hydraulic fradig in particular. If new laws or regulatic
that significantly restrict hydraulic fracturingeandopted at either the state or federal levelGbmpanys fracturing activities could becol
subject to additional permit requirements, repgrti@quirements or operational restrictions and tsassociated permitting delays and pote
increases in costs. These delays or additionas @ostid adversely affect the determination of waethwell is commercially viable. Restrictic
on hydraulic fracturing could also reduce the antaefnoil and natural gas that the Company is ultetyaable to produce in commerc
guantities.

In addition to asserting regulatory authority, anter of federal entities are analyzing, or havenbeguested to review, a variety
environmental issues associated with hydraulictdirg. In April 2012, President Obama issued aecexve order that established a worl
group for the purpose of coordinating policy, imf@tion sharing and planning across federal ageraidsoffices regardinguhconvention:
natural gas productionjihcluding hydraulic fracturing. In December 2012e tEPA issued an initial progress report on a shefyun in 2011 «
the potential environmental effects of hydrauliachuring on drinking water and groundwater, wittiraft final report expected to be issuec
peer review and comment in late 2014. The EPA lasannounced an intent to propose by 2014 effllieit guidelines that waste water fr
shale gas extraction operations must meet befdarggdo a treatment plant; the agency also projdws it will publish an Advance Notice
Proposed Rulemaking regarding the Toxic Substa@oesrol Act reporting of the chemical substanced mixtures used in hydraulic fracturii
Additionally, a committee of the United States Houd Representatives has conducted an investigafidrydraulic fracturing practices, &
certain members of Congress have called upon ti& Government Accountability Office to investigdtew hydraulic fracturing mig
adversely affect water resources; the SEC to iigagst the natural gas industry and any possibléeading of investors or the public regarc
the economic feasibility of pursuing natural gagpaits in shales by means of hydraulic fracturiagd the U.S. Energy Informati
Administration to provide a better understandingtldit agencys estimates regarding natural gas reserves, imgudéserves from sh:
formations, as well as uncertainties associatetl thibse estimates. The studies and initiativesritesst above, depending on their degre
pursuit and any meaningful results obtained, ceplat efforts to further regulate hydraulic fraatgriunder the Safe Drinking Water Act or o
regulatory mechanisms.

The Company diligently reviews best practices amhlistry standards, serves on industry associatomittees and complies with
regulatory requirements in the protection of patalvhter sources. Protective practices includeabinot limited to, setting multiple strings
protection pipe across the potable water sourcéscamenting these pipes from setting depth to serfeontinuously monitoring the hydrat
fracturing process in real time and disposing bhah-commercially produced fluids in certified disposadlls at depths below the potable w
sources. There have not been any incidents, aitatio suits related to the Compasyiydraulic fracturing activities involving envinorenta
concerns.

OTHER REGULATION OF THE OIL AND NATURAL GAS INDUSTR Y

The oil and natural gas industry is extensivelyuteted by numerous federal, state, local, and regiauthorities, as well as Nat
American tribes. Legislation affecting the oil amatural gas industry is under constant review foeadment or expansion, frequently increa
the regulatory burden. Also, numerous departmemisagencies, both federal and state, and Nativeridaretribes are authorized by statut
issue rules and regulations affecting the oil aatiral gas industry and its individual members, safwhich carry substantial penalties
noncompliance. Although the regulatory burden oa @il and natural gas industry increases the Cowipacost of doing business a
consequently, affects its profitability, these tend generally do not affect the Company any diffédyeor to any greater or lesser extent than
affect other companies in the industry with simfigees, quantities and locations of production.

The availability, terms and cost of transportasignificantly affect sales of oil and natural géke interstate transportation and sal¢
resale of oil and natural gas is subject to federgllation, including regulation of the terms, dibions and rates for interstate transporta
storage and various other matters, primarily byRederal Energy Regulatory
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Commission (“FERC”)Federal and state regulations govern the pricetamds for access to oil and natural gas pipelinasportation. Tt
FERC's regulations for interstate oil and natural gasgmission in some circumstances may also affecinthastate transportation of oil ¢
natural gas.

Sales of oil, natural gas and NGLs are not curyerjulated and are made at market prices. Althailgmatural gas and NGL pric
are currently unregulated, Congress historically been active in the area of oil and natural ggslation. The Company cannot predict whe
new legislation to regulate oil, natural gas andLN@ight be proposed, what proposals, if any, magtually be enacted by Congress ol
various state legislatures, and what effect, if, aing proposals might have on the Company’s operati

Drilling and Production

The Companys operations are subject to various types of réigulat federal, state, local and Native Ameriadval levels. These typ
of regulation include requiring permits for thelling of wells, drilling bonds and reports concemioperations. Most states, and some cou
municipalities and Native American tribal areas rehthe Company operates also regulate one or nfidhe ¢ollowing activities:

» the location of wells

» the method of drilling and casing we

» the timing of construction or drilling activitie

» the rates of production, or “allowables”

» the use of surface or subsurface wa

» the surface use and restoration of properties woch wells are drillec
» the plugging and abandoning of wells;

» the notice to surface owners and other third pa

State laws regulate the size and shape of driind spacing units or proration units governing poeling of oil and natural g
properties. Some states allow forced pooling agrdtion of tracts to facilitate exploration whdgher states rely on voluntary pooling of la
and leases. In some instances, forced pooling itization may be implemented by third parties angymeduce the Comparsyinterest in th
unitized properties. In addition, state conservataws establish maximum rates of production frahand natural gas wells, generally protr
the venting or flaring of natural gas and imposguneements regarding the ratability of productidihese laws and regulations may limit
amount of oil and natural gas the Company can m@dwom its wells or limit the number of wells dretlocations at which the Company
drill. Moreover, each state generally imposes apection or severance tax with respect to the pridlu@nd sale of oil, natural gas, and na
gas liquids within its jurisdiction.

The Oil Conservation Division of the New Mexico Egye Minerals and Natural Resources Departmentiresjthe posting of financi
assurance for owners and operators on privatelyedvar state land within New Mexico in order to pdsv/for abandonment restoration
remediation of wells. The Railroad Commission okd®imposes financial assurance requirements omtmpe. The United States Army Ca
of Engineers (“ACOE"and many other state and local authorities alse hegulations for plugging and abandonment, decasioning and si
restoration.

Natural Gas Sales and Transportation

Historically, federal legislation and regulatoryntmls have affected the price of the natural g@sGompany produces and the ma
in which the Company markets its production. FERG [urisdiction over the transportation and salerésale of natural gas in inters
commerce by natural gas companies under the NaBaslAct of 1938 and the Natural Gas Policy Acl®78. Various federal laws enac
since 1978 have resulted in the removal of allgpeind norprice controls for sales of domestic natural gdd sofirst sales, which include all
the Companys sales of its own production. Under the Energycidhct of 2005, FERC has substantial enforcemenia@rity to prohibit th
manipulation of natural gas markets and enforceuless and orders, including the ability to assedsstantial civil penalties.

FERC also regulates interstate natural gas tratemr rates and service conditions and establigteeterms under which the Comp
may use interstate natural gas pipeline capacitycwaffects the marketing of natural gas thatGoenpany produces, as well as the revent
receives for sales of its natural gas and relebig watural gas pipeline capacity.
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Commencing in 1985, FERC promulgated a series @grsy regulations and rule makings that signifigafastered competition in the busin
of transporting and marketing gas. Today, inteesfgipeline companies are required to provide nenidisnatory transportation services
producers, marketers and other shippers, regardfegsether such shippers are affiliated with aeristate pipeline company. FERGhitiative:
have led to the development of a competitive, caoess market for natural gas purchases and bakegarmits all purchasers of natural ge
buy gas directly from thirgharty sellers other than pipelines. However, thiunad gas industry historically has been very higaregulated
therefore, the Company cannot guarantee that s dgingent regulatory approach currently pursoyed-ERC and Congress will contir
indefinitely into the future nor can the Companyetimine what effect, if any, future regulatory cgas might have on the Compasiyiatural ge
related activities.

Under FERC'’s current regulatory regime, transmissiervices must be provided on an open-accessjstoinginatory basis at cost-
based rates or at markedsed rates if the transportation market at isswseifficiently competitive. Gathering service, whiaccurs upstream
jurisdictional transmission services, is reguldtgdhe states onshore anwstate waters. Although its policy is still in fluix, the past FERC h
reclassified certain jurisdictional transmissiortiliies as norurisdictional gathering facilities, which has thtendency to increase 1
Company’s cost of transporting gas to point-of-$adations.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2013 , the Company had 1,91ktifue employees, including 27@eologists, geophysicists, petroleum engin
technicians, land and regulatory professionalgh®fCompany’s 1,911 employees, 624 were locatdteaEompanys headquarters in Oklaho
City, Oklahoma at December 31, 2013 , and the neimiiemployees work in the Company’s various figfices and drilling sites.
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GLOSSARY OF OIL AND NATURAL GAS TERMS
The following is a description of the meanings eftain oil and natural gas industry terms usedhig report.

2-D seismic or 3-D seismiGeophysical data that depict the subsurface strat@o dimensions or three dimensions, respectivély
seismic typically provides a more detailed and eateuinterpretation of the subsurface strata thBns2ismic.

Bbl. One stock tank barrel, or 42 U.S. gallons liquitlmee, used in this report in reference to oil drestliquid hydrocarbons.
Bcf. Billion cubic feet of natural gas.

Boe.Barrels of oil equivalent, with six thousand cufget of natural gas being equivalent to one bafdlil. Although an equivale
barrel of condensate or natural gas may be equitvtdea barrel of oil on an energy basis, it is egtivalent on a value basis as there may
large difference in value between an equivalentgband a barrel of oil. For example, based orctivamodity prices used to prepare the esti
of the Company’s reserves at year-end 2013 of IBHI for oil and $3.67Mcf for natural gas, the ratio of economic valdeoid to gas wa
approximately 25 to 1, even though the ratio fdedwaining energy equivalency is 6 to 1.

Boe/d.Boe per day.
Btu or British thermal unitThe quantity of heat required to raise the tempegadf one pound of water by one degree Fahrenheit.

Completion.The process of treating a drilled well followedthg installation of permanent equipment for thedpidion of oil or natur:
gas, or in the case of a dry well, the reportinthebappropriate authority that the well has bdemdoned.

CondensateA mixture of hydrocarbons that exists in the gaseplase at original reservoir temperature and presbut that, whe
produced, is in the liquid phase at surface presand temperature.

CO.. Carbon dioxide.
Developed acreagdhe number of acres that are assignable to produatells.

Developed oil, natural gas and NGL reserv@sserves of any category that can be expected tedogered (i) through existing we
with existing equipment and operating methods owfiich the cost of the required equipment is reddyi minor compared to the cost of a t
well and (ii) through installed extraction equiprhand infrastructure operational at the time ofrbgerves estimate if the extraction is by m
not involving a well.

Development cost€osts incurred to obtain access to proved resamdsto provide facilities for extracting, treatirgathering an
storing the oil and natural gas. More specificallgyelopment costs, including depreciation andiealple operating costs of support equipr
and facilities and other costs of development &is; are costs incurred to (i) gain access to @negare well locations for drilling, includi
surveying well locations for the purpose of deterinm specific development drilling sites, cleargr@und, draining, road building and reloca
public roads, gas lines and power lines, to theréxhecessary in developing the proved reservggri{l and equip development wel
developmentype stratigraphic test wells and service wellgluding the costs of platforms and of well equipmeuach as casing, tubir
pumping equipment, and the wellhead assembly,aiduire, construct and install production fa@htisuch as lease flow lines, separe
treaters, heaters, manifolds, measuring devicespamdiiction storage tanks, natural gas cycling pmdessing plants, and central utility
waste disposal systems, and (iv) provide improeedvery systems.

Development wellA well drilled within the proved area of an oil patural gas reservoir to the depth of a stratigrapbrizon known t
be productive.

Dry well. An exploratory, development or extension well thedves to be incapable of producing either oil atural gas in sufficiel
guantities to justify completion as an oil or nalugas well.

Environmental Assessment (“EA’A study to determine whether a federal action $icgmtly affects the environment, which fed
agencies may be required by the National Enviroriahéolicy Act or similar state statutes to
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undertake prior to the commencement of activitiet tvould constitute federal actions, such as il matural gas exploration and produc
activities on federal lands.

Environmental Impact StatemeAtmore detailed study of the environmental effexfta federal undertaking and its alternatives the
EA, which may be required by the National Enviromtaé Policy Act or similar state statutes, eithéerathe EA has been prepared
determined that the environmental consequences mrbposed federal undertaking, such as oil andralagas exploration and product
activities on federal lands, may be significantwithout the initial preparation of an EA if a fedeagency anticipates that a proposed fe
undertaking may significantly impact the environten

Exploratory well.A well drilled to find a new field or to find a nemeservoir in a field previously found to produdear natural gas i
another reservoir.

Field. An area consisting of a single reservoir or mudtiservoirs all grouped on or related to the sadfigidual geological structur
feature and/or stratigraphic condition. There maytWo or more reservoirs in a field which are sept vertically by intervening impervic
strata, or laterally by local geological barriemspoth. Reservoirs that are associated by beingeanlapping or adjacent fields may be treatec
single or common operational field. The geologiams “structural feature” and “stratigraphic cdiai” are intended to identify localiz
geological features as opposed to the broader tefimasins, trends, provinces, plays, areas ofesteetc.

Gross acres or gross wellShe total acres or wells, as the case may be, ichahworking interest is owned.

High CO.gas.Natural gas that contains more than 10%.®@volume.

Imbricate stackingA geological formation characterized by multiplgdes lying lapped over each other.

MBbls.Thousand barrels of oil or other liquid hydrocarkon

MBoe.Thousand barrels of oil equivalent.

Mcf. Thousand cubic feet of natural gas.

MMBbls. Million barrels of oil or other liquid hydrocarbons

MMBoe.Million barrels of oil equivalent.

MMBtu. Million British Thermal Units.

MMcf. Million cubic feet of natural gas.

MMcf/d. MMcf per day.

Net acres or net wellsThe sum of the fractional working interest ownedjioss acres or gross wells, as the case may be.
NGL. Natural gas liquids, such as ethane, propane, ésitand natural gasoline that are extracted frooralagas production streams.
NYMEX.The New York Mercantile Exchange.

Plugging and abandonmenRefers to the sealing off of fluids in the strpnetrated by a well so that the fluids from omatstm will
not escape into another or to the surface. Regukabf all states require plugging of abandonedswel

Present value of future net revenues (“PV-10The present value of estimated future revenueg tgelmerated from the productior
proved reserves, before income taxes, calculateddéordance with SEC guidelines, net of estimatedyxtion and future development cc
using prices and costs as of the date of estimatithout future escalation and without giving efféc hedging activities, noproperty relate
expenses such as general and administrative expetedat service and depreciation, depletion andrtaration. PV10 is calculated using
annual discount rate of 10%.
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Production costs.

(i) Costs incurred to operate and maintain wells atate@ equipment and facilities, including depreoiatand applicable operati
costs of support equipment and facilities and ottwsts of operating and maintaining those wells eeldted equipment a
facilities. They become part of the cost of oil @& produced. Examples of production costs (somsticalled lifting costs) are:

(A) Costs of labor to operate the wells and relatedpegent and facilitie:

(B) Repairs and maintenan

(C) Materials, supplies, and fuel consumed and supptiézed in operating the wells and related equpirand facilitie:
(D) Property taxes and insurance applicable to provepesties and wells and related equipment anditiasi

(E) Severance taxe

(i) Some support equipment or facilities may serve twanore oil and gas producing activities and masp alerve transportatic
refining and marketing activities. To the exterdttthe support equipment and facilities are usealliand gas producing activitit
their depreciation and applicable operating costome exploration, development or production cestsppropriate. Depreciati
depletion and amortization of capitalized acquasitiexploration, and development costs are notymtish costs but also beco
part of the cost of oil and gas produced along witiduction (lifting) costs identified above.

Productive well. A well that is found to be capable of producinbasinatural gas in sufficient quantities to jugtfompletion as an ¢
or natural gas well.

Prospect.A specific geographic area that, based on supmgpd#vplogical, geophysical or other data and alstippmary economi
analysis using reasonably anticipated prices astscis deemed to have potential for the discoséngpmmercial hydrocarbons.

Proved developed reserveReserves that are both proved and developed.

Proved oil, natural gas and NGL reservedas the meaning given to such term in Rule 4-1R2d)of Regulation S¢, which define
proved reserves as:

Those quantities of oil and natural gas which, hglgsis of geoscience and engineering data, castimated with reasonable certa
to be economically producible from a given dateviand, from known reservoirs, and under existinghecoic conditions, operating methods,
government regulations, prior to the time at whadmntracts providing the right to operate expireless evidence indicates that renewi
reasonably certain, regardless of whether detestitndr probabilistic methods are used for estiomatiThe project to extract the hydrocart
must have commenced or the operator must be rdalgaretain that it will commence the project wittd reasonable time.

The area of a reservoir considered proved incl@lése area identified by drilling and limited fiyid contacts, if any, and (ii) adjact
undrilled portions of the reservoir that can, wi#asonable certainty, be judged to be continuotis #vand to contain economically produci
oil or gas on the basis of available geoscienceemgineering data. In the absence of data on faidacts, proved quantities in a reservoil
limited by the lowest known hydrocarbons as seera iwell penetration unless geoscience, engineasingerformance data and relia
technology establish a lower contact with reasanabttainty.

Where direct observation from well penetrations thefined a highest known oil elevation and the i exists for an associated
cap, proved oil reserves may be assigned in thetatally higher portions of the reservoir onlyggoscience, engineering or performance
and reliable technology establish the higher cdnéth reasonable certainty.

Reserves that can be produced economically thrapglication of improved recovery techniques (inahgd but not limited to, flui
injection) are included in the proved classificatishen (i) successful testing by a pilot projecaimarea of the reservoir with properties no r
favorable than in the reservoir as a whole, theatfmn of an installed program in the reservoiranranalogous reservoir, or other evidence |
reliable technology establishes the reasonablaingrtof
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the engineering analysis on which the project @agmm was based and (ii) the project has been epprior development by all necess
parties and entities, including governmental esditi

Existing economic conditions include prices andi€@s which economic producibility from a reservisito be determined. The pr
shall be the average price during them@nth period prior to the ending date of the pedodered by the report, determined as an unwei
arithmetic average of the first-day-of-theenth price for each month within such period, sslprices are defined by contractual arrangen
excluding escalations based upon future conditions.

Proved undeveloped reserveReserves that are both proved and undeveloped.
Pulling units. Pulling units are used in connection with complesi and workover operations.
PV-10.See “Present value of future net revenues” above.

Rental tools.A variety of rental tools and equipment, rangingnf trash trailers to blowout preventers to samphssors, for use in t
oil field.

ReservesEstimated remaining quantities of oil and naturas @nd related substances anticipated to be ecocalmproducible b
application of development projects to known acclatiens. In addition, there must exist, or therestrioe a reasonable expectation that
will exist, the legal right to produce or a reveringrest in the production, installed means ofvéeing oil and natural gas or related substa
to market, and all permits and financing requit@driplement the project.

Reserves should not be assigned to adjacent réseisaated by major, potentially sealing, fault#til those reservoirs are penetr:
and evaluated as economically producible. Resestreald not be assigned to areas that are clegulraed from a known accumulation k
non-productive reservoir i(e., absence of reservoir, structurally low reservoir,negative test results). Such areas may contasppctivi
resources i.e., potentially recoverable resources from undiscedexccumulations).

ReservoirA porous and permeable underground formation coimgia natural accumulation of producible oil amdiatural gas that
confined by impermeable rock or water barriersiariddividual and separate from other reservoirs.

Roustabout servicesThe provision of manpower to assist in conductitdield operations.

Standardized measure or standardized measure obulised future net cash flow3he present value of estimated future cash ini
from proved oil, natural gas and NGL reserves, fatsre development and production costs and futticeme tax expenses, discounte
10% per annum to reflect timing of future cash #oand using the same pricing assumptions as wex toscalculate P\I0. Standardize
Measure differs from PV-10 because Standardizedsheancludes the effect of future income taxefuture net revenues.

Trucking. The provision of trucks to move the Companylrilling rigs from one well location to anothemdato deliver water ar
equipment to the field.

Undeveloped acreagd.ease acreage on which wells have not been digtetbmpleted to a point that would permit the pritbn o
economic quantities of oil or natural gas regasiiEfsvhether such acreage contains proved reserves.

Undeveloped oil, natural gas and NGL reservBeserves of any category that are expected tedowvered from new wells on undril
acreage, or from existing wells where a relativejor expenditure is required for recompletion.

() Reserves on undrilled acreage are limited to thdisectly offsetting development spacing areas trat reasonably certain
production when drilled, unless evidence usingab#é technology exists that establishes reasonedt@inty of econom
producibility at greater distances.

(i) Undrilled locations are classified as having undiswed reserves only if a development plan has laglepted indicating that th
are scheduled to be drilled within five years, galthe specific circumstances justify a longer time

(iii) Under no circumstances shall estimates for undpeelaeserves attributable to any acreage for whithapplication of flui
injection or other improved recovery techniquedatemplated, unless such techniques have beendheffestive by actual projec
in the same reservoir or an analogous reservdiy ather evidence using reliable technology estabig reasonable certainty.
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Working interest.The operating interest that gives the owner tgbtrio drill, produce and conduct operating adegiton the proper
and receive a share of production and requireswimer to pay a share of the costs of drilling armtpction operations.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Drilling for and producing oil and natural gas ardnigh risk activities with many uncertainties thaboald adversely affect the Comparsy’
business, financial condition or results of operatis.

The Companys drilling and operating activities are subjectntamerous risks, including the risk that the Compuaiill not discove
commercially productive reservoirs. Drilling forl @nd natural gas can be unprofitable if dry welte drilled and if productive wells do |
produce sufficient revenues to return a profit.tRemmore, even if sufficient amounts of oil or matugas exist, the Company may damagt
potentially productive hydrocarbon bearing formatimr experience mechanical difficulties while dng or completing the well, resulting ir
reduction in production from the well or abandonimehthe well. Decisions to develop properties depén part on the evaluation of d
obtained through geophysical and geological analypeduction data and engineering studies, thaltsesf which are often inconclusive
subject to varying interpretations. The estimatest of drilling, completing and operating wellsuiscertain before drilling commences. Over:
in budgeted expenditures are common risks thanhtaie a particular project uneconomical. In addijtibe Company drilling and producin
operations may be curtailed, delayed or canceledrasult of various factors, including the followgi

» delays imposed by or resulting from compliance wéhulatory requirements including permitti
» unusual or unexpected geological formations andaldslations

» shortages of or delays in obtaining equipment aralified personne

» shortages of or delays in obtaining water for hyticafracturing operation

» equipment malfunctions, failures or accide

» lack of available gathering facilities or delayscomstruction of gathering facilitie

» lack of available capacity on interconnecting traission pipeline!

» lack of adequate electrical infrastructure and wdisgposal capacit

» unexpected operational events and drilling conagt

* pipe or cement failures and casing collag

» pressures, fires, blowouts and explosi

» lost or damaged drilling and service to

» loss of drilling fluid circulatior

» uncontrollable flows of oil, natural gas, brine,tersor drilling fluids

* natural disaster

» environmental hazards, such as oil and naturalegés, pipeline ruptures and discharges of toxgzgar well fluids

» adverse weather conditions such as extreme cokl faused by extreme heat or lack of rain, andrsestorms, tornadoes
hurricanes;

* reductions in oil, natural gas and NGL prit
» oil and natural gas property title probl emspan
* market limitations for oil, natural gas and NC

Certain of these risks can cause substantial logssading personal injury or loss of life, damageor destruction of property, natt
resources and equipment, environmental contammatidoss of wells and regulatory fines or penaltie
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Qil, natural gas and NGL prices fluctuate due toraumber of factors that are beyond the Compasigontrol, and a decline in oil, natur.
gas and NGL prices could significantly affect theo@pany’s financial results and impede its growth.

The Companys revenues, profitability and cash flow are higtdpendent upon the prices it realizes from the afabd, natural gas ar
NGLs. The markets for these commodities are vematie. Oil, natural gas and NGL prices can fluttuavidely in response to a variety
factors that are beyond the Company’s control. &liastors include, among others:

« regional, domestic and foreign supply of, and deingom, oil, natural gas and NGLs, as well as peioep of supply of, ar
demand for, oil, natural gas and NGLs;

» the price and quantity of foreign impo

« U.S. and worldwide political and economic condisy

» weather conditions and seasonal tre

» anticipated future prices of oil, natural gas ar@lLN, alternative fuels and other commaodii

» technological advances affecting energy consumgiahenergy suppl

» the proximity, capacity, cost and availability apgline infrastructure, treating, transportationl aefining capacity
» natural disasters and other acts of force maj

» domestic and foreign governmental regulations awdtion

* energy conservation and environmental measure

» the price and availability of alternative fus

For oil, from January 1, 2010 through DecemberZML,3 , the highest monthly NYMEX settled price visl3.93per Bbl and th
lowest was $71.92 per Bbl. For natural gas, fromudsy 1, 2010 through December 31, 201Be highest monthly NYMEX settled price v
$5.81 per MMBtu and the lowest was $2i8&r MMBtu. In addition, the market price of oil andtural gas is generally higher in the wi
months than during other months of the year dued®ased demand for oil and natural gas for hgatimposes during the winter season.

Lower oil, natural gas and NGL prices may not odécrease the Compagyfevenues on a per share basis, but also mayatedy
reduce the amount of oil, natural gas and NGLs ithean produce economically and, therefore, cchdsle a material adverse effect or
financial condition and results of operations. Tdl&o may cause the Company to make substantialwlawd adjustments to its estimated prc
reserves.

Future price declines may result in reductions dfa asset carrying values of the Company’s oil aratural gas properties.

The Company utilizes the full cost method of acamgnfor costs related to its oil and natural gasperties. Under this account
method, all costs for both productive and nonprtidegroperties are capitalized and amortized oaggregate basis over the estimated liv:
the properties using the unit-pfoduction method. However, the amount of theséscibst can be carried as capitalized assets jectuio
ceiling, which limits such pooled costs to the &gmte of the present value of future net reven@igsaved oil, natural gas and NGL resel
attributable to proved properties, discounted &b 1flus the lower of cost or market value of uneatdd properties. The full cost ceiling
evaluated at the end of each quarter using the raosht 12month average prices for oil and natural gas, aeljufor the impact of derivativ
accounted for as cash flow hedges. In the eventoanlye Company derivatives are accounted for as cash flow hedpesimpact of the:
derivative contracts will be included in the detaration of the Company’s full cost ceiling. The Quany had ndull cost ceiling impairmen
during the years ended December 31, 2013 , 202Dt and cumulative full cost ceiling limitation pairment charges of $3.5 billicat bott
December 31, 2013 and 201ZFuture declines in oil, natural gas and NGL mjceithout other mitigating circumstances, couldutein
additional losses of future net revenues, includossges attributable to quantities that cannotdmnemically produced at lower prices, wt
could cause the Company to record additional vetitemns of capitalized costs of its oil and naturas$ groperties and narash charges agai
future earnings. The amount of such future writesa® and non-cash charges could be substantial.
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The Company has a substantial amount of indebtednaad other obligations and commitments, which magversely affect its cash flc
and its ability to operate its business.

As of December 31, 2013 , the Company’s total ingldhess was $3.2 billicend the Company had preferred stock outstanding av
aggregate liquidation preference of $765.0 milliomhe Company substantial level of indebtedness and the diddemssociated with
outstanding preferred stock increases the podgilfilat it may be unable to generate cash suffic@pay, when due, the principal of, interes
or other amounts due in respect of the Companyiehtedness and/or the preferred stock dividends. Companys indebtedness a
outstanding preferred stock, combined with itsdeasd other financial obligations and contractuwehmitments, such as its obligations to
wells for the Permian Trust and Mississippian Tiystould have other important consequences t&Cibrmpany. For example, it could:

* make the Company more vulnerable to adverse changgseneral economic, industry and competitive dors and adver:
changes in government regulation;

* require the Company to dedicate a substantial o its cash flow from operations to paymentsitsnindebtedness, there
reducing the availability of the Compasytash flows to fund working capital, capital exgitures, acquisitions and other gen
corporate purposes;

» limit the Companys flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, chges in its business and the industry in which érafes

» place the Company at a disadvantage compared tooitgpetitors that are less leveraged and, therefoey be able to ta
advantage of opportunities that the Company’s itetliess prevents it from pursuing; and

* limit the Companys ability to borrow additional amounts for workimgpital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, dedhwise
requirements, execution of its business strategyt@r purposes.

Any of the above listed factors could have a mateaxtverse effect on the Compasyusiness, financial condition and result
operations.

The Companys estimated reserves are based on many assumptf@ismay turn out to be inaccurate. Any significamaccuracies it
these reserve estimates or underlying assumptiomdd materially affect the quantities and preserdlue of the Companys reserves. Tt
Company’s current estimates of reserves could chamgptentially in material amounts, in the future.

The process of estimating oil, natural gas and N&lerves is complex and inherently imprecise, raguinterpretations of availak
technical data and many assumptions, includingnagsans relating to production rates and economatdrs such as oil and natural gas pr
drilling and operating expenses, capital expendguthe assumed effect of governmental regulatimhavailability of funds for developme
expenditures. Any significant inaccuracies in thegerpretations or assumptions could materialfecfthe estimated quantities and pre
value of the Company’s reserves. See “Business—BasiSegments and Primary Operatiandtem 1 of this report for information about
Company’s oil, natural gas and NGL reserves.

Actual future production, oil, natural gas and Nf@ices, revenues, taxes, development expenditopesating expenses and quant
of recoverable oil, natural gas and NGL reservdbuary and could vary significantly from the Conmyés estimates. Any significant varial
could materially affect the estimated quantitied present value of reserves shown in this repdrichvin turn could have a negative effec
the value of the Comparg/assets. In addition, from time to time in theifat the Company may adjust estimates of provegtves, potentiall
in material amounts, to reflect production histansults of exploration and development, oil, naltgas and NGL prices and other factors, n
of which are beyond the Company’s control.

32




The present value of future net cash flows from t@®mpany’s proved reserves calculated in accordangth SEC guidelineswill not
necessarily be the same as the current market valfigs estimated oil, natural gas and NGL reserves

The Company bases the estimated discounted fuetreash flows from its proved reserves onmidath average prices and cc
Actual future net cash flows from the Company’sawitl natural gas properties will be affected bydiecsuch as:

» actual prices the Company receives for oil, natgaasl and NGL:
» the accuracy of the Company'eserve estimatt

» the actual cost of development and production ediperes

» the amount and timing of actual product

» supply of and demand for oil, natural gas and NGios

» changes in governmental regulation or taxa

The timing of both the Compars/production and its incurrence of expenses in ection with the development and production o
and natural gas properties will affect the timirfgactual future net cash flows from proved resena®l thus their actual present value
addition, the Company uses a 10% discount fact@mdalculating discounted future net cash flowsictvimay not be the most appropr
discount factor based on interest rates in effexhftime to time and risks associated with the Camypor the oil and natural gas industr
general.

Unless the Company replaces its oil, natural gasdadGL reserves, its reserves and production wiltlige, which would adversely affe
the Company’s business, financial condition and téts of operations.

In February 2014, the Company closed the salesdbitlf Properties, which accounted for 27% of tleen@any's total production in t
fourth quarter of 2013 and 13% of the Company'srkes at December 31, 2013. In Fetry 2013, the Company closed the sale of its Pel
Properties, which accounted for 21% of the Compatotal production in the fourth quarter of 20121 @8%% of the Company's reserve
December 31, 2012. The Company's future oil, naggaa and NGL reserves and production, and thezéfsrcash flow and income, are hic
dependent on its success in efficiently develoging exploiting its current reserves and econonyidadtling or acquiring additional recovera
reserves. The Company may not be able to develapof acquire additional reserves to replace utsent and future production at accept
costs, which could adversely affect its busindsgicial condition and results of operations.

The Company will not know conclusively prior to dinng whether oil or natural gas will be present isufficient quantities to b
economically producible.

The cost of drilling, completing and operating amll is often uncertain, and new wells may not bedpctive. The use of seismic d
and other technologies and the study of producielgd in the same area do not enable the Compatydw conclusively prior to drillin
whether oil or natural gas will be present or,régent, whether oil or natural gas will be presesufficient quantities to be economically via
During 2013, the Company completed a total of 6f6sg wells, of which 28vere identified as dry wells. If the Company dréldditional well
that it identifies as dry wells in its current auitlire prospects, its drilling success rate mayieand materially harm its business.

Production of oil, natural gas and NGLs could be tesially and adversely affected by natural disastenr severe or unseasona
weather.

Production of oil, natural gas and NGLs could beemally and adversely affected by natural disastersevere weather. Repercuss
of natural disasters or severe weather conditioamg include:

» evacuation of personnel and curtailment of openai

» damage to drilling rigs or other facilities, reguif in suspension of operatio
» inability to deliver materials to worksites; ¢

» damage to, or shutting in of, pipelines and otteamgportation facilitie

In addition, the Compang’ hydraulic fracturing operations require significauantities of water. Regions in which the Cony
operates have recently experienced drought conditidny diminished access to water for use in hylirdracturing, whether due to us:
restrictions or drought or other weather conditjammuld curtail the Company’operations or otherwise result in delays in djgera or increase
costs.
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Volatility in the capital markets could affect th€ompanys ability to obtain capital, cause it to incur addinal financing expense ¢
affect the value of certain assets.

In recent periods, global financial markets andneoaic conditions have been volatile due to multifdetors, including significa
write-offs in the financial services sector and weak eatin conditions. In some cases, the markets hasguped downward pressure on s
prices and credit capacity for certain issuers avitiregard to those issuergiderlying financial and/or operating strength. Doighis volatility
for many companies the cost of raising money indilet and equity capital markets has been greatexcent periods than has historically t
the case. Continued market volatility may from titoetime adversely affect the Compamyability to access capital and credit marketso
obtain funds at low interest rates or on other athgeous terms. These factors may adversely atfiectCompanys business, results
operations or liquidity.

These factors may also adversely affect the vafueedain of the Compang’ assets and its ability to draw on its senior
revolving credit facility (“senior credit facility! Adverse credit and capital market conditions mayuire the Company to reduce the carr
value of assets associated with derivative corgréetaccount for noperformance by, or increased credit risk from, ¢erparties to tho:
contracts. If financial institutions that have exded credit commitments to the Company are adweedécted by volatile conditions of t
United States and international capital marketsy ttnay become unable to fund borrowings under ttreidit commitments to the Compa
which could have a material adverse effect oniitaricial condition and its ability to borrow additial funds, if needed, for working capi
capital expenditures and other corporate purposes.

Properties that the Company buys may not produceegected, and the Company may be unable to deteemeserve potential, identi
liabilities associated with the properties or olbigirotection from sellers against them.

The Company’s initial technical reviews of propestit acquires are necessarily limited because-depth review of every individu
property involved in each acquisition generallynist feasible. Even a detailed review of records praperties may not necessarily re'
existing or potential problems, nor will it pernaitbuyer to become sufficiently familiar with theoperties to assess fully their deficiencies
potential. Inspections may not always be performedvery well and environmental problems, suchoélsos ground water contamination,
not necessarily observable even when an inspedsiamdertaken. Even when problems are identified, Company may assume cer
environmental and other risks and liabilities imoection with acquired properties, and such risid leabilities could have a material adve
effect on its results of operations and financaidition.

The development of the Compaisyproved undeveloped reserves may take longer aag raquire higher levels of capital expenditul
than the Company currently anticipates.

As of December 31, 2013, 36% of the Compartgtal reserves were proved undeveloped reseédea®lopment of these reserves |
take longer and require higher levels of capitadesditures than the Company currently anticipatéerefore, ultimate recoveries from th
fields may not match current expectations. Delaythe development of the Compasiyeserves or increases in costs to drill and develicl
reserves will reduce the PV-10 value of the Compamstimated proved undeveloped reserves and faetreevenues estimated for s
reserves.

A significant portion of the Company’s operationgealocated in the Mid€ontinent region, making it vulnerable to risks azsated witt
operating in a limited number of major geographiceas.

As of December 31, 2013 , approximately 70% of@oenpany’s proved reserves and approximately 527& annual production w
located in the Mid=ontinent. This concentration could disproportiehaexpose the Company to operational and regylatsk in these arec
This relative lack of diversification in locatiorf its key operations could expose the Company tesd developments in these areas or tt
and natural gas markets, including, for examplendportation or treatment capacity constraintstadarent of production or treatment pl
closures for scheduled maintenance. These factarsl hiave a significantly greater impact on the @any’s financial condition, results
operations and cash flows than if the Company’p@riies were more diversified.
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The Company$ development and exploration operations requirebstantial capital, and the Company may be unablectotain neede
capital or financing on satisfactory terms, whichoald lead to a loss of properties and a declinetire Companys$ oil, natural gas an
NGL reserves.

The oil and natural gas industry is capital inteasiThe Company makes substantial capital expemrditin its business and operati
for the exploration, development, production anguasition of oil, natural gas and NGL reserves.téfisally, the Company has financed caj
expenditures primarily with proceeds from asseesand from the sale of equity and debt securéias cash generated by operation:
particular, the Company had cash flow from operetiof $868.6 million , $783.2 million and $459.0Imn , for the years ended December
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Companyagpe finance its future capital expenditures widish on hand, cash flow from operati
asset sales and available borrowing capacity umsleenior credit facility. The Comparsytash flow from operations and access to capié
subject to a number of variables, including:

» the Companyg proved reserve
» the level of oil, natural gas and NGLs it is aldgtoduce from existing wel
» the prices at which oil, natural gas and NGLs alé;sanc

» the Companyg ability to acquire, locate and produce new ress

If the Companys revenues decrease as a result of lower oil, adlagas and NGL prices, lower production, declimegeserves or for al
other reason, the Company may have limited alititpbtain the capital necessary to sustain itsaijmers at current levels. In order to fund
Company'’s capital expenditures, it may seek aduifidinancing. However, the Compasysenior credit facility contains covenants lingtiits
ability to incur additional indebtedness, and tleepanys lenders may withhold their consent to exceedithigations in such covenants at tt
sole discretion. The Company’s senior note indestuelso contain covenants that may restrict the p2oyis ability to incur addition:
indebtedness if it does not satisfy certain finahoietrics. If the Company is unable to obtain &ddal financing, it may be necessary for
Company to reduce or suspend its capital expemditur

Disruptions in the global financial and capital kets also could adversely affect the Compangbility to obtain debt or equ
financing on favorable terms, or at all. The fagltio obtain additional financing could result inuatailment of the Compang’operations relatir
to exploration and development of its prospectsiciviin turn could lead to a possible loss of prtipsrand a decline in the Compasil,
natural gas and NGL reserves.

The agreements governing the Compasy’existing indebtedness have restrictions, finariciaovenants and borrowing ba
redeterminations which could adversely affect ifgevations.

The Company'’s senior credit facility and the indees governing its senior notes restrict the Comizaability to, among other thing
obtain additional financing, make investments, deaguipment, sell assets and engage in businedsirations. The senior credit facility a
requires the Company to comply with certain finah@ovenants and ratios. The Compangbility to comply with these restrictions i
covenants in the future is uncertain and couldffected by the levels of cash flow from the Compangperations and events or circumsta
beyond its control. Declining commaodity prices abablversely affect the Compagyability to comply with such restrictions and coaets. Th
Companys failure to comply with any of the restrictionsdatovenants under the senior credit facility, senites or other debt financings cc
result in a default under those instruments, whimhld cause all of its existing indebtedness tmmbaediately due and payable.

The Companys senior credit facility limits the amounts it charrow to a borrowing base amount. The borrowingebia subject !
review semiannually; however, the lenders reserve the rightaee one additional redetermination of the borngwbase per calendar ye
Unscheduled redeterminations may be made at thep@uyis request, but are limited to two requests per.y@amowing base determinatic
are based upon proved developed producing resgrx@sged developed ngproducing reserves and proved undeveloped resebwgstandin
borrowings exceeding the borrowing base must baidgmromptly, or the Company must pledge otheand natural gas properties as additi
collateral. The Company may not have the finan@aburces in the future to make any mandatory ipah@repayments under the senior ci
facility, which are required, for example, when ttemmitted line of credit is exceeded, proceedssset sales in new oil and natural
properties are not reinvested, or indebtednesdshait permitted by the terms of the senior créatitlity is incurred. If the indebtedness ur
the Company’s senior credit facility and seniorasotvere to be accelerated, the Comparassets may not be sufficient to repay
indebtedness in full.
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The Company’s derivative activities could resultfinancial losses and could reduce its earnings.

To achieve a more predictable cash flow and toaedts exposure to adverse fluctuations in theegriof oil and natural gas, -
Company currently has entered, and may in the dugunter, into derivative contracts for a portioniteffuture oil and natural gas producti
including fixed price swaps, collars and basis swvathe Company has not designated and does nott@ldesignate any of its derivat
contracts as hedges for accounting purposes aradresilt, records all derivative contracts orbatance sheet at fair value with changes il
fair value recognized in current period earningscakdingly, the Compang’earnings may fluctuate significantly as a restithanges in the f¢
value of its derivative contracts. Derivative caats also expose the Company to the risk of firdrioss in some circumstances, incluc
when:

» production is less than expeci
» the counterparty to the derivative contract defaait its contract obligations;

» there is a change in the expected differential betwthe underlying price in the derivative conteaad actual prices receiv

In addition, these types of derivative contracts kit the benefit the Company would receive frorareases in the prices for oil ¢
natural gas.

The Company’s drilling and services revenues ar@eedent on the needs of other companies in theaoil natural gas industry.

Companies to which the Company provides drilling aglated services are affected by the oil andrabgas industry risks mentior
above. Market prices of oil, natural gas and NQinsited access to capital and reductions in cagitgenditures could result in oil and nat
gas companies canceling or curtailing their dgliprograms, which could reduce the demand for theganys drilling and related servici
Any prolonged reduction in the overall level of egation and development activities, whether resglfrom changes in oil, natural gas
NGL prices or otherwise, could impact the Comy’s drilling and services segment by negatively etffey:

» revenues, cash flow and profitabil

» the Company ability to retain skilled rig personnel whom ibwd need in the event of an upturn in the demandifilling anc
related services; and

» the fair value of the Comparsytig fleet

Oil and natural gas wells are subject to operatidnaazards that can cause substantial losses for eththe Company may not
adequately insured.

There are a variety of operating risks inherenbiln natural gas and NGL production and associaetilities, such as fires, lea
explosions, mechanical problems, major equipmehirés, blowouts, uncontrollable flow of oil, natigas and NGLs, water or drilling fluir
casing collapses, abnormally pressurized formatammsnatural disasters. The occurrence of anyesfettor similar accidents that temporaril
permanently halt the production and sale of oiture gas and NGLs at any of the Compargroperties could have a material adverse imm
its business activities, financial condition andules of operations.

Additionally, if any of such risks or similar aceidts occur, the Company could incur substantiadess a result of injury or loss
life, severe damage or destruction of propertyyrgtresources and equipment, regulatory investigand penalties and environmental dan
and cleandp responsibility. If the Company experiences ahyhese problems, its ability to conduct operationsid be adversely affect
While the Company maintains insurance coverageittuetems appropriate for these risks, its opematimay result in liabilities exceeding s
insurance coverage or liabilities not covered tsumnce.

Shortages or increases in costs of equipment, swwiand qualified personnel could adversely affédet Companys ability to execute i
exploration and development plans on a timely beeil within its budget.

The demand for qualified and experienced persobmetonduct field operations, geologists, geophgssci engineers and ot
professionals in the oil and natural gas industmy fluctuate significantly, often in correlationtwioil and natural gas prices, causing peri
shortages. Additionally, higher oil and natural gaegEes generally stimulate demand and result aneimsed prices for drilling rigs, crews .
associated supplies, equipment and services. gesrtaf field personnel and equipment or price mses could significantly affect 1
Company’s ability to execute its exploration angelepment plans as projected.
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Market conditions or operational impediments maynllier the Companys access to oil, natural gas and NGL markets orajeproductior
of oil, natural gas and NGLs.

Market conditions or a lack of satisfactory oil anatural gas transportation arrangements may hitideiCompanys access to o
natural gas and NGL markets or delay productioailpfhatural gas and NGLs. The availability of adg market for the Compargybil, nature
gas and NGL production depends on a number ofgdiacluding the demand for and supply of oil,unat gas and NGLs and the proximity
reserves to pipelines and terminal facilities. Ta@mpanys$ ability to market its production depends, in saal part, on the availability a
capacity of gathering systems, pipelines and tgdticilities. The Compang’failure to obtain such services on acceptablagén the future
to expand its midstream assets could have a miaaeliarse effect on its business. The Company matuired to shut in wells for a lack «
market or because access to natural gas pipetiaéisering system capacity or treating facilitiesyrbe limited or unavailable. The Compi
would be unable to realize revenue from any shutéhs until production arrangements were madeeliver the production to market.

Competition in the oil and natural gas industry iatense, which may adversely affect the Companybdity to succeed.

The oil and natural gas industry is intensely cotitipe, and the Company competes with many comzathiat have greater resour
than it does. Many of these companies not only aepfor and produce oil and natural gas, but atswdact refining operations and mai
petroleum and other products on a regional, natienaorldwide basis. These companies may be abpay more for productive oil and natt
gas properties and exploratory prospects or idgnéfaluate, bid for and purchase a greater nuroberoperties and prospects than
Companys financial or human resources permit. In addittbese companies may have a greater ability taraomexploration activities duril
periods of low oil and natural gas market pricese TTompanys larger competitors may be able to absorb thedouad present and futt
federal, state, local and other laws and regulatioore easily than it can, which would adverselgdfits competitive position. The Compasy’
ability to acquire additional properties and tonitiy reserves in the future will depend upon itdlity to evaluate and select suitable prope
and to consummate transactions in a highly conipetinvironment. In addition, because the Compas/fawer financial and human resou
than many companies in its industry, it may be disadvantage in bidding for exploratory prospectd producing oil and natural gas proper!

Downturns in oil and natural gas prices can resutlecreased oil field activity which, in turn, cegsult in an oversupply of serv
providers and drilling rigs. This oversupply casuk in severe reductions in prices received fofieid services or a complete lack of work
crews and equipment.

The Company’s use of 2-D and B-seismic data is subject to interpretation and magt accurately identify the presence of oil ¢
natural gas. In addition, the use of such technolpgequires greater predrilling expenditures, whicould adversely affect the results
the Company'’s drilling operations.

A significant aspect of the Compasyexploration and development plan involves seisddta. Even when properly used
interpreted, 2-D and B- seismic data and visualization techniques arg todls used to assist geoscientists in identifygogsurface structut
and hydrocarbon indicators and do not enable tteggreter to know whether hydrocarbons are préesetitose structures. Other geologists
petroleum professionals, when studying the sansnéeidata, may have significantly different intetations than the Company’s professionals.

In addition, the use of 2-D and[B-seismic and other advanced technologies reqaimester predrilling expenditures than traditic
drilling strategies, and the Company could incissks due to such expenditures. As a result, thep@uayis drilling activities may not t
geologically successful or economical, and its alvetrilling success rate or its drilling succeagerfor activities in a particular area may
improve.

The Company may often gather 2-D and 3-D seisntiz deer large areas. The Compamnlyiterpretation of seismic data delineates
those portions of an area that it believes areralgsi for drilling. Therefore, the Company may cé®mot to acquire option or lease rights |
to acquiring seismic data, and in many cases, thmpany may identify hydrocarbon indicators befoeeking option or lease rights in
location. If the Company is not able to lease tHosations on acceptable terms, it will have madestantial expenditures to acquire and ani
2-D and 3-D seismic data without having an oppatyuo attempt to benefit from those expenditures.
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Many of the Company’s prospects in the WTO may @ntnatural gas that is high in CQ, content, which can negatively affect
economics.

The reservoirs of many of the Company’s prospetthé WTO may contain natural gas that is high @ £ontent. The natural g
produced from these reservoirs must be treatethtoremoval of CQ prior to marketing. If the Company cannot obtaiffisient capacity &
treatment facilities for its natural gas with athiGO . concentration, or if the cost to obtain such cagasignificantly increases, the Compi
could be forced to delay production and developroemxperience increased production costs. The @agnpometimes encounters Gl@vels
in its wells that are higher than expected. Siheetteatment expenses are incurred on a per M, lihe Company will incur a higher effect
treating cost per MMBtu of natural gas sold forunat gas with a higher C@content. As a result, high C{yas wells must produce at mi
higher rates than low C@yas wells to be economic, especially in a low ratgas price environment.

Furthermore, when the Company treats the gas &rdmoval of CQ, some of the methane is used to run the treatplant as fue
gas and other methane and heavier hydrocarbors asuethane, propane and butane, cannot be sepfrostethe CGQ and is lost. This is knov
as plant shrink. During 2013 , the Company’s pkhrink has been approximately G&othe WTO. After giving effect to plant shrink,pigally
3.1 Mcf of high CO; natural gas must be produced to sell one MMBtuatfiral gas. The Company reports its volumes ofrabhgas reservi
and production net of C&rolumes that are removed prior to sales.

Low levels of natural gas production in the WTO, eluo declines in production from existing wells, tessed commodity prices
otherwise, currently adversely affect, and could the future adversely affect, the Compasyability to satisfy certain contractu
obligations and revenues and cash flow from its stictam services segment.

The Company has entered into Idiegm gas gathering agreements with each of PGCCanitental. These agreements require
Company to annually deliver certain minimum voluneésatural gas to PGC through June 30, 2029 and t6@ccidental through Decem|
31, 2042 and to compensate PGC and Occidentaktextent it does not satisfy the contractual defivequirements. Decreased productic
the WTO, where the applicable natural gas assetkeated, has resulted in, and may continue wtrigs a decline in the volume of natural
and CO, delivered to PGC and Occidental, respectively, smits own pipelines and facilities for gatherirttansporting and treating. T
Company has no control over many factors affecingduction activity in the WTO, including prevaijirand projected natural gas prit
demand for hydrocarbons, the level of reservesiogesal considerations, governmental regulation #gredavailability and cost of capital. A
consequence of these factors, the Company hasodiiged and delivered, and may continue to notymeand deliver, sufficient quantities
natural gas or CQto meet its contractual delivery obligations to P@ Occidental. The Company is required to comgtenBGC ar
Occidental for shortfalls in its contractual deliy®bligations. The Company accrued $32.7 millidrDecember 31, 2013 for its 2013 short
under its contract with Occidental and expectsctoue between approximately $30.0 million and $3filllon during the year ending Decem
31, 2014 for amounts related to the Compamyiticipated shortfall in meeting its 2014 anrdedivery obligations to Occidental based on cul
projected natural gas production levels. In futyears, amounts payable to PGC and/or Occidentasdoh shortfalls could be material.
addition, if the Company fails to connect new wélists gathering systems, the amount of natursliggathers, transports and treats will de«
substantially over time and could, upon exhaustibthe current wells, cause the Company to abaitdayathering systems and, possibly ¢
gathering, transporting and treating operations.

The Company is subject to complex federal, stateal and other laws and regulations that could adsely affect the cost, manner
feasibility of conducting its operations or expo#eo significant liabilities.

The Companys oil and natural gas exploration, production, dpamtation and treatment operations are subjecbrigplex and stringe
laws and regulations. In order to conduct its ofp@na in compliance with these laws and regulatidthe Company must obtain and main
numerous permits, approvals and certificates framous federal, state and local governmental aitiber The Company may incur substat
costs in order to maintain compliance with thesesland regulatio ns. Asell as recent incidents involving the releaseibénd natural gas al
fluids as a result of drilling activities in the lted States, there have been a variety of regylatutiatives at the federal and state level
restrict oil and natural gas drilling operationscertain locations. Any increased regulation opeguasion of oil and natural gas exploration
production, or revision or reinterpretation of exig laws and regulations, that arises out of thesielents or otherwise could result in delays
higher operating costs. Such costs or significatays could have a material adverse effect on trapgainys business, financial condition ¢
results of operations. The Company must also comly laws and regulations prohibiting fraud andrked manipulations in energy marki
To the extent the Company is a shipper on intergigelines, it must comply with the tariffs of Bugipelines and with federal policies relate
the use of interstate capacity.

Laws and regulations governing oil and natural geagloration and production may also affect productievels. The Company
required to comply with federal and state laws segllations governing conservation matters, incigdgirovisions related to the unitizatior
pooling of the oil and natural gas properties;abtablishment of maximum rates of production from
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wells; the spacing of wells; and the plugging abdradonment of wells. These and other laws and aégak can limit the amount of oil &
natural gas the Company can produce from its wiaihst the number of wells it can drill, or limihe locations at which it can conduct drill
operations.

New laws or regulations, or changes to existingslaw regulations, may unfavorably impact the Comgpaould result in increas
operating costs and could have a material advdfset @n the Company’ financial condition and results of operations: &mample, Congre
has recently considered, and may continue to cendiegislation that, if adopted in its proposedrfpwould subject companies involved in
and natural gas exploration and production actigito, among other items, additional regulatiomarmd restrictions on hydraulic fracturing
wells, and the elimination of certain U.S. fedaeal preferences available with respect to oil aairal gas exploration and production activi
In addition, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform &whsumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Acéifd rules promulgated thereunder ci
reduce trading positions in the energy futuresveaps markets and materially reduce hedging oppitieanfor the Company, which cot
adversely affect its revenues and cash flows dysgripds of low commaodity prices, and which coult¥ersely affect the Comparsyability tc
restructure its hedges when it might be desirabbiotso.

Additionally, state and federal regulatory authiestmay expand or alter applicable pipeline salays and regulations, compliar
with which may increase capital costs for the Comypand thirdparty downstream oil and natural gas transporfniese and other poten
regulations could increase the Company’s operatisgs, reduce its liquidity, delay its operatiansrease direct and thingarty post productic
costs or otherwise alter the way the Company casdtebusiness, which could have a material a@veffect on its financial condition, resi
of operations and cash flows and which could redwash received by or available for distributiorgliling any amounts paid by the Comp
for transportation on downstream interstate pigslin

The Companys operations are subject to environmental laws aedulations that could adversely affect the costamer or feasibility o
conducting operations or result in significant casaind liabilities.

The Companys oil and natural gas exploration and productioerafions are subject to stringent and compreherietleral, state ai
local laws and regulations governing the dischafgeaterials into the environment or otherwisetietato environmental protection. These I
and regulations may impose numerous obligations dha applicable to operations, including the asitjon of a permit before conducti
drilling; water withdrawal or waste disposal adi®s; the restriction of types, quantities and ewtiation of materials that can be releasec
the environment; the limitation or prohibition dfilting activities on certain lands lying within ldierness, wetlands and other protected ares
imposition of regulations designed to protect emeés from exposure to hazardous substances; andhplosition of substantial liabilities f
pollution resulting from operations. Numerous goveental authorities, such as the EPA and analogfas agencies, have the power to en
compliance with these laws and regulations angb#meits issued under them, often requiring diffi@rid costly actions. Failure to comply v
these laws and regulations may result in litiggtibe assessment of administrative, civil or criahipenalties; the imposition of investigaton
remedial obligations; and the issuance of injumdilimiting or preventing some or all of the Comyaroperations.

There is inherent risk of incurring significant @wmental costs and liabilities in the performaoné¢he Company operations due
its handling of petroleum hydrocarbons and wadtesause of air emissions and wastewater dischesfgged to its operations, and as a rest
historical industry operations and waste disposattres. Under certain environmental laws and legiguns, the Company could be subjec
joint and several strict liability for the investipn, removal or remediation of previously relehs®aterials or property contamination regarc
of whether it was responsible for the release otamination or whether the operations were in cianpk with all applicable laws at the ti
those actions were taken. Private parties, inctudie owners of properties upon which the Compamells are drilled and facilities where
petroleum hydrocarbons or wastes are taken foametion or disposal may also have the right toymifegal actions to enforce compliance
well as to seek damages for contamination eveherabsence of notempliance, with environmental laws and regulationfor personal injur
natural resources damage or property damage.

In addition, the risk of accidental spills or redea could expose the Company to significant ligddlithat could have a material adv:
effect on the Compang’financial condition or results of operations. t@ier laws related to oil spills impose joint andresel strict liability
without regard to fault, for all containment and r@moval costs and a variety of public and privédéenages including, but not limited to,
costs of responding to a release of oil, natursbuece damages, and economic damages sufferedrdynpeadversely affected by an oil s
Although defenses exist to the liability imposedthgse laws, they are limited. If an oil dischaogesubstantial threat of discharge were to o
the Company may be liable for costs and damagedshwlbsts and damages could be material to itdtsesiiope rations and financial position.

Changes in environmental laws and regulations ofcequently, and any changes that result in moraggtrit or costly constructic
drilling, water management, completion, waste hiagdktorage, transport, disposal or cleanup requénts could
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require significant expenditures by the Compangttain and maintain compliance and may otherwise laamaterial adverse effect on its res
of operations, competitive position or financiahddion. The Company may not be able to recoveresomany of these costs from insurance
a result of any increased cost of compliance, th@@any may decide to discontinue drilling.

Federal and state legislative and regulatory initiees as well as governmental reviews relating tgfaulic fracturing could result ir
increased costs and additional operating restrictioor delays as well as adversely affect the Conymtevel of production.

Hydraulic fracturing is an important and commongtice that is used to stimulate production of hgdrbons from tight formatior
such as shales. The process involves the injeofiorater, sand and chemicals under pressure intodfiions to fracture the surrounding rock
stimulate production. Hydraulic fracturing is tyglly regulated by state oil and gas commissionsyawer, the EPA has asserted fec
regulatory authority over certain hydraulic fradabgr practices, including the use of diesel, keresamd similar compounds in fracturing fluid
August 2012, the EPA issued final Clean Air Actulagions governing performance standards, includitapdards for the capture of
emissions released during hydraulic fracturing. Eesv, in January 2013 the EPA submitted an unoppos#ion to the United States Cour
Appeals for the D.C. Circuit seeking to stay legjfzdllenges to the Clean Air Act regulations while EPA reconsiders portions of the new n
Also, legislation has been introduced, but not tsthcin Congress to provide for federal regulata@nhydraulic fracturing and to requ
disclosure of the chemicals used in the fractupngcess. In May 2012, the Bureau of Land Managemdhin the U.S. Department of t
Interior issued a proposed rule containing disalesequirements and other mandates for hydraudictdring on federal lands, but in Jant
2013 it announced that it would be submitting ased proposed rule. That revised proposed rule pudtished for public comment in M
2013. The Department of Interior is now analyzing tomments and is expected to promulgate a filalsometime in 2014 or 2015.

Certain states in which the Company operates, dimtp Texas, Kansas and Oklahoma, and municipaltisge adopted, or ¢
considering adopting, regulations that have imppsedhat could impose, more stringent permittidigclosure, disposal and well construc
requirements on hydraulic fracturing operations. &mample, in February 2012, the Railroad CommissibTexas implemented the Fractu
Disclosure Rule, requiring public disclosure of tié chemicals in fluids used in the hydraulic fuaing process. Local ordinances or o
regulations may regulate or prohibit the perforngantwell drilling in general and hydraulic fradng in particular. If new laws or regulatic
that significantly restrict or regulate hydrauli@dturing are adopted at either the state or tberé level, the Compangy'fracturing activitie
could become subject to additional permit requinesiereporting requirements or operational restmst and also to associated permit
delays, or additional costs could adversely affieetdetermination of whether a well is commerciaible. Restrictions on hydraulic fractur
could also reduce the amount of oil and naturaligaisthe Company is ultimately able to producedmmercial quantities.

In addition to asserting regulatory authority, antner of federal entities are analyzing, or havenbeguested to review, a variety
environmental issues associated with hydraulictdirng. In April 2012, President Obama issued agcetive order that established a worl
group for the purpose of coordinating policy, im@tion sharing, and planning among federal ageranésoffices regardinguhconventions
natural gas productionjhcluding hydraulic fracturing. In December 2012 £PA issued an initial progress report on a shefyun in 2011 «
the potential environmental effects of hydrauliacturing on drinking water and groundwater, wittiraft final report expected to be issuec
peer review and comment in late 2014. The EPA hasannounced its intent to propose by 2014 effllinit guidelines that waste water fr(
shale gas extraction operations must meet befdregdo a treatment plant; the agency also projdwis it will publish an Advance Notice
Proposed Rulemaking regarding Toxic Substancesr@lofitt reporting of the chemical substances angtunés used in hydraulic fracturit
Additionally, a committee of the United States Hows Representatives has conducted an investigafidrydraulic fracturing practices,
certain members of Congress have called upon ti& Government Accountability Office to investigdtew hydraulic fracturing mig
adversely affect water resources; the SEC to iigagst the natural gas industry and any possibléeading of investors or the public regarc
the economic feasibility of pursuing natural gagpaits in shales by means of hydraulic fracturiagd the U.S. Energy Informati
Administration to provide a better understandingtldit agencys estimates regarding natural gas reserves, imgudéserves from sh:
formations, as well as uncertainties associatetl thibse estimates. Bills previously have been dhiced in both the Senate and the Hou:
Representatives to, among other things, amendetlerdl Safe Drinking Water Act to repeal provisitimst currently exempt hydraulic fractur
operations from restrictions that otherwise woylglg to underground injection of fluids or proppiagents. The studies and initiatives desci
above, depending on their degree of pursuit andnaegningful results obtained, could spur effortéutther regulate hydraulic fracturing un
the Safe Drinking Water Act or other regulatory imgisms.
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Climate change laws and regulations restricting essions of “greenhouse gasegbuld result in increased operating costs and redc
demand for the oil and natural gas that the Compapsoduces while the physical effects of climate olga could disrupt the Company’
production and cause the Company to incur signifitacosts in preparing for or responding to thosedesdts.

In December 2009, the EPA published its findingg ttmissions of GHGs present a danger to publikthhaad the environment beca
such gases are contributing to warming of the Ear#ttimosphere and other climatic changes. Thesin@sdllow the EPA to adopt a
implement regulations that would restrict emissioh6&HGs under existing provisions of the Clean Aat. Accordingly, the EPA has adop
rules that require a reduction in emissions of GHGs motor vehicles and also trigger Clean Air Aonstruction and operating permit rev
for GHG emissions from certain stationary sourdége EPAS endangerment finding and GHG rules were uphelthéyJnited States Court
Appeals for the D.C. Circuit in a June 2012 decisiand a petition for review of the case by tharerd.C. Circuit was denied in Decem
2012.

The EPA also has adopted rules requiring the rieygpof GHG emissions from oil and natural gas putitun and processing facilities
the United States on an annual basis. The Compaligvbs it has complied with all applicable repagtirequirements to date. However,
adoption and implementation of any regulations isipg reporting obligations on, or limiting emisssonf GHGs from, the Comparyy’
equipment and operations could require it to iremditional costs to reduce emissions of GHGs aasatiwith its operations or could adver:
affect demand for the oil and natural gas thatdtdpces. Finally, to the extent increasing conegiatns of GHGs in the Earth'atmosphere m
produce climate changes that could have signifigtuysical effects, such as increased frequencysanmdrity of storms, droughts, floods .
other climatic events, such events could have @nahtadverse effect on the Companyssets and operations, and potentially subje
Company to greater regulation.

In addition, Congress has considered legislatioednce emissions of GHGs and more than half ofthtes have begun taking acti
to control and/or reduce emissions of GHGs, prilpatirough the adoption of a climate change actitam, completion of GHG emissi
inventories and/or regional GHG cap and trade pnogr Any future federal laws or implemented regoitet that may be adopted to add
GHG emissions could require the Company to inceregased operating costs, adversely affect demanthéooil and natural gas that
Company produces and have a material adverse efigbie Company’s business, financial condition iesdilts of operations.

Repercussions from terrorist activities or armedndlict could harm the Company’s business.

Terrorist activities, antierrorist efforts or other armed conflict involvitige United States or its interests abroad may radiyeaffec
the United States and global economies and coadept the Company from meeting its financial arfteobbligations. If events of this nat
occur and persist, the attendant political insiyhéind societal disruption could reduce overathded for oil and natural gas, potentially put
downward pressure on prevailing oil and natural g&ses and causing a reduction in the Compangvenues. Oil and natural gas produ
facilities, transportation systems and storagdif@s could be direct targets of terrorist attacksd/or operations could be adversely impact
infrastructure integral to the Compasydperations is destroyed by such an attack. Gaisissurance and other security may increaserasa
of these threats, and some insurance coverage ecayrie more difficult to obtain, if available at all

If the Company fails to maintain an adequate systerhinternal control over financial reporting, it ould adversely affect its ability
accurately report its results.

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financigda’ing. The Companyg’interna
control over financial reporting is a process desd)to provide reasonable assurance regardingettadility of financial reporting and tl
preparation of financial statements in accordandé generally accepted accounting principles. A eriat weakness is a deficiency, ¢
combination of deficiencies, in the Compasyhternal control over financial reporting thasults in a reasonable possibility that a mat
misstatement of the annual or interim financiatesteents will not be prevented or detected on alyirbasis. Effective internal controls
necessary for the Company to provide reliable ftrgreports and deter and detect any materiallfrfuthe Company cannot provide relis
financial reports or prevent material fraud, itputation and operating results would be harmed.trmpanys efforts to develop and maint
its internal controls may not be successful, anday be unable to maintain adequate controls dsedinancial processes and reporting in
future, including future compliance with the obligas under Section 404 of the Sarba@edey Act of 2002. Any failure to develop or maiimi
effective controls, or difficulties encountered their implementation, including those related taquaed businesses, or other effec
improvement of the Comparsyinternal controls could harm its operating resuteffective internal controls could also causeestors to los
confidence in the Company’s reported financial infation.
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Certain U.S. federal income tax preferences currgnavailable with respect to oil and natural gasqatuction may be eliminated as
result of future legislation.

The Obama administratios’budget proposals in recent years, including thégbt proposal for fiscal year 2014, have inch
provisions eliminating certain key U.S. federaldnee tax preferences currently available to compaimieolved in oil and gas exploration
production. If enacted into law, these provisiormuld repeal certain incentives and credits applecat taxpayers engaged in the exploratic
production of natural resources. These provisiookide, but are not limited to (i) the repeal & ffercentage depletion allowance for oil anc
properties, (ii) the repeal of current expensingntdingible drilling and development costs, (iligtrepeal of domestic manufacturing dedu
for oil and natural gas production and (iv) ther@ase in the amortization period from two yearsdven years for geophysical costs pai
incurred in connection with the exploration for, @evelopment of, oil and gas within the United &atlt is unclear whether any sim
provisions will be included in future budget proglss whether such provisions will actually be eadatr how soon any such provisions wt
become effective if enacted. The passage of angldign relating to such proposals or any othetilsir changes in U.S. federal income tax |
could negatively affect the Company'’s financial dition and results of operations.

New derivatives legislation and regulation could\asely affect the Company’s ability to hedge rigissociated with its business.

The DoddFrank Act created a new regulatory framework foersight of derivatives transactions by the ComnyoHittures Tradin
Commission (the “CFTC”) and the SEC. Among othémgdh, the Dodd-rank Act subjects certain swap participants to capital, margin ar
business conduct standards. In addition, the Drddk Act contemplates that where appropriate ghtliof outstanding exposures, trac
liquidity and other factors, swaps (broadly definednclude most hedging instruments other thaarés) will be required to be cleared throu
registered clearing facility and traded on a desligth exchange or swap execution facility. The Dbdahk Act also established a new Ent
and Environmental Markets Advisory Committee to magcommendations to the CFTC regarding mattec®ncern to exchanges, firms,
users and regulators with respect to energy anoleemental markets and also expands the CET@wer to impose position limits on spec
categories of swaps (excluding swaps entered artodna fidehedging purposes).

There are some exceptions to these requiremengnfities that use swaps to hedge or mitigate cawiadeisk. However, although t
Company may qualify for exceptions, its derivatigsinterparties may be subject to new capital, maagd business conduct requirem
imposed as a result of the Dodd-Frank Act, whicly inarease the Comparsytransaction costs or make it more difficult foe tCompany 1
enter into hedging transactions on favorable tefthe. Companys inability to enter into hedging transactions andrable terms, or at all, co!
increase its operating expenses and put it ataseck exposure to risks of adverse changes in dihatural gas prices, which could adver
affect the predictability of cash flows from saté#wil and natural gas.

In November 2011, the CFTC finalized rules to egthta position limits regime on certain “core” gigal-delivery contracts and th
economically equivalent derivatives, some of whieference major energy commodities, including aoil @atural gas. However, in Septen
2012, the District Court of the District of Columabiacated the CFT€'rulemaking and remanded to the CFTC for furthecgedings. C
November 6, 2013, the CFTC-proposed rules to establish a position limits megion 28 “core”physical commodity contracts and tt
“economically equivalentfutures, options, and swaps, some of which referem@jor energy commodities, including oil and naluga:
(“Position Limits Re-Proposal”). The comment perifor the Position Limits REroposal closed on February 10, 2014, but the finkk
related to position limits are not yet in effecio the extent the Position Limits Freoposal is finalized, such regulations could sttbibe
Company or its derivatives counterparties to lintits commodity positions and thereby have an adveffeet on its ability to hedge ris
associated with its business or on the cost dfdtiging activity.
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Iltem 1B.

Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

Information regarding the Company’s propertiesiduded in Item 1.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On April 5, 2011, Wesley West Minerals, Ltd. andngéellow Ranch Partners, LP filed suit against @@mpany and SandRid
Exploration and Production, LLC (collectively, tf@andRidge Entities”)n the 83rd District Court of Pecos County, TexHse plaintiffs, whi
have leased mineral rights to the SandRidge EstiticPecos County, allege that the SandRidge Estitave not properly paid royalties or
volumes of natural gas and G@produced from the acreage leased from the pl&nfihe plaintiffs also allege that the SandRidgéties hav
inappropriately failed to pay royalties on G@roduced from the plaintiffsicreage that results from the treatment of natyaalat the Centu
Plant. The plaintiffs seek approximately $45.5 imillin actual damages for the period of time betweetwds 2004 and December 2C
punitive damages and a declaration that the SaigeRaatities must pay royalties on G@roduced from the plaintifficreage that results fr¢
treatment of natural gas at the Century Plant. Tbenmissioner of the General Land Office of the &taft Texas (“GLO”)is nhamed as ¢
additional defendant in the lawsuit as some ofdfffiected oil and natural gas leases describeckiplintiffs’ allegations cover mineral classif
lands in which the GLO is entitled to one-half lbé troyalties attributable to such leases. The Ga©®ftled a crosslaim against the SandRic
Entities asserting the same claims as the plasnivith respect to the leases covering mineral ifleddands and seeking approximatéy3.(
million in actual damages, inclusive of penalties and éstelOn February 5, 2013, the Company received@dhle summary judgment ruli
that effectively removes a majority of the plaifgtifand GLOS claims. On April 29, 2013, the court entered mfepallowing for an interlocuto
appeal of its summary judgment ruling. The Compiaitgnds to continue to defend the remaining issuiekis lawsuit as well as any appel
proceedings. At the time of the ruling on summargigment, the lawsuit was still in the discoverygstaand, accordingly, an estimate
reasonably possible losses associated with theimergecauses of action, if any, cannot be made alitof the facts, circumstances and ¢
theories relating to such claims and the SandREgtiies’ defenses are fully disclosed and analyzed. The @agnjpas not established
reserves relating to this action.

On August 4, 2011, Patriot Exploration, LLC, Jomatheldman, Redwing Drilling Partners, Mapleleafilibg Partners, Avalanct
Drilling Partners, Penguin Drilling Partners andafdax Insurance Company Ltd. filed a lawsuit againetCompany, SandRidge Explora
and Production, LLC (“SandRidge E&Pand certain current and former directors and seexecutive officers of the Company (collectivelyg
“defendants”)in the U.S. District Court for the District of Coecticut. On October 28, 2011, the plaintiffs filed amended complaint alleg
substantially the same allegations as those cadaimthe original complaint. The plaintiffs allethat the defendants made false and mislei
statements to U.S. Drilling Capital Management LafAd to the plaintiffs prior to the entry into a figpation agreement among Pat
Exploration, LLC, U.S. Drilling Capital ManagemdritC and SandRidge E&P, which provided for the inwgnt by the plaintiffs in certain
SandRidge E&P’s oil and natural gas propertiesdéte, the plaintiffs have invested approximatels.®1million under the participatic
agreement. The plaintiffs seek compensatory andiperdamages and rescission of the participatigreement. On November 28, 2011,
defendants filed a motion to dismiss the amendedptaint. On June 29, 2013, the court granted in pad denied in part the defendants’
motion. The Company and the other defendants intenigéfend this lawsuit vigorously and believe tentiffs’ claims are without merit. Tk
lawsuit is in the early stages and, accordinglyestimate of reasonably possible losses assoaidthdhis action, if any, cannot be made
the facts, circumstances and legal theories rgldtinthe plaintiffs' claims and the defendardsfenses are fully disclosed and analyzed.
Company has not established any reserves relatitigst action.

Between December 2012 and March 2013, seven patatiareholder derivative actions were filed inestahd federal court
Oklahoma:

e Arthur I. Levine v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and $&idge Energy, Inc., Nominal Defendantiled on December 19, 2012 in the L
District Court for the Western District of Oklahoma

e Deborah Depuy v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and SaddRiEnergy, Inc., Nominal Defendarfiled on January 22, 2013 in the U.S. Dis
Court for the Western District of Oklahoma

e Paul Elliot, on Behalf of the Paul Elliot IRA &/ v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and SandRidge Energg,, INominal Defendant filed on
January 29, 2013 in the U.S. District Court for Wdestern District of Oklahoma

« Dale Hefner v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and SandRi#ignergy, Inc., Nominal Defendantiled on January 4, 2013 in the District Cour
Oklahoma County, Oklahoma

¢ Rocky Romano v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and SandRiBnergy, Inc., Nominal Defendarfiled on January 22, 2013 in the District C«
of Oklahoma County, Oklahoma

e Joan Brothers v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and SaddRiEnergy, Inc., Nominal Defendarfiled on February 15, 2013 in the U.S. Dist
Court for the Western District of Oklahoma

« Lisa Ezell, Jefferson L. Mangus, and Tyler D.rndas v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and SandRidge Endrgy, Nominal Defendantfiled on
March 22, 2013 in the U.S. District Court for theeStern District of Oklahoma
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Each lawsuit identified above was filed derivativeh behalf of the Company and names as defendantsnt and former directors
the Company. The Hefner lawsuit also names as dafgs certain current and former senior executifieens of the Company. All sev
lawsuits assert overlapping claimgenerally that the defendants breached their fadyailuties, mismanaged the Company, wasted cog
assets, and engaged in, facilitated or approvdetisaling transactions in breach of their fiduciabfigations. The Depuy lawsuit also alle
violations of federal securities laws in connectigith the Company allegedly filing and distributiegrtain misleading proxy statements.
lawsuits seek, among other relief, injunctive feledated to the Company’s corporate governanceuaisgecified damages.

On April 10, 2013, the U.S. District Court for théestern District of Oklahoma consolidated the LeyiDepuy, Elliot, Brothers, a
Ezell actions (the “Federal Shareholder Derivatividgation”) under the captionIfi re SandRidge Energy, Inc. Shareholder Deriv
Litigation,” appointed a lead plaintiff and lead counsel, am@d the lead plaintiff to file a consolidated giamt by May 1, 2013. On June
2013, the Company and the individual defendangsl fiheir respective motions to dismiss the conatdidl complaint. On September 11, 2
the court granted the defendamesSpective motions to dismiss the consolidated daimpwithout prejudice, and granted plaintiffs\eao file ar
amended consolidated complaint. The plaintiffsdfien amended consolidated complaint on Octobef®3,2n which plaintiffs allege that:
the Company’s former CEO, Tom Ward, breached kiigciiary duties by usurping corporate opportunit{gscertain of the Companyg’curren
and former directors breached their fiduciary duté care, (iii) Mr. Ward and certain of the Comypancurrent and former directors was
corporate assets, (iv) certain entities allegeffiliaded with Mr. Ward aided and abetted Mr. Wasdireaches of fiduciary duties, (v) Mr. W
and entities allegedly affiliated with Mr. Ward rappropriated the Comparsytonfidential and proprietary information, and @fitities alleged!
affiliated with Mr. Ward were unjustly enriched. &ldefendants have filed respective motions to disrttie amended consolidated compl
which are pending before the court.

The Company and the individual defendants in thiméfeand Romano actions (the “State Shareholdeiv&tere Litigation”) moved tc
stay each of the actions in favor of the Federalr&tolder Derivative Litigation, in order to avaldplicative proceedings, and also requeste
the alternative, the dismissal of the State Shddeh®erivative Litigation.

On June 19, 2013, the court stayed the Hefner ractidgil at least November 29, 2013. The court sgbsetly lifted its stay fc
purposes of hearing and deciding the defendardpeive motions to dismiss. On September 18, 20&3;ourt denied the defendantsdtions
to dismiss.

On May 8, 2013, the court stayed the Romano ag@maing further order of the court. On OctoberZ1,3, the plaintiff filed a motic
to lift the stay, which was denied by the courtrabruary 7, 2014.

Because the Federal Shareholder Derivative Litigatind the State Shareholder Derivative Litigatiwa in the early stages,
estimate of reasonably possible losses associatbdeach of them, if any, cannot be made until fdets, circumstances and legal thec
relating to the plaintiffs’ claims and the defentamefenses are fully disclosed and analyzed. The @ognpas not established any rese
relating to these actions.

On December 5, 2012, James Glitz and Rodger A.nfdeory, on behalf of themselves and all other siyilsituated stockholders, fil
a putative class action complaint in the U.S. mist€ourt for the Western District of Oklahoma agsi SandRidge Energy, Inc. and cel
current and former executive officers of the Compadn January 4, 2013, Louis Carbone, on behatfim&elf and all other similarly situat
stockholders, filed a substantially similar putatslass action complaint in the same court andnag#tie same defendants. On March 6, 2
the court consolidated these two actions undec#émtion “In re SandRidge Energy, Inc. Securitietightion” (the “Securities Litigation”anc
appointed a lead plaintiff and lead counsel. Oy 28| 2013, plaintiffs filed a consolidated amendechplaint, which asserts a variety of fed
securities claims against the Company and cerfais ourrent and former officers and directors omg other defendants, on behalf of a put
class of (a) purchasers of SandRidge common stodhglthe period from February 24, 2011 to Noven®e?2012, (b) purchasers of comr
units of the Mississippian Trust | in or traceatuléts initial public offering on or about April 12011, and (c) purchasers of common units ¢
Mississippian Trust Il (together with the Missigsgn Trust |, the “Mississippian Trustst) or traceable to its initial public offering om abou
April 23, 2012. The claims are based on allegatiteg the Company, certain of its current and forrofficers and directors, and 1
Mississippian Trusts, among other defendants, @spansible for making false and misleading statésnemd omitting material informatic
concerning a variety of subjects, including oil aredural gas reserves, the Compargapital expenditures, and certain transactiotereah intc
by companies allegedly affiliated with the Companfgrmer Chief Executive Officer (“CEO™om Ward. The defendants have filed respe
motions to dismiss the consolidated amended comiplaihich are pending before the court. BecauseSteurities Litigation is in the ea
stages, an estimate of reasonably possible lossesiated with it, if any, cannot be made untilfémes, circumstances and legal theories rel
to the plaintiffs’ claims and the defendantigfenses are fully disclosed and analyzed. The @agnpas not established any reserves relati
the Securities Litigation. Each of the Mississippierusts has requested that the Company indentriify any losses it may incur in connec
with the Securities Litigation.
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On July 15, 2013, James Hart and fifteen other daptaintiffs filed an amended complaint in the itStates District Court for t
District of Kansas in an action undertaken indivlly and on behalf of others similarly situated iaga SandRidge Energy, Inc., SandRi
Operating Company, SandRidge E&P, SandRidge Midstrénc., and Lariat Services, Inc. In their amehdemplaint, plaintiffs allege that t
defendants failed to properly calculate overtimeg fom the plaintiffs and for other similarly situat current and former employees. The plair
further allege that the defendants required théniifs and other similarly situated current andrfier employees to engage in woekatec
activities without pay. The plaintiffs assert claimgainst the defendants for (i) violations of Baér Labor Standards Act, (ii) violations of
Kansas Wage Payment Act, (iii) breach of contraot] (iv) fraud, and seek to recover unpaid wagescuertime pay, liquidated damag
statutory penalties, economic damages, compensatorpunitive damages, attorneys’ fees and castkbath pre- and post-judgment interest.

On October 3, 2013, the plaintiffs filed a Motiaor Conditional Collective Action Certification arfidr Judicial Notice to Class ant
Motion to Toll the Statute of Limitations. On Octhll, 2013, the defendants filed a Motion to Dgsvand a Motion to Transfer Venue to
United States District Court for the Western Didtof Oklahoma. All of these motions are pendinfplethe court. The Company and the ¢
defendants intend to defend this lawsuit vigoroushyis lawsuit is in the early stages and, accglgliran estimate of reasonably possible Ic
associated with this action, if any, cannot be mant#l the facts, circumstances and legal theor@ating to the plaintiffs’claims and th
defendants’ defenses are fully disclosed and aadlykhe Company has not established any resenatisgeto this action.

On December 18, 2013the Company received a subpoena duces tecum frert).tB. Department of Justice in connection wit
ongoinginvestigation of possible violations of antitrusiMs in connection with the purchase or lease df,lail or natural gas rights. T
Company is cooperating with the investigation.

In addition to the litigation described above, @a@mpany is a defendant in lawsuits from time tcetimthe normal course of busine
While the results of litigation and claims cannetgredicted with certainty, the Company believesrttasonably possible losses of such me
individually and in the aggregate, are not mateAalditionally, the Company believes the probalialfoutcome of such matters will not ha\
material adverse effect on the Company’s consditiéihancial position, results of operations, céais or liquidity.
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Iltem 4.

Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securitit
PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

The Company’s common stock is listed on the NewkY&tock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “SDHe range of high and Ic
sales prices for its common stock for the periodéciated, as reported by the NYSE, is as follows:

High Low
2013
Fourth Quarter $ 6.9C $ 5.2¢
Third Quarter $ 5.9¢ % 4.8
Second Quarter $ 53¢ $ 4.5¢€
First Quarter $ 724 % 5.27
2012
Fourth Quarter $ 7.4¢ % 4.81
Third Quarter $ 780 $% 6.0C
Second Quarter $ 8.1¢ $ 5.5
First Quarter $ 9.0C % 6.7t

On February 21, 2014 , there were 293 record heldiethe Company’s common stock.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any diaglends on its common stock, and it does notcgdte declaring any divider
on its common stock in the foreseeable future. Chenpany expects to retain cash for the operati@hexpansion of its business, incluc
exploration, development and production activitiesaddition, the terms of the Compasyhdebtedness restrict its ability to pay dividemt
holders of its common stock. Accordingly, if ther@manys dividend policy were to change in the future aitdlity to pay dividends would |
subject to these restrictions and the Company’s-#ixésting conditions, including its results of op@as, financial condition, contractt
obligations, capital requirements, business prdspetd other factors deemed relevant by its BohRirectors.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the cumulative totaim to stockholders on SandRidge common stoeitivel to the cumulative to
returns of the S&P Oil and Gas Exploration and Botion Index and the S&P 500 Index from Januarg0D9 through December 31, 2013.
graph assumes that the value of the investmehei€bmpany’s common stock and in each of the insleses $100.00 on January 1, 2009.
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The performance graph above is furnished and feat for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchangeahet will not be incorporated
reference into any registration statement filedaunithe Securities Act unless specifically identifitnerein as being incorporated thereir
reference. The performance graph is not solicitiregerial subject to Regulation 14A.
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ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

As part of the Compang’restricted stock program, the Company makes medjtéx payments on behalf of employees when #teat
awards vest and then withholds a number of vestates of common stock having a value on the datesting equal to the tax obligation.
shares withheld are initially recorded as treastimgk and are then immediately retired as repuszhaSee “Note 16 —Equity” to the Compasy’
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of tligort for further discussion of treasury stockiribg the quarter ended December 31, 2013

the following shares of common stock were withhieldatisfaction of tax withholding obligations anig from the vesting of restricted stock:

Total Number of
Shares Purchased

Average Price

Total Number of

Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans

Maximum Number
of Shares that May
Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plans or

Paid per Share or Programs Programs
Period
October 1, 2013 — October 31, 2013 60,98° $ 6.1¢ N/A N/A
November 1, 2013 — November 31, 2013 8,32¢ $ 6.3¢ N/A N/A
December 1, 2013 — December 31, 2013 6,00¢ $ 5.7¢ N/A N/A

51




Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth, as of the dates &wdthe periods indicated, the Compayselected financial information. T
Companys financial information is derived from its auditednsolidated financial statements for such peridth& financial data includes 1
results of the Company’acquisitions and divestitures, including the diitere of the Permian Properties in February 2818 ,acquisition of ¢
and natural gas properties in the Gulf of Mexicdime 2012, the Dynamic Acquisition in April 201Re acquisition of Arena Resources,
(“Arena”) in July 2010 and the acquisition of oil and natugak properties from Forest Oil Corporation in Deber 2009. The informatic
should be read in conjunction with “Management’sddission and Analysis of Financial Condition anduRs of Operationsin Item 7 of thi:
report and the Company’s consolidated financiaestants and notes thereto contained in “FinanditeSents and Supplementary Daita”
Item 8 of this report. The following informationi®t necessarily indicative of the Company’s futgsults.

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data

Revenues $ 198338 $ 273096 $ 1,41521 $ 931,73t $ 591,04
Expenses
Production 516,42° 477,15« 322,87 237,86 169,88(
Production taxes 32,29: 47,21( 46,06¢ 29,17( 4,01(
Cost of sales 57,11¢ 68,227 65,65¢ 22,36¢ 28,38(
Midstream and marketing 53,64+ 39,66¢ 66,007 90,14¢ 80,60¢
Construction contract 23,34¢ 796,32; — — —
Depreciation and depletion—oil and natural gas 567,73: 568,02¢ 317,24t 265,91« 168,91¢
Depreciation and amortization—other 62,13¢ 60,80¢ 53,63( 50,77¢ 50,86¢
Accretion of asset retirement obligations 36,771 28,99¢ 9,36¢ 9,421 7,10¢
Impairment 26,28( 316,00 2,82¢ — 1,707,15!
General and administrative(1) 330,42! 241,68: 148,64 179,56! 100,25t
Loss (gain) on derivative contracts 47,12% (241,419 (44,07Y) 50,87: (147,52)
Loss (gain) on sale of assets 399,08¢ 3,08¢ (2,049 2,42¢ 26,41¢
Total expenses 2,152,38! 2,405,76! 986,20( 938,52: 2,196,06:
(Loss) income from operations (169,00 325,19¢ 429,01 (6,78¢€) (1,605,02)
Other income (expense)
Interest expense (270,23,) (303,349 (237,33) (247,44) (185,31¢)
Bargain purchase gain — 122,69¢ — — —
Loss on extinguishment of debt (82,00%) (3,079 (38,23) — —
Income from equity investments — — — — 1,02(
Other income, net 12,44¢ 4,741 3,12: 2,55¢ 7,272
Total other expense (339,79 (178,98) (272,44) (244,88 (177,029
(Loss) income before income taxes (508,799 146,20¢ 156,57: (251,67() (1,782,04)
Income tax expense (benefit) 5,68¢ (100,367) (5,817 (446,68() (8,716
Net (loss) income (514,479 246,57 162,38t 195,01( (1,773,33)
Less: net income attributable to noncontrollingeest 39,41( 105,00( 54,32¢ 4,44t 2,25¢
Net (loss) income attributable to SandRidge Enelmyy, (553,889 141,57: 108,06! 190,56! (1,775,590
Preferred stock dividends 55,52¢ 55,52¢ 55,58 37,44: 8,81:
(Loss applicable) income available to SandRidger@gndnc. common
stockholders $ (609,41) $ 86,04¢ $ 52,48. $ 153,12 $ (1,784,40)
(Loss) earnings per share
Basic $ 127 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1 $ 05z $ (10.20
Diluted $ 127 $ c $ 01 % 05z $ (20.20
Weighted average number of common shares outs@ndin
Basic 481,14¢ 453,59¢ 398,85 291,86¢ 175,00¢
Diluted 481,14¢ 456,01 406,64 315,34¢ 175,00:

Q) Includes employee termination bene
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As of December 31,

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents $
Property, plant and equipment, net $
Total assets $
Total debt $
Total equity $
Total liabilities and equity $

814,66
6,307,67!
7,684,79
3,194,90
3,175,62
7,684,79

$
$
$
$
$
$

309,76t
8,479,97
9,790,73
4,301,08
3,862,45!
9,790,73

(In thousands)

$ 207,68:
$ 5,389,42
$ 6,219,60!
$ 2,814,171
$  2,548,95
$ 6,219,60!

There have been no cash dividends declared ompatide Company’s common stock.
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2,780,31
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Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis is intenddhélp the reader understand the Compatyisiness, financial condition, result:
operations, liquidity and capital resources. Th&salssion and analysis should be read in conjumetith other sections of this report, includi
“Business” in Item 1, “Selected Financial Data” liem 6 and “Financial Statements and Supplemenbata” in Item 8. The Compary’
discussion and analysis relates to the followirgjestis:

* Overview

* Results by Segme

» Consolidated Results of Operatic
» Liquidity and Capital Resourct

» Valuation Allowance; ar

»  Critical Accounting Policies and Estimal
Overview

SandRidge Energy, Inc. is an oil and natural gaspamy with a principal focus on exploration anddarction activities in the Mid-
Continent region of the United States. The Compawps and operates additional interests in west §exa owned interests in the Gul
Mexico and Gulf Coast until February 2014, as dised under “2014 Developments and Outldméfow. The Company also operates busint
and infrastructure systems that are complementaits tprimary exploration and production activiti@scluding gas gathering and proces
facilities, marketing operations, a saltwater d&gosystem, an electrical transmission system addllang rig and related oil field servic
business.

SandRidge’s mission is to become a high-returnwtirariented resource conversion company focuseterMid-Continent region ¢
the United States. In 2013, the Company began itatafjocation process, during which the Compaisnitified its competitive advantages, <
as its industry leading cost structure, subsurkamevledge, existing infrastructure and broaderasifiucture capabilities and size and scale,
the Mid-Continent area. As a result of that proc#ss decision was made to enhance the Companyts fio the Mid€ontinent, divest the Gt
Properties, and redeploy capital into onshore am@se the Company has a more extensive opportseifyand over a 1fear inventory of hig
return drilling locations.

2013 Operational Highlights

Operational highlights for 2013 include the followgi

o Drilled 483 wells, excluding salt water disposaklls, in the Mid-Continent area. Midentinent properties contribut
approximately 17.8 MMBoe, or 52.7% , of the Compartgtal production in 2013 compared to approxirafel.0 MMBoe, ol
32.9%, in 2012.

* Gulf of Mexico properties acquired during thee@ed quarter of 2012 contributed production of agpnately 9.2MMBoe, ol
27.3% of the Company’s total production in 2013 paned to approximately 7.0 MMBoe, or 20.8% of t@adduction in 2012.

* Permian Properties divested in February 2018ljssissed below, contributed 3.4% of total producin 2013 compared 25.8%
of total production in 2012.

» Total production for 2013 was comprised of apprmtely 42.3% oil, 50.9% natural gas and 6.8% NGampared to 47.3%il,
46.5% natural gas and 6.2% NGLs in 2012.

2013 Transactions

Sale of Permian Propertie@n February 26, 2013, the Company sold the Perfiaperties for net proceeds of $2.6 billioncluding
postelosing adjustments that were finalized in thedfgjuarter of 2013. The Company used a portion@ftie proceeds to fund the redemg
of approximately $1.1 billion aggregate principah@unt of outstanding senior notes, discussed bedmd, has used and expects to us:
remaining proceeds to fund its capital expenditureshe Mid-Continent and for general corporatepmses. Including final postosing
adjustments, the Company recorded a non-cash lodbensale of $398.9 million , of which $71.7 nuliwas allocated to noncontrolli
interests. Additionally, the Company settled a iporbf its existing oil derivative contracts in Fahry 2013 prior to their contractual maturi
to reduce volumes hedged in proportion to the guatied reduction in daily production volumes duethte sale, which resulted in a loss
settlement of approximately $ 29.6 million .
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Production, revenues and direct operating expesfsae Permian Properties were as follows as offanthe years ended December
2013, 2012 and 2011:

Year Ended December 31,

2013(1) 2012 2011
Production (MBoe) 1,14¢ 8,66 8,871
Revenues (in thousands) $ 68,027 $ 566,07" $ 614,66t
Direct operating expenses (in thousands) $ 17,45: $ 130,337 $ 144,06t

(1) Includes activity through February 26, 2012 tlate of sale.

Redemption of Senior Fixed Rate NotesMarch 2013, the Company redeemed $365.5 miliggregate principal amount of
9.875% Senior Notes due 2016 and $750.0 milaggregate principal amount of its 8.0% Senior Nates 2018 for total consideration
$1,061.34 per $1,000 principal amount and $1,05gef%1,00(rincipal amount, respectively. The premium paidedeem these notes and
expense incurred to write off the remaining asgediainamortized debt issuance costs resulted osadn extinguishment of debt $82.(
million for the year ended December 31, 20T3he redemption of these senior notes resultedreduction in interest expense for the year €
December 31, 2013 of approximately $72.8 million.

2014 Developments and Outlook
Developments

Sale of Gulf of Mexico and Gulf Coast Properti@®s. February 25, 2014, the Company sold certaitsatibsidiaries that own the C
Properties, for $750.0 million, subject to purchgsie and post-closing adjustments, and the bsyassumption of approximately $37
million of related asset retirement obligationseT@ompany retained a 2.0% overriding royalty irgeia certain exploration prospects.
Company expects to use the proceeds from the gdiend its drilling in the Mid€ontinent. Additionally, the Company settled a ortof its
existing oil derivative contracts in January andbriary 2014 prior to their respective maturitieseduce volumes hedged in proportion tc
anticipated reduction in daily production volume®do the sale, which resulted in cash paymenappfoximately $69.6 million .

For further discussion of the sale, see “Note 2lubsBquent Events” to the consolidated financiaéstants included in Item 8 of this
report.
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Production, proved reserves, RY; revenues and expenses, including direct opgratipenses, depletion, accretion of asset retirt
obligations, and general and administrative expgrfse the Gulf Properties were as follows as af for the year ended December 31, 2013 :

Production (MBoe) 10,08:
Proved reserves (MBoe) 56,791
PV-10 (in thousands)(1) $ 1,088,87.
Revenues (in thousands) $ 627,23t
Operating expenses (in thousands) $ 491,99:
(1) PV-10 is a noiGAAP financial measure and represents the pressuoé\of estimated future cash inflows from provédratural ga

and NGL reserves, less future development and ptimtucosts, discounted at 10% per annum to reflethg of future cash flows al
using 12-month average prices for the year endezbmber 31, 2013 . P¥0 differs from Standardized Measure because it chox
include the effects of income taxes on future eeenues. Neither P¥0 nor Standardized Measure represents an estohfgi marke
value of the Gulf Properties. The following tableyides a reconciliation of the estimated StandadiiMeasure attributable to the C
Properties to PV-10 attributable to the Gulf Prdéiperas of December 31, 2013 (in thousands):

Standardized Measure of Discounted Net Cash Flgws(a $ 842,49:

Present value of future income tax discounted &t 10 246,37!
P $ 1,088,87.

(@) Standardized Measure was determined by altactte Company’s Standardized Measure to the Bualperties based on the

PV-10 attributable to the Gulf Properties relatwoehe Company’s total PV-10.

Outlook

In 2014, the Company plans to continue the capltatation process it began in 2013, focusing @hést return projects, coupled v
an enhanced capital discipline, while utilizing itentified competitive advantages. The Companf014 capital expenditures budge
approximately $1.5 billion, with approximately $lbdlion designated for exploration and productiactivities. Based on this current cay
budget for 2014, the Company estimates an appraeird&% increase in 2014 production from 2013 prtidoclevels, excluding 20:
production associated with the Gulf Properties soldebruary 2014 and Permian Properties sold brugey 2013.

Results by Segment

The Company operates in three business segmemtigration and production, drilling and oil fieldrseees and midstream servic
These segments represent the Comsathyee main business units, each offering diffepeoducts and services. The exploration and priboiu
segment is engaged in the exploration and produaifooil and natural gas properties and includes dttivities of the Royalty Trusts. T
drilling and oil field services segment is engagethe contract drilling of oil and natural gas isehnd provides various oil field services.

midstream services segment is engaged in the minghayathering, treating and selling of naturad gad coordinates the delivery of electri
for the Company’s exploration and production operetin the Mid-Continent.

Management evaluates the performance of the Compdiginess segments based on income (loss) froratimpes. Results of the
measurements provide important information to tben@any about the activity, profitability and cobtrtions of each of the Compasylines o
business. The Company’s business segments resuttefyears ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 and&e@ldiscussed below.
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Exploration and Production Segment

The Company generates the majority of its constdlaevenues and cash flow from the production said of oil, natural gas a
NGLs. The Compar's revenues, profitability and future growth depsntstantially on prevailing prices for oil, natugas and NGLs and
the Companys ability to find and economically develop and proel its reserves. The primary factors affecting fihancial results of tr
Companys exploration and production segment are the ptleegompany receives for its oil, natural gas BGL production, the quantity
oil, natural gas and NGLs it produces and changebe fair value of commodity derivative contrad®ices for oil, natural gas and NC
fluctuate widely and are difficult to predict. Toopide information on the general trend in pricitiyg average annual NYMEX prices for oil i
natural gas during the years ended December 3B,,22012 , 2011 , 2010 and 2009 are presentectifottowing table:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Oil (per Bbl) $ 98.0f $ 94.1¢ % 95.11 $ 79.61 $ 62.0¢
Natural gas (per Mcf) $ 3.7 % 28: % 40: $ 43t % 4.1¢€

In order to reduce the Compagsyeéxposure to price fluctuations, the Company enteo commaodity derivative contracts for a portaf
its anticipated future oil and natural gas productas discussed in “ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qatiie Disclosures About Market Risk.”
Reducing the Compang’exposure to price volatility mitigates the rislatt it will not have adequate funds available ferdapital expenditu
programs.
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Set forth in the table below is financial, prodootiand pricing information for the exploration amaduction segment for the ye

ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 .

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Results (in thousands)
Revenues
oil $ 1,393,361 $ 1,456,591 $ 902,38
NGL 80,55¢ 69,30¢ 81,93¢
Natural gas 346,36: 233,38t 242 47
Construction contract — 796,32: —
Other 14,20: 15,93¢ 10,77:
Inter-segment revenue (320 (403 (265)
Total revenues 1,834,16! 2,571,14. 1,237,30!
Operating expenses
Production 519,54t 480,00: 324,63
Production taxes 32,29: 47,21( 46,06¢
Construction contract — 796,32: —
Depreciation and depletion—oil and natural gas 567,73: 568,02¢ 317,24¢
Accretion of asset retirement obligations 36,77 28,99¢ 9,36¢
Impairment — 235,39t —
Loss (gain) on derivative contracts 47,12 (241,419 (44,07%)
Loss (gain) on sale of assets 398,54 3,49¢ (92
Other operating expenses 169,63¢ 134,96: 63,03(
Total operating expenses 1,771,65 2,052,99 716,18
Income from operations $ 62,50¢ $ 518,14 $ 521,11°
Production data
Oil (MBbls) 14,27¢ 15,86¢ 9,99:
NGL (MBbls) 2,291 2,09« 1,83¢
Natural gas (MMcf) 103,23 93,54¢ 69,30¢
Total volumes (MBoe) 33,77¢ 33,55 23,38
Average daily total volumes (MBoe/d) 92.t 91.7 64.1
Average prices—as reported(1)
Oil (per Bbl) $ 97.5¢ $ 91.7¢ $ 90.31
NGL (per Bbl) $ 35.1¢ $ 33.1C $ 44 .5¢
Natural gas (per Mcf) $ 3.3 % 24¢ % 3.5C
Total (per Boe) $ 53.8¢ $ 52.4: % 52.47
Average prices—including impact of derivative contact settlements(2)
Oil (per Bbl) $ 98.9C % 97.5: % 82.2¢
NGL (per Bbl) $ 35.1¢ % 33.1C % 44 .5¢
Natural gas (per Mcf) $ 3.4€ % 24¢ % 3.27
Total (per Boe) $ 54.7¢ % 55.0¢ % 48.3¢
mrepresent actual average prices for thegepresented and do not include the impact ofave transaction
(2) Excludes settlements of commodity derivative carngarior to their contractual maturi

For a discussion of reserves, PV-10 and reconoifiato Standardized Measure, see “BusineBsisiness Segments and Prinr

Operations—Proved Reserves” in Item 1 of this repor




The table below presents production by area ofatjmer for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2022811 and illustrates t
impact of (i) the Company’s continued developmdritoMid-Continent assets, (ii) the Compasypurchase of properties located in the Gu
Mexico during the second quarter of 2012 and i@ sale of the Permian Properties in February 2013

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Production % of Total Production % of Total Production % of Total

(MBoe) Production (MBoe) Production (MBoe) Production
Mid-Continent 17,78 52.1% 11,03¢ 32.% 4,88¢ 20.%
Gulf of Mexico / Gulf Coast 10,08: 29.&% 8,11( 24.2% 1,43¢ 6.1%
Permian Basin 3,36¢ 10.(% 10,96: 32.6% 10,517 45.(%
Other - west Texas 2,54¢ 7.5% 3,441 10.2% 6,54¢ 28.(%
Total 33,77¢ 100.(% 33,55 100.(% 23,38 100.(%

Revenues

Exploration and production segment revenues frdimatural gas and NGL sales increased by a cord$64.0 million , or 3.5%or
the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to 2d@arily as a result of increases in averageeggrreceived for oil and natural gas, an
increase in natural gas production of 9.7 Bcf, @4% . Total production remained relatively unchange@®13 compared to 2012; howe»
natural gas comprised a larger portion of totadpmtion in 2013 as production from the Mbntinent and Gulf of Mexico, which contain
higher percentage of natural gas than productiom fthe Permian Basin, comprised a larger percermtigé¢al production in 2013.

Exploration and production segment revenues frdmrmatural gas and NGL sales increased by a cord$r&32.5 million , or 43.4%n
the year ended December 31, 2012 from 2011, prynasia result of a 5.9 MMBBDI, or 58.8/¥crease in oil production. Natural gas produc
also increased 24.2 Bcf, or 35.0%, but the efféthis increase was more than offset by a decrieaaeerage price received of $1.01 per Mc
28.9%. The increase in oil and natural gas prodnactias primarily due to the acquisition of propestiocated in the Gulf of Mexico during
second quarter of 2012 combined with increasedirdyiin the Mid-Continent, where, during 2012, the Company comgleted commenct
production on 377 gross (269 net) wells.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company tatigally completed construction of the Centuryriland recognized construct
contract revenue and costs equal to $796.3 millidrich reflects agreed upon change orders and seopmons to the original contract. Cont
losses incurred on the construction of the Cerlayt were recorded as development costs withitCdrapanys oil and natural gas properti
As of December 31, 2012 , the Company had recaadethl of $180.0 milliorio its oil and natural gas properties for the oestified based ¢
costs incurred in excess of contract amounts.

Operating Expenses

Production expense includes the costs associatbdive Company exploration and production activities, includibgt not limited tc
lease operating expense and treating costs. Piodwetpenses increased $39.5 million , or 8.2%20h3 from 2012 primarily due to$82.7
million shortfall penalty related to the under gely of CO,, in accordance with the terms of the Company’'y&ér treating agreement w
Occidental, for the year ended December 31, 2@r3a per Boe basis, production expense for 20@ased $1.07 per Boe, or 7.5% $ib.3¢
per Boe during the year ended December 31, 2013 $4.31 per Boe in 2012This increase is primarily a result of the shadttbenalty and, 1
a lesser extent, higher costs associated with ptmgufrom properties located in the Gulf of Mexiaghich comprised a larger percentag
total production in 2013. Production expenses imed $ 155.4 million , or 47.9%in 2012 from 2011 primarily due to operating expe
associated with oil and natural gas propertiestéotan the Gulf of Mexico that were acquired durthg second quarter of 2012 and addition:
wells located in the Mid-Continent that began pr@dg during 2012.

Production taxes decreased by approximately $14llfbm, or 31.6% for the year ended December 31132 compared to 2012nc
increased only slightly in 2012 compared to 20Klpaduction from the Midontinent and Gulf Properties comprised approxiipad2.5% o
total 2013 production compared to approximatel % of 2012 production and approximately 27.0% afP@roduction. Production from t
Gulf of Mexico is not subject to production taxéslditionally, wells drilled in the Mississippian ffmation in Oklahoma are part of a tax cr
incentive program that reduces the combined statuttes applicable to the first four years of pretibn from such wells.
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Depreciation and depletion for the Company’s ol aatural gas properties was consistent for thesyeaded December 31, 2048c
2012 . Depreciation and depletion for the Compsugil and natural gas properties increased $250l&mfor the year ended December
2012 from the same period in 2011. The increaseduasto a 43.5% increase in the Compargombined production volume as well a:
increase in the depreciation and depletion rateBperto $16.93n 2012 from $13.57 per Boe in 2011 that resultecharily from the acquisitio
of properties located in the Gulf of Mexico durip@12, which generally have shorter depletable litias onshore properties.

Accretion of asset retirement obligations increa®&@ million for the year ended December 31, 2@ 2012 , and increasedl®.€
million for the year ended December 31, 2012 frdddas a result of the increase in future plugging alba@ndonment obligations associi
with the oil and natural gas properties locatethenGulf of Mexico that were acquired during thes®l quarter of 2012.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coympeeorded a $235.4 milliompairment to the carrying value of goodv
Primarily as a result of a decrease in the Compapgobable reserves as of December 31, 2012, venelne of the significant component
the determination of the fair value of the applleateporting unit, the carrying value of the repagtunit exceeded its fair value such that
entire carrying value of the Company’s goodwill wagpaired. For additional information regarding @p@odwill impairment, see “Note 8-
Impairment” to the Company’s consolidated finansialtements in Item 8 of this report.

The Company recorded loss (gain) on commodity dérie contracts of $47.1 million , $(241.4) milli@nd $(44.1) milliorfor the
years endeDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2QX#&spectively, which are included in income fropertions for the exploration and produc
segment. Included in the loss (gain) on commoddsivative contracts for the years ended DecembgeRB13 , 2012 and 201dre net cas
(receipts) payments upon contract settlement of2$(&illion , $(100.7) million and $37.6 million respectively. For the year eni
December 31, 2013, $29.6 milliaf cash payments related to settlements of commdeditivative contracts with contractual maturitédter the
year in which they were settle“early settlements”) as a result of the sale ofReemian Properties. For the year ended Decemh&032, the
Company had a non-cash loss of $117.1 milliesulting from the amendment of certain 2012 déiseacontracts to contracts maturing in 2
and 2015.

The Companys derivative contracts are not designated as atioguhedges and, as a result, gains or losses mmodity derivativ
contracts are recorded each quarter as a compoheperating expenses. Internally, management vieesettlement of derivative contract
contractual maturity as adjustments to the prioeited for oil and natural gas production to deteeneffective prices."Gains or losses 1
early settlements and losses related to amendneéndentracts are not considered in the calculatbreffective prices. In general, casl
received on settlement of contracts due to lowkrand natural gas prices at the time of settlenvemipared to the contract price for
Companys oil and natural gas price swaps, and cash is graigettlement of contracts due to higher oil aatural gas prices at the time
settlement compared to the contract price for the@any’s oil and natural gas price swaps.

Loss on sale of assets increased $395.0 millioth®year ended December 31, 2@b&pared to the same period in 2012, primari
a result of the $398.9 million loss on the sal¢hefPermian Properties in February 2013.

See “Consolidated Results of Operations” belowafdiscussion of other operating expenses.
Drilling and Oil Field Services Segment

The financial results of the Compasydrilling and oil field services segment depericharily on demand and prices that can be chz
for its services. On a consolidated basis, drillargl oil field service revenues earned and expeinsesred in performing services for th
parties, including thirgarty working interests in wells the Company opesagre included in drilling and services reveramed cost of sale
Drilling and oil field service revenues earned axbenses incurred in performing services for then@anys own account are eliminatec
consolidation. The primary factors affecting theules of the Company’ drilling and oil field services segment are thees received on ri
drilling for third parties, the number of days tinig§ for third parties and the amount of oil fieddrvices provided to third parties.
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Set forth in the table below is financial and opiereal information for the drilling and oil fieldesvices segment for the years er
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 .

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Results (in thousands)
Revenues $ 187,45t $ 379,34t $ 390,48!
Inter-segment revenue (120,819 (262,717 (287,18)
Total revenues 66,64 116,63: 103,29¢
Operating expenses 95,69: 104,72. 92,95}
Impairment 11,10¢ — —
(Loss) income from operations $ (40,15%) $ 11,917 $ 10,34
Drilling rig statistics
Average number of operational rigs owned duringptieod 29.C 30.C 30.¢
Average number of rigs working for third parties 4.4 9.4 10.C
Number of days drilling for third parties 1,60: 2,61 3,67:
Average drilling revenue per day per rig drilliray third parties(1) $ 14,61 $ 16,91¢ $ 15,21¢
Rig status as of December 31
Working for SandRidge 11 14 20
Working for third parties(2) 6 10 10
Idle (3) 10 6 —
Total operational 27 30 30
Non-operational(4) 3 1 1
Total rigs 30 31 31
@ Represents revenues from rigs working fordtiarties, excluding starta revenue, divided by the total number of dayshsirilling
rigs were used by third parties during the peréeodjuding revenues for related rental equipment.
2 Includes five rigs receiving stamg-rates from third parties at December 31, 2
3 The company rigs are primarily intended to drill for its ovaiccount; as such, the number of idle rigs doesigoificantly impact th

consolidated results of operations.
4) Nonr-operational rigs at December 31, 2013 are helddte. Non-operational rig at December 31, 2@ 2011 was stack

Drilling and oil field services segment revenuesrdased $50.0 million , for the year ended DecerBber2013 from 2012 The
decrease in revenues was primarily attributable teecrease in the average number of rigs workinghiad parties and a decrease in sup
sold to, and oil field services work performed faglls that had been operated by the Company ifP&mmian Basin prior to their sale. Drill
and oil field services segment operating expensesedsed $9.0 million during the year ended DeceBihe2013 compared to 201Rie
primarily to the decrease in work performed in Begmian Basin, which was significantly offset bytsoassociated with maintenance perfor
on rigs that were stacked as a result of the datheoPermian Properties. For the year ended DeeeBih 2013 the Company recorded
impairment of approximately $ 11rillion on certain drilling assets identified foale in order to adjust their carrying values to failue. Th
impairment and decrease in revenue resulted insaffom operations of $ 40.2 million for the yeaded December 31, 2013 .

Drilling and oil field services segment revenued arpenses increased $13.3 million and $11.8 mijlliespectively, for the year ent
December 31, 2012 from 2011. The increase in reagand expenses was primarily attributable to are@se in supplies sold to, and oil f
services work performed for, Company-operated welkhe Mid-Continent with higher thirgdarty working interest percentages during the
ended December 31, 2012. While the average dritkwgnue per day per rig working for third parilesreased during the year ended Decel
31, 2012 compared to 2011, this was more than toffgea decrease in the number of days drillingtford parties. The overall increase
revenue resulted in income from operations of $hdilBon in the year ended December 31, 2012 coebém income from operations of $1
million in 2011.
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Midstream Services Segment

Midstream services segment revenues consist malstBvenue from gas marketing, which is a very loargin business, and reven
from coordinating the delivery of electricity toetiCompany’s exploration and production operatiorthé Mid-Continent area.

Gas MarketingOn a consolidated basis, midstream and marketingnrees include natural gas sold to third parties the fees tr
Company charges to gather, compress and treahdhisal gas. Gas marketing operating costs reprgsgments made to third parties for
proceeds from the sale of natural gas owned by pacties, net of any applicable margin, and actasts the Company charges to ga
compress and treat the natural gas. In generalyalagas purchased and sold by the Companyidstream services segment is priced
published daily or monthly index price. Midstreaasgservices are primarily undertaken to realizeemental margins on natural gas purch
at the wellhead and to provide value-added sertixeastomers.

Electrical Provision.The Company constructed an electrical transmissystem in the Mid=ontinent area to provide electricity for
in the Company’s exploration and production operstiat a lower cost than electricity provided bysde generation. On a consolidated b.
revenues and expenses from the electrical transmisgstem relate to electricity provided to thpakrty working interest owners in Compi
operated wells in the Mid-Continent.

Gas Treating PlantsThe Company owns and operates two gas treatingsplanvest Texas, which remove GGrom natural ge
production and deliver residue gas to nearby pipsli Throughout 2012, the Company diverted its Kigh natural gas production from its ¢
treating plants to the Century Plant while it waénly tested and commissioned. Upon substantial imp of the Century Plant in late 20
natural gas volumes delivered by the Company focgssing at the Century Plant became subject ttethes of the 3Qear treating agreeme
with Occidental, which contains minimum GQ@elivery requirements. All natural gas producedhi@ WTO during 2013 was processed a
Century Plant. Due to the continued decline in ratgas production in the WTO resulting from theklaf drilling activity in the area, volum
currently produced in the WTO and delivered to @emtury Plant for processing are not sufficientise all of the available treating capacit
the Century Plant. Due to the sensitivity of dnijito market prices for natural gas, drilling aityivn the WTO will likely remain very limited
natural gas prices remain low. As a result, the gamy currently anticipates little to no use oftitsating plants in future periods.

The primary factors affecting the results of thempanys midstream services segment are the quantity tofalegas the Compa
gathers, treats and markets and the prices it gagseceives for natural gas as well as the rdtasyed and volumes delivered by the elect
transmission system.

Set forth in the table below is financial infornmatifor the midstream services segment for the yeaded December 31, 201201z
and 2011 .

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Results (in thousands)
Operating revenues $ 156,64( $ 116,65¢ $ 183,91.
Construction contract 23,34¢ — —
Inter-segment revenue (100,529 (77,829 (118,73)
Total revenues 79,46( 38,83t 65,18:
Operating expenses 73,74« 52,17¢ 75,33
Construction contract 23,34¢ — —
Impairment 3,93¢ 59,68: 2,82¢
Loss from operations $ (21,567 $ (73,02) $ (12,979
Gas Marketed
Volumes (MMcf) 8,00¢ 9,367 14,80"
Price $ 3.5¢ $ 2.6 % 3.8¢

Midstream services segment operating revenues>gehses increased $17.3 million and $21.6 millicespectively, for the year enc
December 31, 2013 from the same period in 2012s@&lncreases in operating revenue and expensesiueito an increase of $0,88&r Mcf ir
the average price received for natural gas purchase marketed in west Texas during the
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year endeDecember 31, 2013respectively, and an increase in revenue fromexpenses related to electrical transmission sesvicovided b
the Company’s expanded electrical infrastructurdhéMid-Continent to thirgbarty working interest owners. These increases wslagbtly offse
by a 1.4 Bcf decrease in third-party volumes prsedsand marketed for the year ended December 3B @mpared to the year enc
December 31, 2012 as a result of decreased ngasgiroduction in west Texas.

Midstream services segment revenues and operatpgnses, excluding impairment, for the year endedeinber 31, 2012 decrea
$26.3 million and $23.2 million, respectively, frdhe same period in 2011. These decreases in re\@rtioperating expenses were dueiala
Bcf decrease in thirgarty volumes the Company processed and marketedresult of decreased natural gas production st Wexas and
decrease in natural gas prices. These decreasegartially offset by an increase in revenue frord expenses related to electrical transmit
as a result of the expansion of the Company’s itatinfrastructure in the Mid-Continent in 2012.

During the second quarter of 2013, the Companytanbally completed the construction of a serieglettrical transmission expans
and upgrade projects for a third party and, assaltierecognized construction contract revenue @gts equal to $23.3 million. For m
information about these projects, see “Note 11 —Agfloiction Contracts” to the Compasyconsolidated financial statements in Item 8 @
report.

Midstream services segment expenses for the yedesdeDecember 31, 2013 and 2012 include impairn@&r$8.9 million and$59.7
million , respectively, on its natural gas treating plamt&/est Texas due to the anticipation that theturel use would be limited as discus
underGas Treating Plantabove. The $59.7 million impairment in 2012 rediilte a loss from operations of $73.0 millifor the year ende
December 31, 2012 compared to $13.0 million in 2011

Consolidated Results of Operations
Revenues

The Company’s consolidated revenues for the yeatsceDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are prelsiarttee table below.

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Revenues
Oil, natural gas and NGL $ 1,820,271 $ 1,759,28. $ 1,226,79
Drilling and services 66,58¢ 116,63: 103,29¢
Midstream and marketing 58,30¢ 40,48¢ 66,69(
Construction contract 23,34¢ 796,32: —
Other 14,87: 18,24 18,43:
Total revenues(1) $ 1,983,38 $ 2,730,96! $ 1,415,21.
Q) Includes $199.3 million , $181.2 million an@9%6 million of revenues attributable to noncontrolling intesast consolidated variak

interest entities (“VIES”), after considering thiéeets of intercompany eliminations, for the yearsled December 31, 2013 , 2Cdr&
2011, respectively.

The Company’s primary sources of revenue are disclin “Results by SegmentSee discussion of oil, natural gas and NGL
construction contract revenues under “Results ynfeat—Exploration and Production Segmeniscussion of drilling and services rever
under “Results by Segment—Drilling and Oil Fieldn8ees Segmentand discussion of significant midstream and manketind constructic
contract revenues under “Results by Segment—Miastr8ervices Segment.”
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Expenses

The Company’s consolidated expenses for the yealsdeDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are preseelaw.

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Expenses
Production $ 516,42 $ 477,15 % 322,87
Production taxes 32,29: 47,21( 46,06¢
Cost of sales 57,11¢ 68,22" 65,654
Midstream and marketing 53,64+ 39,66¢ 66,00°
Construction contract 23,34¢ 796,32: —
Depreciation and depletion—oil and natural gas 567,73: 568,02¢ 317,24t
Depreciation and amortization—other 62,13¢ 60,80¢ 53,63(
Accretion of asset retirement obligations 36,771 28,99¢ 9,36¢
Impairment 26,28( 316,00 2,82¢
General and administrative 207,92( 241,68: 148,64:
Employee termination benefits 122,50! — —
Loss (gain) on derivative contracts 47,12 (241,419 (44,079
Loss (gain) on sale of assets 399,08t 3,08¢ (2,049
Total expenses(1) $ 2,152,38! $ 2,405,76! $ 986,20(
@ Includes $157.0 million , $75.4 million and3b1 million of expenses attributable to noncontrolling inteyéstconsolidated VIEs, af

considering the effects of intercompany eliminasiofor the years ended December 31, 2013 , 201228td , respectively. Tt
expenses attributable to noncontrolling interestansolidated VIEs for 2013 include $71.7 milliohallocated loss on sale of as:
associated with the sale of the Permian Properties.

See discussion of production expenses, produciixest construction contract expenses, depreciatidrdepletion—eil and natural ga
accretion of asset retirement obligations, lossnjgan derivative contracts and loss (gain) on s#leassets under “Results by Segment
Exploration and Production Segment,” discussiorcadt of sales under “Results by Segment— Drilling ®il Field Services Segmengihc
discussion of midstream and marketing and construcontract expense under “Results by Segment—tkdids Services Segment.”

Impairment expense for the year ended Decembe2@®13 primarily consists of an $11.1 milliampairment of certain drilling ass
and a $2.9 millionmpairment of a corporate asset based on planalitthese assets in 2013 and 2014. Additionallydimment expense for t
year ended December 31, 2013 includes $12.2 midifompairment on certain midstream pipe inventorgtural gas compressors, gas trei
plants and a CQcompressor station after determining that theiarfeituse was limited. Impairment expense for the geaed December {
2012 consists primarily of a $235.4 million impaé&m of goodwill and a $79.3 million impairment bEtCompany’s gas treating plants and CO
compression facilities recorded in connection with completion of the Century Plant. In 2011, thenPany recorded an impairment of 4
million on certain midstream compressor asset$ieis future use was determined to be limited. S¢eté 8 —Impairment” to the Comparsy’
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of thjzort for additional information regarding théspairments.

General and administrative expenses decreased B888d , or 14.0% for the year ended December28iL3 from 2012 primarily dut
to decreases of $23.5 million and $12.0 millionlegal settlement and acquisition costs, respelgti Additionally, there were decrease:
promotional and advertising costs and compensaticenresult of corporate cost cutting measuregatetrease in headcount during 2013. T
decreases were partially offset by a $20.4 milliecrease in costs related to a stockholder conselititation. General and administral
expenses increased $93.0 million, or 62.6% foryder ended December 31, 2012 from 2011. This iser&adue primarily to a $32.3 milli
increase in compensation costs as a result of@adee in the number of Company employees; a $20ii6n legal settlement, as discusse
“Note 15 —Commitments and Contingencies” to the @any’s consolidated financial statements in Item 8 @ tleport; a $19.6 millic
increase in legal and consulting fees, includingte@ssociated with stockholder litigation andvasth activities; $13.2 million in acquisiti
costs associated with the oil and natural gas ptiegsdocated in the Gulf of Mexico that were acqdiduring the second quarter of 2012; a
$7.1 million increase in advertising expense.
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Employee termination benefits of $122.5 millifam the year ended December 31, 2013 representss®eecosts associated with for
Company executives. Of the total employee termomatienefits, approximately $99.3 million, includiamounts associated with the accelel

vesting of restricted stock awards, were attribletédo the Company’s former Chairman and CEO.

Other Income (Expense), Taxes and Net Income Attitdble to Noncontrolling Interest

The Company’s other income (expense), taxes anthoetne attributable to noncontrolling interest foe years endeBecember 3.

2013, 2012 and 2011 are reflected in the tableviel

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Other income (expense)
Interest expense $ (270,239 $ (303,349) $ (237,33)
Bargain purchase gain — 122,69¢ —
Loss on extinguishment of debt (82,00 (3,075 (38,239
Other income, net 12,44 4,741 3,122
Total other expense (339,79) (178,98) (272,44
(Loss) income before income taxes (508,799 146,20¢ 156,57:
Income tax expense (benefit) 5,68¢ (100,36 (5,817
Net (loss) income (514,479 246,57 162,38t
Less: net income attributable to noncontrollingiest 39,41( 105,00( 54,32:
Net (loss) income attributable to SandRidge Endrir. $ (553,889 $ 141,57 $ 108,06!

Interest expense for the years ended Decembe33,,2012 and 2011 consisted of the following:
Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Interest expense

Interest expense on debt $ 275,78 % 289,09 % 223,46:
Amortization of debt issuance costs, discountsmacthium 11,12} 16,98( 13,75t
Dynamic Acquisition committed financing fee — 10,87t —
Loss on interest rate swaps 14 1,18¢ 3,16¢
Capitalized interest (16,697 (14,789 (3,057
Total interest expense $ 270,23: % 303,34¢ $ 237,33.

Total interest expense decreased $33.1 milliontHeryear ended December 31, 2013 compared to 2@titharily as a result of
reduction in interest expense associated with @méos notes repurchased and redeemed in 2012 atit ifirst quarter of 2013, which w
partially offset by the incurrence of interest e senior notes issued in 2012 for the full yea?@3. Interest expense increased $66.0 m
for the year ended December 31, 2012 comparedid, 20imarily as a result of issuances of senidesin 2012 and 2011, partially offset t
reduction in interest expense associated with serttes repurchased and redeemed in 2012 and BOatldition, as a result of the Comp
electing to issue senior notes to fund the castigmoof the Dynamic Acquisition rather than utilipeeviously secured committed financing, -
associated with the committed financing of $10.9iom were fully expensed during the year endedddelger 31, 2012. See “Note 12 —Long-
Term Debt” to the Company’s consolidated finanstatements in Item 8 of this report for additiodialcussion of the Company’s loermn dek

transactions in 2013 and 2012.

The bargain purchase gain recorded during the geded December 31, 2012 resulted from the excesetoéssets acquired o
consideration paid in the Dynamic Acquisition inrA2012. The Company was able to acquire Dynamiddss than the estimated fair valu

its net assets due to their offshore location teguin less bidding competition.
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In connection with the March 2013 redemption of @@mpanys 9.875% Senior Notes due 2016 and 8.0% Seniorshite 2018, tt
Company recognized a loss on extinguishment of de$82.0 million for the year ended December 31,2 The Company recognized a |
on extinguishment of debt of $3.1 million for theay ended December 31, 2012 in connection wittethéer offer to repurchase the Company’
Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2014 (the “Senioatitig Rate Notes'lh August 2012 and recognized a loss on extinguéstiraf debt of $38
million for the year ended December 31, 2011 innemtion with the tender offer to repurchase andréftemption of the 8.625% Senior N¢
due 2015 in March 2011. The losses on extinguishmegresent the premium paid to purchase the ramdsthe write off of the remaini
unamortized debt issuance costs associated withotes.

The Company reported income tax expense of $5.Womifor the year ended December 31, 2Q1Brimarily related to feder
alternative minimum tax (“AMT”) associated with thiax year ended December 31, 201Bhe Company recorded a current liability ar
corresponding deferred tax asset each in the anmwfuapproximately $3.8 million for the year ende@d@ember 31, 2013 As a result ¢
recording this deferred tax asset, the Companeased its valuation allowance against its net dedeiax asset by approximately $3.8 mill
Also included in the income tax expense for ther ywaled December 31, 2013, is $2.4 million of aquirstate income tax, which is parti
offset by a reduction to the liability associateithwunrecognized tax benefits. Despite incurringei@al AMT and state income tax,
Companys effective tax rate remains low as a result ofifga valuation allowance on its net deferred tagsed The Company reported
income tax benefit of $ 100.4 million for the yearded December 31, 201Zhe benefit was primarily attributable to theesede of a portion
the Company’s valuation allowance against its eétmed tax asset during the period. A net defaiagdiability of $ 100.3 milliorrecorded as
result of the Dynamic Acquisition reduced the Comps existing net deferred tax asgefsition, resulting in a corresponding reductiorthie
valuation allowance against the net deferred tarta®uring the year ended December 31, 2ah& Company completed its valuation of as
acquired and liabilities assumed related to theuigdgpn of Arena in order to finalize the purchgsee allocation. In connection therewith,
Company recorded an additional net deferred tablily of $ 7.0 million and released a corresponding portion of its presljovecorde
valuation allowance resulting in a deferred taxdfignAlso during 2011, the Company filed the final income tax returns Asena and i
subsidiaries resulting in a current tax provisiéo$@.7 million.

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interespresents the portion of net income attributablehirdparty ownership in tt
Company'’s consolidated VIEs and subsidiaries. Nebrne attributable to noncontrolling interest dasezl to $39.4 milliofior the year ende
December 31, 2013 from $105.0 million in 2012 duingrily to the $71.7 millionoss on the sale of the Permian Properties ataiiderttc
noncontrolling interest during the year ended DdwenB81, 2013. Additionally, losses from changegain value recognized on the Roy:
Trusts’ derivative contracts in the 2013 period comparedaims from changes in fair value in the 2012 gkdecreased net income in 2(
These decreases were partially offset by the ifarusf a full year of operating income for 2013 rfrahe Mississippian Trust I, whi
completed its initial public offering in April 2012ompared to the inclusion of eight months of afirg income in 2012. Net income attribut:
to noncontrolling interest increased to $105.0 iomllfor the year ended December 31, 2012 from $54lfBon in 2011, due primarily to th
completion of the Mississippian Trust |, Permiamusirand Mississippian Trust Il initial public offiegs in April 2011, August 2011 and Ag
2012, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Companys primary sources of liquidity and capital resosraee cash on hand, cash flows from operatingiteiyproceeds fro
monetizations of assets, borrowings under the sengalit facility, funding commitments from thirchgies for drilling carries and the issuanc
equity and debt securities in the capital markéss.described in Item 1 “Business—2013 Divestitura®@ Company received proceed:
approximately $2.6 billion , including certain padbsing adjustments that were finalized in thedftjuarter of 2013, for the sale of its Perr
Properties in February 2013. Additionally, and @&salibed in Item 1 “Business —2014 Divestiturtheé Company received proceed:s
approximately $750.0 million, subject to post-clmsadjustments, for the sale of its Gulf ProperitieBebruary 2014.

The Companys primary uses of capital are expenditures reladdth oil and natural gas properties, such assoatéted to the drillir
and completion of wells, including to fulfill itsriling commitments to the Permian Trust and Misgipian Trust Il, the acquisition of oil a
natural gas properties and other fixed assetgydlment of dividends on its outstanding convertigepetual preferred stock, interest paym
on its outstanding debt and, from time to time, réiy@ayment of longerm debt. The Company maintains access to furatshy be needed
meet capital funding requirements through its seciiedit facility.

The Company’s 2014 budget for capital expendituresuding expenditures related to the Compardrilling programs for the Permi
Trust and Mississippian Trust || and net of $ 20®iion in drilling carries estimated to be recedvin 2014, is approximately $ 1.5 billiofThe
Company expects to fund its near term capital aetat dervice requirements and working capital neetls cash on hand ($ 814.7 millica
December 31, 2013), cash flow from operations, ¢eds from the sale of the Gulf Properties in 201el available borrowing capacity undel
$775.0 million senior credit facility, which is uravn, other than
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$ 29.1 millionin letters of credit secured by the senior crealility that reduce availability on a dollar forldw basis, at December 31, 2C
The Company has no maturities of long-term delargd 2020, and may choose to issue new kengy debt, subject to market availability, a
alternative to borrowing under its senior credtilfty. Alternatively, the Company may issue equitly other nordebt securities in the capi
markets, depending on market conditions, to addtesanding requirements. In the longer term, @@npany expects an increasing portio
its funding needs to be covered by increased dasls from operations, resulting from its drillingggram combined with recently implemer
cost cutting initiatives, and may issue long-terebtdor equity or monetize naere assets to cover any difference between cash fflom
operations and capital needs. Further, the majofithe Company’s capital expenditures is discretig and could be curtailed if the Company’
cash flows decline from expected levels.

The Company and one of its wholly owned subsidéasiee parties to development agreements with thai&e Trust and Mississippi
Trust Il that obligate the Company to drill, or sauo be drilled, a specified number of wells witspecific areas of mutual interest for €
Royalty Trust by March 31, 2016 and December 31620espectively. The Company fulfilled its driljrobligation to the Mississippian Tru:
during the second quarter of 2013. In additiondpmion targets contained in certain gatheringteeating arrangements require the Compa
incur capital expenditures or make associated fettigpyments. See additional discussion of theseroitments underContractual Obligatior
and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements.”

A substantial or extended decline in oil or natwas$ prices could have a material adverse effeth@Companys financial positior
results of operations, cash flows and quantitiesilpfnatural gas and NGL reserves that may be @oarally produced, which could advers
impact the Compang’ability to comply with the financial covenantsden its senior credit facility, which in turn woulichit borrowings to fun
capital expenditures. The Company may increaseeoredse planned capital expenditures dependinglamo natural gas prices and
availability of funding from the sources descrilzmbve.

The Companys revenue, profitability and future growth are dabsally dependent upon the prevailing and futpriees for oil an
natural gas, each of which depend on numerous réatteyond the Compars/'control such as overall oil and natural gas pcoda anc
inventories in relevant markets, economic condg#jatie global political environment, regulatory di@pments and competition from ot
energy sources. Oil and natural gas prices histiyitbhave been volatile and may be subject to &mamt fluctuations in the future. T
Companys derivative arrangements serve to mitigate aquouti the effect of this price volatility on itsstaflows, and while fixed price sw
contracts are in place for the majority of expeaigroduction for 2014, fixed price swap contsaate in place for only a portion of expecte:
production for 2015. No fixed price swap contraars in place for any of the Company’s future oihatural gas production beyond 2015.

The Company may from time to time seek to retirpunchase its outstanding debt securities throwegh purchases and/or exchat
in open market purchases, privately negotiateds&retions or otherwise. Such repurchases or exchaifigay, will depend on prevailing mar
conditions, the Company’s liquidity requirementsniractual restrictions and other factors.

As of December 31, 2013 , the Company’s cash asl equivalents were $ 814.7 million , includingG&illion attributable to th
Company'’s consolidated VIEs which is available atisfy only obligations of the VIEs. The Companydtapproximately $3.2 billioin total
debt outstanding and $ 29.1 million in outstandetters of credit with no amount outstanding unittieisenior credit facility abecember 3:
2013 . As of and for the year ended December 313 2the Company was in compliance with applicableet@ants under its senior credit faci
and outstanding senior fixed rate notes (the, ‘@drixed Rate Notes”). As of February 25, 2014e, @ompanys cash and cash equivalents v
approximately $1.4 billion , including $ 76.4 mili attributable to the Company’s consolidated VIEdditionally, there waso amour
outstanding under the Company’s senior creditifga@hd $30.0 million in outstanding letters of dite

Working Capital

The Companys working capital balance fluctuates as a resulehanges in the fair value of its outstanding comlityoderivative
instruments and due to fluctuations in the timind amount of its collection of receivables and pagtrof expenditures related to its explora
and production operations. Absent any significdfeots from its commodity derivative instrumentse tCompany historically has maintaine
working capital deficit or a relatively small amduwof positive working capital because the Compargdpital spending generally has exce
the Company’s cash flows from operations.

At December 31, 2013 , the Company had a workingjtalasurplus of $308.0 million compared to a difiaf $27.6 million at
December 31, 2012 . Current assets and currerilitlesh at December 31, 2012 each included a $254illon escrow deposit received
conjunction with the agreement to sell the Perniemperties. This deposit had no impact on workiagital at December 31, 201ZExcluding
the change in current assets attributable to tbeesdeposit, current assets increased $353.9%milt December 31, 2018ompared to curre
assets at December 31, 2012 , primarily due to0d $5millionincrease in cash and cash equivalents. The incieasesh and cash equivale
largely resulted from the receipt of net proceedmfthe
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sale of the Permian Properties in February 208 &fhding the March 2013 redemption of the 9.87&8aior Notes due 2016 and 8.0% Se
Notes due 2018. This increase was partially offiset $96.3 milliondecrease in accounts receivable and amounts doevirking interes
partners as a result of a decrease in drillingvitgtin areas where thirgarty working interests in properties were highee do the sale of tl
Permian Properties, and a decrease of $58.2 millidhe Company asset position on its current derivative congratte to an increase in
prices compared to December 31, 2012 . Excludirg ebcrow deposit, current liabilities increased.41®illion at December 31, 2013
compared to current liabilities at December 31,20The increase was primarily due to a $45.9 amlihcrease in accounts payable and acc
expenses as a result of increased drilling activitthe Mid-Continent and costs associated withGldf Properties in 2012, and$49.4 millior
increase in the net liability position of the Compa current derivative contracts primarily as a reefilan increase in oil prices compare:
December 31, 2012 . These increases were partififgt by a $31.4 million decrease in the Compargdrrent asset retirement obligati
primarily due to Gulf of Mexico plugging and abandwent obligations settled during 2013 and a $15lkom decrease in billings and contr
loss in excess of costs incurred.

Cash Flows

The Company’s cash flows for the years ended Deeeib 2013 , 2012 and 204te presented in the following table and discL

below:
Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Cash flows provided by operating activities $ 868,63( $ 783,16( $ 458,95:
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing actésti 1,070,35! (2,555,94) (902,329
Cash flows (used in) provided by financing actesti (1,434,08) 1,874,87! 645,19:

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 504,897 $ 102,08 $ 201,81¢

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

The Companys operating cash flow is primarily influenced bye tprices the Company receives for its oil, natgat and NG
production, the quantity of oil, natural gas andL$Gt produces, settlements of derivative contraatsl thirdparty demand for its drilling ri
and oil field services and the rates it is ablettarge for these services. Our cash flows fromaipey activities are also impacted by chang
working capital.

Net cash provided by operating activities for tearyended December 31, 20@8reased compared to 2012 due in part to an iseri
prices received for oil and natural gas productiiso contributing to the increase were changesprating assets and liabilities during 2!
primarily related to the timing of cash receiptsl atisbursements. These changes included a dedreaseounts receivable and a decrea
costs in billings and contract loss in excess aftsancurred, which were partially offset by anrgase in cash paid to settle the Company’
plugging and abandonment obligations, primarilyGarif of Mexico properties acquired during the setqoarter of 2012.

Net cash provided by operating activities for tearyended December 31, 2012 increased comparéd ai@e primarily to an increa
in oil, natural gas and NGL sales as a result afeiased oil, natural gas and NGL production, indggroduction from properties located in
Gulf of Mexico that were acquired during the secgudrter of 2012, and prices received for oil peiiun and an increase in realized gain
the Company’s commodity derivative contracts, pélitioffset by an increase in related operatingsos

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

The Company dedicates and expects to continue dicate a substantial portion of its capital expemdi program toward tl
exploration for and production of oil and naturagThese capital expenditures are necessaryset afiherent declines in production and pr«
reserves, which is typical in the capital-intensiteand natural gas industry.

Cash flows provided by investing activities werd.$ billion for the year ended December 31, 26@pared to cash flows used
investing activities of $ 2.6 billiofor the year ended December 31, 2012. The changeluaprimarily to proceeds received from the eflbe
Permian Properties and a decrease in capital ekpessl and acquisitions for the year ended Decer@beP013. Proceeds from the sale
assets totaled $2.6 billion in the year ended Déezr@l, 2013 compared to $431.2 million in the sgmdod in 2012. See addition.
information on capital expenditures below.
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Cash flows used in investing activities increasedhie year ended December 31, 2012 from 214 to the acquisitions of oil a
natural gas properties located in the Gulf of Mexiuring the second quarter of 2012, and an inereasapital expenditures as a result o
continued development of the Company’s oil propsrtprimarily in the Mid=ontinent. These amounts were partially offset yceeds fror
the sale of assets during the year ended Decenihe2032. In 2012, the Company sold working interdet Repsol E&P USA, Inc. and
tertiary recovery properties for combined proceeti$431.2 million compared to proceeds from thee safl assets in 2011 totalirB59.
million , primarily from the sale of oil and natligas properties and working interests to Atinund®®bn I, LLC.

Capital Expenditures.The Company’s capital expenditures, on an acdrasis, by segment for the years ended Decemb&(3B,
2012 and 2011 are summarized below:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Capital expenditures

Exploration and production $ 1,319,01. $ 1,951,491 $ 1,697,69:
Drilling and oil field services 7,12¢ 27,52% 25,67
Midstream services 55,70¢ 80,41 38,51«
Other 42,04( 114,55 54,61t
Capital expenditures, excluding acquisitions 1,423,88. 2,173,98; 1,816,49.
Acquisitions 17,02¢ 840,74( 34,62¢

Total $ 1,44091 $ 3,014,72. % 1,851,12:

Capital expenditures, excluding acquisitions, dased for the year ended December 31, 2013 compagal 2, primarily as a result
an increased focus on capital discipline by the Gamy’s managementapital expenditures, excluding acquisitions, insesl for the year enc
December 31, 2012 compared to 2011 , primarily sesalt of the continued development of the Comjsaal properties, primarily in the Mid-
Continent. Additionally, capital expenditures relhto acquisitions increased for the year endecedber 31, 2012s a result of the Dynan
Acquisition in April 2012 and the acquisition ohet Gulf of Mexico properties in June 2012.

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2@h2 Company received approximately $408.0 millaord $367.6 million,
respectively, relating to Atinum MidCon |, LLC ari®epsol E&P USA, Inc.’s drilling carries, which ditéy offset the Companyg’ capita
expenditures for the respective periods. As of D 31, 2013 Atinum MidCon I, LLC had fully funded its drilligy carry commitment and t
Company expects the remaining drilling carry fopRa E&P USA Inc., of $ 205.6 million at Decembdr, 2013, to be fully funded durir
2014 such that no drilling carry amounts will remat December 31, 2014.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

The Company'’s financing activities used $1.4 hillia cash for the year ended December 31, 2013 agdto providing &.9 billion
of cash in the same period in 2012 . Cash usemamding activities during the 2013 period was pritty comprised of the redemption $1.1
billion aggregate principal amount of the 9.875%i8eNotes due 2016 and 8.0% Senior Notes due 2818ell as the premium paid $62.(
million in connection with the redemption of thesstes, $206.5 million in distributions to third-paRoyalty Trust unitholders, $55.5 millian
dividends paid on the Company’s convertible perglefueferred stock and $33.0 milliém purchases of treasury stock as a result of sha
restricted stock that were traded for taxes.

The Company’s financing activities provided $ 1ilfidn in cash for the year ended December 31, 2d@pared to $645.2 milliofor
the same period in 2011 . Cash provided by finaneictivities during the 2012 period was primarigmprised of net proceeds $1.1 billior
from the issuance of the 7.5% Senior Notes due 20RBadditional 7.5% Senior Notes due 2021, netgwds of $730.1 milliofirom the
issuance of the 8.125% Senior Notes due 2022, $58ilion from the issuance of common units by Mssissippian Trust || an&139.
million of proceeds from the sale of Mississippian Trushd Permian Trust common units owned by the CompHngse proceeds were off
by the $350.0 million purchase and redemption ef $'enior Floating Rate Notes, $181.7 million intritisitions to thirdparty Royalty Trus
unitholders, $55.5 million in dividends paid on tBempany’s convertible perpetual preferred stoct $84.5 millionin payments to sett
financing derivatives.

Cash provided by financing activities during 2014swprimarily comprised of $880.6 million of net peeds from the issuance of
7.5% Senior Notes due 2021 and $917.5 million dfpmeceeds from the issuance of common units byMississippian Trust | and Perm
Trust. These amounts were partially offset by thespase and redemption of $650.0 million
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aggregate principal amount of the 8.625 % Senidedldue 2015, as well as the premium paid of $80&n in connection with the purche
and redemption of the 8.625% due 2015, $340.0amiltif net repayments under the senior credit fgc#i60.2 million of noncontrolling intere
distributions and $56.7 million of dividends paid the Company’s convertible perpetual preferredisto

Indebtedness

Long-term debt consists of the following at Decenttiy 2013 (in thousands):

8.75% Senior Notes due 2020, net of $5,264 discount $ 444,73¢
7.5% Senior Notes due 2021, including premium 932 1,178,92:
8.125% Senior Notes due 2022 750,00(
7.5% Senior Notes due 2023, net of $3,751 discount 821,24¢

Total debt $ 3,194,90

The indentures governing the senior notes contamemants imposing certain restrictions on the Caomisaactivities, including, but n
limited to, limitations on the incurrence of indebhess, payment of dividends, investments, astest, s@rtain asset purchases, transaction:
related parties and consolidations or mergers.fA@d during the year ended December 31, 2ah& Company was in compliance with al
the covenants contained in the indentures goveitsrautstanding Senior Fixed Rate Notes.

Senior Credit FacilityThe amount the Company may borrow under its semeit facility is limited to a borrowing base, aisdsubjec
to periodic redeterminations. The Companigbrrowing base is generally redetermined in Agmill October of each year, and was reaffirm
$775.0 millionin October 2013. The next redetermination will takace in April 2014. Quarterly, the Company pay@emmitment fee asses:
at an annual rate of 0.5%n any available portion of the senior credit fiacilThe borrowing base is determined based upendibcounte
present value of future cash flows attributabléht® Company’s proved reserves. Because the valtleed€ompanys proved reserves is a |
factor in determining the amount of the borrowiregd, changing commodity prices and the Compasytcess in developing reserves
affect the borrowing base.

At December 31, 2013, the Company had no amoustanding under the senior credit facility and $29illion in outstanding lette
of credit, which reduced the availability under geior credit facility to $745.9 million at Deceent81, 2013 As of and during the year enc
December 31, 2013 , the Company was in compliariteall applicable financial covenants under thei@ecredit facility.

Redemption of Senior Notda. March 2013, the Company redeemed $365.5 milliggregate principal amount of its 9.875% Se
Notes due 2016 ar$750.0 million aggregate principal amount of it898.Senior Notes due 2018 for total consideratiofilg061.34 pe$1,00(
principal amount and $1,052.77 per $1,@0icipal amount, respectively. The premium paidedeem these notes and the expense incur
write off the remaining associated unamortized d&htance costs resulted in a loss on extinguishofatebt of $82.0 milliorfor the year ende
December 31, 2013The redemption was funded by a portion of thecgeals received from the sale of the Permian Piiepers a result (
these redemptions in March 2013, the Company wdsnger obligated for future interest paymentsliogg$423.6 million on these senior nor

For more information about the senior credit fagciand Senior Fixed Rate Notes, see “Note 12 —LDagn Debt” to the Company’

consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of tkigort. For information on the future maturitigstee Company’s longerm debt, see the ta
below under “Contractual Obligations and Off-Balar8heet Arrangements.”
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Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrgements

As of December 31, 201,3he Company had future contractual payment comarits under various agreements which are not rec
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

A summary of the Company'’s contractual obligatiaasf December 31, 2013 is provided in the follaniable (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
(In thousands)
Long-term debt obligations(1) $ 5173,38' $ 250,31 % 500,62 $ 500,62 $ 3,921,82
Gas gathering agreement(2) 311,52 42,54; 84,60¢ 83,81¢ 100,55¢
Transportation and throughput agreemer 68,501 19,94% 23,14( 22,63( 2,79C
Third-party drilling rig agreements(3) 21,38¢ 20,25¢ 1,13¢ — —
Asset retirement obligations 424,11° 87,06: 86,26( 65,03/ 185,76(
Operating leases and other(4) 49,83t 8,55 10,04: 3,43: 27,80¢
Total $ 6,048,761 $ 428,67 $ 705,80t % 675,53t $ 4,238,74.
@ Includes interest on lortgrm deb:
2 Consists of a gas gathering agreement to deliveaineminimum volumes of natural gas to PGC, anomsolidated variable intert

entity. Pursuant to the agreement, the base fegditrering services can be reduced if certainr@it@e met. The amounts above
based on the base fee per the agreement.

3 Includes drilling contracts with thingarty drilling rig operators at specified day oofage rates and termination fees associated wd
Company’s hydraulic fracturing services agreemefts. of the Companys drilling rig contracts contain operator performe
conditions that allow for pricing adjustments orlggermination for operator nonperformance.

4 Includes the Company’s obligation for the eoyple and employer match contributions to the ppeits of its norgualified deferre
compensation plan for eligible highly compensatetbleyees who elect to defer income exceeding th& #Rnual limitations ¢
qualified 401(k) retirement plans.

In addition to the contractual obligations includedthe table above, the Company has a developagetement with each of 1
Permian Trust and Mississippian Trust Il and atingaagreement commitment with Occidental, theeieffects of which are not reflected ir
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 204Bare described below.

Development Agreements with Royalty Truske Companys development agreements with the Permian Trusiassissippian Tru:
Il obligate the Company to drill, or cause to b#éleft, a specified number of wells within an ardarmtual interest for each trust by March
2016 and December 31, 2016, respectively. The Coynfudfilled its drilling obligation to the Missiggpian Trust | during the second quarte
2013. The estimated cost to fulfill the drillingligations remaining at December 31, 2013 totalqt@pmately $137.0 million .

Treating Agreement Commitmentnder an agreement with Occidental, the Compamgdquired to deliver a total of approxima
3,200 Bcf of CO, during the agreement period, which ends in 2042D&¢ember 31, 2013, approximately 3,000 Bcf of @mained to L
delivered. The Company is obligated to pay Occiale$0.25 per Mcf to the extent minimum annual €@®lume requirements are not n
Additionally, if CO,volumes delivered by the Company over the ternhefagreement do not reach 3,200 Bcf, the Compaolyligated to pa
Occidental $0.70 per Mcf for such undelivered 8@lumes at the end of the agreement term in 2@&sed upon natural gas production le
in 2013 , the Company accrued $32.7 million for ants related to the Company’s shortfall in meeiisg2013annual delivery obligatior
which was included in production expenses for tharyended December 31, 201Based on current projected natural gas produdtiesls, th:
Company expects to accrue between approximately0$3@lion and $37.0 millionduring the year ending December 31, 2014 for ans
related to the Comparg/anticipated shortfall in meeting its 2014 anrdedivery obligations. Due to the sensitivity oflliing activity to marke
prices for natural gas, the Company is unabletimage additional amounts it may be required to pager the agreement in subsequent pel
however, if natural gas prices remain low, drilliagtivity will likely remain very limited, which wald result in additional shortfall payment:
future periods.
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Valuation Allowance

In 2008 and 2009, the Company recorded full cotingempairments totaling $3.5 billion on its @hd natural gas assets, resultin
the Company being in a net deferred tax assetiposianagement considered all available evidemcecancluded that it was more likely tt
not that some or all of the deferred tax assetddvoot be realized and established a valuatiomalie against the Compaayiet deferred t:
asset in the period ending December 31, 2008. Vdligtion allowance has been maintained since 2868.“Note 18 —Income Taxet] the
Companys consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of thport for more discussion on the establishroéihe valuation allowance agai
the Company’s net deferred tax asset.

Management continues to closely monitor all avddatvidence in considering whether to maintain latioon allowance on its r
deferred tax asset. Factors considered are, butmit¢d to, the reversal periods of existing dedertax liabilities and deferred tax assets
historical earnings of the Company and the prospafctuture earnings. For purposes of the valuaitowance analysis, “earnings’ defined a
pre-tax earnings as adjusted for permanent tasad@nts.

The Company was in a cumulative negative earnirggstipn until the 3@Gnonth period ended December 31, 2012 at which it
reached cumulative positive earnings. However, gsalt of the Company closing the sale of the RarrRroperties on February 26, 2013,
Company reverted back to a cumulative negativeimgsrposition for the 36-month period ended Marth2013. See “Note 3Acquisitions an
Divestitures” to the Company’consolidated financial statements in Item 8 ¢ teport for discussion of the sale of the PernRaoperties
Based on net book value, historical costs and ploeserves as of February 26, 2013, the Compayded a loss on the sale of $398.9 milljon
which caused the Company to report a loss for tetqr ended March 31, 2013. The Company remairss ¢amulative negative earnit
position through the 36ionth period ended December 31, 2013. The resuttingulative negative earnings are not a definifeetor ir
determining to maintain a valuation allowance aswahilable evidence should be considered, b é significant piece of negative evidenc
management’s analysis.

In recent years, the Company has experienced signifearnings volatility due to substantial chanigethe market price of natural ¢
In 2008, the Compang’earnings were primarily derived from natural gakes and during 2008 the market price of natumal lgegan a ste
decline. Since 2008, natural gas prices have rexdailatively low, although there has been a sligiward trend since early 2012. As a rest
a shift in strategy, the Compasyrevenues are now primarily derived from oil, piee of which has experienced a greater recoviege200!
than that of natural gas. The Company continué¢aki® additional steps to further ensure stockholdire and future profitability.

The Companys revenue, profitability and future growth are sahsally dependent upon prevailing and future gsiéor oil and natur
gas. The markets for these commodities contindee teolatile. Relatively modest drops in prices s@mificantly affect the Company‘financia
results and impede its growth. Changes in oil satdnal gas prices have a significant impact onvtidae of the Compang’reserves and on
cash flow. Prices for oil and natural gas may flat¢ widely in response to relatively minor chanigethe supply of and demand for oil
natural gas and a variety of additional factors #na beyond the Comparsytontrol. Due to these factors, management hasgila lower weig|
on the prospects of future earnings in its ovemadllysis of the valuation allowance.

In determining whether to maintain the valuatiolowahnce, management concluded that the objectiwelifiable negative evidence
cumulative negative earnings for the 36-month meending December 31, 2013s difficult to overcome with any forms of posii evidenc
that may exist. Accordingly, management has nohgéd its judgment regarding the need for a fullgtibn allowance against its net defe
tax asset. The valuation allowance against the @owip net deferred tax asset at December 31, 2@53p%02.7 million.

Additionally, at December 31, 2013he Company has valuation allowances totaling &Bdillion against specific deferred tax as
for which management has determined it is morelikkan not that such deferred tax assets will betrealized for various reasons.
valuation allowance against these specific defaiarassets would not be impacted by the foregdisgussion.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of the Company’s filghmondition and results of operations are bagashithe Companyg’ consolidate
financial statements, which have been prepareddordance with accounting principles generally ptee in the United States of America.
preparation of the Comparg/financial statements requires the Company to naskemptions and prepare estimates that affectefharte
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and exgzeand the disclosure of contingent assets antlitiedy The Company bases its estimate
historical experience and various other assumptibasthe Company believes are reasonable; howavaral results may differ significant
Estimates of oil, natural gas and NGL reservesthaul values, future production rates and futuret€and expenses are inherently uncerta
numerous reasons, including many factors
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beyond the Compang’control. Reservoir engineering is a subjectivaeess of estimating underground accumulationslafra natural gas tr
cannot be measured in an exact manner. The accofary reserve estimate is a function of the quali data available and of engineering
geological interpretation and judgment. In additiestimates of reserves may be revised based ol gmtoduction, results of subseqt
exploration and development activities, prevailmgnmodity prices, operating costs and other facithiese revisions may be material and c
materially affect the Company’s future depletiompreciation and amortization expenses. The Compaantical accounting policies a
additional information on significant estimates dis®y the Company are discussed below. See “NoteSummary of Significant Accountil
Policies” to the Company’s consolidated financitements in Item 8 of this report for addition@odission of the Comparg/significan
accounting policies.

Derivative Financial InstrumentsTo manage risks related to fluctuations in prie¢sibutable to its expected oil and natural
production, the Company enters into oil and natgea derivative contracts. The Company may alsm fiime to time, enter into interest t
swaps in order to manage risk associated withxjiegure to variable interest rates.

The Company recognizes its derivative instrumentgither assets or liabilities at fair value withanges in fair value recognizec
earnings unless designated as a hedging instruwidntspecific hedge accounting criteria having besgt. The Company has elected nc
designate price risk management activities as adiowl hedges under applicable accounting guidaaod, accordingly, accounts for
commodity derivative contracts at fair value withanges in fair value reported currently in earningse Company nets derivative assets
liabilities whenever it has a legally enforceablaster netting agreement with the counterparty ter@vative contract. The related cash 1
impact of the Compang’ derivative activities are reflected as cash fldmsn operating activities unless the derivativentcact contains
significant financing element, in which case, casttlements are classified as cash flows from Gimgnactivities in the consolidated statemel
cash flows.

Fair values of commodity derivative financial instrents are determined primarily by using discourteh flow calculations or opti
pricing models, and are based upon inputs thatitirer readily available in the public market, sashoil and natural gas futures prices, vola
factors, interest rates and discount rates, obeatorroborated from active markets. Estimatesiofré prices are based upon published for
commodity price curves for oil and natural gasrimsients. Valuations also incorporate adjustmentshi® nonperformance risk of the Comp
or its counterparties, as applicable.

Fair value of interest rate swap financial instraiseis estimated primarily by using discounted cfigiv calculations based up
forward interest rate yields, which is the mosn#igant variable input. These estimates of futyiedds are based upon utilizing forward cui
such as the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOgYvided by third parties. Valuations also incogieradjustments for the nonperforme
risk of the Company or its counterparty, as appliea

Proved ReservesApproximately 86.1% of the Compamyteserves were estimated by independent petroéngimeers for the ye
ended December 31, 201&stimates of proved reserves are based on theities of oil, natural gas and NGLs that geolobared engineerir
data demonstrate, with reasonable certainty, toebeverable in future years from known reservoinglar existing economic and opera
conditions. However, there are numerous uncerésritiherent in estimating quantities of proved meseand in projecting future revenues,
of production and timing of development expendiyiacluding many factors beyond the Compamgontrol. Estimating reserves is a com
process and relies on assumptions and subjectieepiatations of available geologic, geophysicaljieeering and production data, and
accuracy of reserve estimates is a function ofjtieity and quantity of available data, engineednd geological interpretation and judgmen
addition, as a result of volatility and changingrked conditions, commodity prices and future depelent costs will change from perioc
period, causing estimates of proved reserves togehaas well as causing estimates of future netrmees to change. For the years e
December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , the Comparigegyts proved reserves from prior years' repbstsapproximately (19.2)MMBoe,
(112.0) MMBoe and (36.8MMBoe, respectively, due to market prices durimgabthe end of the applicable period, productierfgrmanc
indicating more (or less) reserves in place, lafgeismaller) reservoir size than initially estimétor additional proved reserve bookings wi
the original field boundaries. Estimates of provederves are key components of the Comgampost significant financial estimates use
determine depreciation and depletion on oil andnahigas properties and its full cost ceiling latidn. Future revisions to estimates of prc
reserves may be material and could materially affec Company’s future depreciation and depletiqreases.

Method of Accounting for Oil and Natural Gas Prajpes. The Companys business is subject to accounting rules thatimigue to th
oil and natural gas industry. There are two alldeabethods of accounting for oil and natural gasifess activities: the successful eff
method and the full cost method. The Company usedull cost method to account for its oil and makgas properties. All direct costs i
certain indirect costs associated with the acdaisitexploration and development of oil and natwyad properties are capitalized. Explore
and development costs include dry well costs, ggoéd and geophysical costs, direct overhead mklateexploration and development activi
and other costs incurred for the purpose of findilgnatural gas and NGL reserves. Amortizatioroibfind natural gas properties is calcul
using the unit-oproduction method based on estimated proved dilirabgas and NGL reserves. Sales and abandonmieoiisand natural ge
properties
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being amortized are accounted for as adjustmerttgetéull cost pool, with no gain or loss recoguizenless the adjustments would significa
alter the relationship between capitalized costs pnoved oil, natural gas and NGL reserves. A iggnt alteration would not ordinarily
expected to occur upon the sale of reserves invpléss than 25% of the proved reserve quantifiescost center.

Under the successful efforts method, geological geaphysical costs and costs of carrying and rieginndeveloped properties
charged to expense as incurred. Costs of drillixglogatory wells that do not result in proved re®srare charged to expense. Deprecie
depletion and impairment of oil and natural gaspprties are generally calculated on a well by welise or field basis versus the aggreg
“full cost” pool basis. Additionally, gain or loss is generakgognized on all sales of oil and natural gap@ries under the successful eff
method. As a result, the Compasifinancial statements will differ from companibéattapply the successful efforts method since thi@gzan)
will generally reflect a higher level of capitaldzeosts as well as a higher oil and natural gasedeggion and depletion rate, and the Com|
will not have exploration expenses that succesgfarts companies frequently have.

Impairment of Oil and Natural Gas PropertieB1 accordance with full cost accounting rules,itziged costs are subject to a limitati
The capitalized cost of oil and natural gas proggrinet of accumulated depreciation, depletion iemghirment, less related deferred inct
taxes, may not exceed an amount equal to the greakre of future net revenues from proved oilunalt gas and NGL reserves, discounte
10% per annum, plus the lower of cost or fair vadfieinproved properties, plus estimated salvagaeeydess related tax effects (theelling
limitation”). The Company calculates its full castiling limitation using the 12aonth average oil and natural gas prices for thetmexent 1
months as of the balance sheet date and adjustdhd$cs or location differential, held constant rothe life of the reserves. If capitalized c
exceed the ceiling limitation, the excess musthmrged to expense. Once incurred, a wditem is not reversible at a later date. There we
full cost ceiling impairments recorded during tleas ended December 31, 2013, 2012 or 2011 .

Unproved Properties.The balance of unproved properties consists pilynaf costs to acquire unproved acreage. Thesés cas
initially excluded from the Compang’amortization base until it is known whether pabveserves will or will not be assigned to the by
The Company assesses all properties, on an indivizhsis or as a group if properties are indiviguialsignificant, classified as unproved o
quarterly basis for possible impairment or reduciio value. The assessment includes considerafigarmus factors, including, but not limit
to, the following: intent to drill; remaining leaserm; geological and geophysical evaluationsjidglresults and activity; assignment of pro
reserves; and economic viability of developmemtrifved reserves are assigned. During any periadhioh these factors indicate an impairm
all or a portion of the associated leasehold cagtdransferred to the full cost pool and beconigestito amortization. Costs of seismic date
allocated to various unproved leaseholds and tearesf to the amortization base with the associaskehold costs on a specific project b
The Company estimates that substantially all otdsts classified as unproved as of the balancet stede will be evaluated and transfe
within a 10-year period from the date of acquisifioontingent on the Company’s capital expenditaresdrilling program.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Ne@ther capitalized costs, including drilling equigmh, natural gas gathering and treating equipt
transportation equipment and other property andpegent are carried at cost. Renewals and improvesrere capitalized while repairs
maintenance are expensed. Depreciation of suchegiyopnd equipment is computed using the strdigbtmethod over the estimated us
lives of the assets, which range from 10 to 39 y&ar buildings and 3 to 30 years for equipmentewproperty and equipment component:
disposed of, the cost and the related accumulaprkdiation are removed and any resulting gaioss is reflected in operations. Realizatio
the carrying value of property and equipment isenered for possible impairment whenever events anges in circumstances indicate tha
carrying value of such asset or asset group may@&aoecoverable. Assets are considered to be ietpdil forecast of undiscountedtimate
future net operating cash flows directly relatedhe asset or asset group including disposal viélamy, is less than the carrying amount of
asset or asset group. If an asset or asset gralgteésmined to be impaired, the impairment logaéssured as the amount by which the car
amount of the asset or asset group exceeds itsdfmie. An estimate of fair value is based on tbst information available, including prices
similar assets. Changes in such estimates coukbdhe Company to reduce the carrying value ofgtg@mnd equipment.

See “Note 8 —Impairment” to the Compasyconsolidated financial statements in Iltem 8 af tleport for a discussion of 1
Company’s impairments.

Goodwill. In conjunction with its acquisition of Arena, thei@pany recorded goodwill equal to the excess ottmsideration paid ov
the fair value of identifiable net assets acquitaddecember 2012, the Company entered into areaggst to sell the Permian Properties, w
the Company determined to be a triggering eveavéduate goodwill for impairment. As such, an innpent test was performed as of Decer
31, 2012. Primarily as a result of a decrease énGompanys probable reserves as of December 31, 2012, whicime of the significa
components in the determination of the fair valtithe reporting
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unit, the carrying value of the reporting unit eeded the fair value. Probable reserves used irepharting unit fair value calculation decree
due to their reclassification to possible resergsa result of the Company’s yeand evaluation of drilling results across its agee@n the
Mississippian formation. Possible reserves areénubtided in the fair value calculation of the repag unit. The Company performed step tw
the impairment test which indicated the carryintugaof goodwill was fully impaired. As a resultetiCompany recorded an impairment of
full carrying amount of goodwill of $235.4 millicet December 31, 2012.

Asset Retirement Obligation#sset retirement obligations represent the es@iroffair value of the cost to plug, abandon amdediat:
the Companys wells at the end of their productive lives, ic@clance with applicable federal and state lawg Tbhmpany estimates the
value of an asset’retirement obligation in the period in which tlability is incurred, if a reasonable estimate ¢@made. Estimating futt
asset retirement obligations requires managememtte@ estimates and judgments regarding timingtexce of a liability and what constitL
adequate restoration. The Company employs a prga&re technique to estimate the fair value of sgetiretirement obligation, which refle
certain assumptions and requires significant judgmincluding an inflation rate, its credit-adjusteriskfree interest rate, the estims
settlement date of the liability and the estimatadent cost to settle the liability based on thpedty quotes and current actual costs. Inhere
the present value calculation rates are the tiningettlement and changes in the legal, regulatemyjronmental and political environmel
which are subject to change. Changes in timingoathé original estimate of cash flows will resuitéhanges to the carrying amount of
liability.

Revenue Recognition and Natural Gas Balanci@, natural gas and NGL revenues are recordechuitle of production sold pass
to the customer, net of royalties, discounts atahances, as applicable. Taxes assessed by govetairaathorities on oil, natural gas and N
sales are presented separately from such revendesaduded in production tax expense in the cddatéd statement of operations.

The Company accounts for natural gas productioralamtes using the sales method, whereby it recegmavenue on all natural |
sold to its customers notwithstanding the fact itetownership may be less than 100% of the natyaal sold. Liabilities are recorded
imbalances greater than the Company’s proportiostzdiee of remaining estimated natural gas reserves.

The Company accounted for its two construction ramt$, discussed in “Note 11 —Construction Consfatd the Companyg’
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of ti@Eport, using the completemntract method, under which contract revenues casts ar
recognized when work under the contract is comgletesubstantially completed and assets have bapsférred. In the interim, costs incui
on and billings related to contracts in processaamimulated on the balance sheet. Contract leseagcorded at the time it is determined tl
loss will be incurred. The contract loss on the tGgnPlant construction contract was recorded deveelopment cost within the Compasigil
and natural gas properties as part of the full post. Contract gains, if any, are recorded updrstantial completion of the construction project.

The Company recognizes revenues and expenses tgehffcan daywork and footage drilling contractdtaes services are performec
the Company does not bear the risk of completiothefwell. The Company may receive lusym fees for the mobilization of equipment
personnel. Mobilization fees received and costsrial to mobilize a rig from one location to anothee recognized at the time mobilizas
services are performed.

In general, natural gas purchased and sold by fdstmeam business is priced at a published dailynonthly index price. Sales
wholesale customers typically incorporate a premiommanaging their transmission and balancing irequents. Revenues are recognized |
delivery of natural gas to customers and/or whewices are rendered, pricing is determined andectdbility is reasonably assured. Reve
from third-party midstream services are presented on a gasss, Isince the Company acts as a principal bygasivnership of the natural ¢
purchased and taking responsibility of fulfillmedat natural gas volumes sold.

Income Taxes.Deferred income taxes are recorded for temporéfferences between financial statement and incoaxe hiasis
Temporary differences are differences between theuats of assets and liabilities reported for feiahstatement purposes and their tax b
Deferred tax assets are recognized for tempordfgreinces that will be deductible in future yeasst returns and for operating loss and
credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets are redilny a valuation allowance if it is deemed mdkelji than not that some or all of the defe
tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax litide are recognized for temporary differences thitl be taxable in future yearsax returns. A
of December 31, 2013the Company continued to have a full valuatidovehnce against its net deferred tax asset. Theatiah allowanc
serves to reduce the tax benefits recognized fftmmet deferred tax asset to an amount that is fiketg than not to be realized based on
weight of all available evidence.

Variable Interest EntitiesAn entity is referred to as a VIE if it possessas of the following criteria: (i) it is thinly cagallized, (ii) the
residual equity holders do not control the enttiy) the equity holders are shielded from the emoit losses, (iv) the equity holders do
participate fully in the entity’s residual econosyior (v) the entity was established with non-
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substantive voting interests. The Company consglida VIE when it has determined it is the primleneficiary, which requires significe
judgment. The primary beneficiary of a VIE is thatiable interest holder possessing a controllingricial interest through (i) its power to dit
the activities of the VIE that most significanti;mpact the VIES economic performance and (ii) its obligation bs@b losses or its right
receive benefits from the VIE that could potenyidde significant to the VIE. In order to determimkether the Company owns a variable inte
in a VIE and the significance of the variable iettr the Company performs a qualitative analysih@fentitys design, organizational structt
primary decision makers and related financial agesgs. In addition to the VIEs that the Companyscatidates, the Company also holc
variable interest in another VIE that is not coitatked as it was determined that the Company ishetprimary beneficiary. The Comps
monitors both consolidated and unconsolidated YéEdetermine if any events have occurred that coaidse the primary beneficiary to chai
See “Note 4 —Variable Interest Entities” to the Quamy’s consolidated financial statements in Item 8 @ teport for a discussion of 1
Company'’s VIEs.

Allocation of Purchase Price in Business CombinagioAccounting for the acquisition of a business regmihe allocation of the purch
price to the various assets and liabilities ofabquired business and recording deferred taxemfpdifferences between the allocated value:
tax basis of assets and liabilities. Any excegh®fpurchase price over the amounts assigned étsamsd liabilities is recorded as goodwiill.

The purchase price allocation is accomplished bgrding each asset and liability at its estimatgdvalue. Estimated deferred taxes
based on available information concerning the tagidof the acquired company’s assets and liaslitind taxelated carryforwards at t
acquisition date, although such estimates may @anthe future as additional information becomesvkn. The amount of goodwill recordec
any particular business combination can vary sicauitly depending upon the values attributed tetasscquired and liabilities assumed relz
to the total acquisition cost.

In estimating the fair values of assets acquired labilities assumed, the Company makes variogsiraptions. The most significe
assumptions related to the estimated fair valusigi@sd to proved and unproved oil and natural gaggsties. To estimate the fair values of tl
properties, the Company prepares estimates ofi@iliral gas and NGL reserves and applies a diséounéserve categories based on indt
factors applicable to each acquisition. The prigiiized in the reserves estimates are based upovafd commodity strip prices. Future c
flows are discounted using an industry weightedragye cost of capital rate. Estimated fair valuesigaged to assets acquired can ha
significant effect on results of operations in theure. See “Note 3 —Acquisitions and Divestitlres the Companys consolidated financi
statements in Item 8 of this report for a discussibthe Company’s acquisitions.

New Accounting Pronouncemerfr a discussion of recently adopted accountingdstals and recent accounting stand ards not yet
adopted, see “Note 1 —Summary of Significant Aetting Policies” to the Comparg’consolidated financial statements in Item 8 i tbport

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MazkRisk
General

This discussion provides information about thericial instruments the Company uses to manage coltynaices and interest r¢
volatility, including instruments used to managenooodity prices for production attributable to they®lty Trusts. All contracts are settlec
cash and do not require the actual delivery ofrarnodity at settlement.

Commodity Price RiskThe Companys most significant market risk relates to the miereceives for its oil, natural gas and N
production. Due to the historical price volatilitf these commaodities, the Company periodically éatered into, and expects in the futur
enter into, derivative arrangements for the purpokeeducing the variability of oil and natural gpsces the Company receives for
production. From time to time, the Company entets tcommodity pricing derivative contracts for atpm of its anticipated oil and natural (
production volumes depending upon management'’s wieapportunities under the then-prevailing currerdrket conditions. The Compasy’
senior credit facility limits its ability to entémto derivative transactions to 85% of expectedipoion volumes from estimated proved reserves.
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The Company uses, and may continue to use, ayafieommoditybased derivative contracts, including fixed prieggs, collars ar
basis swaps. At December 31, 2013 , the Compacgmmodity derivative contracts consisted of fiygtte swaps and collars, which
described below:

Fixed price swaps The Company receives a fixed price for the contesxtt pays a floating market price to the counteypaver ¢
specified period for a contracted volume.

Collars Two-way collars contain a fixed floor price (put) anéxa@d ceiling price (call). If the market price@eds the ca

strike price or falls below the put strike priclee tCompany receives the fixed price and pays thianprice. If the
market price is between the call and the put spifiee, no payments are due from either party.
Threeway collars have two fixed floor prices (a purclthpet and a sold put) and a fixed ceiling pricdlc@he
purchased put establishes a minimum price unlessrmiéirket price falls below the sold put, at whidinp the
minimum price would be NYMEX plus the differencetlseen the purchased put and the sold put strilae pfihe
call establishes a maximum price (ceiling) the Campwill receive for the volumes under the contract

The Companys oil fixed price swap transactions are settlecdagon the average daily prices for the calendartimor quarter of tt
contract period. The Company’s threey oil collars are settled based upon the aritforeaterage of NYMEX oil prices during the calcude
period for the relevant contract. The Companyatural gas fixed price swap transactions atkeddiased upon the NYMEX prices on the {
commodity business day for the relevant contract] tne Companyg natural gas collars are settled based upon thelEBR prices on th
penultimate commodity business day for the releantract. Settlement for oil derivative contrastsurs in the succeeding month or qui
and natural gas derivative contracts are settlé¢ldemproduction month or quarter.

At December 31, 2013, the Company’s open commattitivative contracts consisted of the following:

Qil Price Swaps

Weighted Average

Notional (MBbls) Fixed Price
January 2014 — December 2014 8,81: $ 92.9¢
January 2015 — December 2015 797¢ % 86.1:

Natural Gas Price Swaps

Weighted Average

Notional (MMcf) Fixed Price
January 2014 — December 2014 3549 $ 4.2(
Qil Collars - Three-way
Purchased

Notional (MBbls) Sold Put Put Sold Call
January 2014 — December 2014 8,21 $70.00 $90.20 $100.00
January 2015 — December 2015 2,92( $73.13 $90.82  $103.13
Natural Gas Collars

Notional (MMcf) Collar Range

January 2014 — December 2014 937 $4.00 — $7.78
January 2015 — December 2015 1,01C $4.00 — $8.55

Because the Company has not designated any déritgatlve contracts as hedges for accounting pegashanges in fair values of
Company'’s derivative contracts are recognized asgmd losses in current period earnings. As atreéhe Company current period earnin
may be significantly affected by changes in the Yaiue of its commodity derivative contracts. Cles in fair value are principally meast
based on future prices as of period-end compar#tetoontract price.
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The Company recorded loss (gain) on commodity dérie contracts of $47.1 million , $(241.4) milli@nd $(44.1) milliorfor the
years endeDecember 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectivdfichnincludes net cash (receipts) payments upotracnsettiement 0$(3.2]
million , $(100.7) million and $37.6 million , resgtively. For the year ended December 31, 2013 65aillion of cash payments related to e
settlements of commodity derivative contracts assallt of the sale of the Permian Properties. Reryear ended December 31, 201Be gail
on commodity derivative contracts is net of a naskcloss of $117.1 millioresulting from the amendment of certain 2012 déixeecontracts t
contracts maturing in 2014 and 2015.

See “Note 13 —Derivatives” to the Compamyconsolidated financial statements in Item 8 & tieport for additional informatic
regarding the Company’s commaodity derivatives.

Credit Risk. All of the Company’s derivative transactions hdezn carried out in the over-theunter market. The use of deriva
transactions in over-thesunter markets involves the risk that the courteigs may be unable to meet the financial termbetransactions. T
counterparties for all of the Company’s derivatikensactions have an “investment gradegdit rating. The Company monitors on an ong
basis the credit ratings of its derivative coundetips and considers its counterpart@gdit default risk ratings in determining the faaue of it:
derivative contracts. The Compasyerivative contracts are with multiple countetiparto minimize its exposure to any individual otarparty.

A default by the Company under its senior crediility constitutes a default under its derivativentracts with counterparties that
lenders under the senior credit facility. The Compaoes not require collateral or other securityrfrcounterparties to support deriva
instruments. The Company has master netting agregemeth all of its derivative contract counterpest which allow the Company to net
derivative assets and liabilities with the samentexparty. As a result of the netting provisiofe Companys maximum amount of loss un
derivative transactions due to credit risk is ledito the net amounts due from the counterpartidenithe derivative contracts. The Company’
loss is further limited as any amounts due frometaudlting counterparty that is a lender under thieicr credit facility can be offset agai
amounts owed, if any, to such counterparty undeiGbmpany’s senior credit facility. As of DecemBé&r 2013 , the majority of the Compasay’
open derivative contracts are with counterpartied share in the collateral supporting the Commsgnior credit facility. As a result, -
Company is not required to post additional col@temder its derivative contracts. To secure tbbiigations under the derivative contr:
novated by the Company, the Permian Trust and B&iggiian Trust Il have each given the counterpattiesuch contracts a lien on their roy
interests. See “Note 4 —Variable Interest Entities'the Companyg consolidated financial statements in Item 8 o tieport for addition:
information on the Permian Trust's and Mississipplaust II's derivative contracts.

The Companys ability to fund its capital expenditure budgepéstially dependent upon the availability of fundsler its senior cres
facility. In order to mitigate the credit risk asgated with individual financial institutions comttaid to participate in the senior credit facilitlye
Company'’s bank group currently consists of 23 faianinstitutions with commitments ranging from 0% to 6.00% of the borrowing base.

Interest Rate RiskThe Company is exposed to interest rate risk ®toitgterm fixed rate debt and will be exposed to vadahteres
rates if it draws on its senior credit facilityxed rate debt, where the interest rate is fixed twe life of the instrument, exposes the Compa
(i) changes in market interest rates reflectechenfair value of the debt and (i) the risk that iompany may need to refinance maturing
with new debt at a higher rate. Variable rate debgre the interest rate fluctuates, exposes tmep@ny to shorterm changes in market intet
rates as the Comparsyinterest obligations on these instruments anegieally redetermined based on prevailing markégrest rates, primar
the LIBOR and the federal funds rate. The Compaat/io outstanding variable rate debt as of DeceBhe2013 .

Prior to its maturity on April 1, 2013, the Compamyd a $350.0 million notional interest rate swgpeament, which effectively fix
the variable interest rate on the Senior FloatiateRNotes at an annual rate of 6.69% for perios p their repurchase and redemption ir
third quarter of 2012. The interest rate swap wasiesignated as a hedge.

The Company recorded a loss on its interest ragpswf $0.01 million , $1.2 million and $3.2 milidor the years endddecember 3:
2013, 2012 and 201, Iespectively, which is included in interest exg®im the consolidated statements of operatioetuded in the loss for tl
years endeDecember 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 are cash paympatscontract settlement of $2.4 million , $9.2lioni and $9.4 million,
respectively.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Company’s consolidated financial statementsired by this item are included in this report lmegng on page F-1.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcdanting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures&inder the supervision and with the participatidrthe Companys management, including
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officéine Company performed an evaluation of the dffeness of the design and operation ¢
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to &gd Act Rules 13a-15 and 158-as of the end of the period covered by this ahreport
Based on that evaluation, the CompanZhief Executive Officer and its Chief Financiaffi@er concluded that its disclosure controls
procedures were effective as of December 31, 20p8ovide reasonable assurance that the informagiquired to be disclosed by the Comg
in its reports filed or submitted under the Exclaigt is recorded, processed, summarized and egparithin the time periods specified in
rules and forms of the SEC, and such informatioacisumulated and communicated to management, inglubde Chief Executive Officer a
Chief Financial Officer, or other persons perforgngimilar functions, as appropriate to allow timedbcisions regarding required disclosur

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finah&eporting and Report of Independent Registéheblic Accounting Firm The
information required to be furnished pursuant is ttem is set forth under the captions “ManagenseReport on Internal Control over Finan
Reporting” and “Report of Independent Registerebliwccount ing Firm” in Item 8 of this report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial RepoginThere were no changes in the Companiyiternal control over financ

reporting during the quarter ended December 313 204t have materially affected, or are reasonblkdyy to materially affect, the Comparyy’
internal control over financial reporting.
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Item 9B.

Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART IlI
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governe
The information required by this item is incorpeterein by reference to the following sectionshef Companys definitive prox:

statement, which will be filed no later than A@B0, 2014 : “Director Biographical Information,” “Erutive Officers,” Compliance witl
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act” and “Corporatey&@nance Matters.”
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ltem 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item is incorpeterein by reference to the following sectionshef Companys definitive prox:

statement, which will be filed no later th an AB0, 2014 : “ Director Compensation,” “Outstandiaguity Awards” and Executive Officer
and Compensation.”
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ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aihnagement and Related Stockholder Matters
The information required by this item is incorpeterein by reference to the following sectionshef Companys definitive prox:

statement, which will be filed no later tha n A@0, 2014 : “Equ ity Compensation Plan Informatiaid ‘Security Ownership of Certe
Beneficial Owners and Management.”
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ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions abutector Independence

The information required by this item is incorpeterein by reference to the following sectionshef Companys definitive prox:
statement, which will be filed no later t han A@80, 2014 : “ Related Party Transactions” and “©ospe Governance Matters.”
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorpedhtherein by reference to the section captionRdtification of Selection «
Independent Reg istered Public Accounting Firmthie Company’s definitive proxy statement, whichlwé filed no later than April 30, 2014 .
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as a part of thisort:
Q) Consolidated Financial Statements

Reference is made to the Index to Consolidatedn€inhStatements appearing on page F-1.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules have been omittszhuse they are not applicable or the requiriednration is presented
the consolidated financial statements or notestber

3) Exhibits
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing maghtaining adequate internal control over finahcgporting as defined
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15t5(f) under the Exchange Act. Under the supervisioa with the participation of our management,udiig our Chie
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, wenclucted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofiotarnal control over financial reporti
based on the framework establishedniternal Control—Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatad
the Treadway Commission. Because of its inheremtdtions, internal control over financial repogimay not prevent or detect misstatem
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivemde future periods are subject to the risk thattrads may become inadequate becau:
changes in conditions, or that the degree of campé with the policies and procedures may deteeora

Based on our evaluation using criteria for effestimternal control over financial reporting desedhin Internal Control—ntegratec
Framework (1992, our management concluded, that as of Decemb&0dB,, our internal control over financial repogtiwas effective.

The effectiveness of our internal control over figial reporting as of December 31, 2018 been audited by PricewaterhouseCo
LLP, an independent registered public accounting,fas stated in their report which appears herein.

/sl JAMES D. BENNETT /s/  EDDIE M. L EB LANC
James D. Bennett Eddie M. LeBlanc
President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Sadg&Energy, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated lb@dasheets and the related consolidated stateméndpevations, changes
stockholders' equity and cash flows present faingll material respects, the financial positidrSandRidge Energy, Inc. and its subsidiarit
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results afdperations and their cash flows for each of thied years in the period ended Decembe
2013 in conformity with accounting principles geaibr accepted in the United States of America. Afsour opinion, the Company maintain
in all material respects, effective internal cohtwger financial reporting as of December 31, 20088sed on criteria established Iiiternal
Control - Integrated Framework (19923sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiwinghe Treadway Commission (COSO).
Company's management is responsible for thesedimastatements, for maintaining effective interoahtrol over financial reporting and for
assessment of the effectiveness of internal comver financial reporting, included in the accompag Management's Report on Intel
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipilg to express opinions on these financial statgsand on the Company's internal cot
over financial reporting based on our integrateditau We conducted our audits in accordance with dtandards of the Public Comp
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thasedards require that we plan and perform the audibbtain reasonable assurance ¢
whether the financial statements are free of maltemisstatement and whether effective internal rmbrtver financial reporting was maintair
in all material respects. Our audits of the finah@tatements included examining, on a test basiglence supporting the amounts
disclosures in the financial statements, assessagccounting principles used and significannesties made by management, and evaluatir
overall financial statement presentation. Our aofliinternal control over financial reporting indied obtaining an understanding of inte
control over financial reporting, assessing the iisat a material weakness exists, and testing ewraduating the design and opera
effectiveness of internal control based on thessgskrisk. Our audits also included performing satbler procedures as we considered nece
in the circumstances. We believe that our audiisige a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsi@tements for external purposes in accordantie geinerally accepted accounting princig
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures thakefigin to the maintenance of records the
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdimpany; (ii) provide reasonable assuranct
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepitu@tion of financial statements in accordanch génerally accepted accounting princig
and that receipts and expenditures of the compeape@ing made only in accordance with authorizatiohmanagement and directors of
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurancardagy prevention or timely detection of unauthedzcquisition, use, or disposition of
company's assets that could have a material effettie financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or det@isstatements. Also, projection:s
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomeénaate because of changes in conditior
that the degree of compliance with the policieproicedures may deteriorate.

/s! PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
February 28, 2014
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SandRidge Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands, except per share data)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 814,66. $ 309, 76¢
Accounts receivable, net 349,21¢ 445,50¢
Derivative contracts 12,77¢ 71,02:
Costs in excess of billings and contract loss 4,07¢ 11,22¢
Prepaid expenses 39,25 31,31¢
Restricted deposit — 255,00(
Other current assets 21,83: 19,04:
Total current assets 1,241,82. 1,142,88!
Oil and natural gas properties, using full costhodtof accounting
Proved (includes development and project costuded from amortization of $45.6 million and $72.4
million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectjvely 10,972,81 12,262,92
Unproved 531,60t 865,86:
Less: accumulated depreciation, depletion and imyeit (5,762,96) (5,231,18)
5,741,45: 7,897,60:
Other property, plant and equipment, net 566,22: 582,37!
Derivative contracts 14,12¢ 23,617
Other assets 121,17: 144,25
Total assets $ 7,684,790 $ 9,790,73

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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SandRidge Energy, Inc., and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets—Continued

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

December 31,

2013

2012

(In thousands, except per share data)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 812,48t $ 766,54
Billings and contract loss in excess of costs ireair — 15,54¢
Derivative contracts 34,267 14,86(
Asset retirement obligations 87,06: 118,50
Deposit on pending sale — 255,00(
Total current liabilities 933,81t 1,170,45.
Long-term debt 3,194,90 4,301,08:
Derivative contracts 20,56¢ 59,78’
Asset retirement obligations 337,05¢ 379,90t
Other long-term obligations 22,82¢ 17,04¢
Total liabilities 4,509,16! 5,928,271
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Equity
SandRidge Energy, Inc. stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 50,000 shatt®@zed
8.5% Convertible perpetual preferred stock; 2,6%res issued and outstanding at December 31,
2013 and 2012; aggregate liquidation preferenck266,000 3 3
6.0% Convertible perpetual preferred stock; 2,08f¥es issued and outstanding at December 31,
2013 and 2012; aggregate liquidation preferenc&2606,000 2 2
7.0% Convertible perpetual preferred stock; 3,0tfras issued and outstanding at December 31,
2013 and 2012; aggregate liquidation preferenc&860,000 3 3
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 800,000 sharesrargid; 491,609 issued and 490,290 outstandin
December 31, 2013 and 491,578 issued and 490,35fnding at December 31, 2012 48% 47€
Additional paid-in capital 5,298,30. 5,233,01!
Additional paid-in capital—stockholder receivable (3,750 (5,000
Treasury stock, at cost (8,770 (8,602)
Accumulated deficit (3,460,46) (2,851,04)
Total SandRidge Energy, Inc. stockholders’ equity 1,825,811 2,368,85.
Noncontrolling interest 1,349,81 1,493,60;
Total equity 3,175,62 3,862,45!
Total liabilities and equity $ 7,684,790 $ 9,790,73

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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SandRidge Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Revenues

Oill, natural gas and NGL
Drilling and services
Midstream and marketing
Construction contract
Other

Total revenues

Expenses

Production
Production taxes
Cost of sales
Midstream and marketing
Construction contract
Depreciation and depletion—oil and natural gas
Depreciation and amortization—other
Accretion of asset retirement obligations
Impairment
General and administrative
Employee termination benefits
Loss (gain) on derivative contracts
Loss (gain) on sale of assets
Total expenses
(Loss) income from operations

Other income (expense)

Interest expense
Bargain purchase gain
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Other income, net
Total other expense

(Loss) income before income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit)

Years Ended December 31,

Net (loss) income

Less: net income attributable to noncontrollingiast
Net (loss) income attributable to SandRidge Enelryy,

Preferred stock dividends
(Loss applicable) income available to SandRidge@nenc. common

stockholders

(Loss) earnings per share

Basic
Diluted

Weighted average number of common shares outsgndin

Basic
Diluted
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2013 2012 2011
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

$ 1,820,270 $ 1,759,28. % 1,226,79
66,58¢ 116,63: 103,29¢
58,30¢ 40,48¢ 66,69(
23,34¢ 796,32: —
14,87: 18,24: 18,43:
1,983,38: 2,730,96! 1,415,271
516,42° 477,15 322,87
32,29 47,21( 46,06¢
57,11¢ 68,22% 65,654
53,64 39,66¢ 66,007
23,34¢ 796,32: —
567,73: 568,02¢ 317,24¢
62,13¢ 60,80¢ 53,63(
36,77: 28,99¢ 9,36¢
26,28( 316,00 2,82¢
207,92( 241,68: 148,64
122,50! — —
47,12 (241,419 (44,079
399,08t 3,08¢ (2,049
2,152,38! 2,405,76! 986,20(
(169,00 325,19¢ 429,01:
(270,239 (303,349 (237,33))
— 122,69¢ —
(82,009 (3,079 (38,23))
12,44¢ 4,741 3,122
(339,799 (178,98 (272,447
(508,799 146,20¢ 156,57:
5,68¢ (100,36:) (5,817
(514,479 246,57 162,38t
39,41( 105,00( 54,32:
(553,889 141,57: 108,06!
55,52t 55,52t 55,58
$ (609,41) $ 86,04¢ % 52,48:
$ (1.279) $ 0.1¢ $ 0.17
$ (1.279) $ 0.1¢ $ 0.17
481,14 453,59 398,85;
481,14¢ 456,01! 406,64!

The accompanying notes are an integral part obthessolidated financial statements.






SandRidge Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholder&quity

Balance at December 31, 2010
Issuance of units by royalty trusts

Distributions to noncontrolling interest owner

Issuance of convertible perpetual preferred
stock, net

Purchase of treasury stock

Retirement of treasury stock

Stock purchase—retirement plans, net of
distributions

Stock-based compensation

Stock-based compensation excess tax benef

Issuance of restricted stock awards, net of
cancellations

Net income

Convertible perpetual preferred stock dividends

Balance at December 31, 2011

Issuance of units by royalty trusts

Sale of royalty trust units

Distributions to noncontrolling interest owners
Issuance of common stock in acquisition
Purchase of treasury stock

Retirement of treasury stock

Stock purchase—retirement plans, net of
distributions

Stock-based compensation

Stock-based compensation excess tax benefit

Issuance of restricted stock awards, net of
cancellations

Net income

Convertible perpetual preferred stock divider

Balance at December 31, 2012
Sale of royalty trust units

Distributions to noncontrolling interest owners

Contributions from noncontrolling interest
owners

Purchase of treasury stock

Retirement of treasury stock

Stock purchase—retirement plans, net of
distributions

Stock-based compensation
Stock-based compensation excess tax benefit

Payment received on shareholder receivable

Issuance of restricted stock awards, net of
cancellations

Net (loss) income

Convertible perpetual preferred stock dividend

Balance at December 31, 2013

Convertible
Perpetual .
Preferred Stock Common Stock Additional Non-
Paid-In Treasury Accumulated controlling
Shares  Amount Shares ~ Amount Capital Stock Deficit Interest Total
(In thousands)
765 $ 8 406,36( $ 39 $452891 $ (354 $ (2,98957) $ 11,28t $ 1,547,48:
— — — — — — — 917,52¢ $ 917,52¢
_ _ _ — — — = (60,200) (60,200
— — — — (231 — — — (231
_ _ — — — (10,839 = = (10,839
— — — — (10,83 10,83 — — —
_ — (o9 — 317¢ (2619 - - 56¢
— — — — 47,77¢ — — — 47,77¢
_ _ _ _ 53 — — — 53
— — 5,99¢ 1 ) — — — —
— — - = — — 108,06¢ 54,32: 162,38t
_ _ _ — — — (55,589 — (55,587
7,65( 8 411,95 39¢ 4,568,85 (6,15€) (2,937,09) 922,93 2,548,95
— — — — — — — 587,08t 587,08t
— — — — 79,05¢ — — 60,30« 139,36(
_ _ — — — — — (181,72) (181,72)
— = 73,96: 74 542,06: — — — 542,13t
_ _ — — — (11,319 — — (11,319
— — — — (11,319 11,31: — — —
— — (345) — 2,14¢ (2,449 — — (29¢)
_ — = = 47,22¢ — — — 47,22¢
- = — — (16) — — — (16)
= — 4,78¢ 3 ©) — — — —
_ — — — — — 141,57: 105,00( 246,57:
— — - = — — (55,52%) — (55,529
7,65( 8 490,35¢ 47¢ 5,228,01! (8,602 (2,851,04) 1,493,60: 3,862,45!
— — — — 7,28¢ — — 21,69¢ 28,98¢
_ — — — — — — (206,47() (206,47()
— — — — — — — 1,57¢ 1,57¢
— — — — — (30,126) — — (30,129
= = = = (30,12¢) 30,12¢ = = =
— — (99) — (267) (16¢) — — (435)
— — — — 88,391 — — — 88,391
- — — — (4 — — — (O]
— — — — 1,25(C — — — 1,25(C
— — 30 7 ) — — — —
— — — — — — (553,88 39,41( (514,479
s — — — — — — (55,525 — (55,525
7,65 $ 8 490,29( $ 48 $529455 $ (8,770 $ (3,460,46) $1,34981 $ 3,175,62

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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SandRidge Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net (loss) income $ (514,479 $ 24657 $ 162,38t
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to esthcprovided by operating activities
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 629,86¢ 628,83: 370,87¢
Accretion of asset retirement obligations 36,77: 28,99¢ 9,36¢
Impairment 26,28( 316,00:¢ 2,82t
Debt issuance costs amortization 10,09: 14,38¢ 11,37:
Amortization of discount, net of premium, on loregrh debt 1,03¢ 2,502 2,38¢
Bargain purchase gain — (122,69¢) =
Loss on extinguishment of debt 82,00t 3,07t 38,23:
Deferred income tax provision (benefit) 3,84 (100,289 (6,98¢€)
Loss (gain) on derivative contracts 47,12% (241,419 (44,075
Cash (paid) received on settlement of derivativeremts (5,879 125,93: (53,53¢)
Loss (gain) on sale of assets 399,08t 3,08¢ (2,049
Stock-based compensation 85,27( 42 79¢ 38,68¢
Other 3,92¢ 1,381 5,83¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilities inangaslecreasing) cash
Receivables 90,04¢ (141,53 (61,64
Costs in excess of billings and contract loss, net (8,396 (89,009 (11,019
Prepaid expenses (7,939 (5,952) (4,359
Other current assets 81C (1,586 1,432
Other assets and liabilities, net 5,771 34,44 (35,779
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 116,99¢ 121,88¢ 51,52
Asset retirement obligations (133,62) (84,36)) (16,53))
Net cash provided by operating activities 868,63( 783,16( 458,95:
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures for property, plant and eqpm (1,496,73) (2,146,37) (1,727,101
Acquisitions of assets (17,029 (840,74() (34,629
Proceeds from sale of assets 2,584,11! 431,16° 859,40!
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,070,35! (2,555,94) (902,329
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings — 1,850,34. 2,033,000
Repayments of borrowings (1,115,500 (366,029 (2,130,29)
Premium on debt redemption (61,997 (844) (30,33%)
Debt issuance costs (92 (48,539 (20,326
Proceeds from issuance of royalty trust units — 587,08t 917,52¢
Proceeds from the sale of royalty trust units 28,98t 139,36( —
Noncontrolling interest distributions (206,47() (181,72) (60,200
Noncontrolling interest contributions 1,57¢ — —
Proceeds from issuance of convertible perpetud¢ped stock, net — — (231)
Stock-based compensation excess tax benefit @) (16) 53
Purchase of treasury stock (32,976 (14,729 (13,79¢)
Dividends paid—preferred (55,525 (55,52%) (56,742)
Cash received on shareholder receivable 1,25( — —
Cash received (paid) on settlement of financingvdére contracts 6,66( (34,519 6,53¢
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (1,434,08) 1,874,87! 645,19:
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 504,89° 102,08! 201,81¢

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 309,76t 207,68: 5,86:




CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 814,66 $ 309,76t $ 207,68:

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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SandRidge Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of BusinessSandRidge Energy, Inc. is an oil and natural gaepany with a principal focus on exploration anddurctior
activities in the MidContinent region of the United States. The Compawpns and operates additional interests in west Sexal owne
interests in the Gulf of Mexico and Gulf Coast uiebruary 2014, as discussed in Note.Zlhe Company also operates businesse:
infrastructure systems that are complementary gopitmary exploration and production activitiescliding gas gathering and proces:
facilities, marketing operations, a saltwater dggosystem, an electrical transmission system addllang rig and related oil field servic
business.

Principles of Consolidation.The consolidated financial statements include @beounts of the Company and its wholly owne
majority owned subsidiaries and variable interedities (“VIES”) for which the Company is the primary beneficiaryoridontrolling intere:
represents third-party ownership interests in tben@anys subsidiaries and consolidated VIEs and is indugea component of equity in
consolidated balance sheet and consolidated stateshehanges in equity. All significant interconmyaaccounts and transactions have
eliminated in consolidation.

Variable Interest EntitiesAn entity is referred to as a VIE if it possessas of the following criteria: (i) it is thinly cafallized, (ii) the
residual equity holders do not control the enttiy) the equity holders are shielded from the emwoit losses, (iv) the equity holders do
participate fully in the entity’s residual econosyicor (v) the entity was established with rsubstantive voting interests. The Comg
consolidates a VIE when it has determined it isghmary beneficiary, which requires significantigment. The primary beneficiary of a VIE
that variable interest holder possessing a comgplfinancial interest through (i) its power to elit the activities of the VIE that m
significantly impact the VIES economic performance and (i) its obligation be@b losses or its right to receive benefits ftbmVIE that coul
potentially be significant to the VIE. In order determine whether the Company owns a variabledaten a VIE and the significance of
variable interest, the Company performs a qualitadinalysis of the entity’design, organizational structure, primary deoisi@kers and relat
financial agreements. In addition to the VIEs tiva Company consolidates, the Company also holdsiable interest in another VIE that is
consolidated as it was determined that the Compgangt the primary beneficiary. The Company momitooth consolidated and unconsolid
VIEs to determine if any events have occurred timald cause the primary beneficiary to change.&te 4 for discussion of the Compasy’
significant associated VIEs.

ReclassificationsCertain reclassifications have been made to ther peériod financial statements to conform to therent perio
presentation. These reclassifications have notsfiethe Company’s previously reported resultsprations.

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of the consolidated financialestents in conformity with accounting principles geally accepte
in the United States of America (“GAAPIgquires management to make estimates and assasfiat affect the reported amounts of asset
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets habilities at the date of the financial statenseand the reported amounts of revenues
expenses during the reporting period.

The more significant areas requiring the use ofimpsions, judgments and estimates include: oilunahtgas and NGL reserves; ¢
flow estimates used in impairment tests of Itinged assets; depreciation, depletion and amoitimagsset retirement obligations; assignmer
fair value and allocations of purchase price inmmantion with business combinations; determinatmfrsgignificant alterations to the full cost p
and related estimates of fair value for allocatiohdivested oil and natural gas properties thaitiltén substantial economic differences betv
the properties divested and the properties remginiltome taxes; valuation of derivative instrunsemontingencies; and accrued revenue
related receivables. Although management belidvesetestimates are reasonable, actual results diffieldsignificantly.

Cash and Cash Equivalent$he Company considers all highlguid instruments with an original maturity of &g months or less to
cash equivalents as these instruments are reailectible to known amounts of cash and bear irifsdgmt risk of changes in value due to tl
short maturity period.

Accounts Receivable, NeThe Company has receivables for sales of oil,rahtyas and NGLs, as well as receivables relatetie
exploration, production and treating services fdramd natural gas. An allowance for doubtful acusuhas been established base
managemens review of the collectability of the receivableslight of historical experience, the nature antume of the receivables and ot
subjective factors. Accounts receivable are chaggainst the allowance, upon approval by managemsrgn they are deemed uncollecti
Refer to Note 6 for further information on the Canp’s accounts receivable and allowance for doultfoounts.
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SandRidge Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair Value of Financial InstrumentsCertain of the Company’financial assets and liabilities are measurefdiatvalue. Fair valu
represents the price that would be received toasetisset or paid to transfer a liability in aneslyltransaction between market participants.
Company’s financial instruments, not otherwise rded at fair value, consist primarily of cash, gadceivables, trade payables and |terg-
debt. The carrying value of cash, trade receivabtestrade payables are considered to be représeraétheir respective fair values due to
short-term maturity of these instruments. See Nbfer further discussion of the Company’s fairuemeasurements.

Fair Value of Non-financial Assets and Liabilitie¥he Company also applies fair value accountinglanie to initially, or as evel
dictate, measure ndimancial assets and liabilities such as thoseinbththrough business acquisitions, property, péeaat equipment and as
retirement obligations. These assets and liatslitiee subject to fair value adjustments only irtabercircumstances and are not subje:
recurring revaluations. Fair value may be estimat#dg comparable market data, a discounted cashrflethod, or a combination of the twc
considered appropriate based on the circumstandeder the discounted cash flow method, estimatddrducash flows are based
managemens$’ expectations for the future and include estimafefuture oil and natural gas production or oth@plicable sales estimat
operational costs and a riskljusted discount rate. The Company may use treepreralue of estimated future cash inflows andldgflows o
third-party offers to value its ndimancial assets and liabilities when circumstandisate determining fair value is necessary. Gittas
significance of the unobservable nature of a nurob#re inputs, these are considered Level 3 offidinealue hierarchy discussed in Note 5 .

Derivative Financial InstrumentsTo manage risks related to fluctuations in priedtsibutable to its expected oil and natural
production, the Company enters into oil and natgea derivative contracts. The Company may alsm fiime to time, enter into interest 1
swaps in order to manage risk associated withxjtesure to variable interest rates.

The Company recognizes its derivative instrumentgither assets or liabilities at fair value withanges in fair value recognizec
earnings unless designated as a hedging instruwidntspecific hedge accounting criteria having besgt. The Company has elected nc
designate price risk management activities as adiowl hedges under applicable accounting guidaaod, accordingly, accounts for
commodity derivative contracts at fair value withanges in fair value reported currently in earningse Company nets derivative assets
liabilities whenever it has a legally enforceablaster netting agreement with the counterparty ter@vative contract. The related cash 1
impact of the Compang’ derivative activities are reflected as cash fldmsn operating activities unless the derivativentcact contains
significant financing element, in which case, casttlements are classified as cash flows from Gimgnactivities in the consolidated statemel
cash flows. See Note 13 for further discussiorhef@Gompany’s derivatives.

Oil and Natural Gas OperationsThe Company uses the full cost method to accairits oil and natural gas properties. Under foli
accounting, all costs directly associated withabguisition, exploration and development of oitunal gas and NGL reserves are capitalizec
a full cost pool. These capitalized costs includstg of all unproved properties and internal cdstctly related to the Comparsyacquisitior
exploration and development activities and capitaliinterest. The Company capitalized internalscos$74.7 million , $61.3 million an$i37.1
million to the full cost pool in 2013 , 2012 and120, respectively. Capitalized costs are amortizgidg the unit-ofproduction method. Und
this method, depreciation and depletion is compatettie end of each quarter by multiplying totadcarction for the quarter by a depletion r
The depletion rate is determined by dividing thaltanamortized cost base plus future developmestsdy net equivalent proved reserves ¢
beginning of the quarter.

Costs associated with unproved properties are @éadldrom the amortizable cost base until a deteatiin has been made as to
existence of proved reserves. Unproved propertieseviewed at the end of each quarter to determinether the costs incurred shoulc
reclassified to the full cost pool and, therebypjsated to amortization. The costs associated wighroved properties relate primarily to cost
acquire unproved acreage. Unproved leasehold emst¢ransferred to the amortization base with th&tscof drilling the related well up
determination of the existence of proved reservegpon impairment of a lease. All items classifalunproved property are assessed, ¢
individual basis or as a group if properties adiviidually insignificant, on a quarterly basis fpossible impairment or reduction in value.
assessment includes consideration of various faciteecluding, but not limited to, the following:tamt to drill; remaining lease term; geolog
and geophysical evaluations; drilling results awtivaly; assignment of proved reserves; and econowmbility of development if prove
reserves are assigned. During any period in whielse factors indicate an impairment, all or a porf the associated leasehold cost:
transferred to the full cost pool and become subi@amortization. Costs of seismic data are atktdo various unproved leaseholds
transferred to the amortization base with the dasmt leasehold costs on a specific project basis.

Under the full cost method of accounting, totalitajzed costs of oil and natural gas propertiest, of accumulated depreciati
depletion and impairment, less related deferrednre taxes may not exceed an amount equal to tisergrgalue of future net revenues fi
proved reserves, discounted at 10% per annum tipdubbwer of cost or fair value of unproved projet plus estimated salvage value, les
related tax effects (the “ceiling limitation’ ceiling limitation calculation is performed atetlend of each quarter. If total capitalized casts,0
accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairriess,
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related deferred taxes are greater than the cdilimtation, a write-down or impairment of the fudbst pool is required. A writdewn of the
carrying value of the full cost pool is a non-ca$targe that reduces earnings and impacts stockisbklguity in the period of occurrence
typically results in lower depreciation and dematexpense in future periods. Once incurred, svaditwn is not reversible at a later date.

The ceiling limitation calculation is prepared gsthe 12month oil and natural gas average price for thetmsaent 12 months as of-
balance sheet date and as adjusted for basis atidocdifferentials, held constant over the life tbé reserves (“net wellhead pricesl).
applicable, these net wellhead prices would béé&uradjusted to include the effects of any fixeidgparrangements for the sale of oil and na
gas. Derivative contracts that qualify and areglesied as cash flow hedges are included in estihiatere cash flows, although the Comp
historically has not designated any of its derivatcontracts as cash flow hedges and has therafiirincluded its derivative contracts
estimating future cash flows. The future cash owtfl associated with future development or abandobhroé wells are included in tl
computation of the discounted present value ofrunet revenues for purposes of the ceiling lingtatalculation.

Sales and abandonments of oil and natural gas fiepbéeing amortized are accounted for as adjussrte the full cost pool, with |
gain or loss recognized, unless the adjustmentsdagignificantly alter the relationship between italfzed costs and proved oil, natural gas
NGL reserves. A significant alteration would notlioarily be expected to occur upon the sale ofrieseinvolving less tha25% of the prove
reserve quantities of a cost center.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Ne®ther capitalized costs, including drilling equigmh, natural gas gathering and treating equipt
transportation equipment and other property andpetgnt are carried at cost. Renewals and improvesmar capitalized while repairs ¢
maintenance are expensed. Depreciation of suchepyopnd equipment is computed using the strdightmethod over the estimated us
lives of the assets, which range from 10 to 39rg/éar buildings and 3 to 3gears for equipment. When property and equipmemipoments al
disposed of, the cost and the related accumulaprediation are removed and any resulting gaioss is reflected in the consolidated state
of operations.

Realization of the carrying value of property amglipment is reviewed for possible impairment whemegvents or changes
circumstances indicate that the carrying value uafhsasset may not be recoverable. Assets are evedido be impaired if a forecast
undiscounted estimated future net operating castsfdirectly related to the asset or asset grodpdimg disposal value, if any, is less than
carrying amount of the asset or asset group. If @sset or asset group is considered to be impainedimpairment loss is measured as
amount by which the carrying amount of the asseisset group exceeds its fair value. See Note Riftirer discussion of impairments.

Capitalized Interestinterest is capitalized on assets being made réadyse using a weighted average interest ratedbasetht
Company'’s borrowings outstanding during that tifdaring 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , interest of approxéhya$b11.7 million , $10.1 millioranc
$1.0 million, respectively, was capitalized on unproved pragethat were not currently being depreciated pteted and on which explorati
activities were in progress. Additionally, interest$4.9 million , $4.7 million and $2.0 million Wwacapitalized in 2013 , 2012 and 2011
respectively, on midstream and corporate assetshwigre under construction.

Debt Issuance CostsThe Company amortizes debt issuance costs refatisl longterm debt as interest expense over the sche
maturity period of the related debt. The Compamyuides unamortized debt issuance costs in othetsassthe consolidated balance sheet. |
retirement of debt, any unamortized costs are ewrittff and included in the determination of thengai loss on extinguishment of debt.

Restricted DepositsRestricted deposits represent bank trust andwsaccounts required by the Bureau of Ocean Engiyyagemen
Bureau of Safety and Environmental Enforcementetgubond underwriters, purchase agreements or stitiement agreements to satisfy
Companys eventual responsibility to plug and abandon wald remove structures when certain offshore fieldsno longer in use. St
restricted deposits are included in other assdtsimccompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Restricted deposits may also include escrow deposieived on pending sales of oil and naturabgegerties. Amounts are conside
restricted until the transaction closes. In Decan@d.2, the Company entered into an agreementltalkef its oil and natural gas properties
the Permian Basin in west Texas, excluding thetasdibutable to SandRidge Permian Trust's (fPerfnian Trust”area of mutual interest (t
“Permian Properties”), and received a $255.0 nmillaeposit. At December 31, 2012his deposit was included in current assets amteo
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated batasheets as the sale did not close until Februat®.2See Note Br further discussion of tl
sale of the Permian Properties.

Goodwill. In conjunction with its acquisition of Arena Resces, Inc. (“Arena”)n 2010, the Company recorded goodwill equal tc
excess of the consideration paid over the fairevaiidentifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill \wasigned to the Compasyéxploration ar
production segment and was not deductible for irectar purposes.
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Entry by the Company in December 2012 into an ages to sell the Permian Properties was determiodxt a triggering event. .
such, an impairment test was performed as of Deeef3ib, 2012, resulting in the full impairment ofogvill. See Note 8or further discussic
of the goodwill impairment test performed.

Investmentdnvestments in marketable equity securities hawnlikesignated as available for sale and measufait ealue pursuant
the fair value option which requires unrealizechgand losses be reported in earnings.

Asset Retirement ObligationsThe Company owns oil and natural gas properties taquire expenditures to plug, abandon
remediate wells at the end of their productivedjvim accordance with applicable federal and deates. Liabilities for these asset retirenr
obligations are recorded in the period in whichltlkility is incurred (at the time the wells argliéd or acquired) at the estimated present \
at the asset’s inception, with the offsetting s to property cost. These property costs areedigped on a unit-giroduction basis within tl
full cost pool. The liability accretes each periottil it is settled or the well is sold, at whidme the liability is removed. Both the accretiord
the depreciation are included in the consolidatatement of operations. The Company determinessist retirement obligations by calcula
the present value of estimated expenses relatedetdiability. Estimating future asset retiremertligations requires management to rr
estimates and judgments regarding timing, existesfca liability and what constitutes adequate medion. Inherent in the present ve
calculation rates are the timing of settlement elmahges in the legal, regulatory, environmental goidical environments, which are subjec
change. See Note 14 for further discussion of th@@any’s asset retirement obligations.

In certain instances, the Company is required tmtai@ deposits to escrow accounts for future ping@nd abandonment obligatic
SeeRestricted Depositdiscussed above.

Revenue Recognition and Natural Gas BalanciBgles of oil, natural gas and NGLs are recordeehwitle of oil, natural gas and N¢
production passes to the customer, net of royalisgounts and allowances, as applicable. Tax@ssaed by governmental authorities or
natural gas and NGL sales are presented sepafaiglysuch revenues and included in production tgepse in the consolidated statemel
operations.

The Company accounts for natural gas productioraiamzes using the sales method, whereby it recegmavenue on all natural
sold to its customers notwithstanding the fact ftetownership may be less than 100% of the natyasal sold. Liabilities are recorded
imbalances greater than the Compargroportionate share of remaining estimated nbgiasreserves. The Company has recorded a liafuli
natural gas imbalance positions related to nagaslproperties with insufficient proved reserve$at million and $3.6 million éDecember 3:
2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company incltidegas imbalance positions in other long-termgattions in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Company accounted for its two construction e, discussed in Note 11 , using the completedract method, under whi
contract revenues and costs are recognized whek wmder the contract is completed or substantiatiynpleted and assets have t
transferred. In the interim, costs incurred on hitithgs related to contracts in process are acdatad on the balance sheet. Contract losse
recorded at the time it is determined that a lo#isbe incurred. The contract loss on the CentulgnPconstruction contract was recorded
development cost within the Compasyfull cost pool. Contract gains, if any, are relsal upon substantial completion of the constru
project.

The Company recognizes revenues and expenses gehizan daywork and footage drilling contractdtaes services are performec
the Company does not bear the risk of completiothefwell. The Company may receive lusym fees for the mobilization of equipment
personnel. Mobilization fees received and costsiried to mobilize a rig from one location to anothee recognized at the time mobilizas
services are performed.

In general, natural gas purchased and sold by fdstmeam business is priced at a published dailynonthly index price. Sales
wholesale customers typically incorporate a premianmanaging their transmission and balancing irequents. Midstream services rever
are recognized upon delivery of natural gas toarusts and/or when services are rendered, pricidgtesrmined and collectability is reason:
assured. Revenues from thipdsty midstream services are presented on a gasss, Isince the Company acts as a principal bygadwnershi
of the natural gas purchased and taking respoitgibfl fulfilment for natural gas volumes sold.

Stock-Based Compensatiorhe Company grants restricted stock awards to mesmtifeits Board of Directors (the “Boardgnd it
employees. Such awards and the related dtaskd compensation cost are measured based oai¢bkated fair value of the award on the g
date. The expense, net of estimated forfeituresedsgnized on a straight-line basis over the eyggls requisite service period, generally
vesting period of the award. To the extent stbaked compensation cost relates to employees|direedlved in exploration and developm
activities, such amounts are capitalized to oil aatlral gas properties. Amounts not capitalizedracognized as general and administr
expense, production expense, cost of sales andreads and marketing expense in the consolidatednsént of operations. The related ex
tax benefit received upon vesting
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of restricted stock, if any, is reflected in thensolidated statement of cash flows as a financitigity. The related excess tax expense due
vesting of restricted stock, if any, is reflectadhie consolidated statement of cash flows as aratipg activity.

Performance Unit Compensationhe Company awards performance units, which corstaimarketbased performance component
will be settled in cash upon vesting, to certaimmbers of senior management. The Company recogailiability and expense for performal
unit compensation for the portion earned over gwiisite service period in an amount equal to #irevialue of the performance units gran
Changes in the fair value of the units for whichvee has been met are recognized as compensagiemse with a corresponding adjustme
the liability. To the extent performance unit comgation cost relates to those directly involve@iploration and development activities, <
amounts are capitalized to oil and natural gas ens. Amounts not capitalized are recognized asegal and administrative expetl
production expense, cost of sales and midstreanmankieting expense in the consolidated statemeop@fations.

Advertising Costs.The Company expenses advertising costs as inculiddcertising and promotional costs were $5.1 iili, $11.¢
million , and $4.8 million , respectively, durinigetyears ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 .

Income TaxesDeferred income taxes reflect the net tax effefteemporary differences between the amounts adtasand liabilitie
reported for financial statement purposes and thgibasis. Deferred tax assets are reduced bjuaticm allowance if it is deemed more lik
than not that some or all of the deferred tax assét not be realized.

The Company has elected an accounting policy irchviniterest and penalties on income taxes are miexbe@s a component of
income tax provision, rather than as a componeintefest expense. Interest and penalties resuitimg the underpayment or the late payr
of income taxes due to a taxing authority and egeand penalties accrued relating to income takirggencies, if any, are presented, on a n
tax basis, as a component of the income tax pravisi

Earnings per ShareBasic earnings per common share is calculated biglidg earnings available to common stockholdersttie
weighted average number of common shares outstaudiring the period. Diluted earnings per commaarslis calculated by dividing earni
available to common stockholders by the weightestaye number of diluted common shares outstandinigh includes the effect of potentie
dilutive securities. Potentially dilutive securtifor the diluted earnings per share calculatiomsist of unvested restricted stock awards,
the treasury method, and convertible preferredkstid¢hen a loss exists, all potentially dilutive seties are antdilutive and are therefa
excluded from the computation of diluted earningsghare. See Note 19 for the Company’s earningshage calculation.

Commitments and Contingencidgabilities for loss contingencies arising from iols, assessments, litigation or other source
recorded when it is probable that a liability hasem incurred and the amount can be reasonably atetitEnvironmental expenditures
expensed or capitalized, as appropriate, deperainfyture economic benefit. Expenditures that eetatan existing condition caused by
operations and that have no future economic beaediexpensed. Liabilities related to future castsrecorded on an undiscounted basis
environmental assessments and/or remediation tesivare probable and costs can be reasonablyadstimSee Note 1fr discussion of tt
Company’s commitments and contingencies.

Concentration of RiskAll of the Company’s derivative transactions haeei carried out in the over-tlieunter market. The entry ir
derivative transactions in the over-tbednter market involves the risk that the counteigsm may be unable to meet the financial termthe
transactions. The counterparties for all of the @any’s derivative transactions have an “investngeatie”credit rating. The Company monit
on an ongoing basis the credit ratings of its deive counterparties and considers its counteggdiedit default risk ratings in determining
fair value of its derivative contracts. The Compganylerivative contracts are with multiple countefiearto minimize its exposure to ¢
individual counterparty.

A default by the Company under its senior secuealving credit facility (the “senior credit fadyi’) constitutes a default under
derivative contracts with counterparties that arelers under the senior credit facility. The Conypdoes not require collateral or other seci
from counterparties to support derivative instruteeihe Company has master netting agreementsalittfi its derivative counterparties, wh
allow the Company to net its derivative assets la@filities with the same counterparty. As a resilthe netting provisions, the Compasay’
maximum amount of loss under derivative transastidne to credit risk is limited to the net amoud® from the counterparties under
derivative contracts. The Compasybss is further limited as any amounts due frodefaulting counterparty that is a lender undergbeio
credit facility can be offset against amounts owedny, to such counterparty under the Compangtga credit facility.

The Company operates a substantial portion ofilitanal natural gas properties. As the operator pfaperty, the Company makes
payment for costs associated with the propertysamiks reimbursement from the other working intevesters in the property for their share
those costs. The Companyjoint interest partners consist primarily of ipdadent oil and natural gas producers. If the nd aatural ge
exploration and production industry in general wdsersely affected, the ability of the joint intereartners to reimburse the Company cou
adversely affected.
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The purchasers of the Compasil, natural gas and NGL production consist prilmaf independent marketers, major oil and na
gas companies and gas pipeline companies. See 22oter information regarding the Compasynajor customers. The Company beli
alternate purchasers are available in its areagpefations and does not believe the loss of anypomehaser would materially affect
Company’s ability to sell the oil, natural gas a&h@Ls it produces.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncemetis.December 2011, the Financial Accounting StagsldBoard issued Accounti
Standards Update 2011-11, “Disclosures about GifigeAssets and Liabilities” (*ASU 2011-11"gnd issued Accounting Standards Up
2013-01, “Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures ab@ffisetting Assets and Liabilities” (“ASU 2013-01if) January 2013. These updates re«
disclosures about the nature of an ergitghts of offset and related arrangements agsakiaith its recognized derivative contracts. Tlea
disclosure requirements, which are effective fderim and annual periods beginning on or after danti, 2013, were implemented by
Company on January 1, 2013. The implementation $f2011-11 and ASU 2013-01 had no impact on the gamyis financial position ¢
results of operations. See Note 13 for the Compadgtivative disclosures.

2 . Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Supplemental disclosures to the consolidated stateof cash flows are presented below:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ (274,85() $ (257,15) $ (224,12)
Cash paid for income taxes (4,610 (1,329 (2,089

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Investing andiging Activities

Deposit on pending sale $ (255,000 $ 255,000 $ —
Change in accrued capital expenditures 72,84¢ (27,610 (89,389
Adjustment to oil and natural gas properties fartcact loss — 50,00( 25,00(
Asset retirement costs capitalized 5,07¢ 7,47¢ 5,71¢
Common stock issued in connection with acquisition — 542,13t —

3 . Acquisitions and Divestitures

2011 Divestitures

The Company completed the following divestiture2@11, all of which were accounted for as adjustsiemthe full cost pool witimg
gain or loss recognized:

e In July 2011, the Company sold its Wolfberry edssin the Permian Basin for $151.6 million , nétfees and postiosing
adjustments.

* In August 2011, the Company sold certain oil aatural gas properties in Lea County and Eddy Goufew Mexico, for$199.(
million , net of fees and post-closing adjustments.

* In November 2011, the Company sold its east Jeedural gas properties in Gregg, Harrison, RuskRanola counties f&225.
million , net of fees and post-closing adjustments.

2012 Acquisitions and Divestitures

Dynamic AcquisitionThe Company acquired 100% of the equity interesBymamic Offshore Resources, LLC (“Dynamidi) April
2012 for total consideration of approximately $biion , comprised of approximately $680.0 milliam cash and approximateR4 million
shares of SandRidge common stock (the “Dynamic &itipn”). The Dynamic Acquisition expanded the Qmuamy’s presence in the Gulf
Mexico, adding oil, natural gas and NGL reserva$noduction to its existing asset base in thia.are
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SandRidge Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Comtiied)

In the second quarter of 2013, the Company conpliggsevaluation of the Dynamic Acquisition with raljustments in 2013 to t

valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assymich are included in the following table (irotlsands, except stock price):

Consideration(1)

Shares of SandRidge common stock issued 73,96:
SandRidge common stock price $ 7.3¢
Fair value of common stock issued 542,13t
Cash consideration(2) 680,00(
Cash balance adjustment(3) 13,09
Total purchase price $ 1,235,22!

Fair Value of Liabilities Assumed

Current liabilities $ 129,36:
Asset retirement obligations(4) 315,92:
Long-term deferred tax liability(5) 100,28t
Other long-term liabilities 4,46¢
Amount attributable to liabilities assumed 550,04:
Total purchase price plus liabilities assumed 1,785,27.

Fair Value of Assets Acquired

Current assets 142,02°
Oil and natural gas properties(6) 1,746,75.
Other property, plant and equipment 1,29¢
Other non-current assets 17,89:
Amount attributable to assets acquired 1,907,96
Bargain purchase gain(7) $ (122,69¢)
(1) Consideration paid by the Company consiste@4fmillion shares of SandRidge common stock arsh e approximately$680.(

(@)
3)

(4)
(5)

(6)

()

million . The value of the stock consideration &éd upon the closing price of $7[83 share of SandRidge common stock on Apr
2012, which was the closing date of the Dynamic WAsitjon. Under the acquisition method of accougtithe purchase price
determined based on the total cash paid and thedhie of SandRidge common stock issued on theisitiQn date.

Cash consideration paid, including amountsl pairetire Dynamic’s longerm debt, was funded through a portion of thepneteed
from the Company’s issuance of $750.0 million ofexured 8.125% Senior Notes due 2022.

In accordance with the acquisition agreemiet,Company remitted to the seller a cash paynwprdléo Dynamics average daily ca
balance for the 3@ay period ending on the second day prior to ctpsitis resulted in an additional cash paymenthigyGompany ¢
$13.1 million at closing.

The estimated fair value of the acquired asst@ement obligations was determined using then@any’s credit adjusted ridkee rate
The net deferred tax liability is primarilyr@sult of the difference between the estimatedviaine and the Comparsyexpected tax ba:
in the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.neheeferred tax liability also includes the eféeof deferred tax assets associated
net operating losses and other tax attributes esdjais a result of the Dynamic Acquisition.

The fair value of oil and natural gas propertieguaed was estimated using a discounted cash flodem with future cash flov
estimated based upon projections of oil and naggaalreserve quantities and weighted average dihatural gas prices of $113.62l
barrel of oil and $3.8per Mcf of natural gas, after adjustment for tramtgtion fees and regional price differentials. Teenmodity
prices utilized were based upon commodity stripgsias of April 17, 2012 for the first foyears and escalated for inflation at a ra
2.0%annually beginning with the fifth year through #wd of production. Future cash flows were discadintgng an industry weight
average cost of capital rate.

The bargain purchase gain resulted from the excgdlse fair value of net assets acquired over ctaration paid. To validate t
bargain purchase gain on this acquisition, the Gompeviewed its initial identification and valuati of assets acquired and liabili
assumed. The Company believes it was able to adynamic for less than the estimated fair valuetofet assets due to tr
offshore location resulting in less bidding comtbet.
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Market assumptions of future commodity prices, @ctipns of estimated quantities of oil, natural gad NGL reserves, expectati
for timing and amount of future development andrafieg costs, projections of future rates of praiut expected recovery rates and risk-
adjusted discount rates were used by the Compaegtimate the fair market value of the oil and redtgas properties acquired. Based or
unobservable nature of certain of these assumptibasaluation is considered Level 3 under thevaiue hierarchy, as described in Note 5 .

The following unaudited pro forma combined reswoltoperations for the years ended December 31, 20822011 are presentec
though the Dynamic Acquisition had been completeafaJanuary 1, 2011. The pro forma combined reafloperations for the years en
December 31, 2012 and 2011 have been preparedistiag the historical results of the Company tdude the historical results of Dynan
certain reclassifications to conform Dynamic’s r&stion and accounting policies to the Compsarayid to exclude the bargain purchase
the partial valuation allowance release and cededuisition costs. The supplemental pro formaltesd operations are provided for illustrat
purposes only and do not purport to be indicatifvéhe actual results that would have been achidyethe combined company for the peri
presented. The pro forma results of operationsaldntliude any cost savings or other synergies rématlted from the Dynamic Acquisition
any estimated costs incurred to integrate Dynamic.

Year Ended December 31,

2012(1) 2011(2)
(In thousands, except per share data)
(Unaudited)
Revenues $ 2,908,89' $ 1,932,94!
Net income $ 39,56: % 509,64«
(Loss applicable) income available to SandRidgeréndnc. common stockholders $ (120,96) $ 399,27¢
(Loss) earnings per common share
Basic $ (0.25) $ 0.84
Diluted $ (0.28) % 0.8C
(1) Pro forma net income, loss applicable to SatgiR Energy, Inc. common stockholders and losscpermon share exclude$i22."

million bargain purchase gain, a $100.3 milliontédwvaluation allowance release included in incamebenefit, $10.9 milliof fee:
incurred to secure financing for the Dynamic Acgiaa included in interest expense and $13.0 millid transaction costs incurred ¢
included in general and administrative expense hi@ &ccompanying consolidated statement of opegmtfon the year end
December 31, 2012 .

(2) Pro forma net income, income available to SandRigergy, Inc. common stockholders and earningscpermon share include
$122.7 million bargain purchase gain, a $100.3iomillpartial valuation allowance release, $10.9 ionillof fees incurred to sect
financing and $13.0 million of transaction costs.

Revenues of $365.0 million and income from opersti@f $81.5 millionassociated with Dynamic have been included ir
accompanying consolidated statement of operationthé year ended December 31, 2012 . Additionttg,Company incurred $13.0 milliom
acquisitionrelated costs for the Dynamic Acquisition, whichvéabeen included in general and administrative espén the accompanyi
consolidated statement of operations for the yedeeé December 31, 2012 .

Sale of Tertiary Recovery Propertiés.June 2012, the Company sold its tertiary recpypeoperties located in the Permian Basin
of west Texas for approximately $130.8 million f o€ postelosing adjustments. The sale of the acreage anBlingpinterests in wells wi
accounted for as an adjustment to the full cost pith no gain or loss recognized.

Acquisition of Gulf of Mexico Propertielh June 2012, the Company acquired oil and nagaalproperties in the Gulf of Mexico (
“Gulf of Mexico Properties”) for approximately $&million , net of purchase price and pokising adjustments. This acquisition expande
Company'’s presence in the Gulf of Mexico, addidgratural gas and NGL reserves and productiotstexisting asset base in this area.

This acquisition qualified as a business combimatar accounting purposes and, as such, the Comgstitpated the fair value of 1
acquired properties as of June 20, 2012, which thasdate on which the Company obtained controlhef properties. The fair value v
estimated using a discounted cash flow model baped market assumptions of future commodity pripesjections of estimated quantities
oil, natural gas and NGL reserves, expectationgifiong and amount of future development and ojiagatosts, projections of future rates
production, expected recovery rates and risk-ag§udiscount
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rates. Based on the unobservable nature of cesfaimese assumptions, the valuation is consideaIL3 under the fair value hierarchy
described in Note 5 .

The Company estimated the consideration paid fesehproperties approximated the considerationioaid be paid by a typic
market participant. As a result, no goodwill ordsin purchase gain was recognized in conjunctidh thie purchase of these properties.

The Company completed its valuation of assets aed@nd liabilities assumed related to the acquell of Mexico Properties in tl
first quarter of 2013 and updated estimates usetheénpreliminary purchase price allocation withpexst to certain accruals, resulting in
adjustment of $4.8 millioto proved developed and undeveloped propertiesfdllesving table summarizes the consideration piaidcquire th
properties and the final valuation of assets aeguand liabilities assumed as of June 20, 201th@nsands):

Consideration paid

Cash, net of purchase price adjustments $ 43,28:
Fair value of identifiable assets acquired andllisds assumed

Proved developed and undeveloped properties $ 98,72¢

Asset retirement obligations (55,449
Total identifiable net assets $ 43,28:

The following unaudited pro forma combined reswoltsoperations for the years ended December 31, 20822011 are presentec
though the Company acquired the Gulf of Mexico Rrtps as of January 1, 2011. The pro forma consbiasults of operations for the ye
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 have been prepaaatjusting the historical results of the Compsmynclude the historical results of
acquired properties and estimates of the effeth@ftransaction on the combined results. The sopgiéal pro forma results of operations
provided for illustrative purposes only and do potport to be indicative of the actual results thatild have been achieved had the transg
been in effect for the periods presented.

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands, except per share data)
(Unaudited)

Revenues $ 2,759,38 $ 1,502,32!
Net income $ 247,03t % 191,07:
Income available to SandRidge Energy, Inc. comntock&olders $ 86,51( $ 81,16
Earnings per common share

Basic $ 0.1¢ $ 0.2C

Diluted $ 0.1¢ % 0.2C

Revenues of $26.2 million and earnings of $19.lionilgenerated by the acquired properties have beendedlin the accompanyi
consolidated statement of operations for the yaedeé December 31, 2012 . Acquisition-related co6t$0.2 million have been expensed
incurred in general and administrative expenséénaccompanying consolidated statement of opesat@rthe year ended December 31, 2012 .

2013 Divestiture

Sale of Permian Propertie©n February 26, 2013, the Company sold the Perfraperties for $2.6 billion , including certain pos
closing adjustments that were finalized in thedljuarter of 2013. This transaction resulted ifgaiicant alteration of the relationship betw
the Company’s capitalized costs and proved reseawels accordingly, the Company recorded a $398l8omiloss on the sale. The lo
including the impact of the final postesing adjustments, is included in loss (gainkale of assets in the accompanying consolidatéensésn
of operations for the year ended December 31, 20h# loss was calculated based on a comparisprooéeds received and the asset retire
obligations attributable to the Permian Propetties were assumed by the buyer to the sum of (gllacation of the historical net book value
the Companys proved oil and natural gas properties attribetablthe Permian Properties, (ii) the historicataaf unproved acreage sold .
(iii) costs incurred by the Company to sell thesepprties. The allocated net book value attribetdblthe Permian Properties was calcul
based on the relative fair value of the Permiarp@nties and the remaining proved oil and naturalgraperties retained by the Company ¢
the date of sale. A portion of the loss totaling $7million was allocated to noncontrolling inteieand is reflected in net
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income attributable to noncontrolling interesthie accompanying consolidated statement of opesaf@rthe year ended December 31, 2013 .

The following table presents revenues and direarating expenses of the Permian Properties includethe accompanyir
consolidated statements of operations for the yeaded December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 (in thds¥a

Year Ended December 31,

2013(1) 2012 2011
Revenues $ 68,027 $ 566,070 $ 614,66!
Direct operating expenses $ 17,45 $ 130,33° $ 144,06t

(1) Includes revenues and direct operating expensesghrebruary 26, 2013, the date of
Sale of Working Interests and Associated Drillingg@y Commitments

During 2011 and 2012, the Company completed twastretions whereby it sold naperated working interests in the Mississip
formation. In these transactions, the Company veceaggregate cash proceeds of $500.0 miftiorthe sale of working interests and rece
drilling carry commitments to fund a portion of ftgure drilling and completion costs within aregfsmutual interest totaling $1.0 billionFol
accounting purposes, initial cash proceeds froraethiansactions were reflected as a reductionl @nal natural gas properties with gain o
loss recognized. These transactions and the asstdglling carries as of December 31, 2013 wearéodows:

Total Drilling Drilling Carry Drilling Carry
Partner Closing Date Carry Recorded Remaining

(In thousands)
Atinum MidCon I, LLC September 2011 $ 250,00 $ 250,00( $ =
Repsol E&P USA, Inc. January 2012 750,00( 544.,40( 205,60(
$ 1,000,000 $ 794,400 $ 205,60(

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2ah2 Company recorded approximately $408.0 milliod $367.6 million,
respectively, for Atinum MidCon |, LLC and Repso&E USA, Inc.’s drilling carries, which offset theo@panys capital expenditures for 1
respective period. As of December 31, 20X8inum MidCon I, LLC had fully funded its drilligp carry commitment. Under the agreement
Repsol E&P USA, Inc., the remaining drilling cacgmmitment may be reduced if a certain number dfsvage not drilled within the area
mutual interest during a Ir&onth period. However, the Company expects Rep&®l BSA, Inc. to fully fund its drilling carry comrmen
during 2014.

4 . Variable Interest Entities

The Companygs significant associated VIEs, including those idrich the Company has determined it is the printageficiary an
those for which it has determined it is not, arsadied below.

Grey Ranch Plant, L.FPrimarily engaged in treating and transportatiomatural gas, Grey Ranch Plant, L.P. (“GRLR"a limitec
partnership that operates the Company’s Grey Rafait (the “Plant”) located in Pecos County, Texelse Company has longrm operatin
and gathering agreements with GRLP and also ows®%interest in GRLP, which represent a variable irgertncome or loss of GRLP
allocated to the partners based on ownership pexgermand any operating or cash shortfalls requingributions from the partners. During 2C
the partners each contributed approximately $1l6omito GRLP for legal expenses incurred for the seglenof insurance claims relatec
fires at the Plant in 2008.

The Company has determined that GRLP qualifies ¥#Eabecause certain equity holders lack the abtlit participate in decisio
impacting GRLP. Agreements related to the ownersinigh operation of GRLP provide for GRLP to pay nuggmaent fees to the Company
operate the Plant and lease payments for the RJader the operating agreements, lease paymentsdueed if throughput volumes are be
those expected. The Company determined that liteigptimary beneficiary of GRLP as it has bothl{g power to direct the activities of GR
that most significantly impact its economic perfame as operator of the Plant and (ii) the obligetd absorb losses, as a result of the opel
and gathering agreements, that could potentially be
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significant to GRLP and, therefore, consolidates alstivity of GRLP in its consolidated financiaht®ments. The 50%wnership interest n
held by the Company is presented as noncontraltitagest in the consolidated financial statements.

GRLP’s assets can only be used to settle its owigailons and not other obligations of the Compa@RLP’s creditors have 1
recourse to the general credit of the Company.obigilh GRLP is included in the Company’s consoliddieancial statements, the Compasny’
legal interest in GRLP’s assets is limited to i®Gownership. At December 31, 2013 and 2012 , 80libn and $1.1 million, respectively, ¢
noncontrolling interest in the accompanying coraikd balance sheets were related to GRLP. GRa$3ets and liabilities, after considering
effects of intercompany eliminations, included he taccompanying consolidated balance sheets atibece31, 2013 and 201@nsisted of tt
following (in thousands):

December 31,

2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents $ 132 % 1,08(
Accounts receivable, net 16 20
Prepaid expenses 32 64
Other current assets 10¢ 10¢
Total current assets 28¢ 1,27:
Other property, plant and equipment, net 1,16: 1,24¢
Total assets $ 1,45 $ 2,51¢
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 12¢  $ 274
Total liabilities $ 12¢  § 274

Grey Ranch Plant Genpar, LLChe Company owns a 50% interest in Grey Ranch Banpar, LLC (“Genpar”)the managing partn
and 1% owner of GRLP. Additionally, the Companwssras Genpar’'s administrative manager. Gesmavhership interest in GRLP is its o
asset. As managing partner of GRLP, Genpar hasdleeright to manage, control and conduct the lassirof GRLP. However, Genpa
restricted from making certain major decisionsuding the decision to remove the Company as operdtthe Plant. The rights afforded
Company under the Plant operating agreement andesidctions on Genpar limit Genpgarability to make decisions on behalf of GR
Therefore, Genpar is considered a VIE. Althoughhlibe Company and Genpar’s other equity owner skguelly in Genpas economic loss
and benefits and also have agreements that mayrmdered variable interests, the Company detednihe/as the primary beneficiary
Genpar due to (i) its ability, as administrativenager and operator of the Plant, to direct thevitiets of Genpar that most significantly impac
economic performance and (i) its obligation ohtigas operator of the Plant, to absorb the logEes receive benefits from Genpar that ct
potentially be significant to Genpar. As the prigndoeneficiary, the Company consolidates Gergpactivity. However, its sole asset,
investment in GRLP, is eliminated in consolidati@gnpar has no liabilities.
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Royalty Trusts.SandRidge owns beneficial interests in three Delawstatutory trusts. SandRidge Mississippian Trugthe
“Mississippian Trust I”), the Permian Trust and 8Ridge Mississippian Trust Il (the “Mississippianu$t 11”) (each individually, a Royalty
Trust” and collectively, the “Royalty Trusts”) coteged initial public offerings of their common unin April 2011 , August 2011 andipril
2012, respectively. Concurrent with the closing of eadfering, the Company conveyed certain royaltyeigsts to each Royalty Trust
exchange for the net proceeds of the offering amth uepresenting beneficial interests in the Rigy@tust. Royalty interests conveyed to
Royalty Trusts are in certain existing wells andlsveo be drilled on oil and natural gas propertiemsed by the Company in defined ares
mutual interest. The following table summarizesinfation about each Royalty Trust upon completibitsdnitial public offering:

Mississippian Trust

Mississippian Trust | Permian Trust Il
Net proceeds of offering (in thousands) $ 336,89: $ 580,63 $ 587,08°
Total outstanding common units 21,000,00 39,375,00 37,293,75
Total outstanding subordinated units 7,000,001 13,125,00 12,431,25
Beneficial interest owned by Company(1) 38.2% 34.2% 39.%
Liquidation date (2) 12/31/203 3/31/203: 12/31/203:
(1) Subsequent to the initial public offerings, the Qamy sold common units of the Royalty Trusts it ediin transactions exempt fri

registration under Rule 144 under the Securities Abese transactions decreased the Compamgneficial interests in the Roy:
Trusts. See further discussion of the unit salése

(2) At the time each Royalty Trust terminates, 58Pthe royalty interests conveyed to the Royaltystiwill automatically revert to tl
Company, and the remaining 50% will be sold with pinoceeds distributed to the Royalty Trust undba.

The Royalty Trusts make quarterly cash distribiitmunitholders based on calculated distributatdeme. In order to provide supp
for cash distributions on the common units, the Gany agreed to subordinate a portion of the umitsnins in each Royalty Trust (i
“subordinated units”), which constitute 25% of th&al outstanding units of each Royalty Tradte subordinated units are entitled to receive
rata distributions from the Royalty Trusts eachrtpraf and to the extent there is sufficient céstprovide a cash distribution on the comt
units that is no less than the applicable quartaulyordination threshold. If there is not suffitcieash to fund such a distribution on all comi
units, the distribution to be made with respecthe subordinated units will be reduced or elimidater such quarter in order to mak
distribution, to the extent possible, of up to #ordination threshold amount on all common unitsluding common units held by 1
Company.In exchange for agreeing to subordinate a portibitsoRoyalty Trust units, SandRidge is entitledrézeive incentive distributio
equal to 50%f the amount by which the cash available for digtion on all of the Royalty Trust units exceels applicable quarterly incent
threshold.

The Royalty Trusts declared and paid quarterlyridistions during the years ended December 31, 2R 2 and 2014s follows (it
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013(1) 2012(2) 2011(2)
Total distributions $ 299,67 $ 27497¢ $ 91,16.
Distributions to third-party unitholders $ 20647( $ 181,727 $ 57,44¢
1) Subordination thresholds were not met for Mississippian Trust 8 second and third quarter 2013 distributions ortlie Permia

Trust's second quarter 2013 distribution, resultimgeduced distributions to the Company on itsosdimated units for these periods.
2 The Company received incentive distributions frdra Mississippian Trust | during the first and setguarters of 2012 and the tt
quarter of 2011.

See Note 21 for discussion of the Royalty Trusistrihutions announced in January 2014.

Pursuant to the trust agreements governing the IRoYausts, SandRidge has a loan commitment to dayalty Trust, wheret
SandRidge will loan funds to the Royalty Trust enumsecured basis, with terms substantially theesasrwould be obtained in an asnténgti
transaction between SandRidge and an unaffiliagtypif at any time the Royalty Trust'cash is not sufficient to pay ordinary col
administrative expenses as they become due. Angsflmaned may not be used to satisfy indebtednk$seoRoyalty Trust or to ma
distributions. There were no amounts outstandirdguthe loan commitments at December 31, 2013 b2 20
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The Company and one of its wholly owned subsidsagietered into a development agreement with eaghlfgdlrust that obligates t
Company to drill, or cause to be drilled, a spedfnumber of wells within respective areas of mluitotzrest, which arealso subject to tt
royalty interests granted to the Mississippian Ttuthe Permian Trust and the Mississippian Ttydby December 31, 2015March 31, 201
and December 31, 2016 , respectively. At the entheffourth full calendar quarter following satidian of the Company’ drilling obligatior
(the “subordination period”), the subordinated sirif each Royalty Trust will automatically convaro common units on a one-fone basi
and the Company'’s right to receive incentive disttions will terminate. One of the Compasiyvholly owned subsidiaries also granted to
Royalty Trust a lien on the Compasyinterests in the properties where the developmwelis will be drilled in order to secure the estier
amount of drilling costs for the Royalty Trustinterests in the wells. As the Company fulfilis drilling obligation to each Royalty Tru
development wells that have been drilled and patéat for completion are released from the lien thiedtotal amount that may be recovere
each Royalty Trust is proportionately reduced.na second quarter of 2013he Company fulfilled its drilling obligation tthe Mississippia
Trust I. As of December 31, 2013he total maximum amount recoverable by the Pamriirust and Mississippian Trust Il under the lierzs
approximately $124.6 million .

Additionally, the Company and each Royalty Trusieezd into an administrative services agreemensyaunt to which the Compa
provides certain administrative services to the d&gyTrust, including hedge management servicetheoPermian Trust and the Mississip}
Trust Il. The Company also entered into derivati@geeements with each Royalty Trust, pursuant ticlwthe Company provides to the Roy
Trust the economic effects of certain of the Conyparderivative contracts. Substantially concurrenthwhe execution of the derivatiy
agreements with the Permian Trust and the MisgigsipTrust I, the Company novated certain of tlegivé@tive contracts underlying t
respective derivatives agreements to the PermiaistTand the Mississippian Trust Il. The Companyated certain additional derivat
contracts underlying the derivatives agreementhidéoPermian Trust in April 2012 and to the Pernmiianst and the Mississippian Trust Il
March 2013. The tables below present the open rall matural gas commodity derivative contracts atdbeber 31, 2013inderlying th
derivatives agreements. The combined volume intdbées below reflects the total volume of the Rtydlrusts’ open oil and natural g
commodity derivative contracts.

Qil Price Swaps Underlying the Royalty Trust Derivatives Agreements

Weighted Average

Notional (MBbls) Fixed Price
January 2014 — December 2014 186z $ 100.7(
January 2015 — December 2015 63C $ 101.0¢
Natural Gas Collars Underlying the Royalty Trust Deivatives Agreements
Notional (MMcf) Collar Range
January 2014 — December 2014 937 $ 400 — $ 7.7¢
January 2015 — December 2015 1,01C $ 40C — $ 8.5t

Oil Price Swaps Underlying the Derivatives Agreemes and Novated to the Royalty Trusts

Weighted Average

Notional (MBbls) Fixed Price
January 2014 — December 2014 991 $ 100.7¢
January 2015 — March 2015 141  $ 100.9(

See Note 13 for further discussion of the deriestisgreement between the Company and each Royafty T
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The Royalty Trusts are considered VIEs due todle& bf voting or similar decision-making rightstbé Royalty Trustsequity holder
regarding activities that have a significant effentthe economic success of the Royalty Trusts.Jémapany has determined it is the prin
beneficiary of the Royalty Trusts as it has (a)plegver to direct the activities that most signifittg impact the economic performance of
Royalty Trusts through (i) its participation in tlceeation and structure of the Royalty Trusts,t(i§ manner in which it fulfills its drillin
obligations to the Royalty Trusts and (iii) its ogéon of a majority of the oil and natural gaspedies that are subject to the conveyed ro
interests and marketing of the associated productod (b) the obligation to absorb losses andt fighreceive residual returns, througfr
variable interests in the Royalty Trusts, includimgnership of common and subordinated units, tleaticc potentially be significant to t
Royalty Trusts. As a result, the Company beganaaaing the activities of the Royalty Trusts inte results of operations upon conveyanc
the royalty interests to each Royalty Trust. Theagmn units of the Royalty Trusts owned by thirdtiearare reflected as noncontrolling inte
in the consolidated financial statements.

As noted above, the Company fulfilled its drillingligation to the Mississippian Trust | in the sedauarter of 2013. Accordingly, 1
Mississippian Trust 8 subordinated units, all of which are held by $Ridde, will convert to common units at the end o subordinatic
period. After this conversion, the Company will iane to consolidate the activities of the Misgigsin Trust | as its primary beneficiary du
the Companys continued (a) power to direct the activities tmaist significantly impact the economic performané¢he Royalty Trust and (
obligation to absorb losses and right to receig@tel returns through its variable interests i Royalty Trust, including ownership of comn
units, that could potentially be significant to téssissippian Trust I.

Each Royalty Trust's assets can be used to sattietbat Royalty Trusg obligations and not other obligations of the Campo
another Royalty Trust. The Royalty Trustseditors have no contractual recourse to the géreedit of the Company. Although the Roy
Trusts are included in the Company’s consolidateahnfcial statements, the Company’s legal interethé Royalty Trustsassets is limited to i
ownership of the Royalty Trusts’ units. At DecemBg&r 2013 and 2012 , $1.3 billion and $1.5 billimespectively, of noncontrolling interes
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets wtefitable to the Royalty Trusts. The Royalty Teigassets and liabilities, after conside
the effects of intercompany eliminations, includedhe accompanying consolidated balance she®@s@mber 31, 2013 and 20&@nsisted ¢
the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents(1) $ 7912 % 7,44t
Accounts receivable 22,54( 28,59¢
Derivative contracts 4,98: 10,28¢
Total current assets 35,43t 46,32,
Investment in royalty interests(2) 1,325,94: 1,325,94:
Less: accumulated depletion (186,099 (103,74
1,139,84 1,222,19i
Derivative contracts 1,47¢ 7,66(
Total assets $ 1,176,75 $ 1,276,18:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 3,39: $ 1,101
Total liabilities $ 339 § 1,101
Q) Includes $3.0 million held by the trustee acBmber 31, 2013 and 2042 reserves for future general and administratiperse:
(2) Investment in royalty interests is included in aild natural gas properties in the accompanyingatidiased balance sheets, and

determined by allocating the historical net bookugeof the Company’s full cost pool based on thevalue of each Royalty Trust’
royalty interests relative to the fair value of thempany’s full cost pool at the time of conveyance
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During 2012 and 2013, the Company sold Royalty fTcasnmon units it owned in transactions exempt fir@gistration pursuant
Rule 144 under the Securities Act, which furthetueed its beneficial interest in the Royalty TruSistal proceeds from such transactions
$29.0 million and $139.4 million for the years edd@ecember 31, 2013 and 2012spectively. The unit sales were accounted $oequit)
transactions with no gain or loss recognized. Then@any continues to be the primary beneficiaryhef Royalty Trusts, after consideratior
these transactions, as discussed above, and agglgrdiontinues to consolidate the activities af Royalty Trusts. The Compasybeneficie
interests in the Royalty Trusts at December 313201d 2012 were as follows:

December 31,

2013 2012
Mississippian Trust | 26.% 26.%
Permian Trust 28.5% 30.£%
Mississippian Trust II 37.€% 39.9%

See Note 15 for discussion of the Compariggal proceedings to which the Mississippian Ttwnd Mississippian Trust Il are a
parties and Note 21 for discussion of the saleenfrffan Trust common units in January 2014.

Pifion Gathering Company, LLOhe Company has a gas gathering and operationsnaimdenance agreement with Pifion Gathe
Company, LLC (“PGC") through June 30, 202%nder the gas gathering agreement, the Companmgqisred to compensate PGC for
throughput shortfalls below a required minimum wo&l By guaranteeing a minimum throughput, the Comdosorbs the risk that lower tt
projected volumes will be gathered by the gathesggpgtem. Therefore, PGC is a VIE. Other than asired under the gas gathering
operations and maintenance agreements, the Contaangot provided any support to PGC. While the Comwgoperates the assets of PG
directed under the operations and management agréetihe member and managers of PGC have the auttwodirectly control PGC and ma
substantive decisions regarding P&@cttivities including terminating the Company perator without cause. As the Company does not tie&
ability to control the activities of PGC that masgnificantly impact PGG economic performance, the Company is not thegsirheneficiar
of PGC. Therefore, the results of PGC’s activities not consolidated into the Company’s finandiaiesnents.

Amounts due from and due to PGC as of Decembe2(®l3 and 201ihcluded in the accompanying consolidated balaheets are :
follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2013 2012
Accounts receivable due from PGC $ 741 % 1,97¢
Accounts payable due to PGC 3,632 % 5,05:

©

5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures and reports certain assetkabildies on a fair value basis and has clasdifand disclosed its fair va
measurements using the following levels of thevalue hierarchy:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets thaaecessible at the measurement date for identinedstricted assets or
liabilities.
Level 2 Quoted prices in markets that are not active, putiswhich are observable, either directly or iedily, for substantially the full

term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 Measurement based on prices or valuation modeisebaire inputs that are both significant to thi ¥alue measurement and
less observable for objective sourcég(, supported by little or no market activity).

Assets and liabilities that are measured at fduevare classified based on the lowest level ofiripat is significant to the fair val
measurement. The Compasyassessment of the significance of a particujautito the fair value measurement requires judgmehich ma
affect the valuation of the fair value of assetd Aabilities and their placement within the famlue hierarchy levels. The determination of
fair values, stated below, considers the markettferCompanys financial assets and liabilities, the associatedit risk and other factors. T
Company considers active markets as those in whacisactions
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for the assets or liabilities occur in sufficiereduency and volume to provide pricing informat@nan ongoing basis. The Company has &
and liabilities classified in each level of theraiehy as of December 31, 2013 or 2012 , as desthblow.

Level 1 Fair Value Measurements

Restricted depositsThe fair value of restricted deposits investednitual funds or municipal bonds is based on quotatket price:
For restricted deposits held in savings accoursying value approximates fair value. Restrictegpasits are included in other assets ir
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Investments.The fair value of investments, consisting of essdtributable to the Company’s nqgoalified deferred compensation pl
is based on quoted market prices. Investmentsiahéded in other assets in the accompanying catetelil balance sheets.

Level 2 Fair Value Measurements

Derivative contracts.The fair values of the Comparsydil and natural gas fixed price swaps, oil aning gas collars and interest t
swap are based upon inputs that are either readdjlable in the public market, such as oil anduratgas futures prices, volatility factc
interest rates and discount rates, or can be caratdd from active markets. Fair value is deterahitigough the use of a discounted cash
model or option pricing model using the applicainjeuts, discussed above. The Company applies ahtesicaverage credit default risk rai
factor for its counterparties or gives effect ®dtedit default risk rating, as applicable, inedetining the fair value of these derivative contsi
Credit default risk ratings are based on currebliphied credit default swap rates.

Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Derivative contracts.The fair value of the Company’s oil basis swapsstanding at December 31, 20%&s based upon quo
obtained from counterparties to the derivative @uois. These values were reviewed internally faso@ableness through the use of a disco
cash flow model using noexchange traded regional pricing information. Aiddiglly, the Company applied a weighted averagditaefaul
risk rating factor for its counterparties or ga¥iee to its credit risk, as applicable, in detaning the fair value of these derivative contrattse
significant unobservable input used in the faitveaineasurement of the Companyil basis swaps is the estimate of future oilshdsferentials
Significant increases (decreases) in oil basiseudifitials could result in a significantly higheowier) fair value measurement. The signifit
unobservable inputs and the range and weightedgeef these inputs used in the fair value measmesrof the Compang’oil basis swaps
December 31, 2012 are included in the table bekdivof the outstanding oil basis swaps at Decen#dgr2012contractually matured duril
2013.

Unobservable Input Range Weighted Average Fair Value
(Price per Bbl) (In thousands)
Oil basis differential forward curve $10.0C — $21.98 $14.74 $ (512
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The following tables summarize the Compangssets and liabilities measured at fair valueaaecurring basis by the fair va

hierarchy (in thousands):

December 31, 2013

Fair Value Measurements

Assets/Liabilities at

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Netting(1) Fair Value
Assets
Restricted deposits 27,95t — — — 27,95¢
Commodity derivative contracts — 50,27 — (23,369 26,90
Investments 13,70¢ — — — 13,70¢
41,66 50,27 — (23,369 68,56¢
Liabilities
Commodity derivative contracts — 78,20( — (23,369 54,83:
— 78,20( — (23,369 54,83
December 31, 2012
Fair Value Measurements Assets/Liabilities at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Netting(1) Fair Value
Assets
Restricted deposits 27,947 — — — 27,94°
Commodity derivative contracts — 130,22( 182 (35,769 94,63¢
Investments 10,34¢ — — — 10,34¢
38,29¢ 130,22( 18¢ (35,769 132,93:
Liabilities
Commodity derivative contracts — 107,32: 69t (35,769 72,25:
Interest rate swap — 2,39t — — 2,39¢
— 109,71t 69t (35,769 74,64’
() Represents the impact of netting assets ahitlities with counterparties with which the rightaffset exists.
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The table below sets forth a reconciliation of @@mpanys commodity derivative contracts measured at faiue on a recurring ba
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)idlyithe years ended December 31, 2011 , 2012 at®l @dthousands):

Commodity
Derivative Contracts Interest Rate Swaps Total
Balance of Level 3 at December 31, 2010 $ (205,86() $ (16,699 $ (222,559
Gain (loss) on derivative contracts 44,07" (3,16%) 40,90"
Cash paid on settlements 50,71 9,414 60,12:
Transfers(1) 106,82( 10,44¢ 117,26¢
Balance of Level 3 at December 31, 2011 $ (4,257) $ = $ (4,257)
Loss on derivative contracts (5,460 — (5,460)
Purchases 5,697 — 5,697
Cash paid on settlements 3,50: — 3,50:
Balance of Level 3 at December 31, 2012 $ (512) $ — $ (512)
Loss on derivative contracts (133) — (133
Cash paid on settlements 64% — 64t
Balance of Level 3 at December 31, 2013 $ — $ — $ —
(1) Fair values related to the Companyil and natural gas fixed price swaps, natural galars and interest rate swap were transf

from Level 3 to Level 2 in the fourth quarter ofl20due to enhancements to the Compsumternal valuation process, including the
of observable inputs to assess the fair valugring the years ended December 31, 2013 and 28&2Company did not have ¢
transfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 Yailue measurements.

The Company recognizes transfers between fair v@krarchy levels as of the end of the reportingogkein which the event or char
in circumstances causing the transfer occurred.

Losses due to changes in fair value of the Compabgvel 3 commodity derivative contracts outstagdih December 31, 2012ere
$0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 201Phese amounts have been included in loss (gainderivative contracts in t
accompanying consolidated statements of operatidrese were no outstanding Level 3 commodity déifreacontracts at December 31, 2013 .

See Note 13 for further discussion of the Compadgrivative contracts.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures the fair value of its senitesnusing pricing for the Compasysenior notes that is readily available in
public market. The Company classifies these inpstéevel 2 in the fair value hierarchy. The estedafair values and carrying values of
Company’s senior notes at December 31, 2013 andl @ete as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value
9.875% Senior Notes due 2016(1) $ — — 3 392,911 $ 356,65
8.0% Senior Notes due 2018 — — 790,31 750,00(
8.75% Senior Notes due 2020(2) 486,00( 444,73t 490,50( 444,12
7.5% Senior Notes due 2021(3) 1,230,811 1,178,92. 1,257,25 1,179,322
8.125% Senior Notes due 2022 795,00( 750,00( 823,12! 750,00(
7.5% Senior Notes due 2023(4) 837,37! 821,24 882,75l 820,97:

@ Carrying value is net of $8,843 discount at&maber 31, 2012

2 Carrying value is net of $5,264 and $5,878dlimt at December 31, 2013 and 201@spectively

3 Carrying value includes a premium, applicableotes issued in August 2012, of $3,922 and $4a@@December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

4) Carrying value is net of $3,751 and $4,02¢edimt at December 31, 2013 and 201@spectively

See Note 12 for discussion of the Company’s ltargs debt, including the purchase, redemption aedance of senior notes in 2
and 2013.

Fair Value of Non-Financial Assets and Liabilities

See Note 3 for information regarding the Companyaduation of its acquisitions and Note 8 for dission of the Company’
impairment valuation.

6 . Accounts Receivable

A summary of accounts receivable is as followgHlpusands):

December 31,

2013 2012

Oil, natural gas and NGL sales $ 166,15 $ 215,45(
Joint interest billing 168,59¢ 202,40!
Oil and natural gas services 17,90: 21,18¢
Insurance receivable 2,50( 4,59(
Related party — 97¢
Other 5,122 6,532

360,27 451,14:
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (11,067 (5,635
Total accounts receivable, net $ 349,21t % 445,50¢
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The following table presents the balance and dgtivi the allowance for doubtful accounts for theags ended December 31, 2013
2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Allowance for doubtful accounts at January 1 $ 563t $ 3,906 $ 1,50¢
Additions charged to costs and expenses(1) 5,491 1,73¢ 2,511
Deductions(2) (72) (6) (10¢)
Allowance for doubtful accounts at December 31 $ 11,06 $ 563t % 3,90¢
(1) Includes $2.7 million of allowance for recdies deemed uncollectible at December 31, 20Barily due to bankruptcy status
customers.
(2) Deductions represent writdf of receivables and collections of amounts ftiick an allowance had previously been establi

7 . Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of the ¥ahg (in thousands):

December 31,

2013 2012
Oil and natural gas properties
Proved(1) $ 10,972,81 $ 12,262,92
Unproved 531,60t 865,86
Total oil and natural gas properties 11,504,42 13,128,78
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion and inmgait (5,762,96) (5,231,18)
Net oil and natural gas properties capitalizedscost 5,741,45: 7,897,60:
Land 18,42 17,927
Non-oil and natural gas equipment(2) 600,60 643,37(
Buildings and structures(3) 233,40! 205,34¢
Total 852,43: 866,64t
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (286,209 (284,27)
Other property, plant and equipment, net 566,22: 582,37!
Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 6,307,670 $ 8,479,97
(1)—Includes cumulative capitalized interest gbraximately $23.4 million and $11.7 million at Dewkeer 31, 2013 and 2032espectively
2 Includes cumulative capitalized interest gbreximately $4.3 million at both December 31, 2@h8 2012
3 Includes cumulative capitalized interest gbrximately $12.0 million and $7.1 million at Deceen 31, 2013 and 201 2espectively

Cumulative full cost ceiling limitation impairmemtharges of $3.5 billion at both December 31, 2068 2012were included i
accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairnfi@enbil and natural gas properties in the accompangonsolidated balance sheets. T
was no full cost ceiling impairment during any bétyears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 or 2044 N8te or discussion of impairment
other property, plant and equipment.

The average rates used for depreciation and deplefioil and natural gas properties were $16.81Boe in 2013 , $16.98er Boe il
2012 and $13.57 per Boe in 2011 .
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Costs Excluded from Amortization

The following table summarizes the costs, by yeeauired, related to unproved properties and pipertory, which were excluded frc
oil and natural gas properties subject to amoitinadt December 31, 2013 (in thousands):

Year Cost Incurred

Total 2013 2012 2011 2010 and Prior
Property acquisition $ 515,84¢ $ 114,25. $ 291,99¢ $ 34,16¢ $ 75,43¢
Exploration(1) 61,32} 48,76¢ 5,47¢ 3,59¢ 3,48¢
Total costs incurred $ 577,17¢ $ 163,01¢ $ 297,47¢ % 37,76: % 78,92(
@ Includes $45.6 million of pipe inventory cogtsurred ( $42.6 million in 2013 , $2.8 million #8012 and $0.2 million in 201&nd prio

years).

The Company expects to complete the majority ofeahaluation activities within 1§ears from the applicable date of acquisit
contingent on the Company’s capital expendituresdaiiling program. In addition, the Compasyihternal engineers evaluate all properties
least an annual basis.

8 . Impairment
Property, Plant and Equipment

As deemed necessary based on events in 2012 adtk@lCompany analyzed various property, plantemdpment for impairmer
Estimated fair values of these assets were cadlilaging a discounted cash flow method or recdatofrom third-party purchasers.

Gas Treating Plants and Other Midstream Asdetshe fourth quarter of 2012, the Company sub&iiyicompleted construction of t
Century Plant, a C@treatment plant in Pecos County, Texas (the “Cgridlant”),and associated compression and pipeline facifitigsuant t
an agreement with Occidental Petroleum Corporgti®ecidental”).In conjunction with the substantial completion aadulting diversion of tf
Company’s high CQ natural gas production from its legacy gas treaptamts to the Century Plant, the Company evaludgetegacy ge
treating plants and C@compression facilities for impairment. Due to piiéag low natural gas prices, the Compasyiatural gas producti
was not projected to reach the available treatapacity at the Century Plant. As such, the Comphlatgrmined the use of its legacy gas trei
plants and CQcompression facilities in west Texas was limitaut] accordingly, recorded a $79.3 millionpairment of its gas treating pla
and CO,compression facilities at December 31, 2012.

During 2013, the Company evaluated certain midsirggpe inventory, natural gas compressors, gadirigeglants and a CQ
compressor station for impairment after determirtimgt their future use was limited. As a resultlu#se evaluations, the Company reco
impairments of $12.2 million during the year end#Etember 31, 2013 on these assets to reduce #émgimy value to market value.

Drilling Assets.As a result of the Comparg/’entry into an agreement to sell the Permian Ptiepe the Company performed
impairment assessment of its drilling rigs as o€@&aber 31, 2012 by calculating the estimated futas flows to be generated by the rigs
their related assets. As the undiscounted futush ftaws were in excess of the assets’ carryingesato impairment was indicated at that time.

During the second and third quarters of 2013, thm@any committed to plans to sell various drillaggets. The net book value of tt
drilling assets was adjusted to fair value, resglth an impairment of $11.1 million and a combimechaining net book value at that time$éf.
million . Fair value for the drilling assets was estimdiaded on recent offers received from third pastigh consideration of current marl
conditions. Including subsequent asset sales thaining net book value of these assets was $5/mit December 31, 2013 hese assets
included in other current assets in the accompangamsolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2018e Company intends to sell the a
within a year.

Other Property, Plant and Equipmetr. the second quarter of 2013, the Company comdnitiea plan to sell a corporate asset. Th
book value of the corporate asset was adjusteaitedlue, resulting in an impairment of $2.9 naitliduring the year ended December 31, 2013
The fair value of the corporate asset was baseddanrent offer from a thirgarty purchaser, which is considered a Level 3tinple corporal
asset was sold in the fourth quarter of 2013.

F-29




SandRidge Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Comtiied)

The Company recorded a $1.3 million impairment@.2 due to the writeff of certain software costs as the software weterthine:
to be obsolete.

G oodwill

In December 2012, the Company entered into an agmeeto sell the Permian Properties, which the Gowypdetermined to be
triggering event for purposes of evaluating gootha#l the Permian Properties are included in thdoexfoon and production segment,
reporting unit to which goodwill was assigned. Agts, an impairment test was performed as of Dece@be2012. Primarily as a result ¢
decrease in the Compasyprobable reserves as of December 31, 2012, veleelone of the significant components in the ddtetion of the
fair value of the reporting unit, the carrying valaf the reporting unit exceeded the fair valu@bBble reserves used in the reporting uni
value calculation decreased due to their reclasgifin to possible reserves as a result of the @owip yearend evaluation of drilling resu
across its acreage in the Mississippian formatRwossible reserves are not included in the fair evadalculation of the reporting unit. T
Company performed step two of the impairment tesich indicated the entire balance of goodwill vilempaired. As a result, the Comp:
recorded an impairment equal to the carr ying armotigoodwill, or $235.4 million , at December 2012, which is included in impairment
the accompanying consolidated statement of opasfar the year ended December 31, 2012 .

9 . Other Assets

Other assets consist of the following (in thous&nds

December 31,

2013 2012

Debt issuance costs, net of amortization(1) $ 61,92: $ 83,64
Restricted deposits 27,95t 27,947
Notes receivable on asset retirement obligations 11,64( 11,43:
Investments 13,70¢ 10,34¢
Other 5,94 10,88:

Total other assets $ 121,170 $ 144,25;
(1) In 2013, the unamortized debt issuance costs adsdoivith the 9.875% Senior Notes due 2016 and &6ffor Notes due 2018 w:

written off at the time the Company redeemed timedes. See Note 12 for discussion of the seniar rextemptions.
10 . Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist éblitbwing (in thousands):

December 31,

2013 2012
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses $ 341,00¢ $ 461,06
Accrued interest 80,74( 92,12¢
Production payable 127,64 97,24*
Drilling advances 184,20: 68,74
Payroll and benefits 59,78¢ 29,81
Convertible perpetual preferred stock dividends 16,57: 16,57:
Related party 2,53: 982

Total accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 812,48t $ 766,54«

11 . Construction Contracts

Century PlantThe Company constructed the Century Plant for drachprice of $796.3 million which included agreed upon cha
orders and scope revisions, that Occidental patdeaCompany through periodic cost reimbursemeasedh upon the percentage of the pr
completed. Upon substantial completion of consiouncin late 2012, Occidental took ownership anddvegperating the plant for the purpos
separating and removing G&om the delivered natural gas stream and the Cagnpa
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recognized construction contract revenue and eagtal to the revised contract price of $796.3 omilliwhich are included in the accompany
statement of operations for the year ended DeceBe2012 . The Company recorded additions totaitg0.0 millionto its oil and natural g
properties for costs incurred in excess of contaasbunts during the construction period. Costsxicess of billings and contract loss $4.1
million at December 31, 2013 epresenting costs incurred in the final stageostruction, are reported as a current asstieiraccompanyir
consolidated balance sheet. Billings and contass In excess of costs of $15.5 million at Decensfie2012are reported as a current liability
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Pursuant to a 30year treating agreement executed simultaneouslly thié construction agreement, but accounted foaraggy
Occidental will remove CQfrom the Companyg delivered natural gas production volumes. Unldisr agreement, the Company is require
deliver certain minimum CQ@volumes annually, and is required to compensatéd@ctal to the extent such requirements are not et Not
15 for additional discussion of the treating agreemThe Company retains all methane gas fromaheral gas it delivers to the Century Plant.

Transmission Expansion Projects. the second quarter of 2013, the Company subsigntompleted the construction of a serie
electrical transmission expansion and upgrade gioj@ northern Oklahoma for a third party. The @amy constructed these projects f
contract price of $23.3 millionwhich included agreed upon change orders. Upbstantial completion of the contract, the Compasgpgnize
construction contract revenue and costs equaktogtised contract price of $23.3 millipwhich are included in the accompanying consadic
statement of operations for the year ended DeceBihhe2013 . Costs in excess of billings on thesgepts of $11.2 million aDecember 3:
2012 are included in current assets in the accopipgconsolidated balance sheet. All costs had bdkd as of December 31, 2013 .

12 . Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following (in thonds):

December 31,

2013 2012
Senior credit facility $ — $ =
Senior notes
9.875% Senior Notes due 2016, net of $8,843 disicat December 31, 2012 — 356,65
8.0% Senior Notes due 2018 — 750,00(
8.75% Senior Notes due 2020, net of $5,264 angB785discount, respectively 444,73t 444,12
7.5% Senior Notes due 2021, including a premiui$3p®22 and $4,328, respectively 1,178,92. 1,179,32
8.125% Senior Notes due 2022 750,00( 750,00(
7.5% Senior Notes due 2023, net of $3,751 and $482ount, respectively 821,24¢ 820,97
Total debt 3,194,90 4,301,08:
Less: current maturities of long-term debt — —
Long-term debt $ 3,194,900 $ 4,301,08:

Senior Credit Facility

The senior credit facility is available to be drammsubject to limitations based on its terms amtiain financial covenants, as descr
below. As of December 31, 2013he senior credit facility contained financialveoants, including maintenance of agreed upon defee| the
(i) ratio of total net debt to EBITDA, which may thexceed 4.51.0 at each quarter end, calculated using thefdastcompleted fiscal quarte
and (i) ratio of current assets to current liglg, which must be at least 2110 at each quarter end. If no amounts are dravdernthe seni
credit facility when calculating the ratio of totaét debt to EBITDA, the Company’s debt is redubgdits cash balance in excess&if0.(
million . In the current ratio calculation, any amountsilabée to be drawn under the senior credit facilitg included in current assets,
unrealized assets and liabilities resulting fronrkyta-market adjustments on the Compangerivative contracts are disregarded. The s
credit facility matures in March 2017 .

The senior credit facility also contains variousv@aants that limit the ability of the Company ardtain of its subsidiaries to: gri
certain liens; make certain loans and investmangke distributions; redeem stock; redeem or preldy; merge or consolidate with or int
third party; or engage in certain asset dispositiancluding a sale of all or substantially alltbe Companys assets. Additionally, the ser
credit facility limits the ability of the Companyd certain of its subsidiaries to incur additioimzlebtedness with certain exceptions. As of
during the year ended December 31, 20X1Be Company was in compliance with all applicafit@ncial covenants under the senior ci
facility.
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The obligations under the senior credit facilitg guaranteed by certain Company subsidiaries andesured by first priority liens
all shares of capital stock of certain of the Conypa material present and future subsidiaries; ceita@rcompany debt of the Company;
substantially all of the Company’s assets, inclgdinoved oil, natural gas and NGL reserves repteggat least 80.0%f the discounted pres¢
value (as defined in the senior credit facility)ppbved oil, natural gas and NGL reserves consibbyethe lenders in determining the borrov
base for the senior credit facility.

At the Companys election, interest under the senior credit fgci determined by reference to (a) the Londoerlnk Offered Ra
(“LIBOR”) plus an applicable margin between 1.75%d&£.75% per annum or (b) the “base ratehyich is the highest of (i) the federal fu
rate plus 0.5% , (ii) the prime rate published tBnB of America or (iii) the Eurodollar rate (asidefl in the senior credit facility) plus00%
per annum, plus, in each case under scenari@ifbdpplicable margin between 0.75% and 1.7p86 annum. Interest is payable quarterly
base rate loans and at the applicable maturity fdatelBOR loans, except that if the interest pdrfor a LIBOR loan is six months, interes
paid at the end of each three-month period. Qugsttre Company pays a commitment fee assessen atraual rate of 0.5%n any availabl
portion of the senior credit facility. There were amounts outstanding under the senior creditifiacuring 2013 or 2012 The average annt
interest rate paid on amounts outstanding undeseher credit facility during 2011 was 2.69% .

Borrowings under the senior credit facility may eateed the lower of the borrowing base or the cittedhamount. In August 201
the borrowing base was reduced to $775.0 milliomf$1.0 billionas a result of the issuance of the 7.5% Seniord\aie 2023 and additiol
7.5% Senior Notes due 2021, as discussed belowCbhgpanys borrowing base is generally redetermined in Aamidl October of each ye
and was reaffirmed at $775.0 million in October 20IThe next borrowing base redetermination will beApril 2014. With respect to ez
redetermination, the administrative agent and ¢heérs under the senior credit facility consideesa factors, including the Compasyprove!
reserves and projected cash requirements, and asgienptions regarding, among other things, oil matdiral gas prices and product
Because the value of the Companpgtoved reserves is a key factor in determinirgaitmount of the borrowing base, changing commaatityes
and the Compang’ success in developing reserves may affect thewing base. The Company at times incurs additiooats related to tl
senior credit facility as a result of amendmentthocredit agreement and changes to the borrobasg.

At December 31, 2013, the Company had no amoustamding under the senior credit facility and $2@illion in outstanding lette
of credit, which reduce the availability under ganior credit facility on a dollar-for-dollar basis

Senior Fixed Rate Notes

The Company’s unsecured senior fixed rate notesnft8® Fixed Rate Notes”) bear interest at a fixat per annum, payable semi-
annually, with the principal due upon maturity. ta@r of the Senior Fixed Rate Notes were issuesl discount or a premium. The discour
premium is amortized to interest expense over ¢he tof the respective series of Senior Fixed Raited The Senior Fixed Rate Notes
redeemable, in whole or in part, prior to their oy at specified redemption prices and are jgiathd severally guaranteed unconditionall
full, on an unsecured basis by certain of the Camisawholly owned subsidiaries. See Note f28 condensed financial information of
subsidiary guarantors.

Debt issuance costs of $70.2 millimeurred in connection with the offerings and sujust registered exchange offers, including t
discussed below, of the Senior Fixed Rate Notestading at December 31, 204% included in other assets in the accompanyingalwlate:
balance sheet and are being amortized to intexpshse over the term of the respective series mibEEixed Rate Notes.

2013 Activity.In March 2013, the Company redeemed $365.5 milliggregate principal amount of its 9.875% SenioreNatue 201
and $750.0 million aggregate principal amount ®8i10% Senior Notes due 2018 for total considenaifdb1,061.34 per $1,0GfFincipal amour
and $1,052.77 per $1,0@@incipal amount, respectively. The premium paidddeem these notes and the expense incurred t® @ffithe
remaining associated unamortized debt issuances,ctdaling $82.0 million, were recorded as a loss on extinguishment of delihe
accompanying consolidated statement of operatimnthé year ended December 31, 2013 .

2012 Activity.In 2012, the Company completed offerings of seniotes (the “2012 Senior Notes'gs further discussed below,

qualified institutional buyers eligible under Ruld4A of the Securities Act and to persons outdieUWnited States under Regulation S o
Securities Act. The Company incurred $41.0 millasrdebt issuance costs in connection with the 2Bdrdor Notes offerings.
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In April 2012 , the Company issued $750.0 millidnuasecured 8.125%enior Notes due 2022. Net proceeds from the offeriert
approximately $730.1 millioafter deducting offering expenses, and were usditidace the cash portion of the Dynamic Acquisitfmurchas
price and to pay related fees and expenses, wjthegmaining amount used for general corporate B&Ro

In August 2012 , the Company issued $825.0 milbbinsecured 7.5% Senior Notes due 2023 at 99.5p@nénd $275.0 millioof
additional unsecured 7.5% Senior Notes due 202DAa1625% of par, plus accrued interest from Margh2D12. The Company received |
proceeds from this offering of approximately $lillidn , after deducting offering expenses and excludicgywed interest received. The
proceeds of the offering were used to fund the Gomis tender offer for, and subsequent redemptiortoEénior Floating Rate Notes due 2
(the “Senior Floating Rate Notes”), discussed urgerior Floating Rate Notes due 2(iglow, to fund the Comparg/capital expenditures &
for general corporate purposes.

In November 2012, pursuant to registered exchafigesothe Company replaced the initial 2012 Seiotes with equivalent 20.
Senior Notes that are registered under the Seesuidttt. The exchange offers did not result in tlreiirence of any additional indebtedness.

2011 Activity.In March 2011, the Company issued $900.0 milliorun$ecured 7.5%enior Notes due 2021 to qualified institutic
buyers eligible under Rule 144A of the Securitieg And to persons outside the United States undgulRtion S under the Securities Act
November 2011, pursuant to an exchange offer, trapany replaced the:7.5% Senior Notes due 2021 with equivalent senior ntitas ar
registered under the Securities Act. The exchaffge did not result in the incurrence of any adutil indebtedness.

In 2011, the Company tendered the $650.0 millionggwal amount of its 8.625%enior Notes due 2015. The premium paid to pur
these notes and the expense incurred to writeheffémaining associated unamortized debt issuarsts, ¢otaling $38.2 millionwere recorde
as a loss on extinguishment of debt in the accogipgrtonsolidated statement of operations for e yended December 31, 2011 .

Indentures.Each of the indentures governing the Company’s @dfiked Rate Notes contains covenants that restriec Companye
ability to take a variety of actions, including ltations on the incurrence of indebtedness, paymkdividends, investments, asset sales, ce
asset purchases, transactions with related paatidsconsolidations or mergers. As of and during year ended December 31, 201&he
Company was in compliance with all of the covenaotstained in the indentures governing its outstap&enior Fixed Rate Notes.

Senior Floating Rate Notes Due 2014

In the third quarter of 2012, the Company purchab@@ 0% or $350.0 milliorof the outstanding aggregate principal amount s
Senior Floating Rate Notes. All holders whose netese purchased in the tender offer or redempgaeived accrued and unpaid interest 1
July 1, 2012hrough the date of purchase. The premium paiditohyase these notes and the write off of the renmumamortized debt issual
costs associated with the notes, totaling $3.lianil] were recorded as a loss on extinguishment of detitincluded in the accompany
consolidated statement of operations for the yade@ December 31, 2012 . The Senior Floating RatedNwere issued in May 20@8d bor
interest at LIBOR plus 3.625% prior to their retirent.

Maturities of Long-Term Debt

As of December 31, 2013, there are no maturitidsny-term debt until January 2020.
13 . Derivatives

The Company has not designated any of its dereatontracts as hedges for accounting purposesCohpany records all derivati
contracts at fair value. Changes in derivative i@mttfair values are recognized in earnings. Casifements and valuation gains and losse
included in loss (gain) on derivative contracts fmmmodity derivative contracts and in interestenge for interest rate swaps in
consolidated statement of operations. Commodityvdive contracts are settled on a monthly or qrirtbasis. Settlements on interest

swaps occur gquarterly. Derivative assets and itegsilarising from the Compars/derivative contracts with the same counterpérdy provid
for net settlement are reported on a net basiserconsolidated balance sheet.
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Commodity DerivativesThe Company is exposed to commodity price riskictvimpacts the predictability of its cash flowsrir the
sale of oil and natural gas. The Company seeksatwage this risk through the use of commodity désieecontracts. These derivative contr.
allow the Company to limit its exposure to commgdirice volatility on a portion of its forecasted and natural gas sales. None of
Companys derivative contracts may be terminated prioraotiactual maturity solely as a result of a dowdgran the credit rating of a party
the contract. At December 31, 2013 , the Compmmgmmodity derivative contracts consisted of fiygéce swaps and collars, which
described below:

Fixed price swaps The Company receives a fixed price for the contesntt pays a floating market price to the counteypaver
specified period for a contracted volume.

Collars Two-way collars contain a fixed floor price (put) anébad ceiling price (call). If the market price@eds the ca

strike price or falls below the put strike priclee tCompany receives the fixed price and pays thianprice. If the
market price is between the call and the put spifiee, no payments are due from either party.
Threeway collars have two fixed floor prices (a purclthpeat and a sold put) and a fixed ceiling pricdlfc@he
purchased put establishes a minimum price unlessrmiéirket price falls below the sold put, at whidinp the
minimum price would be New York Mercantile Exchangas the difference between the purchased putttae
sold put strike price. The call establishes a marinprice (ceiling) the Company will receive for thelumes
under the contract.

Interest Rate Swapsihe Company is exposed to interest rate riskoloitgterm fixed rate debt and will be exposed to vadadbteres
rates if it draws on its senior credit facilityxed rate debt, where the interest rate is fixed thwelife of the instrument, exposes the Compa
(i) changes in market interest rates reflectechenftir value of the debt and (ii) the risk thag thompany may need to refinance maturing
with new debt at a higher rate. Variable rate debgre the interest rate fluctuates, exposes tmep@ny to shorterm changes in market intet
rates as the Comparsyinterest obligations on these instruments aregierlly redetermined based on prevailing markétriest rates, primar
LIBOR and the federal funds rate.

Prior to its maturity on April 1, 2013 , the Compdmad a $350.0 milliomotional interest rate swap agreement which effebtifixed
the variable interest rate on the Senior FloatiageRNotes at an annual rate of 6.68%periods prior to their repurchase and redenmpitiothe
third quarter of 2012. The interest rate swap wasiasignated as a hedge.

Derivatives Agreements with Royalty Trudtéfective April 1, 2011 , August 1, 2011 and Agkjl 2012, the Company entered it
derivatives agreements with the Mississippian TruBermian Trust and Mississippian Trust Il, regjppely, to provide each Royalty Trust w
the economic effect of certain oil and natural desvative contracts entered into by the Comparth Wiird parties. The underlying commoc
derivative contracts cover volumes of oil and natgas production through December 31, 2015 , Malg2015 and December 31, 2Gb4 the
Mississippian Trust |, Permian Trust and Missisgpprrust I, respectively. Under these arrangesyetie Company pays the Royalty Tr
amounts it receives from its counterparties in ed&oce with the underlying contracts, and the RgyRlusts pay the Company any amounts
the Company is required to pay its counterpartieeu such contracts.

Substantially concurrent with the execution of thepective derivatives agreements, the Companytedweertain of the derivati
contracts underlying the derivatives agreemeneath of the Permian Trust and Mississippian Tlu#d a party to these contracts, the Peri
Trust and Mississippian Trust Il receive paymengctly from the counterparty and pay any amountsddirectly to the counterparty. To sec
its obligations under the respective derivative t@mwis novated to it, each of the Permian Trust &fidsissippian Trust Il grant
the counterparties liens on the royalty interestd by each respective Royalty Trust. Under théveldves agreements, as development well
drilled for the benefit of the Permian Trust andsMssippian Trust Il, the Company has the rightienrcertain circumstances, to assign or nc
to the Permian Trust and Mississippian Trust Ilitgidal derivative contracts. The Company novatedain additional derivative contra
underlying the derivatives agreements to the Perrhfast in April 2012 and to the Permian Trust #ma Mississippian Trust Il in March 2013.

All contracts underlying the derivatives agreemewith the Royalty Trusts, including those novatedthe Permian Trust a

Mississippian Trust Il, have been included in thenfpany’s consolidated derivative disclosures. Se&e M for the Royalty Trustsper
derivative contracts.
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Fair Value of Derivatives.The following table presents the fair value of @@mpany’s derivative contracts as@écember 31, 20:
and 2012 on a gross basis without regard to sametegparty netting (in thousands):

December 31,

Type of Contract Balance Sheet Classification 2013 2012

Derivative assets
Oil price swaps Derivative contracts—current $ 15,88" $ 88,05:
Natural gas price swaps Derivative contracts—current 1,59¢ —
Oil basis swaps Derivative contracts—current — 18¢
Oil collars—three way Derivative contracts—current 70€ —
Natural gas collars Derivative contracts—curren 177 3,111
Oil price swaps Derivative contracts—noncurrent 19,37¢ 37,98:
Qil collars—three way Derivative contracts—noment 12,18¢ 19C
Natural gas collars Derivative contracts—noncurrent 341 884

Derivative liabilities
QOil price swaps Derivative contracts—current (38,396 (31,99)
Natural gas price swaps Derivative contractsrreru (1,460 —
Qil basis swaps Derivative contracts—current — (69%5)
Oil collars—two way Derivative contracts—curten — (103)
Interest rate swap Derivative contracts—current — (2,395
Oil price swaps Derivative contracts—noncurrent (38,349 (67,900
Oil collars—three way Derivative contracts—noncurrent — (7,32%)

Total net derivative contracts $ (27,920 $ 19,99

Refer to Note 5 for additional discussion of thi f/alue measurement of the Company’s derivatbréracts.

Master Netting Agreements and the Right of Offdet. Company has master netting agreements withf &#f derivative counterpartie
which allow the Company to present its derivatigseds and liabilities with the same counterpartyaamet basis in the consolidated bal:
sheet. As a result, the Company's maximum amoulassfunder derivative transactions due to créshtis limited to the net amounts due fi
its counterparties. As of December 31, 2013 , thenterparties to the Company’s open derivativereaig consisted of Iféhancial institutions
11 of which are also lenders under the Compasghior credit facility. As a result, the Comp#yot required to post additional collateral ut
derivative contracts as the majority of the coyraeties to the Company’s derivative contracts siratae collateral supporting the Company’
senior credit facility. To secure their obligatiomsder the derivative contracts novated by the Gompthe Permian Trust and Mississip|
Trust Il have each given the counterparties to suamtracts a lien on its royalty interests. Thdofeing tables summarize the Compa
derivative contracts on a gross basis, the effettsetting assets and liabilities for which thehtigf offset exists based on master ne
arrangements, and the applicable portion of sheodidteral under the senior credit facility for 8&idge's derivative contracts and undei
liens granted by the Permian Trust and the Miggisah Trust Il on their royalty interest for the yRdty Trusts' novated derivative contr:
associated with the Company’s net derivative ligbpositions (in thousands):

December 31, 2013

Gross Amounts Amounts Net of
Gross Amounts Offset Offset Financial Collateral Net Amount
Assets
Derivative contracts - current $ 18,36¢ $ (5,58 $ 12,77¢ % — $ 12,77¢
Derivative contracts - noncurrent 31,90¢ (27,780 14,12¢ — 14,12¢
Total $ 50,27: $ (23,369 $ 26,90F $ — $ 26,90!
Liabilities
Derivative contracts - current $ 39,85¢ $ (5,589 $ 34,267 % (34,267 $ =
Derivative contracts - noncurrent 38,34« (17,780 20,56¢ (20,569 —
Total $ 78,20C $ (23,369 $ 54,83 $ (54,83) $ =
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December 31, 2012

Gross Amounts Amounts Net of
Gross Amounts Offset Offset Financial Collateral Net Amount
Assets
Derivative contracts - current $ 91,34¢ $ (20,329 % 71,02 % — 71,02:
Derivative contracts - noncurrent 39,057 (15,440 23,61. — 23,61°
Total $ 130,40 $ (35,769 $ 94,63¢ % —  $ 94,63¢
Liabilities
Derivative contracts - current $ 35,18: $ (20,329 $ 14,86( $ (14,860 $ =
Derivative contracts - noncurrent 75,22’ (15,440 59,78’ (59,787 —
Total $ 110,41: $ (35,769 $ 74,647 $ (74,64 $ =

The Company recorded loss (gain) on commodity dérie contracts of $47.1 million , $(241.4) milli@nd $(44.1) milliorfor the
years endeDecember 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2QX#&spectively, as reflected in the accompanyingsolidated statements of operations. Incl
in the loss (gain) on commodity derivative contsaftdr the years ended December 31, 2013 , 2012@h#@lare net cash (receipts) paymt
upon contract settlement of $(3.2) million , $(IQ0million and $37.6 million , respectively. Forettyear ended December 31, 201%29.¢
million of cash payments related to settlements of commaiitivative contracts with contractual maturiteder the year in which they we
settled as a result of the sale of the PermiandPties. For the year ended December 31, 2Qk& gain on commodity derivative contracts is
of a non-cash loss of $117.1 million resulting frire amendment of certain 2012 derivative contriict®ntracts maturing in 2014 and 2015.

The Company recorded a loss on its interest rag@swf $0.01 million , $1.2 million and $3.2 milidor the years endddecember 31
2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively, which is idetlin interest expense in the accompanying catedelil statements of operations. Included in
the loss for the years ended December 31, 20182 @3d 2011 are cash payments upon contract setttesh$2.4 million , $9.2 million and
$9.4 million , respectively.

At December 31, 2013 , the Company’s open commatditivative contracts consisted of the following:

Oil Price Swaps

Weighted Average

Notional (MBbls) Fixed Price
January 2014 — December 2014 8,81l: $ 92.9¢
January 2015 — December 2015 797¢ % 86.1:

Natural Gas Price Swaps

Weighted Average

Notional (MMcf) Fixed Price
January 2014 — December 2014 3549 $ 4.2(
Oil Collars - Three-way
Purchased
Notional (MBbls) Sold Put Put Sold Call
January 2014 — December 2014 8,21% $70.00 $90.20 $100.00
January 2015 — December 2015 2,92( $73.13 $90.82  $103.13

F-36




SandRidge Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Comtiied)

Natural Gas Collars

Notional (MMcf) Collar Range
January 2014 — December 2014 937 $4.00 — $7.78
January 2015 — December 2015 1,01¢( $4.00 — $8.55

14 . Asset Retirement Obligations

The following table presents the balance and dgtiv the asset retirement obligations for the gemmded December 31, 2013012
and 2011 (in thousands).

2013 2012 2011
Asset retirement obligations at January 1 $ 498,41( $ 128,11¢ $ 119,87
Liability incurred upon acquiring and drillivgells 5,07¢ 7,47¢ 5,71¢
Liability assumed in acquisition(1) — 371,36! —
Revisions in estimated cash flows (3,077 34,65« 7,57¢
Liability settled or disposed in current pe(iy (113,079 (72,200 (14,419
Accretion(3) 36,771 28,99¢ 9,36¢
Asset retirement obligations at December 31 424,11° 498,41( 128,11¢
Less: current portion 87,06: 118,50 32,90¢
Asset retirement obligations, net of current $ 337,05: % 379,90t $ 95,21(

@ Represents asset retirement obligations assumgge incquisitions of oil and natural gas properiiethe Gulf of Mexico during tf

second quarter of 2012.
2 Year ended December 31, 2013 includes $45IBmfor the decommissioning of various platforms, pipeland associated wells in

Gulf of Mexico and $15.2 milliorf asset retirement obligations disposed in corjanawith the sale of the Permian Properties. Y
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 include the reettieof plugging and abandonment obligations aasettiwith properties in tl
Gulf of Mexico. Year ended December 31, 2011 inekidmounts related to the Permian Basin and easts goperties sold duri
2011.

(3) Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 includetamtattributable to asset retirement obligatiassumed in the acquisitions of
and natural gas properties in the Gulf of Mexicamtythe second quarter of 2012.

15 . Commitments and Contingencies

Operating LeasesThe Company has obligations under noncancelald@eating leases, primarily for office space and pogint used |
drilling and services activities. Total rental empe under operating leases for the years endednibece81, 2013 , 2012 and 20Was
approximately $3.6 million , $2.6 million and $llion , respectively.

Future minimum payments under noncancelable opgrégases (with initial lease terms exceeding aar)yas oDecember 31, 20:
were as follows (in thousands):

Years ending December 31

2014 $ 3,23¢
2015 2,98¢
2016 2,64(
2017 1,75¢
2018 21¢

$ 10,83¢

Rig CommitmentsThe Company has contracts with thparty drilling rig operators for the use of thdégs at specified day or foots
rates. These commitments are not recorded in theolidated balance sheets. Minimum future commitsyais of December 31, 2018:re
$20.3 million for 2014 and $1.1 million for 2015.
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Oil and Natural Gas Transportation and Throughpagtrdements.The Company has subscribed firm gas transportagovice under
transportation service agreement on the Midcontipress Pipeline, the term of which continues| Warch 2019. This commitment is r
recorded in the consolidated balance sheets. Uhdderms of the agreement, the Company is obligatpay a demand charge and in exchz
obtains the right to flow natural gas productiorotigh this pipeline to more competitive marketimgees. The Company also has oil and na
gas throughput agreements in place, which requieal ffees based on minimum volume requirementgHerright to flow oil and natural g
through certain pipelines. The amounts of the megujpayments related to the transportation andigiput agreements asDécember 31, 20:
were as follows (in thousands):

Years ending December 31

2014 $ 19,941
2015 11,79
2016 11,34¢
2017 11,31¢
2018 11,31
Thereafter 2,79(

$ 68,507

Natural Gas Gathering Agreemernthe Company has a gas gathering agreement withrel@ted to its properties located in the P
Field in west Texas. Under the gas gathering agea&nthe Company has dedicated its west Texasgeefeapriority gathering services throt
June 30, 202and will pay a fee for such services. Pursuaniéogas gathering agreement, the base fee can beecki certain criteria are m
The table below presents the base fee contradblightions under this agreement as of Decembe2@1L3 (in thousands).

Years ending December 31

2014 $ 42,54;
2015 42,33¢
2016 42,27
2017 41,99
2018 41,82¢
Thereafter 100,55¢

$ 311,52¢

Development Agreements with Royalty TruBkee Companys development agreements with the Permian TrusMassissippian Tru:
Il obligate the Company to drill, or cause to béleft, a specified number of wells within an ardarmtual interest for each trust ijarch 31
2016 and December 31, 2016Gespectively. The estimated cost to fulfill thellshg obligations remaining at December 31, 208alec
approximately $137.0 million . The Company fulfdlés drilling obligation to SandRidge Mississippi@rust | during 2013.

Treating AgreementIn conjunction with the Century Plant construotiagreement, the Company entered into a \&ar- treatin
agreement with Occidental for the removal of &@m the Company delivered production volumes of natural gas. Wrlde agreement, t
Company is required to deliver a total of approxeha3,200 Bcf of CO, during the agreement period. At December 31, 28pBroximatel
3,000 Bcf of CO,remained to be delivered. The Company is obligédegay Occidental $0.25 per Mcf to the extent mimmannual CQ
volume requirements are not met. Additionally, @ @/olumes delivered by the Company over the terninefagreement do not reach 3,5,
the Company is obligated to pay Occidental $0.#0Mef for such undelivered C@volumes at the end of the agreement term in 2@&se:
upon natural gas production levels in 2013 , then@any accrued $32.7 million for amounts relatethss Companys shortfall in meeting i
2013 delivery obligations, which was included in prodantexpenses in the accompanying consolidatednseaieof operations for the e
ended December 31, 2013Based on current projected natural gas produdéweels, the Company expects to accrue betweerogippately
$30.0 million and $37.0 million during the year ergiDecember 31, 2014 for amounts related to thagamy’s anticipated shortfall in meeti
its 2014 annual delivery obligations. Due to thesiévity of drilling activity to market prices fanatural gas, the Company is unable to esti
additional amounts it may be obligated to pay urttleragreement in subsequent periods; howevegtifral gas prices remain low, drilli
activity will likely remain very limited, which wdd result in additional shortfall payments in fugyperiods.
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Risks and UncertaintiesThe Companys revenue, profitability and future growth are fabsally dependent upon the prevailing
future prices for oil and natural gas, each of Whdepends on numerous factors beyond the Compaowtrol such as overall oil and natural
production and inventories in relevant marketsheeoaic conditions, the global political environmerggulatory developments and competi
from other energy sources. Oil and natural gasepritustorically have been volatile, and may beexihjo significant fluctuations in the futu
The Company enters into derivative arrangementsder to mitigate a portion of the effect of thiscp volatility on the Companyg’cash flows
See Note 13 for the Company’s open oil and nafgaalcommodity derivative contracts.

Production targets contained in certain gathering tieating agreements require the Company to inapital expenditures or me
associated shortfall payments, as discussed afiteeCompany depends on cash flows from operatitigitees, funding commitments fro
third parties for drilling carries and, as necegshorrowings under its senior credit facility tonfl its capital expenditures. Additionally,
Company may use proceeds from the issuance ofyeguit debt securities in the capital markets aathfthe sales or other monetization
assets to fund its capital expenditures. Baseduorertt cash balances, including proceeds receired the sale of certain of the Company’
subsidiaries that owned its Gulf of Mexico and GQbfast oil and natural gas properties (collectivéte “Gulf Properties”)cash flows fror
operating activities and funding commitments frdrind parties for drilling carries, the Company ecgseto be able to fund its planned caj
expenditures budget, debt service requirementsvanking capital needs for 2014; However, a subg&hot extended decline in oil, natural
or NGL prices could have a material adverse effecthe Company financial position, results of operations, cdsiwé$ and quantities of o
natural gas and NGL reserves that may be econdgnipedduced, which could adversely impact the Comym ability to comply with th
financial covenants under its senior credit fagilfee Note 12 for discussion of the financial cargs in the senior credit facility.

Litigation and Claims. On April 5, 2011, Wesley West Minerals, Ltd. andngfellow Ranch Partners, LP filed suit against
Company and SandRidge Exploration and Productiaq; (collectively, the “SandRidge Entitiesi) the 83rd District Court of Pecos Coul
Texas. The plaintiffs, who have leased mineraltdg the SandRidge Entities in Pecos County, alkbgt the SandRidge Entities have
properly paid royalties on all volumes of naturas@nd CQ produced from the acreage leased from the pléaniihe plaintiffs also allege tt
the SandRidge Entities have inappropriately faitegay royalties on C@produced from the plaintiffs' acreage that reduéisn the treatment
natural gas at the Century Plant. The plaintifisksapproximately $45.5 milliom actual damages for the period of time betweemdis 200
and December 2011, punitive damages and a deolartiat the SandRidge Entities must pay royaltiesC@® . produced from the plaintift
acreage that results from treatment of naturalagate Century Plant. The Commissioner of the Geneand Office of the State of Te»
(“GLO") is named as an additional defendant in the lavesuiome of the affected oil and natural gas ledsssibed in the plaintiffs' allegatic
cover mineral classified lands in which the GL@imitled to one-half of the royalties attributatdesuch leases. The GLO has filed a crdagn
against the SandRidge Entities asserting the staimascas the plaintiffs with respect to the leasgering mineral classified lands and see
approximately $13.0 milliorin actual damages, inclusive of penalties and ésterOn February 5, 2013, the Company receivedsardhle
summary judgment ruling that effectively removesaiority of the plaintiffs' and GLO's claims. On #i29, 2013, the court entered an ol
allowing for an interlocutory appeal of its summduggment ruling. The Company intends to continuel¢fend the remaining issues in
lawsuit as well as any appellate proceedings. Attitme of the ruling on summary judgment, the latvew@s still in the discovery stage a
accordingly, an estimate of reasonably possiblgdesssociated with the remaining causes of adtiany, cannot be made until all of the fa
circumstances and legal theories relating to slaims and the SandRidge Entities' defenses arg distlosed and analyzed. The Company
not established any reserves relating to this actio

On August 4, 2011, Patriot Exploration, LLC, JomatH-eldman, Redwing Drilling Partners, Mapleleafllibg Partners, Avalanct
Drilling Partners, Penguin Drilling Partners anda@ax Insurance Company Ltd. filed a lawsuit againstCompany, SandRidge Explora
and Production, LLC (“SandRidge E&Pdhd certain current and former directors and seecutive officers of the Company (collectivelyg
“defendants”)in the U.S. District Court for the District of Cometicut. On October 28, 2011, the plaintiffs filed amended complaint alleg
substantially the same allegations as those cauamthe original complaint. The plaintiffs allethat the defendants made false and misle:
statements to U.S. Drilling Capital Management LhfAd to the plaintiffs prior to the entry into a figpation agreement among Pat
Exploration, LLC, U.S. Drilling Capital ManagemdritC and SandRidge E&P, which provided for the inwgnt by the plaintiffs in certain
SandRidge E&P's oil and natural gas propertiesdate, the plaintiffs have invested approximatel6.81million under the participatic
agreement. The plaintiffs seek compensatory andiperdamages and rescission of the participatigreement. On November 28, 2011,
defendants filed a motion to dismiss the amendedptaint. On June 29, 2013, the court granted in pad denied in part the defendants’
motion. The Company and the other defendants intemtkfend this lawsuit vigorously and believe fiantiffs’ claims are without merit. Tt
lawsuit is in the early stages and, accordinglyestimate of reasonably possible losses assoaidtedhis action, if any, cannot be made
the facts, circumstances and legal theories rglatnthe plaintiffs' claims and the defendardefenses are fully disclosed and analyzed.
Company has not established any reserves relatitigst action.
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Between December 2012 and March 2013, seven paitatiareholder derivative actions were filed inestabhd federal court
Oklahoma:

e Arthur I. Levine v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and 8&idge Energy, Inc., Nominal Defendantiied on December 19, 2012 in the U
District Court for the Western District of Oklahoma

e Deborah Depuy v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and SaddRiEnergy, Inc., Nominal Defendarfiled on January 22, 2013 in the U.S. Dis
Court for the Western District of Oklahoma

< Paul Elliot, on Behalf of the Paul Elliot IRA &/ v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and SandRidge Energg,,INominal Defendant filed on
January 29, 2013 in the U.S. District Court for ¥estern District of Oklahoma

e Dale Hefner v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and SandRi#taergy, Inc., Nominal Defendantiled on January 4, 2013 in the District Cour
Oklahoma County, Oklahoma

« Rocky Romano v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and SandRiBnergy, Inc., Nominal Defendarfiled on January 22, 2013 in the District C«
of Oklahoma County, Oklahoma

e Joan Brothers v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and SaddRiEnergy, Inc., Nominal Defendarfiled on February 15, 2013 in the U.S. Dist
Court for the Western District of Oklahoma

« Lisa Ezell, Jefferson L. Mangus, and Tyler D.rigas v. Tom L. Ward, et al., and SandRidge Endrgy, Nominal Defendantfiled on
March 22, 2013 in the U.S. District Court for theeStern District of Oklahoma

Each lawsuit identified above was filed derivativeh behalf of the Company and names as defendantsnt and former directors
the Company. The Hefner lawsuit also names as daefgs certain current and former directors andoseniecutive officers of the Company.
seven lawsuits assert overlapping claimgenerally that the defendants breached their fadycduties, mismanaged the Company, wi
corporate assets, and engaged in, facilitated pmoapd selfdealing transactions in breach of their fiduciabjigations. The Depuy lawsuit a
alleges violations of federal securities laws inmection with the Company allegedly filing and dimiting certain misleading proxy stateme
The lawsuits seek, among other relief, injunctiekef related to the Company's corporate governanceunspecified damages.

On April 10, 2013, the U.S. District Court for thidestern District of Oklahoma consolidated the LeyibDepuy, Elliot, Brothers, a
Ezell actions (the “Federal Shareholder DerivatiiBgation”) under the caption i re SandRidge Energy, Inc. Shareholder Deriv
Litigation,” appointed a lead plaintiff and lead counsel, anfti@d the lead plaintiff to file a consolidated giaint by May 1, 2013. On June
2013, the Company and the individual defendan¢sl fitheir respective motions to dismiss the conatéid complaint. On September 11, 2i
the court granted the defendanssSpective motions to dismiss the consolidated daimpwvithout prejudice, and granted plaintiffsveao file ai
amended consolidated complaint. The plaintiffsdfi|en amended consolidated complaint on Octobe®®83,2n which plaintiffs allege that:
the Company’s former Chief Executive Officer (“CEQTom Ward, breached his fiduciary duties by usurptogporate opportunities, (
certain of the Company’s current and former directoreached their fiduciary duties of care, (iii). Mvard and certain of the Compasurren
and former directors wasted corporate assetscéktpin entities allegedly affiliated with Mr. Waedded and abetted Mr. Wasdbreaches
fiduciary duties, (v) Mr. Ward and entities allegeaffiliated with Mr. Ward misappropriated the Cpeany’s confidential and propriete
information, and (vi) entities allegedly affiliatedth Mr. Ward were unjustly enriched. The defendamve filed respective motions to disr
the amended consolidated complaint, which are peniiéfore the court.

The Company and the individual defendants in thiméteand Romano actions (the “State Shareholderv&ere Litigation”) moved t¢
stay each of the actions in favor of the Federalr&tmolder Derivative Litigation, in order to avaldplicative proceedings, and also requeste
the alternative, the dismissal of the State Shadeh®erivative Litigation.

On June 19, 2013, the court stayed the Hefner ractidgil at least November 29, 2013. The court sgbertly lifted its stay fc
purposes of hearing and deciding the defendargpective motions to dismiss. On September 18, 20&3court denied the defendantsdtions
to dismiss.

On May 8, 2013, the court stayed the Romano ag@mding further order of the court. On OctoberZ1,3, the plaintiff filed a motic
to lift the stay, which was denied by the courtrabruary 7, 2014.

Because the Federal Shareholder Derivative Litigatind the State Shareholder Derivative Litigatiwa in the early stages,
estimate of reasonably possible losses associatedeach of them, if any, cannot be made until fdets, circumstances and legal thec
relating to the plaintiffs’ claims and the defenttanlefenses are fully disclosed and analyzed. The @osnpas not established any rese
relating to these actions.
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On December 5, 2012, James Glitz and Rodger A.nkiaory, on behalf of themselves and all other sirtyilsituated stockholders, fil
a putative class action complaint in the U.S. ist€ourt for the Western District of Oklahoma agsi SandRidge Energy, Inc. and cel
current and former executive officers of the Comypdadn January 4, 2013, Louis Carbone, on behaffiokelf and all other similarly situat
stockholders, filed a substantially similar putatidass action complaint in the same court andnagéie same defendants. On March 6, Z
the court consolidated these two actions undec#mion “In re SandRidge Energy, Inc. Securitieightion” (the “Securities Litigation”anc
appointed a lead plaintiff and lead counsel. O 23], 2013, plaintiffs filed a consolidated amendechplaint, which asserts a variety of fed
securities claims against the Company and cerfaits ourrent and former officers and directors,oag other defendants, on behalf of a puti
class of (a) purchasers of SandRidge common stogkglthe period from February 24, 2011 to Novente2012, (b) purchasers of comr
units of the Mississippian Trust | in or traceataets initial public offering on or about April 12011, and (c) purchasers of common units ¢
Mississippian Trust Il (together with the Missigsign Trust |, the “Mississippian Trustst) or traceable to its initial public offering om abou
April 23, 2012. The claims are based on allegatited the Company, certain of its current and forrofficers and directors, and 1
Mississippian Trusts, among other defendants, espansible for making false and misleading statésnemd omitting material informatic
concerning a variety of subjects, including oil axadural gas reserves, the Company's capital expees] and certain transactions entered
by companies allegedly affiliated with the Companigrmer CEO Tom Ward. The defendants have filegbeetive motions to dismiss -
consolidated amended complaint, which are pendefgré the court. Because the Securities Litigat®m the early stages, an estimat
reasonably possible losses associated with itnyf aannot be made until the facts, circumstanoeslagal theories relating to the plainti
claims and defendantslefenses are fully disclosed and analyzed. The @agnfas not established any reserves relating eéoStrcuritie
Litigation. Each of the Mississippian Trusts haquested that the Company indemnify it for any lesemay incur in connection with t
Securities Litigation.

On July 15, 2013, James Hart and fifteen other wiaphentiffs filed an Amended Complaint in the UsdtStates District Court for t
District of Kansas in an action undertaken indivlly and on behalf of others similarly situated iagah SandRidge Energy, Inc., SandRi
Operating Company, SandRidge Exploration and PtomhycLLC, SandRidge Midstream, Inc., and Larian&=es, Inc. In their Amend:
Complaint, plaintiffs allege that the defendanitethto properly calculate overtime pay for theiptidfs and for other similarly situated curr:
and former employees. The plaintiffs further allebat the defendants required the plaintiffs arfteosimilarly situated current and forr
employees to engage in worltated activities without pay. The plaintiffs assgaims against the defendants for (i) violatiafighe Fair Labc
Standards Act, (ii) violations of the Kansas WaggrRent Act, (iii) breach of contract, and (iv) fcatand seek to recover unpaid wages
overtime pay, liquidated damages, statutory perglieconomic damages, compensatory and punitivagksn attorneysdees and costs, a
both pre- and post-judgment interest.

On October 3, 2013, the plaintiffs filed a Motiamr fConditional Collective Action Certification arfidr Judicial Notice to Class ant
Motion to Toll the Statute of Limitations. On Octabll, 2013, the defendants filed a Motion to D&svand a Motion to Transfer Venue to
United States District Court for the Western Dadtof Oklahoma. All of these motions are pendinfpbethe court. The Company and the ¢
defendants intend to defend this lawsuit vigoroughyis lawsuit is in the early stages and, accaiginan estimate of reasonably possible Ic
associated with this action, if any, cannot be mad#l the facts, circumstances and legal theorédating to the plaintiffs' claims and
defendants’ defenses are fully disclosed and aadlyFhe Company has not established any resenagisigeto this action.

On December 18, 2013the Company received a subpoena duces tecum frer 8. Department of Justice in connection wit
ongoinginvestigation of possible violations of antitruats in connection with the purchase or lease af,lail or gas rights. The Compan!
cooperating with the investigation.

In addition to the litigation described above, @@mpany is a defendant in lawsuits from time tcetimthe normal course of busint
While the results of litigation and claims cannetgredicted with certainty, the Company believesrétasonably possible losses of such me
individually and in the aggregate, are not mateAalditionally, the Company believes the probalialfoutcome of such matters will not hay
material adverse effect on the Company’s consditifihancial position, results of operations, cieWs or liquidity.
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16 . Equity
Preferred Stock

The following table presents information regarding Company’s preferred stock (in thousands):

December 31,

2013 2012

Shares authorized 50,00( 50,00(
Shares outstanding at end of period

8.5% Convertible perpetual preferred stock 2,65( 2,65(

6.0% Convertible perpetual preferred stock 2,00( 2,00(

7.0% Convertible perpetual preferred stock 3,00 3,00

The Company is authorized to issue 50.0 milliorretiaf preferred stock, $0.001 par value, of whichmillion shares are designa
as convertible perpetual preferred stock at Dece®be2013 and 2012 . All of the outstanding sharfethe Company convertible perpett
preferred stock were issued in private transactibasare now freely tradable, to the extent notesvby affiliates.

Each outstanding share of convertible perpetudlepes] stock is convertible at the holdeoption at any time into shares of
Companys common stock at the specified conversion ratgiestito customary adjustments in certain circumsga. Each holder is entitlec
an annual dividend payable semi-annually in casimnaon stock or a combination thereof, at the Comiaelection. After a specifi
conversion date, the Company may cause all outistgustiares of the convertible perpetual prefertedksto convert automatically into comr
stock at the theprevailing conversion rate if certain conditiong anet. The convertible perpetual preferred stockosredeemable by t
Company at any time. The following table summarinésrmation about each series of the Company’'vedible perpetual preferred stock:

Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock

8.5% 6.0% 7.0%
Liquidation preference per share $ 100.0¢ $ 100.0¢ $ 100.0(
Annual dividend per share $ 85 % 6.0 $ 7.0C
Conversion rate per share to common stock 12.480! 9.211¢ 12.879:
Conversion date to common stock at Company's ofdtjon February 20, 201 December 21, 20: November 20, 201
@ Conversion is dependent on certain factodyding the Companyg’ stock trading above specified prices for a sgbg:
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Preferred stock dividendall dividend payments to date on the Compan§:5%, 6.0% and 7.0% convertible perpetual prefestoc
have been paid in cash. Paid and unpaid dividemdsded in the calculation of (loss applicable)ome available to the Compasytommol
stockholders and the Company’s basic (loss) easreg share calculation for the years ended Dece®ihe2013 , 2012 and 20HE presente
in the accompanying consolidated statements ofapipess, are included in tables below (in thousands)

Dividends Paid Dividends Unpaid Total
Year Ended December 31, 2013
8.5% Convertible perpetual preferred stock $ 14,07¢  $ 8,447 $ 22,52t
6.0% Convertible perpetual preferred stock 6,50( 5,50( 12,00(
7.0% Convertible perpetual preferred stock 18,37¢ 2,62¢ 21,00(
Total $ 38,95 $ 16,57 $ 55,52¢
Year Ended December 31, 2012
8.5% Convertible perpetual preferred stock $ 14,07¢  $ 8,447 $ 22,52¢
6.0% Convertible perpetual preferred stock 6,50( 5,50( 12,00(
7.0% Convertible perpetual preferred stock 18,37t 2,62¢ 21,00(
Total $ 38,95 $ 16,57 $ 55,52¢
Year Ended December 31, 2011
8.5% Convertible perpetual preferred stock $ 14,07¢  $ 8,447 $ 22,52t
6.0% Convertible perpetual preferred stock 6,50( 5,50( 12,00(
7.0% Convertible perpetual preferred stock 18,43: 2,62¢ 21,05¢
Total $ 39,01 $ 16,57 $ 55,58!

Common Stock

The following table presents information regarding Company’s common stock (in thousands):

December 31,

2013 2012
Shares authorized 800,00( 800,00(
Shares outstanding at end of period 490,29( 490,35¢
Shares held in treasury 1,31¢ 1,21¢

On April 17, 2012, the Company issued approximafdly) millionshares of SandRidge common stock to satisfy thek gtortion of th:
consideration paid in the Dynamic Acquisition. S&se 3 for further discussion of the Dynamic Acdios.

Stockholder Rights Plan

On November 19, 2012, the CompanBoard adopted a stockholder rights plan pursteewhich the Board authorized and declare
stockholders of record on November 29, 2012 a dividof one preferred share purchase right (theHtRigor each outstanding share
common stock. Effective April 29, 2013, at the diien of the Board, the Company amended the stddkhaights plan to accelerate
expiration date of the Rights to April 29, 2013ukting in expiration of the Rights and terminatmfithe stockholder rights plan.
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Treasury Stock

The Company makes required statutory tax paymentsebalf of employees when their restricted stoghrds vest and then withho
a number of vested shares of common stock havingluee on the date of vesting equal to the tax akitig. The following table shows 1
number of shares withheld for taxes and the assotiealue of those shares for the years ended Dmaredd, 2013 , 2012 and 201Thes:
shares were accounted for as treasury stock wheheld, and then immediately retired.

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Number of shares withheld for taxes 5,67¢ 1,547 1,17¢
Value of shares withheld for taxes $ 30,12¢ $ 11,31 $ 10,83«

Shares of Company common stock held as assetsruistafor the Company’s nogualified deferred compensation plan are accol
for as treasury shares. These shares are not @ttlasl outstanding shares of common stock for atiogupurposes. For corporate purpo
including for the purpose of voting at Company ktaider meetings, these shares are considerecandisy and have voting rights, which
exercised by the Company.

Stockholder Receivable

On November 9, 2012, Tom L. Ward, the Companghairman and CEO at that time, and the Compatgrezhinto a settleme
agreement with a stockholder plaintiff relatingatthird-party claim under Section 16(b) of the Securitizsttange Act of 1934, as amended.
claim was filed in December 2010 and related tdagertransactions involving Company common stocterd into by Mr. Ward in 2008 a
2009. The settlement agreement found no liabilityotlher wrongdoing under Section 16(b) regarding tlansactions in question. Under
settlement agreement, Mr. Ward agreed to pay t€trapany $5.0 milliorin four installments over four years commencingdbet 2013 and
waive his rights under his indemnification agreetwith the Company with respect to this Sectiorb}&ction. The Company agreed to pay
fees of the plaintiff's lawyers and paid Mr. WartEgal expenses as required under his indemnificagreement.

Based on the nature of the settlement as well as\lrd’s position as an officer of the Company at thaetimreceivable was recort
as a component of additional paid-in capital. Ameureceivable from Mr. Ward at December 31, 2018 2812 of $3.8 million ané5.C
million , respectively, are included in the accomyag consolidated balance sheets.

Restricted Common Stock
The Company awards restricted common stock unddpiitg-term incentive compensation plan that gdiyevasts over a fouyeal
period, subject to certain conditions, and is vdlbased upon the market value of common stock end#ite of grant. Shares of restric

common stock are subject to restriction on transfkvested restricted stock awards are includethén Companys outstanding shares
common stock.

F-44




SandRidge Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Comtiied)

Restricted stock activity for the years ended Ddmm31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 was as follows (shatd®usands):

Weighted-

Number of Average Grant

Shares Date Fair Value
Unvested restricted shares outstanding at DeceBihe&010 9,47¢ % 10.8¢
Granted 8,00 % 8.9t
Vested (3,270 $ 12.91
Forfeited / Canceled (823 % 9.17
Unvested restricted shares outstanding at DeceBihe011 13,38t % 9.3¢
Granted 7,60 % 7.4¢€
Vested (4399 ¢ 10.7¢
Forfeited / Canceled (1,269 % 8.5¢
Unvested restricted shares outstanding at DeceBihe&012 15,32¢ % 8.07
Granted 7,462 % 6.32
Vested (23,395 $ 7.8t
Forfeited / Canceled (1,752 $ 7.3¢
Unvested restricted shares outstanding at Dece@ih&013 7,64: ¢ 6.97

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 diid,28e Company recognized equity compensatiorresgof $82.8 million$39.7
million , and $36.0 million , net of $5.5 million$7.5 million , and $7.6 milliortapitalized, respectively, related to restrictechomn stock
Amounts recognized during the year ended Decenthe2(@®L3 include approximately $48.5 millioecognized in connection with the separe
of certain former executives from the Company.

The total fair value of restricted stock that vestiering the years ended December 31, 2013, 20d2@11 , was $71.6 million$32.]
million and $30.2 million , respectively. As of Dmnber 31, 2013 , there was approximately $37.0anithf unrecognized compensation ¢
related to unvested restricted stock awards, wisigxpected to be recognized over a weighted agepagod of 2.3years. The Company h
approximately 9.6 million shares available for grander its existing incentive compensation plabDetember 31, 2013 .

See Note 17 for discussion of the Company’s peréme units.
17 . Incentive, Retirement and Deferred CompensatioPlans

Annual Incentive Plarin June 2013, the Compensation Committee of thepgamyis Board (the “Compensation Committeafjprove:
an annual incentive plan effective June 2013 foealployees and discontinued the Compartien existing cash bonus program with
payments under the program of approximately $10I8om made in July 2013. For certain members of managgrttenannual incentive pl
incorporates objective performance criteria, indiil performance goals and competitive target avearels for the 2013 performance year \
payout percentages ranging from 0% to 200% of fipddiarget levels based on actual performanceafA¥ecember 31, 201,3he Company h:
accrued approximately $30.2 millidar the 2013 annual incentive for all employeesuding an accrual for an annual incentive for #pest
members of management based on actual performanggaced to target levels specified in the annuegnitive plan.

Performance Unitsln July 2013, subsequent to approval by the Congigms Committee, the Company granted 31,péformanc
units to certain members of senior management utihgeCompany’s existing longrm incentive plan which vest over a performanegog
from July 2013 to December 2015. The value, aninaite payout, of the performance units is deterthibased upon the Compasytota
shareholder return relative to that of a predeteechipeer group over a specific performance pefioderformance exceeds the minim
thresholds, payout percentages could range from t60200%o0f specified target values. If minimum target ti@ds are not met, the payou
reduced to zero.
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The performance units are valued for accountingg@ses using a Monte Carlo simulation based oninesissumptions, including (i)
volatility assumption based on the historical sadi price volatility of the Comparg/’common stock and the common stock of the pradéetec
peer group and (ii) a riskee interest rate based on the U.S. Treasury ly@ids for a term commensurate with the approxinmateaining
vesting period. As of December 31, 2013, the Comead a liability of $1.8 million equal to the fair value of the portion of perfame unit
for which requisite service has been completed.fdhewing table presents a summary of the faiueabf the performance units and the rel
assumptions as of December 31, 2013 .

Expected price volatility range 27.(% - 44.8%
Risk-free interest rate 0.4%
Fair value per unit (at grant date) $ 69.3¢
Fair value per unit (at December 31, 2013) $ 97.0¢

For the year ended December 31, 2013 , the Companognized equity compensation expense of $1.6omill net of$0.2 millior
capitalized, related to performance units. Thel tiaia value of the 12,178 performance units thasted during the year endBeécember 3:
2013 was $1.2 million . There were no performanuésdorfeited during 2013. As of December 31, 20#3re was approximate$i.2 millior
of unrecognized compensation cost related to uadgstrformance units, which is expected to be ngized over a weighted average perio
2.0 years.

Deferred Compensation Plan§he Company maintains a 401(k) retirement plaritioemployees. Under the plan, eligible emplo
may elect to defer a portion of their earnings aphie maximum allowed by regulations promulgatedhsy Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”
For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 alid,28e Company made matching contributions of casbhases of Company stock to
plan equal to 100% on the first 15% of employeeedefl wages. Retirement plan expense for the yeated December 31, 2013 , 204t
2011 was approximately $11.0 million , $11.4 miiliand $7.4 million , respectively.

The Company maintains a nguoalified deferred compensation plan that allovigilee highly compensated employees to elect ter
income exceeding the IRS annual limitations onifjael 401(k) retirement plans. The Company maketchiag contributions on nogualifiec
contributions up to a maximum of 15% of employeenpensation. For the years ended December 31, 2@0D32 and 2011 employe
contributions of cash purchases of Company stock @pproximately $2.7 million , $3.5 million and.$3nillion , respectively.

Any assets placed in trust by the Company to fundré obligations of the Company’s nqoalified deferred compensation plan
subject to the claims of creditors in the eveningblvency or bankruptcy, and participants are gar@editors of the Company as to their «
deferred compensation in, and the Company’s cauttabs to, the plan.

18 . Income Taxes

The Company’s income tax provision (benefit) catesiof the following components for the years enbedember 31, 2013 , 204Ac¢
2011 (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Current
Federal $ 384: % (72 $ 61€
State 1,847 2 551
5,68¢ (74) 1,16¢
Deferred
Federal — (97,410 (6,447
State — (2,87¢) (539
— (100,289 (6,98¢)
Total provision (benefit) 5,684 (100,36 (5,819
Less: income tax provision attributable to noncalfitrg interest 30¢ 304 10¢
Total provision (benefit) attributable to SandRidgeergy, Inc. $ 537¢ $ (100,660 $ (5,926)

F-46




SandRidge Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Comtiied)

A reconciliation of the provision (benefit) for iome taxes at the statutory federal tax rate t@Cibmpanys actual income tax benefi
as follows for the years ended December 31, 2@032 and 2011 (in thousands):

2013 2012 2011
Computed at federal statutory rate $ (178,07) $ 51,17 % 54,80(
State taxes, net of federal benefit (886 8,91: 5,231
Non-deductible expenses 2,58¢ 7,245 6,394
Stock-based compensation 7,611 7,17 8,22¢
Net effects of consolidating the non-controllingeirests’ tax provisions (13,90) (37,04 (29,120
Bargain purchase gain — (42,949 —
Impairment of non-deductible goodwill — 71,88¢ —
Change in valuation allowance 188,59¢ (66,429 (51,63)
Valuation allowance release — (100,28 (5,290
Other (55¢) (34¢) (4,539

Total provision (benefit) attributable to SandRidggergy, Inc. $ 537¢ $ (100,66¢) $ (5,926

Deferred income taxes are provided to reflect tharé tax consequences of temporary differencesdset the tax basis of assets
liabilities and their reported amounts in the ficiah statements. Deferred tax assets are reducadvbjuation allowance when a determinatic
made that it is more likely than not that somelbofathe deferred assets will not be realized base the weight of all available evidence. A
December 31, 2008, the Company determined it wpsopgate to record a full valuation allowance agaits net deferred tax asset. During
year ended December 31, 2012, the Company recardeti deferred tax liability ¢$100.3 millionassociated with the Dynamic Acquisition .
released a corresponding portion of the previowstorded valuation allowance. In the second quarte2011, the Company completed
valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assumadated to the acquisition of Arena in order imafize the purchase price allocation
connection therewith, the Company adjusted theipusly recorded net deferred tax liability assamitvith the acquisition of Arena
recording an additional net deferred tax liabildafy $7.0 million and released a corresponding portion of its presijovecorded valuatic
allowance. The partial releases of the valuatibmaince in 2012 and 2011 were based on managesresgessment that it is more likely t
not that the Company will realize a benefit fromrmof its existing deferred tax assets as the Dymamd Arena deferred tax liabilities
available to offset the reversal of the Compardgeferred tax assets. Although the Company hatl ealuation allowance against its net defe
tax asset at each year December 31, 2013, 20120drid, the partial releases of the valuation adloge resulted in a deferred tax benef@@iz
and 2011 The Company continues to closely monitor all Edé evidence in making its determination for treed to maintain a valuati
allowance against its net deferred tax asset.
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Significant components of the Company’s deferredatesets and liabilities are as follows (in thowsan

December 31,

2013 2012
Deferred tax liabilities
Investments(1) $ 301,44 % 334,33:
Property, plant and equipment 180,14( 198,42:
Derivative contracts — 24.,81¢
Total deferred tax liabilities 481,58 557,57:
Deferred tax assets
Derivative contracts 3,692 —
Allowance for doubtful accounts 20,35¢ 17,71%
Net operating loss carryforwards 973,67! 859,32¢
Litigation settlement 35E 7,20C
Compensation and benefits 24,89¢ 13,93t
Alternative minimum tax credits and other carryfards 46,62« 42,24
Asset retirement obligations 147,62t 172,22¢
Under-delivery obligation 15,01: —
Other 2,801 2,19:
Total deferred tax assets 1,235,03 1,114,841
Valuation allowance (753,45) (557,26¢)
Net deferred tax liability $ — % —
@ Includes the Company’s deferred tax liabifiggulting from its investment in the Royalty TrusSee Note 4or further discussion of tl
Royalty Trusts.

As of December 31, 2013 , the Company had apprdrign&13.1 millionof alternative minimum tax credits available that
expire. In addition, the Company had approximaly6 billion of federal net operating loss carrysvéhat expire during the years 20R8ugt
2033 . Excess tax benefits of approximately $16ilBom associated with the vesting of restricted stockrdware included in the federal
operating loss carryovers, but will not be recogdias a tax benefit recorded to additional paichjpital until realized.

Internal Revenue Code (“IRC'$ection 382 addresses company ownership changespeifically limits the utilization of certe
deductions and other tax attributes on an annwss iallowing an ownership change. The Company egpeed an ownership change within
meaning of IRC Section 382 on December 31, 2008. Gnership change subjected certain of the Compaay attributes, includin§298.¢
million of federal net operating loss carryforwards, tolfR€ Section 382 limitation. The Company experiehaesubsequent ownership che
within the meaning of IRC Section 382 on July 161@ as a result of the acquisition of Arena. ThHeseguent ownership change resulted
more restrictive limitation on certain of the Comps tax attributes than with the December 31, 2008avship change. The more restric
limitation applies not only to the $298.4 millioof federal net operating loss carryforwards anda@erother tax attributes existing
December 31, 2008, but also to net operating losegpproximately $629.8 milliorand certain other tax attributes generated in de
following the December 31, 2008 ownership chande 3ubsequent limitation could result in a mateafabunt of existing loss carryforwa
expiring unused. Arena also experienced an ownerséinge on July 16, 2010 as a result of its aitimuisby the Company. This owners
change resulted in a limitation on Arena’s net afieg loss carryforwards of $119.9 milli@vailable to the Company. None of the limitati
discussed above resulted in a current federalahitity at December 31, 2013 or 2012 .
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At December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively, theng@any had a liability of approximately $1.4 millicand $1.3 millionfor
unrecognized tax benefits. If recognized, approxifye$0.9 million, net of federal tax expense, would be recordeal r@sluction of income ti
expense and would affect the effective tax rateednciliation of the beginning and ending amouniroecognized tax benefits is as follows
thousands):

December 31,

2013 2012
Unrecognized tax benefit at January 1 $ 1,33C $ 1,75¢
Changes to unrecognized tax benefits related touhent year 262 —
Changes to unrecognized tax benefits related tmayear (210 (42¢)
Unrecognized tax benefit at December 31 $ 1,382 $ 1,33(

Consistent with its policy to record interest amthglties on income taxes as a component of theriadex provision, the Company |
included approximately $(0.1) million , $0.03 noiti and $0.1 milliorof accrued gross interest with respect to unre@eghtax benefits in i
accompanying consolidated statements of operatioring the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012@ht, respectively. The Company |
a corresponding accrued liability of $0.1 millionda$0.2 million for interest and penalties relatboguncertain tax positions Btecember 3:
2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Company’s only taxing jurisdiction is the Unit8tates (federal and state). The Company’s tarsy2@10to present remain op
for federal examination. Additionally, various tggars remain open beginning with tax year 2008 to federal net operating loss carryforwe
The number of years open for state tax audits sadepending on the state, but are generally flometto fiveyears. Currently, seve
examinations are in progress. The Company doeantipate that any federal or state audits willdha significant impact on the Compasny’
results of operations or financial position. Aseauit of ongoing negotiations pertaining to the @any’s current state audits, it is reason
possible that the Company’s gross unrecognizedbenefits balance may decrease within the next svehonths by approximatel$0.€
million .
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19 . Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed using thghteei average number of common shares outstandiriggdthe period. Dilute
earnings per share are computed using the weigherdge shares outstanding during the period,Ibatirclude the dilutive effect of awards
restricted stock, using the treasury stock metlaod, outstanding convertible preferred stock. Urtbertreasury stock method, the amour
unrecognized compensation expense related to wi/asbckbased compensation grants is assumed to be usegbucchase shares at
average market price. The following table summartbe calculation of weighted average common sharesanding used in the computatio
diluted earnings per share, for the years ende@mker 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

Weighted Average  Earnings (Loss) Per
Income (Loss) Shares Share

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Year Ended December 31, 2011

Basic earnings per share $ 52,48 398,85. $ 0.1:
Effect of dilutive securities
Restricted stock — 7,79¢
Diluted earnings per share $ 52,48: 406,64 $ 0.12
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Basic earnings per share $ 86,04¢ 453,59! $ 0.1¢
Effect of dilutive securities
Restricted stock — 2,42(
Diluted earnings per share $ 86,04¢ 456,01' 3 0.1¢
Year Ended December 31, 2013
Basic loss per share $ (609,41, 481,14¢ $ (1.27)

Effect of dilutive securities
Restricted stock(1) — —
Diluted loss per share $ (609,419 481,14¢ ¢ (1.29)

Q) Restricted stock awards covering 0.5 millsirares were excluded from the computation of l@ssspare because their effect we
have been antidilutive.

In computing diluted earnings per share, the Comgamaluated the if-converted method with respedtstoutstanding 8.5% , 6.0%c¢
7.0% convertible perpetual preferred stock for ylears ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 , and 20EE .N®te 16for discussion of tt
Company'’s convertible perpetual preferred stockdésrthe ifeonverted method, the Company assumes the convesbibe preferred stock
common stock and determines if this is more dikitivan including the preferred stock dividendsd@aid unpaid) in the computation of incc
available to common stockholders. For the yeareérgecember 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , the Comgeatregymined the iEonverted methc
was antidilutive and included the 8.5%, 6.0% ar@« preferred stock dividends in the determinatibflass applicable) income available
common stockholders.

As discussed in Note 16 , the Companoard adopted a stockholder rights plan in Novam@®12 under which holders of comr
stock were issued Rights. As the contingency far@&sing these Rights had not been met as of Degeib 2012, the Companyid not
include the conversion of any Rights in its compataof diluted earnings per share for the yeareenDecember 31, 2012. The Rights exf
and the stockholder rights plan was terminatedit32
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20 . Related Party Transactions

The Company enters into transactions in the orglinaurse of business with certain related parfibgse transactions primarily con
of sales of oil and natural gas. See Note 6 an& MOfor accounts receivable and accounts payable, cégply, attributable to related pa
transactions. During the years ended December@ll3 22012 and 2011 , sales to and reimbursementsrelated parties were $1.6 millign
$12.8 million and $21.5 million respectively. These amounts primarily relateates of natural gas from the Permian Propertiesciwivere
sold in February 2013, to the Company’s partné€sRLP.

Former Chairman and CEO Severan@n June 28, 2013, Tom L. Ward separated employfnemt the Company. In accordance v
the terms of Mr. Ward’s employment agreement, thenfany paid $ 57.9 million in severance and acatgddrthe vesting of approximatedyz
million shares of restricted stock awards, resglim$36.8 millionof compensation expense, during the third quaft@0&3. Additionally, an
in accordance with the agreement, the Companypail Mr. Ward approximately $ 4.6 million in 36 mbiytinstallments beginning idanuar
2014 . See Note 16 for discussion of the stockhmoleteivable due from Mr. Ward.

Other Employee Termination BenefiBuring 2013, certain employees received terminati@mefits, including severance i
accelerated stock vesting, upon separation of aifvom the Company. Employee termination benefixsluding amounts attributable to
Company'’s former chairman and CEO, were $23.2 onilfor the year ended December 31, 2013 .

Oklahoma City Thunder AgreementBhe Companys former Chairman and CEO and one of its direct@va minority interests in
limited liability company that owns and operates tBklahoma City Thunder basketball team. The Cowpaas party to a sponsors
agreement, whereby it paid approximately $3.3 anlper year for advertising and promotional activitiegted to the Oklahoma City Thunc
which terminated with the conclusion of the 2012-2@eason.

Office Leaseln July 2012, the Company entered into a commelegde to rent space in a building owned by anyetitat is partiall
owned by one of the Company'’s directors. The tepnowide for an initial lease term of three yearshwannual rent of approximate§0.t
million . Any renovation costs paid by the Compavith respect to the leased space are applied tofutuce rent payments. As Bfecember 3:
2013 , the Company has made renovations costingpxippately $3.3 million. The terms of the lease were reviewed and approyethe
disinterested members of the Board and the Combpeligves that the rent expense to be paid unddedse is at a fair market rate.

2014 DivestitureSee Note 21 for discussion of sale of the Comma@yllf Properties to Fieldwood Energy LLC, a pditf@ompany ¢
Riverstone Holdings LLC, affiliates of which owrsignificant number of shares of the Company’s comistock.

21 . Subsequent Events

Sale of Permian Trust Unit©n January 9, 2014the Company sold the remainder of the PermiastTecammon units it owned ir
transaction exempt from registration pursuant tteR44 under the Securities Act for total proceed$22.1 million. Subsequent to the sale,
Company owned an approximate 25.0% beneficialéstdn the Permian Trust which was attributabléstownership of the subordinated units.

Royalty Trust Distributions On January 30, 2014 , the Royalty Trusts annalimgearterly distributions for the threeenth perio
ended December 31, 2013 . The following distrigiavill be paid on February 28, 201al holders of record as of the close of busines
February 14, 2014 (in thousands):

Amount to be Distributed
to Third-Party

Royalty Trust Total Distribution Unitholders
Mississippian Trust | $ 10,50¢ $ 10,24:
Permian Trust 33,67- 25,23¢
Mississippian Trust Il 24,16( 17,63:
Total $ 68,34 $ 53,11¢
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Sale of Gulf PropertieOn February 25, 2014 , the Company sold certaits gfubsidiaries that own the Compan@ulf Properties, fi
$750.0 million , subject to purchase price and {otisting adjustments, and the buyer's assumptioappfoximately $370.0 millioof relatet
asset retirement obligations to Fieldwood EnergyCLThis transaction is not expected to result isigmificant alteration of the relationsl
between the Comparg/capitalized costs and proved reserves and, angbrdthe Company will record the proceeds asducton of its ful
cost pool with no gain or loss on the sale.

Under the agreement, the Company has agreed targearcertain plugging and abandonment obligatims®ciated with the Gi
Properties to the Bureau of Ocean Energy Managefoeatperiod of up to one year from the date okirlg. The Company recorded a liab
equal to the fair value of the guarantee at theetthe transaction closed. As of December 31, 20t® fair value of the guarantee \
approximately $9.0 million As part of the agreement, the buyer has agregdigmnify the Company for any costs it may incsiaaesult of tr
guarantee. Additionally, the buyer of the Gulf Rrdfes will maintain restricted deposits, totalimygproximately $27.9 million that have bet
placed in escrow for plugging and abandonment abbgs associated with the Gulf Properties for @opeof up to one year from the clos
date. Upon expiration of the guarantee, the Competiyreceive payment for half of such restricteelpdsits, or approximatel§14.0 millior
from the purchaser.

In conjunction with the divestiture of the Gulf Pesties, the Company settled a portion of its @gsbil derivative contracts in Janu.
and February 2014 prior to their respective maeagito reduce production volumes covered by devieatontracts in proportion to t
anticipated reduction in production volumes duthtosale, which resulted in cash payments of ajpmately $69.6 million .

The following unaudited pro forma combined reswoltoperations for the year ended December 31, 20&Jresented as though
Company divested of the Gulf Properties as of Janba2013. The pro forma combined results of ofjena for the year ended December
2013 has been prepared by adjusting the histaesallts of the Company to include the historicaltes of the acquired properties and estin
of the effect of the transaction on the combinexlilts. The supplemental pro forma results of opmratare provided for illustrative purpo
only and do not purport to be indicative of theuattresults that would have been achieved hadrémsaction been in effect for the peri
presented. Future results may vary significanttyrfrthe results reflected in this pro forma finahaidormation because of future events
transactions, as well as other factors.

Year Ended December 31,

2013
(In thousands, except per share data)
(Unaudited)
Revenues $ 1,356,15;
Net loss(1) $ (1,068,66,)
Loss attributable to SandRidge Energy, Inc. comstonkholders(1) $ (1,028,05)
Loss per common share(1)
Basic $ (2.25)
Diluted $ (2.25)
@ Includes pro forma ceiling impairment of $42illion , including $80.0 million allocated to ncontrolling interest ani361.0 millior

attributable to SandRidge Energy, Inc., for therysraled December 31, 2013.

For the year ended December 31, 20fi8 Gulf Properties had associated productiorgrmees and expenses, including direct oper
expenses, depletion, accretion of asset retirereligations, and general and administrative expgnskt 10.1 MMBoe, $627.2 milliomnc
$492.0 million , respectively.

22 . Business Segment Information

The Company has thrdmisiness segments: exploration and productiorljndyribnd oil field services and midstream servicEses:
segments represent the Company’s threen business units, each offering different prasliend services. The exploration and produ
segment is engaged in the exploration and producifooil and natural gas properties and includes ghtivities of the Royalty Trusts. 1
drilling and oil field services segment is engagethe contract drilling of oil and natural gas i8ednd provides various oil field services.
midstream services segment is engaged in the minthayathering, treating and selling of naturad gad coordinates the delivery of electri
to the Company’s exploration and production operatiin the Mid€ontinent. The All Other column in the tables belmeludes items n
related to the Company’s reportable segments, ditefpthe Company’s corporate operations.
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Management evaluates the performance of the Congphuaginess segments based on income (loss) frematqns.
Summarized financial information concerning the @amy’s segments is shown in the following tabletiousands):

Exploration and Drilling and Oil Midstream Consolidated
Production(1) Field Services(2) Services(3) All Other(4) Total

Year Ended December 31, 2013
Revenues $ 1,834,481 $ 187,45¢ $ 179,98¢ % 3,127 $ 2,205,05:
Inter-segment revenue (320 (120,819 (100,529 — (221,669

Total revenues $ 1,834,161 $ 66,64. $ 79,46( $ 3,127 % 1,983,38!
Income (loss) from operations $ 62,50¢ $ (40,159 $ (21,567 $ (169,789 $ (169,00)
Interest income (expense), net 1,16¢ — (209) (271,19) (270,239
Loss on extinguishment of debt — — — (82,009 (82,009
Other income (expense), net 5,48 — (3,227) 10,18( 12,44t
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 69,16¢ $ (40,155 $ (24,999 $ (512,80¢) $ (508,799
Capital expenditures(5) $ 1,319,01. $ 7,128 % 55,70¢ % 42,04C % 1,423,88
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and

accretion $ 605,24: $ 33,29 $ 7,97 % 20,14C $ 666,64
At December 31, 2013
Total assets $ 6,157,22! $ 158,73° $ 188,16¢ $ 1,180,66! $ 7,684,79!
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Revenues $ 2,571,54. $ 379,34 % 116,65¢ $ 4,35¢ % 3,071,90
Inter-segment revenue (403 (262,717 (77,829 — (340,939

Total revenues $ 2,571,14. % 116,630 $ 38,83t % 4,35¢ $ 2,730,96!
Income (loss) from operations $ 518,14 $ 11,91 $ (73,02) $ (131,83) $ 325,19¢
Interest income (expense), net 1,28¢ — (559 (304,07¢) (303,349
Bargain purchase gain 122,69¢ — — — 122,69¢
Loss on extinguishment of debt — — — (3,079 (3,075
Other income, net 1,86¢ — — 2,87: 4,741
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 643,99: $ 11,911 % (73,58t $ (436,110 $ 146,20¢
Capital expenditures(5) $ 1,951,491 $ 27,527 $ 80,41 $ 114,55, $ 2,173,98
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and

accretion $ 598,10: $ 34,677 $ 7,18¢ $ 17,86« $ 657,83(
At December 31, 2012
Total assets $ 8,681,05( $ 199,520 $ 151,49 $ 758,66( $ 9,790,73
Year Ended December 31, 2011
Revenues $ 1,237,56! $ 390,48 $ 183,91 $ 10,53t $ 1,822,49
Inter-segment revenue (265) (287,18) (118,73) (1,100 (407,28,

Total revenues $ 1,237,300 $ 103,29¢ $ 65,18: $ 9,43¢ % 1,415,21.
Income (loss) from operations $ 521,117 $ 10,34: $ (12,97H) $ (89,470 % 429,01
Interest income (expense), net 50¢ (95) (611) (237,13Y (237,33)
Loss on extinguishment of debt — — — (38,239 (38,239
Other income (expense), net 3,601 — (485) 6 3,122
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 525,22 % 10,24¢  $ (14,07) $ (364,83) $ 156,57:
Capital expenditures(5) $ 1,697,69. $ 2567¢ $ 38,51 $ 54,61 $ 1,816,49.
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and

accretion $ 328,75. % 32,58: % 4,65C $ 14,25¢  $ 380,24«
1) Income from operations includes impairmenthaf Company’s goodwill of $235.4 million for theayreended December 31, 2012
2 For the year ended December 31, 2013, loss @perations includes impairment of $11.1 mill@ncertain drilling asse

3 For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2@k® from operations includes impairments of @empanys gas treating plants
west Texas and other midstream assets of $3.9m#lihd $59.7 million , respectively.
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4) For the year ended December 31, 2013, loss @perations includes a $2.9 million impairmenaaforporate asset and $8.3 millior
impairment of the Company’s C&2ompression facilities. For the year ended Decer@beP012 , loss from operations includekla. €
million impairment of the Company’s C&eompression facilities.

(5) On an accrual basis and exclusive of acquisit

Major Customers.For the years ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 @ititl, 2he Company had sales exceeding 10% of totahreet
the following oil and natural gas purchasers (ougands):

2013
Sales % of Revenue
Plains Marketing, L.P. $ 491,25¢ 24.8%
Shell Trading (US) Company $ 347,42: 17.5%
Atlas Pipeline Mid-Continent West OK LLC $ 211,83t 10.7%
2012
Sales % of Revenue
Occidental Petroleum Corporation $ 829,08: 30.4%
Plains Marketing, L.P. $ 426,33 15.¢%
Enterprise Crude Oil, LLC $ 394,16 14.8%
2011
Sales % of Revenue
Enterprise Crude Oil, LLC $ 319,27 22.€%
Plains Marketing, L.P. $ 276,28! 19.5%

Plains Marketing, L.P., Shell Trading (US) Compa#tlas Pipeline Mid€ontinent West OK LLC, and Enterprise Crude Oil hre
purchasers of oil, natural gas and NGLs sold byGbenpanys exploration and production segment. Sales tod@atal primarily represe
construction contract revenues recognized by tipdoeation and production segment in conjunctiorhvgitibstantial completion of the Cent
Plant.

23 . Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

The Company provides condensed consolidating fiahimformation for its subsidiaries that are gudoas of its registered debt. As
December 31, 2013 the subsidiary guarantors, which are 100% owngdhke Company, have jointly and severally guarahtem a full
unconditional and unsecured basis, the Compaoytstanding Senior Fixed Rate Notes. The 8.628fto8 Notes due 2015 and Senior Floe
Rate Notes, prior to their purchase and redempitioB011 and 2012, respectively, were also jointhy aseverally guaranteed, on a |
unconditional and unsecured basis by the subsidjaayantors. The subsidiary guarantees (i) ranlalgin right of payment with all of tt
existing and future senior debt of the subsidiargirgntors; (ii) rank senior to all of the existiagd future subordinated debt of the subsic
guarantors; (iii) are effectively subordinated ight of payment to any existing or future securbtigations of the subsidiary guarantors to
extent of the value of the assets securing sudbgathins; (iv) are structurally subordinated toggbt and other obligations of the subsidiarie
the guarantors who are not themselves subsidiaayagtors; and (v) are only released under certastomary circumstances. The Company’
subsidiary guarantors guarantee payments of pahaipd interest under the Company’s registeredsnote

The following condensed consolidating financiabimhation represents the financial information oh@idge Energy, Inc., its who
owned subsidiary guarantors and its non-guaranibsidiaries, prepared on the equity basis of adouginThe nonguarantor subsidiari
including consolidated VIEs, majority owned subaitis and certain immaterial wholly owned subsidrare included in the nguarantor
column in the tables below. The financial inforratimay not necessarily be indicative of the finahpiosition, results of operations or ¢
flows had the subsidiary guarantors operated apigndent entities.

During the three-month period ended June 30, 2818yision was identified in the Compasyresentation of changes in intercomy
advances (borrowings) in the condensed consoliglatiatement of cash flows. The intercompany adwaoerrowings) represent cash flc
between the Parent and the Guarantors and Non-@oesand are based on the Pasenéntralized treasury activities. Previously, @mmpan'
reflected the changes in intercompany advancesdivorgs) in net cash provided by (used in) opegatintivities and such changes should |
been reflected as a separate line within net ceshded
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by (used in) financing activities. The Company daded these revisions were not material individuaH in the aggregate to any of the histol
condensed consolidating financial information. Actiogly, the Company revised its condensed conabiig statements of cash flows to ret
the changes in intercompany advances (borrowingspsh flows from financing activities. These renis had no impact on the Company’
consolidated financial statements or the other ensed consolidating financial information. The se&is related to each of the Par
Guarantors and NoGuarantors associated with cash flows from opegatdictivities had corresponding offsetting impactscash flows fror
financing activities resulting in no impact to rietrease (decrease) in cash and cash equivaleatscdsh provided by (used in) opera
activities increased (decreased) and net cashdadwy (used in) financing activities decreasedréased) by the same amount as shown
table below for the historical years ended Decer3tie2012 and 2011 .

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Parent $ 945,44¢ $ 288,41!
Guarantors $ (809,099 $ (172,92)
Non-Guarantors $ (136,349 $ (115,489
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

December 31, 2013

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 805,50 $ 1,01z $ 8,14t % — % 814,66.
Accounts receivable, net — 326,34! 22,87: — 349,21¢
Intercompany accounts receivable 153,32! 982,52 70,10° (1,205,95) —
Derivative contracts — 7,79¢€ 14,74¢ (9,765 12,77¢
Prepaid expenses — 39,16¢ 88 — 39,25
Other current assets 1,37¢ 24,41( 124 — 25,91(
Total current assets 960,20t 1,381,25: 116,08! (1,215,72) 1,241,82:
Property, plant and equipment, net — 5,181,12 1,182,13. (55,589 6,307,67
Investment in subsidiaries 5,237,05 (102,849 — (5,134,20) —
Derivative contracts — 12,65( 9,58¢ (8,109 14,12¢
Other assets 61,92: 65,12: 27 (5,907) 121,17:
Total assets $ 6,259,18 $ 6,537,300 $ 1,307,820 $ (6,419,52) $  7,684,79
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $ 207,57 $ 601,07: $ 384: % — 3 812,48t
Intercompany accounts payable 967,36! 180,91( 57,01¢ (1,205,29) —
Derivative contracts — 44,03: — (9,76%) 34,26
Asset retirement obligations — 87,06: — — 87,06
Total current liabilities 1,174,93 913,07¢ 60,86( (1,215,05) 933,81
Long-term debt 3,200,80! — — (5,909 3,194,90
Derivative contracts — 28,67: — (8,109 20,56¢
Asset retirement obligations — 337,05¢ — — 337,05:
Other long-term obligations 1,382 21,44 — — 22,82¢
Total liabilities 4,377,12 1,300,24! 60,86( (1,229,06) 4,509,16
Equity
SandRidge Energy, Inc. stockholders’ equity 1,882,05! 5,237,05 1,246,96! (6,540,27) 1,825,811
Noncontrolling interest — — — 1,349,81 1,349,81
Total equity 1,882,05! 5,237,05 1,246,96! (5,190,45) 3,175,62
Total liabilities and equity $ 6,259,181 $ 6,537,300 $ 1,307,820 $ (6,419,52) $  7,684,79

F-56




Current assets

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Intercompany accounts receivable

Derivative contracts

Prepaid expenses
Restricted deposit

Other current assets
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Investment in subsidiaries

Derivative contracts

Other assets

Total assets

SandRidge Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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December 31, 2012

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $
Intercompany accounts payable

Derivative contracts

Asset retirement obligations

Deposit on pending sale

Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Derivative contracts

Asset retirement obligations
Other long-term obligations

Total liabilities

Equity

SandRidge Energy, Inc. stockholders’ equity

Noncontrolling interest

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)

$ 300,22¢ $ 92z § 8,61¢ $ — $ 309, 76¢

— 411,19° 34,30¢ — 445,50¢

2,162,47. 397,23t 683,40t (3,243,11) —

— 60,73¢ 28,48: (18,199 71,02:

= 31,13¢ 184 = 31,31¢

— 255,00( — — 255,00(

1,37¢ 24,18t 4,70¢ — 30,27:

2,464,07. 1,180,411 759,70t (3,261,31) 1,142,88!

— 7,236,68! 1,298,87 (55,585 8,479,97

5,425,90 (86,23%) — (5,339,67) —

= 15,957 33,11« (25,45 23,617

83,64: 66,51: — (5,907) 144,25

$ 797362 $ 841333 $ 2,091,69° $ (8,687,92) $ 9,790,73

261,21 $ 492,86t $ 12,467 $ — $ 766,54¢

975,57¢ 1,594,18I 671,67: (3,241,43) =

2,39¢ 30,66¢ — (18,199 14,86(

= 118,50 = = 118,50

— 255,00( — — 255,00(

= 15,54¢ = = 15,54¢

1,239,18 2,506,76! 684,13t (3,259,62) 1,170,45

4,306,98! — — (5,907) 4,301,08:

— 85,24: — (25,45 59,781

= 379,71 19¢ = 379,90t

1,32¢ 15,71: — — 17,04¢

5,547,50. 2,987,42i 684,33: (3,290,98) 5,928,27

2,426,12. 5,425,90 1,407,36 (6,890,54) 2,368,85

— — — 1,493,60: 1,493,60:

2,426,12. 5,425,90 1,407,36 (5,396,94) 3,862,45!

$ 797362 $ 841333 $ 209169 $ (8,687,92) $ 9,790,73
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Year Ended December 31, 2013

Total revenues
Expenses

Direct operating expenses
General and administrative
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

Depreciation, depletion, amortization and accretion —

Impairment

Loss on derivative contracts

Loss on sale of assets
Total expenses

(Loss) income from operations
Equity earnings from subsidiaries
Interest (expense) income, net
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Other income (expense), net
(Loss) income before income taxes

Income tax expense
Net (loss) income

Less: net income attributable to noncontrollingiast —

Net (loss) income attributable to SandRidge Enelryy, $

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)

$ — $ 167548 $ 308,30( % (399 $ 1,983,38
— 655,10: 29,14: (1,419 682,83(

32¢ 323,80¢ 6,28¢ — 330,42!
581,43! 85,21( — 666,64!

— 15,03¢ 11,24 — 26,28(

— 24,70 22,42 — 47,12

— 291,741 107,34: — 399,08t

32¢ 1,891,82 261,64 (1,419 2,152,38!
(329) (216,346 46,65: 1,021 (169,00
(188,85() 3,07¢ — 185,77! —
(271,199 95¢ — — (270,23)
(82,005 — — — (82,005
— 23,46 (3,729 (7,289 12,44¢
(542,37) (188,85() 42,92t 179,50° (508,799
5,24¢ — 44C — 5,68¢
(547,62) (188,85() 42,48 179,50° (514,479
— — 39,41( 39,41(
(547,62) $ (188,85() $ 42.48° $ 140,090 $ (553,889
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Year Ended December 31, 2012
Total revenues
Expenses
Direct operating expenses
General and administrative

Depreciation, depletion, amortization and accretion

Impairment
Gain on derivative contracts
Total expenses

(Loss) income from operations
Equity earnings from subsidiaries
Interest (expense) income
Gain on sale of subsidiary
Bargain purchase gain
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Other income, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax (benefit) expense
Net income
Less: net income attributable to noncontrollingiest
Net income attributable to SandRidge Energy, Inc.

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)

— $ 243506 $ 404,41t $ (108,51) $ 2,730,96!

— 1,393,001 146,41¢ (107,750 1,431,67.

51¢ 234,95: 7,63t (1,427) 241,68:

— 570,78t 87,04 — 657,83(

— 236,67: 79,33: — 316,00
— (198,732 (42,687 — (241,419

51¢ 2,236,68! 277,74; (209,179 2,405,76
(51%) 198,37¢ 126,67 65& 325,19¢
426,26 20,66° — (446,93) —
(303,51 728 (564) — (303,349
55,58t — — (55,58 —
— 122,69¢ — — 122,69¢
(3,079 — — — (3,075
— 83,79 — (79,05¢) 4,741
174,74¢ 426,26« 126,11: (580,91) 146,20¢
(100,80%) — 44¢ — (100,36:)
275,55 426,26« 125,66° (580,91) 246,57
— — — 105,00( 105,00(
275,55 % 426,26: $ 125,66° $ (68591) $ 141,57:
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Year Ended December 31, 2011
Total revenues
Expenses
Direct operating expenses
General and administrative

Depreciation, depletion, amortization, accretiod an

impairment
Gain on derivative contracts

Total expenses
(Loss) income from operations
Equity earnings from subsidiaries
Interest expense
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Other income, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax (benefit) expense
Net income
Less: net income attributable to noncontrollingiest

Net income attributable to SandRidge Energy, Inc.

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)

— $ 128585 $ 268,42° $ (139,069 $ 1,415,21.

— 475,57¢ 158,69° (135,71) 498,56:

41€ 144,57- 4,67(C (2,017 148,64

— 351,70¢ 31,36: — 383,06¢
= (33,749 (20,32¢) = (44,079

41€ 938,11: 184,40: (136,729 986,20(
(416) 347,74 84,02¢ (2,339 429,01
379,17 28,75 — (407,929 —
(236,109 (197) (1,026) — (237,33)
(38,23)) — — — (38,23))
— 2,88( 24z — 3,122
104,42( 379,17 83,24 (410,26 156,57:
(5,989 = 167 = (5,817
110,40 379,17 83,07 (410,26 162,38t
— — — 54,32: 54,32¢
110,40 $ 379,177 % 83,07 $ (464,59() 108,06
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

(In thousands)
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ (239,02 % 852,02t $ 254,720 % 907 $ 868,63(
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures for property, plant and eqe@ptn — (1,496,73) — — (1,496,73)
Proceeds from sale of assets — 2,566,74. 17,37: — 2,584,11!
Other — 89,60¢ 3,197 (109,83)) (17,029
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitie — 1,159,61 20,57( (109,83) 1,070,35!
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of borrowings (1,115,501 — — — (2,115,501
Premium on debt redemption (61,99)) — — — (61,99))
Distributions to owners — — (299,67 93,20¢ (206,47()
Dividends paid—preferred (55,529 — — — (55,525
Intercompany borrowings (advances), net 2,009,141 (2,018,21) 9,06¢ — —
Other (31,82) 6,66( 14,84¢ 15,71¢ 5,40:
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitie 744,30: (2,011,55) (275,76, 108,92 (1,434,08)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent 505,27" 91 477 — 504,89
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 300,22¢ 922 8,61¢ — 309,76t
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 805,50 $ 1,01 % 8,14t % — % 814,66
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Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors

Eliminations Consolidated

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2012 (Revised)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 285,56° % 264,71 % 162,28: 70,59t % 783,16(
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures for property, plant and eqe@ptn — (2,112,54) (33,82Y — (2,146,37)
Acquisitions, net of cash received (693,09) (147,649 (587,08¢) 587,08t (840,740
Proceeds from sale of assets 129,83( 942,67! 1,33¢ (642,677 431,16°
Other (61,347 278,70t — (217,36)) —
Net cash used in investing activities (624,609 (1,038,81) (619,579 (272,95() (2,555,94)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 1,850,34 — — — 1,850,34
Repayments of borrowings (350,001 — (16,029 — (366,029
Proceeds from issuance of royalty trust units — — 587,08t — 587,08t
Proceeds from the sale of royalty trust units — — — 139,36( 139,36(
Distributions to unitholders — — (274,98() 93,25: (181,72)
Dividends paid—preferred (55,525 — — — (55,525
Intercompany (advances) borrowings, net (945,449 809,09 136,34¢ — —
Other (64,127 (34,519 30,25¢ (30,259 (98,639
Net cash provided by financing activities 435,25( 774,58. 462,68¢ 202,35! 1,874,87!
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 96,21: 48k 5,387 — 102,08!
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 204,01! 437 3,22¢ — 207,68:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 300,22¢ $ 92z $ 8,61¢ — 3 309,76t
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Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
Year Ended December 31, 2011 (Revised)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 702,36¢ $ (221,99) $ (9,005 % (12,41¢) $ 458,95:
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures for property, plant and eqe@ptn — (1,726,13) (975) — (2,727,10i)
Proceeds from sale of assets — 1,776,90 26 (917,529 859,40!
Other — (2,079 (917,529 884,97. (34,629
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitie — 48,70: (918,47) (32,559 (902,329
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 2,033,001 — — — 2,033,001
Repayments of borrowings (2,123,00i) (6,302 (997) — (2,130,29)
Proceeds from issuance royalty trust units — — 917,52¢ — 917,52¢
Distributions to unitholders — — (96,669) 36,46 (60,200
Dividends paid—preferred (56,747 — — — (56,747
Intercompany (advances) borrowings, net (288,419 172,92 115,48t — —
Other (64,63¢) 6,53¢ (8,509 8,50¢ (58,100
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (499,79 173,16: 926,85: 44,97: 645,19:
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent 202,57: (227 (629 — 201,81t
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,441 564 3,85¢ — 5,86:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 204,01 % 437 $ 3,22¢ % — 207,68:
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24 . Supplemental Information on Oil and Natural Ga Producing Activities

The supplemental information includes capitalizedts related to oil and natural gas producing #i&ts; costs incurred in oil a
natural gas property acquisition, exploration amyeiopment; and the results of operations for oill aatural gas producing activiti
Supplemental information is also provided for pdtural gas and NGL production and average salesspthe estimated quantities of provec
natural gas and NGL reserves; the standardizedureea$ discounted future net cash flows associatiglal proved oil, natural gas and Nt
reserves; and a summary of the changes in theastiimdd measure of discounted future net cash flsgsciated with proved oil, natural
and NGL reserves.

Capitalized Costs Related to Oil and Natural GasdRrcing Activities

The Company’s capitalized costs for oil and natges activities consisted of the following (in teands):

December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Oil and natural gas properties
Proved $ 10,972,81 $ 12,262,92 $ 8,969,29i
Unproved 531,60t 865,86. 689,39:
Total oil and natural gas properties 11,504,42 13,128,78 9,658,68!
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion and inmgait (5,762,96) (5,231,18) (4,791,53)
Net oil and natural gas properties capitalizedscost $ 5,741,45. % 7,897,60. $ 4,867,15!

Costs Incurred in Oil and Natural Gas Property Aisition, Exploration and Development

Costs incurred in oil and natural gas property @ifjon, exploration and development activities @fhihave been capitalized
summarized as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Acquisitions of properties

Proved $ 21,13 $ 1,761,55 $ 58,19(

Unproved 100,24 377,18! 320,36:
Exploration(1) 82,77t 120,43t 98,84¢
Development(2) 1,131,26! 1,704,99 1,296,90:.
Total cost incurred $ 1,335,411 $ 3,964,170 $ 1,774,30:
1) Includes seismic costs of $6.7 million , $1million and $4.9 million for 2013 , 2012 and 20lrkspectively
(2) Includes loss on the construction of the CgnRlant of $50.0 million and $25.0 million for 2B&And 2011 , respectively. See Note 11
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Results of Operations for Oil and Natural Gas Proidig Activities (Unaudited)

The Company’s results of operations from oil antlired gas producing activities for each of the ge2013 , 2012 and 20Hte show
in the following table (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Revenues $ 1,820,270 $ 1,759,28 $ 1,226,79
Expenses
Production costs 548,71¢ 524,36: 368,94t
Depreciation and depletion 567,73 568,02¢ 317,24t
Accretion of asset retirement obligations 36,77 28,99¢ 9,36¢
Total expenses 1,153,22 1,121,38 695,56(
Income before income taxes 667,05( 637,89. 531,23
Benefit of income taxes(1) (7,47 (437,59 (20,139
Results of operations for oil and natural gas peauyactivities (excluding corpora
overhead and interest costs) $ 67452 $ 107548 ¢ 551,36t
@ Reflects the Comparg/effective tax rate, including the partial valoatallowance releas:

Oil, Natural Gas and NGL Reserve Quantities (Unsed)i

Proved oil, natural gas and NGL reserves are thosatities, which, by analysis of geoscience arginerring data, can be estime
with reasonable certainty to be economically prdalec based on prices used to estimate reserves) & given date forward from kno
reservoirs, and under existing economic conditiopgrating methods, and government regulation poidhe time at which contracts provid
the right to operate expire, unless evidence indicthat renewal is reasonably certain.

The term “reasonable certaintyfiplies a high degree of confidence that the gtiastof oil, natural gas and NGLs actually recod
will equal or exceed the estimate. To achieve mealsie certainty, the Compaisyengineers and independent petroleum consultali¢sl ror
technologies that have been demonstrated to yéslats with consistency and repeatability. Thene@tgies and economic data used to esti
the Companys proved reserves include, but are not limiteduel] logs, geologic maps, seismic data, well tegadproduction data, histori
price and cost information and property ownershiprests. The accuracy of the reserve estimatgspisndent on many factors, including
following:

» the quality and quantity of available data andghgineering and geological interpretation of thett

» estimates regarding the amount and timing of fubests, which could vary considerably from actuets
« the accuracy of mandated economic assumptionsasuttie future prices of oil, natural gas and NGlr&
» the judgment of the personnel preparing the estia

Proved developed reserves are proved reservestegpecbe recovered through existing wells withsBrg equipment and operat
methods or in which the cost of the required eqeiphis relatively minor compared with the cost afeav well. Proved undeveloped reserve!
reserves that are expected to be recovered fromasdls on undrilled acreage, or from existing wellsere a relatively large major expendi
is required for recompletion.

The table below represents the Company’s estimfgaved oil, natural gas and NGL reserves atteble to the Compang’ne
interest in oil and natural gas properties, allvbich are located in the continental United Stabased upon the evaluation by the Compan)
its independent petroleum engineers of pertinemisgence and engineering data in accordance wahSHECS regulations. Estimates
substantially all of the Comparsyproved reserves have been prepared by indeperatamtoir engineers and geoscience professiondlsia
reviewed by members of the Compasgenior management with professional training étrgeum engineering to ensure that the Com
consistently applies rigorous professional starslard! the reserve definitions prescribed by the.SEC
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Cawley, Gillespie & Associates, Inc., (“CG&A”), Netrland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. (“Netherland 8Ky and Lee Keeling ar
Associates, Inc. (“Lee Keeling”)ndependent oil and natural gas consultants, peeptire estimates of proved reserves of oil, naigaal an
NGLs attributable to the majority of the Comp’s net interest in oil and natural gas propertie®fthe end of one or more of 2013 , 2@t2
2011. CG&A, Netherland Sewell, and Lee Keeling are peledent petroleum engineers, geologists, geopbysiand petrophysicists and do
own an interest in the Company or its propertigbane not employed on a contingent basis. CG&ANeitherland Sewell prepared the estim
of proved reserves for a majority of the Comparpreperties as of December 31, 2013 . The remaib®1§%of estimates of proved reser
was based on Company estimates.

The Company believes the geoscience and engineddtsy examined provides reasonable assurance hbgbroved reserves i
economically producible in future years from knoveservoirs, and under existing economic conditi@pgrating methods and governme
regulations. Estimates of proved reserves are sulje change, either positively or negatively, aslitonal information is available a
contractual and economic conditions change.

2011 Activity.During 2011, excluding asset sales, the Companggrézed an overall net increase in its proved egerves (
approximately 37.6 MMBBbils, primarily due to additad reserves of 52.MIMBbls from extensions and discoveries associatéll successfi
drilling in the Mississippian formation in the Midentinent and the Central Basin Platform in then®an Basin, offset by 10.MMBbls of
production during 2011. Additionally, the Compamcognized an overall net increase of 6B in its proved natural gas reserve quani
primarily due to 299.8 Bcf attributable to extemsiand discoveries associated with successfuindyilh the Mississippian formation in the Mid-
Continent and the Central Basin Platform in thenkan Basin, offset by revisions of 16488f, primarily due to lower natural gas prices,
production of 69.3 Bcf. Continued low natural gaisgs could result in additional negative revisitmshe Company’s natural gas reserves.

Sales of proved reserves during 2011 totaled 1RB/Boe primarily from the divestitures of certainrRean Basin properties and €
Texas properties.

2012 Activity.During 2012, excluding asset sales, the Comparggrezed an overall net increase in its proved i BIGL reserves
approximately 67.9 MMBbls and 40MMBBbls, respectively, primarily due to additionalserves from extensions and discoveries associdtie
successful drilling in the Mississippian formatiorthe Mid-Continent area and the Central Basin Platform énRbrmian Basin. These incre:
to proved oil reserves were slightly offset by dewand revisions of 22.3 MMBbIs due to well performarin the Mid€ontinent and Permii
Basin during 2012. Additionally, the Company redagd an overall net increase of 6@&f in its proved natural gas reserve quantitiésarily
due to 489.3 Bcf attributable to extensions andalisries associated with successful drilling inMississippian formation in the Mi@ontinen
and the Central Basin Platform in the Permian BaBirese increases were partially offset by downwavisions of 538.8cf, primarily due t
lower natural gas prices, and, to a lesser extem,to well performance in the Midentinent and Permian Basin during 2012 and préciuct
93.5 Bcf. Continued low natural gas prices coultliliein additional negative revisions to the Compsimatural gas reserves.

Sales of proved reserves during 2012 totaled 23/Bbk from the divestiture of the Company’s tertiaggovery properties.

2013 Activity.The Company sold its Permian Properties in Febr@@fa. Proved reserves were 198.9 MMBoe, 585%vhich wer:
proved developed reserves, for the Permian Pregeati December 31, 201Estimated standardized measure of discountedftmash for the
Permian Properties, determined by allocating then@any's standardized measure of discounted casi flm the Permian Properties base
the present value of discounted cash flows atitletto the Permian Properties relative to the Gomis total present value of discounted
flows was $2.5 billion . See Note 3 for additioir#brmation regarding the sale. The Company recghian increase of 119\2MBoe in tota
reserves primarily attributable to extensions amtaVeries associated with successful drilling hie Mississippian formation in the Mid-
Continent.
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The summary below presents changes in the Compastiieated reserves for 2011 , 2012 and 2013 .

oil NGL Natural Gas
(MBbls) (MBbls) (MMcf)(L)
Proved developed and undeveloped reserves
As of December 31, 2010 205,02: 47,09: 1,762,66!
Revisions of previous estimates (6,159 (3,119 (164,84")
Acquisitions of new reserves 1,30¢ 224 2,90¢
Extensions and discoveries 52,40¢ 3,171 299,84
Sales of reserves in place (28,137 (15,199 (476,215
Production (9,997) (1,83¢) (69,30¢)
As of December 31, 2011(2) 214,45( 30,33¢ 1,355,05!
Revisions of previous estimates (37,399 15,09¢ (538,21
Acquisitions of new reserves 31,47( 683 202,99!
Extensions and discoveries 89,65¢ 27,25¢ 489,30:
Sales of reserves in place (20,269 (3,287 (54¢)
Production (15,869 (2,099 (93,549
As of December 31, 2012(2) 262,04! 67,99 1,415,04.
Revisions of previous estimates (13,969 3,71 (53,43)
Acquisitions of new reserves 43 13 362
Extensions and discoveries 40,57( 18,68¢ 359,91¢
Sales of reserves in place (131,769 (29,067 (228,229
Production (14,279 (2,29 (103,23
As of December 31, 2013(2) 142,64. 59,05 1,390,42'
Proved developed reserves
As of December 31, 2010 73,11: 18,85« 784,29:
As of December 31, 2011 101,57¢ 17,15( 670,38:
As of December 31, 2012 136,60! 33,78t 896,70:
As of December 31, 2013 83,89: 35,801 951,60¢
Proved undeveloped reserves
As of December 31, 2010 131,91: 28,231 978,37:
As of December 31, 2011 112,87. 13,18¢ 684,67:
As of December 31, 2012 125,44( 34,20¢ 518,34:
As of December 31, 2013 58,74¢ 23,24t 438,82
(1) Natural gas reserves are computel4.65 pounds per square inch absolute andie§@ees Fahrenhe
(2 Includes proved reserves attributable to natrotling interests at December 31, 2013, 2012201las shown in the table belc
December 31,
2012 2011
Oil (MBbl) 13,56¢ 17,34( 17,01¢
NGL (MBDblI) 4,737 5,13 1,782
Natural gas (MMcf) 69,69: 94,54: 45,50(
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Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Gdals (Unaudited)

The standardized measure of discounted cash flodsammary of the changes in the standardized measmputation from year

year are prepared in accordance with Accountingdatals Codification Topic 932, Extractive Active—Oil and Gas (“ASC Topic 932")The
assumptions underlying the computation of the stedided measure of discounted cash flows may bensuired as follows:

» the standardized measure includes the Compaastimate of proved oil, natural gas and NGL reserand projected futL
production volumes based upon economic conditions;

» pricing is applied based upon 12-month averageket prices at December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2fjdsted for fixed ¢
determinable contracts that are in existence ateged. The calculated weighted average per unieprfor the Compang’provel
reserves and future net revenues were as follows:

At December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Qil (per barrel) $ 95.67 $ 91.6t $ 91.1
NGL (per barrel) $ 314C % 32.6¢ $ 46.:
Natural gas (per Mcf) $ 3.6 % 22¢ % 4.(

» future development and production costs areraéted based upon actual cost at yead
» the standardized measure includes projectiofistofe abandonment costs based upon actual dogtsigend; an

» adiscount factor of 10% per year is applied arlpualthe future net cash flov

The summary below presents the Compariyture net cash flows relating to proved oil,unat gas and NGL reserves based or

standardized measure in ASC Topic 932 (in thougands

At December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Future cash inflows from production $ 19,937,48 $ 29,482,554 % 26,494,94
Future production costs (6,843,71) (8,899,46) (7,392,10)
Future development costs(1) (2,546,68) (4,021,05) (2,977,99)
Future income tax expenses (2,283,54) (3,721,50) (4,043,95)
Undiscounted future net cash flows 8,263,55! 12,840,51 12,080,89
10% annual discount (4,245,93) (7,000,15) (6,864,55)
Standardized measure of discounted future netftash(2) $ 4,017,61 $ 5,840,361 $ 5,216,33

(1)
(@)

Includes abandonment co

Includes approximately $781.6 million , $95#iflion and $932.8 million attributable to noncooiting interests at December 31, 2013
2012 and 2011 respectively.
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The following table represents the Compangstimate of changes in the standardized meaédiscounted future net cash flows fr
proved reserves (in thousands):

Present value as of December 31, 2010 $ 3,683,51!
Changes during the year
Revenues less production and other costs (857,849
Net changes in prices, production and other costs 1,264,73
Development costs incurred 575,54t
Net changes in future development costs 87,08(
Extensions and discoveries 1,812,16'
Revisions of previous quantity estimates (345,96
Accretion of discount 455,50:
Net change in income taxes (833,84)
Purchases of reserves in-place 44,93
Sales of reserves in-place (558,25
Timing differences and other(1) (111,23)
Net change for the year 1,532,82;
Present value as of December 31, 2011(2) 5,216,33
Changes during the year
Revenues less production and other costs (1,234,91)
Net changes in prices, production and other costs (2,555,39)
Development costs incurred 766,94.
Net changes in future development costs (45,39)
Extensions and discoveries 2,092,42.
Revisions of previous quantity estimates (530,75Y
Accretion of discount 678,20(
Net change in income taxes 11,43
Purchases of reserves in-place 1,708,30.
Sales of reserves in-place (410,414
Timing differences and other(1) 143,60
Net change for the year 624,03:
Present value as of December 31, 2012(2) 5,840,36!
Changes during the year
Revenues less production and other costs (1,271,55)
Net changes in prices, production and other costs 271,56t
Development costs incurred 474,27"
Net changes in future development costs (207,729
Extensions and discoveries 1,406,10:
Revisions of previous quantity estimates (296,419
Accretion of discount 711,38!
Net change in income taxes 477,32
Purchases of reserves in-place 1,62¢
Sales of reserves in-place (3,172,18)
Timing differences and other(1) (217,149
Net change for the year (1,822,75)
Present value as of December 31, 2013(2) $ 4,017,61.
@ The change in timing differences and otheral&ed to revisions in the Compasgstimated time of production and developn
2 Includes approximately $781.6 million , $95fiflion and $932.8 million attributable to noncuoiting interests at December 31, 2013

2012, and 2011 respectively.
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25 . Quarterly Financial Results (Unaudited)

The Company’s operating results for each quart@0af3 and 2012 are summarized below (in thousaxdgpt per share data).

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2013
Total revenues $ 511,69( $ 512,98° $ 493,60: $ 465,10¢
(Loss) income from operations(1)(2)(3) $ (359,52() $ 86,45¢ $ 6,08¢ $ 97,97¢
Net (loss) income(1)(2)(3) $ (531,259 $ 24,688 $ (57,009 $ 49,09;

(Loss applicable) income available to SandRidgerdgndnc.
common stockholders(1)(2)(3) $ (493,22) $ (34,31) $ (87,07) $ 5,19¢

(Loss applicable) income available per share taRaige
Energy, Inc. common stockholders(4)

Basic $ (1.05) $ (0.07) $ (0.1¢) $ 0.01
Diluted $ (1.09) ¢ 0.09) ¢ 0.1¢) ¢ 0.01
2012
Total revenues $ 381,63 $ 478,43: $ 532,79t $ 1,338,09!
(Loss) income from operations(5)(6) $ (151,65¢) $ 762,410 3% (75,87) $ (209,69()
Net (loss) income(5)(6)(7) $ (216,229 $ 917,07¢ $ (159,75) $ (294,529
(Loss applicable) income available to SandRidgerdgndnc.
common stockholders(5)(6)(7) $ (232,059) $ 804,19: $ (184,30) $ (301,789
(Loss applicable) income available per share ta@Raige
Energy, Inc. common stockholders(4)
Basic $ (0.5¢) $ 174 $ (0.39) $ (0.69)
Diluted $ (0.5¢) ¢ 14¢ $ 0.39) ¢ (0.69)
(1) Includes a $10.6 million impairment of variadidlling assets and a $2.9 milliampairment of a corporate asset in the second gual
2013 and a $2.1 million and $10.0 millianpairment of certain midstream inventory, natgas compressors, gas treating plants i
CO,compression station in the second and fourth queaotfe2013, respectively.
2 Includes loss (gain) on commodity derivatiwmtracts of $40.9 million , $(103.7) million , $182million and $(22.9) milliorfor the
first, second, third and fourth quarters, respetyiv
3 Includes loss on sale of Permian Propertieg388.9 millionin the first quarter of 201
4) (Loss applicable) income available per sharedmmon stockholders for each quarter is compusit the weightedverage numb
of shares outstanding during the quarter, whil@iags per share for the fiscal year is computedgitie weightedwerage number
shares outstanding during the year. Thus, the $yfoss applicable) income available per sharedtmmon stockholders for each of
four quarters may not equal the fiscal year amount.
(5) Includes a $235.4 million goodwill impairmeamd a $79.3 million impairment of gas treating pdaand CQO, compression facilities
the fourth quarter of 2012.
(6) Includes loss (gain) on commodity derivatiemiracts of $254.6 million , $(669.9) million , 9 million and $(19.6) milliorfor the
first, second, third and fourth quarters, respetyiv
@) Includes adjustments of $(4.8) millioetrospectively applied to the second quarter af22@s a result of measurement pe

adjustments made to the preliminary purchase atloeation for the Dynamic Acquisition in the foruarter of 2012.
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ARTICLE 1. INTRODUCTION
1.1. Purpose of the Plan.

The Plan is intended to enhance the Company’syaluliattract, retain and motivate employees, effi¢ directors,
consultants, and advisors of the Company, andawigke them with equity ownership opportunities aedformance-
based incentives that are intended to align thégrésts with those of the Company’s stockholders.

1.2. Nature of Awards.

The Plan is intended to permit the grant of Stopki@hs, Stock Appreciation Rights, shares of Res&d Stock,
Restricted Stock Units, and any other form of awzasged on the value (or the increase in valueharfes of the commc
stock of the Company. The Plan is also intendqmktonit cash incentive awards. Subject to SectibnRarticipants she
vest in their Awards granted under the Plan toetttent certain conditions set forth in their Aw&drtificate are met.
Vesting criteria shall include the passage of ton¢he attainment of individual and/or Company perfance objectives,
or a combination of both. Except as otherwise gtediby the Plan, each Award may be made aloneamtdition or in
relation to any other Award. The terms of each Alvaged not be identical, and the Compensation Ctteemeed not
treat Participants uniformly.

1.3. Effective Date and Term of Plan.

The Plan is effective as of June 5, 2009. No Awatuasdl be granted under the Plan after June 4, gi¥1uch earlier
date as may apply under section 422 of the Codé)aWwards previously granted may extend beyond diage.

ARTICLE 2. DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION
2.1. Definitions.

When used in this 2009 Incentive Plan, the follayierms shall have the meanings set forth belovessrthe context
clearly requires a different meaning:

(@)  “Article ” means an article of the PI
(b)  “Award " means an award issued under the |
(c) “ Award Certificate” means the agreement, certificate or other documedéncing an Award, which

shall be in such form (written, electronic or othisse) as the Compensation Committee shall determine
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(d)  “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Comp

(e) “Change in Control shall mean, except to the extent provided otherimiskee Award Certificate

() Effective for Awards granted before July 1, 2(

(A)  the acquisition by any individual, entity orogip (within the meaning of section 13(d)(3) ord)}4(
(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atadr(the “Exchange Act”)) (a “Person”), other
than Tom L. Ward or his affiliates (the “Exempt &ans”), of beneficial ownership (within the
meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Exchaxa) of 40% or more of either (I) the then-
outstanding shares of the Company’s common stbek“@utstanding Company Common Stock”
or (Il) the combined voting power of the thentstanding voting securities of the Company exd
to vote generally in the election of directors (t@aitstanding Company Voting Securities”). For
purposes of this subparagraph (A), the followinguasitions by a Person will not constitute a
Change in Control: (i) any acquisition directlyrindhe Company; (ii) any acquisition by the
Company; or (iii) any acquisition by any employeméfit plan (or related trust) sponsored or
maintained by the Company or any entity controbgdhe Company;

(B) the individuals who, as of the Effective Datenstitute the Board (the “Incumbent Board”) cease
for any reason to constitute at least a majoritthefBoard. Any individual becoming a director
subsequent to the Effective Date whose electionparination for election by the Company’s
stockholders, is approved by a vote of at leasaprity of the directors then comprising the
Incumbent Board will be considered a member ofticembent Board as of the Effective Date,
but any such individual whose initial assumptiorofiice occurs as a result of an actual or
threatened election contest with respect to thetiele or removal of directors or other actual or
threatened solicitation of proxies or consents bhgrobehalf of a person other than the Incumbent
Board will not be deemed a member of the IncumBertrd as of the Effective Date;

(C)  the consummation of a reorganization, mergmsolidation or sale or other disposition of all o
substantially all of the assets of the CompanyB(asiness Combination”), unless following such
Business Combination: (I) the individuals and ésditvho were the beneficial owners,
respectively, of the Outstanding Company CommokSamd Outstanding Company Voting
Securities immediately prior to such Business Comatidon beneficially own, directly or indirectly,
more than 60% of, respectively, the then-outstapdhimares of common stock and the combined
voting power of the then-outstanding voting se@esientitled to vote generally in the election of
directors, as the case may be, of the entity iegultom such Business Combination (including,
without
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limitation, a corporation that as a result of strelmsaction owns the Company or all or
substantially all of the Company’s assets eithexatly or through one or more subsidiaries) in
substantially the same proportions to one anothéner ownership, immediately prior to such
Business Combination of the Outstanding Company i@omStock and Outstanding Company
Voting Securities, as the case may be, (lI) nodte(excluding any entity resulting from such
Business Combination or any employee benefit ppamelated trust) of the Company or such
entity resulting from such Business Combinatiomeothan one or more of the Exempt Persons
beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 40% orone of, respectively, the then-outstanding shares
of common stock of the entity resulting from sualsBiess Combination or the combined voting
power of the then-outstanding voting securitieswath entity except to the extent that such
ownership existed prior to the Business Combinagiod (111) at least a majority of the members
the Board resulting from such Business Combinatiere members of the Incumbent Board at the
time of the execution of the initial agreementpbthe action of the Board, providing for such
Business Combination; or

(D)  The approval by the stockholders of the Comypafra complete liquidation or dissolution of the
Company.

(2) Effective for Awards granted on or after July 113

(A)  The acquisition by any individual, entity arogip (within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) ord}4(
(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atadr(the “Exchange Act”)) (a “Person”) of
beneficial ownership (within the meaning of Ruleld8promulgated under the Exchange Act) of
40% or more of either (I) the then-outstanding shaf the Company’s common stock (the
“Outstanding Company Common Stock”) or (1) the doned voting power of the then-
outstanding voting securities of the Company esditb vote generally in the election of directors
(the “Outstanding Company Voting Securities”). parposes of this subparagraph (A) the
following acquisitions by a Person do not constitatChange in Control: (i) any acquisition
directly from the Company; (ii) any acquisition the Company; or (iii) any acquisition by any
employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsoredaintained by the Company or any entity
controlled by the Company;

(B)  The individuals who, as of June 30, 2013, titute the Board (the “Incumbent Board”) cease for
any reason to constitute at least a majority ofBbard. Any individual becoming a director
subsequent to June 30, 2013, whose election, oination for election by the Company’s
stockholders, is approved by a vote of at leasapnty of the directors then comprising the
Incumbent Board is considered a member of the IhemnnBoard as of June 30, 2013, but any
such individual whose initial assumption of officecurs after June 30, 2013, as a result of an

SandRidge 2009 Incentive Plan, as amended on J@@1B Page 4




actual or threatened election contest with resjgettte election or removal of directors or other
actual or threatened solicitation of proxies orsemts by or on behalf of a Person other than the
Incumbent Board is not deemed a member of the IbemtBoard as of June 30, 2013;

(C)  The consummation of a reorganization, mergamsolidation or sale or other disposition of all o
substantially all of the assets of the CompanyB(asiness Combination”), unless following such
Business Combination: (I) the individuals and ésditvho were the beneficial owners,
respectively, of the Outstanding Company Commoksand Outstanding Company Voting
Securities immediately prior to such Business Comatidon beneficially own, directly or indirectly,
more than 60% of, respectively, the then-outstapdhmares of common stock and the combined
voting power of the then-outstanding voting seasientitled to vote generally in the election of
directors, as the case may be, of the entity iegultom such Business Combination (including,
without limitation, a corporation that as a regiflsuch transaction owns the Company or all or
substantially all of the Company’s assets eithexatly or through one or more subsidiaries) in
substantially the same proportions to one anothéhneir ownership, immediately prior to such
Business Combination of the Outstanding Company i@omStock and Outstanding Company
Voting Securities, as the case may be, (lI) nodte(excluding any entity resulting from such
Business Combination or any employee benefit ptarelated trust of the Company or such entity
resulting from such Business Combination) bendfic@avns, directly or indirectly, 40% or more
of, respectively, the then-outstanding shares ofrnon stock of the entity resulting from such
Business Combination or the combined voting poviéhe then-outstanding voting securities of
such entity except to the extent that such ownprskisted prior to the Business Combination and
(111) at least a majority of the members of the Bbeesulting from such Business Combination
were members of the Board at the time of the exatwlf the initial agreement, or of the action of
the Board of Directors, providing for such Busin€ssnbination; or

(D)  The approval by the stockholders of the Conypafra complete liquidation or dissolution of the
Company.

() “ Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amy
(90 “Company” means SandRidge Energy, |

(h) “ Compensation Committéeshall mean the Compensation Committee of the B

0] “ Disability ” shall mean a disability within the meaning of teddral Social Security A
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@)
(k)

(M

(m)
(n)
(0)
()
(@)
(r

(s)

(t)

“ Effective Date” means the first date set forth in Section

“ Employee Benefits Committemeans the Company’Employee Benefits and Compensation Comimr
or any successor to such committee.

“ Fair Market Value’ means the closing sales price (for the primaagitng session) of a Share on the
relevant date. For any date that is not a tradayg the Fair Market Value of a Share for such daliebe
determined by using the closing sale price foritm@ediately preceding trading day. The Compensation
Committee can substitute a particular time of dagtbher measure of “closing sale price” if apprafei
because of unusual circumstances or can use wdighiezages either on a daily basis or such longer
period as complies with section 409A of the Code.

“Plan " means this 2009 Incentive PI

“ Restricted Stock means an Award granted pursuant to Sectiot

“ Restricted Stock Unit means an Award granted pursuant to Sectiol

“ Section” means a section of the Pl
“ Share” means a share of common stock of the Company, $@&0share par vall

“ Stock Appreciation Right means an Award granted pursuant to Sectiol

“ Stock Option” means an Award granted pursuant to Section 6.fgck ®ption can be either an
“Incentive Stock Option” (if it complies with thequirements of Section 6.1(b)) or a “Nonqualifiedck
Option” or “Nonstatutory Stock Option” (if it doe®t comply with the requirements of Section 6.1(b))

“ Ten Percent Stockholdérmeans a Participant who on the date of grant &dceunder section 424(d)

of the Code as owning stock (not including stockchasable under outstanding options) possessing mor
than 10% of the total combined voting power ofcédisses of the stock of the Company or any parent o
subsidiary of the Company as defined in section(&@dr (f) of the Code.

2.2. Construction.

When used in the Plan, (a) the terms “include” ‘anduding” shall be deemed to include the phralet‘not limited to”
and (b) masculine pronouns shall include the femeini

ARTICLE 3. ELIGIBILITY

3.1. In General.
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Any natural person is eligible to be granted an Adn&such individual is a current employee, officéirector,
consultant, or advisor of the Company or any ofGenpany’s present or future parent or subsidiarparations as
defined in sections 424(e) or (f) of the Code or ather business venture (including, without lirtida, a joint venture «
limited liability company) in which the Company hasontrolling interest, as determined by the Camspgon
Committee.

ARTICLE 4. ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN
4.1. In General.

(@ The Plan will be administered by the Compeaasafommittee. The Compensation Committee shaléhav
authority to grant Awards and determine recipiemd terms of any Awards, and to adopt, amend and
repeal such administrative rules, guidelines aagtpres relating to the Plan as it shall deem adigs

(b) The Compensation Committee shall have fultr@disonary authority to construe and interprettdrens of
the Plan and any Award Certificate, and to deteenaithfacts necessary to administer the Plan agd an
Award Certificate. The Compensation Committee nayexct any defect, supply any omission or
reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan or any Alv@ertificate in the manner and to the extentatlish
deem necessary or advisable.

(c) All decisions by the Compensation Committealldbe made in its sole discretion and shall balfand
binding on all persons having or claiming any iagtrin the Plan or in any Award. No director orgoer
acting pursuant to the authority delegated by thm@ensation Committee shall be liable for any actio
determination relating to or under the Plan madgoiod faith.

(d) With respect to Awards made to directors,Bbard shall also have the authority described i $fection
4.1 and Section 8.5.

4.2. Delegation to Committees and Officers.

€) To the extent permitted by applicable law, @mempensation Committee may delegate any or atié of
powers under the Plan to one or more committesstocommittees of the Company’s management,
including the Employee Benefits Committee.

(b) To the extent permitted by applicable law anbject to any limitations under the Plan, the Cengation
Committee may delegate to one or more officerfief@ompany the power (1) to grant Awards to any
individual eligible under Section 3.1 other thadi@ctor or executive officer and (2) to exercigers
other powers under the Plan as the Compensatiomiittee may determine; provided further, however,
that no officer shall be authorized to grant Awagimself or herself.

SandRidge 2009 Incentive Plan, as amended on J@1B Page 7




()

For purposes of this Section 4.2(b), the phrasecetive officer” shall mean the Chief Executive iCdf,
President, and any Executive Vice President ordafice President.

All references in the Plan to the “Compensattmmmittee”shall mean the Compensation Committee
committee of the Board (or the Company’s managenaerihe officers referred to in Section 4.2(bjhe
extent that the Compensation Committee’s powessitrority under the Plan have been delegated to suc
committee or officers.

ARTICLE 5. STOCK SUBJECT TO THE PLAN

5.1. Number of Shares.

(d)

(e)

Subject to adjustment under ARTICLE 7, Awamasy be made under the Plan for up to 28,500,000
Shares, of which 28,500,000 shares can be issuedestive Stock Options.

If any Award expires or is terminated, surrened or canceled without having been fully exertise
forfeited in whole or in part, or results in anya®s not being issued, the unused Shares coversathy
Award shall again be available for the grant of Adgunder the Plan. Further, Shares tendered to the
Company by a Participant to exercise an Award slefidded to the number of Shares available for the
grant of Awards under the Plan. However, in theeaddncentive Stock Options, the foregoing provis
shall be subject to any limitations under the C@&leares issued under the Plan may consist in vdnate
part of authorized but unissued shares or treashages.

5.2. Substitute Awards.

(@)

(b)

In connection with a merger or consolidatidéam entity with the Company or the acquisitiontbg
Company of property or stock of an entity, the Cengation Committee may grant Awards in substitt
for any options or other stock or stock-based awgrdnted by such entity or an affiliate thereof.
Substitute Awards may be granted on such termsea€dmpensation Committee deems appropriate
circumstances.

Substitute Awards shall not count againstaerall share limit set forth in Section 5.1, exXcap may be
required by reason of section 422 and related piavs of the Code.

ARTICLE 6. TYPES OF AWARDS

6.1. Stock Options.

()

In General.The Compensation Committee may grant options tolage Shares and determine the
number of Shares to be covered by each optiorexbecise
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price of each option and the conditions and lirotad applicable to the exercise of each optioruating
conditions relating to applicable federal or steurities laws, as it considers necessary or alolgsA
Stock Option that is not intended to be an Incen8tock Option shall be designated as a “Nonstatuto
Stock Option” or a “Nonqualified Stock Option.”

(d) Incentive Stock Option

(2) A Stock Option that the Compensation Commiitéends to be an Incentive Stock Option shall
only be granted to employees of the Company oradutlye Company’s present or future parent or
subsidiary corporations as defined in sections&@di( (f) of the Code, and any other entities the
employees of which are eligible to receive Incemt8tock Options under the Code, and shall be
subject to and construed consistently with the irequents of section 422 of the Code.

(2) A Stock Option that is intended to be an Ins@enStock Option shall be treated as a Nonqualifie
Stock Option to the extent that, in the calendar ye which the Award is first exercisable, the
aggregate Fair Market Value of the Shares subjeittet Award (when added to other awards
granted to the same individual that are intenddaktincentive Stock Options under the Plan ol
other plan maintained by the Company and certditte® corporations) exceeds $100,000 or such
other limitation as might apply under section 42#he Code.

3) The Company shall have no liability to a Raptant, or any other party, if a Stock Option (oy a
part thereof) that is intended to be an IncentitaelSOption is not an Incentive Stock Option, or
for any action taken by the Compensation Committestiding without limitation the conversion
of an Incentive Stock Option to a Nonstatutory tOption.

(e) Exercise Price

() The Compensation Committee shall establistexsecise price of each Stock Option and specify
the exercise price in the applicable Award Cexdiiéc

(2)  The exercise price of a Stock Option intended taréncentive Stock Option shall not be less
100% of the Fair Market Value on the date the StOpkion is granted, except that, if any
Incentive Stock Option is granted to a Ten Per&otkholder, the exercise price shall not be less
than 110% of the Fair Market Value of the Sharetherdate such Incentive Stock Option is
granted. The 100% and 110% limitation in this Set6.1(c)(2) shall automatically adjust to the
extent required by section 422 of the Code.
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() Term of Stock Option

(2) Each Stock Option shall be exercisable at $inehs and subject to such terms and conditions as
the Compensation Committee may specify in the apple Award Certificate; except that no
Stock Option shall be granted for a term of moenthO years. Incentive Stock Options issued to :
Ten Percent Stockholder shall not have a term gértlan 5 years.

(2)  No Stock Option shall permit the Participant toesteEceipt of compensation on the Stock Op
beyond the date of exercise, unless the Compensatmmittee expressly determines that such
Stock Option shall be subject to section 409A ef@ode.

()  Exercise of Stock Optio

Stock Options may be exercised by delivery to tben@any of a written notice of exercise in the form
attached to, or the manner described in, the AWandificate or by any other form of notice (incladi
electronic notice) or such other manner approvethbyCompensation Committee, together with paymen
in full for the number of shares for which the $tdaption is exercised. Shares subject to the Styation
will be delivered by the Company as soon as prabtecfollowing exercise.

(h) Payment Upon Exercis
Shares purchased upon the exercise of a StockrOgntemted under the Plan shall be paid for asviaio
() in cash or by check, payable to the order of then@any

(2) if provided in the applicable Award Certifieaby (1) delivery of an irrevocable and unconditib
undertaking by a creditworthy broker to delivermpily to the Company sufficient funds to pay
the exercise price and any required tax withholdin¢®) delivery by the Participant to the
Company of a copy of irrevocable and unconditionsiructions to a creditworthy broker to
deliver promptly to the Company cash or a checka@eaht to pay the exercise price and any
required tax withholding;

3) to the extent provided for in the applicableakd Certificate or approved by the Compensation
Committee, by delivery (either by actual deliveryattestation) of Shares owned by the Participan
valued at their Fair Market Value, provided (1) sueethod of payment is then permitted under
applicable law, (2) such Shares, if acquired diydfcbm the Company, were owned by the
Participant for such minimum period of time, if amg may be established by the Compensation
Committee, and (3) such Shares
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are not subject to any repurchase, forfeiture, Itiléa vesting or other similar requirements;

4) to the extent permitted by applicable law armavided for in the applicable Award Certificatg, b
(1) delivery of a promissory note of the Participemthe Company on terms determined by the
Compensation Committee, or (2) payment of suchrdéveful consideration as the Compensation
Committee may determine; or

(5) by any combination of the above permitted formpafment
6.2. Stock Appreciation Rights.

(@) In General A Stock Appreciation Right is an Award in the fooha right to receive cash or a Share, upor
surrender of the Stock Appreciation Right, in aroant equal to the appreciation in the value of3hare
over a base price established in the Award. Ther@ittee may grant Stock Appreciation Rights either
independently of Stock Options, or in tandem withc® Options such that the exercise of the Stock
Option or Stock Appreciation Right cancels the &ndstock Appreciation Right or Stock Option.

(b)  Exercise PriceThe minimum base price of a Stock Appreciation Rgglanted under the Plan shall be the
price set forth in the applicable Award Certificate, in the case of a Stock Appreciation Righated to ¢
Stock Option (whether already outstanding or coraaly granted), the exercise price of the rel@tmtk
Option.

(c) Term, Exercise, and Paymeiihe provisions of Sections 6.1(d), (e), and (flishanerally apply to Stock
Appreciation Rights, as applicable.

6.3. Restricted Stock.

(a) In General.The Compensation Committee may grant Awards ofriRésti Stock. The Compensation
Committee shall determine the terms and conditadressRestricted Stock Award, including the condito
for vesting and repurchase (or forfeiture), theésgrice (if any) and whether the Shares shallitided tc
exercise voting or other rights associated with enship of a Share.

(b) Dividends.Unless otherwise provided by the Compensation Catee)iParticipants holding Restricted
Stock will be eligible to receive all dividends gavith respect to such Shares. If any dividends or
distributions are paid in shares, or consist ofvaddnd or distribution to holders of Shares ottiem an
ordinary cash dividend, the shares or other prgpeiit be subject to the same restrictions on
transferability and forfeitability as the Restridt8tock with respect to which they were paid. Each
dividend payment will be made no later than the @fnithe calendar year in which the Restricted Statk
which such dividends are paid
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vests or, if later, the 15th day of the third mofathowing the date on which the Restricted Stookwhich
such dividends are paid vests.

(c) Stock CertificatesThe Company may require that any stock certificassed for shares of Restricted
Stock be deposited in escrow by the Participagettter with a stock power endorsed in blank, with t
Company (or its designee). At the expiration ofdpelicable restriction periods, the Company (ahsu
designee) shall deliver the certificates no lorggdgject to such restrictions to the Participanthéf
Participant has died before the certificates alwated, the certificates shall be delivered to the
beneficiary designated by the Participant undeiPla@ and on file with the Company (or its designee
before the Participant’s death. If there is no sualid beneficiary designation, the Participargstate she
be the beneficiary.

6.4. Restricted Stock Units.

The Compensation Committee may grant RestrictedkS#imits to any participant subject to the sameddemns and
restrictions as the Compensation Committee wowle i@posed in connection with any Award of Res#iicStock.
Each Restricted Stock Unit shall have a value etputile Fair Market Value of one Share. Restri@eztk Units may b
paid at such time as the Compensation Committeedesgrmine and payments may be made in a lump sum o
installments, in cash, Shares, or any combinatienebf, as determined by the Compensation Committee

6.5. Other Stock-Based Awards

Other Awards that are valued in whole or in partéfgrence to, or are otherwise based on, Shamather property, ma
be granted under the Plan to Participants. Toxktenepermitted by law, such other Share Awardd siteo be available
as a form of payment in the settlement of other Alsgranted under the Plan or as payment in lieoofpensation to
which a Participant is otherwise entitled. Otheai®@hAwards may be paid in Shares or cash, as thg&usation
Committee shall determine. Subject to the provisiohthe Plan, the Compensation Committee shadiraehe the terms
and conditions of each other Share Award.

6.6. Cash Awards.

Cash Awards are Awards that provide participanth e opportunity to earn a cash payment based thgo
achievement of one or more performance goals fmreormance period determined by the Compensatmnriittee.
For each performance period, the Compensation Ctigershall determine the relevant performancer@itéhe
performance goal for each performance criterioa,|élvel or levels of achievement necessary for Alwao be paid, the
weighting of the performance goals if more than padormance goal is applicable, and the size ®#tvards.

6.7. Performance-Based Awards.
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€)) In General Any of the Awards listed in ARTICLE 6 may be grashtes Awards that satisfy the
requirements for “performance-based compensatiatiiimthe meaning of section 162(m) of the Code.
The performance goals must be established by tihhgp€osation Committee and may be for the Comy
or a Company subsidiary, affiliate or other Compapgrating unit or department, or a combination of
such units or departments. The performance godlishéased on one or more performance criteria
selected by the Compensation Committee. With tlvegion of any Stock Option or Stock Appreciation
Right, an Award that is intended to satisfy theuiegments of a performance-based Award shall be so
designated at the time of grant.

(b) Limits. The maximum aggregate number of shares of Stockliarth performance-based Awards may be
issued under this Section 6.7 in any calendar tgean individual Participant shall not exceed 1,000,
the maximum amount that may be earned as a CashdAwaa performance period for a single calendar
year by any individual Participant is $2,000,0084 ¢he maximum amount that may be earned as a Cast
Award for a performance period of greater thamaglsi calendar year by any individual Participant is
$6,000,000.

(c) Performance Criterialn the case of Awards intended to qualify as penkomce-based Awards, the
performance criteria shall be selected only fronoagnthe following: production growth; reserve growt
reserve replacement; lease operating expense;uegowth; finding/development costs; net sales;
operating income; pre- or after-tax income; opagaprofit minus capital charges; cash flow, inchgli
operating cash flow, free cash flow, cash flow meton equity and cash flow return on investment; ne
income; earnings per share; earnings before intanestaxes; earnings before interest, taxes, digpien
and/or amortization; return on equity; return oveisted capital; return on assets; economic valdedd
(or an equivalent measure); share price performaata stockholder return; improvement in or
achievement of expense levels; improvement in brekement of working capital levels; innovation as
measured by a percentage of sales of new produatket share; productivity ratios; completion amnd/o
integration of acquisitions of businesses or corggrtompletion of divestitures and asset saledazy
combination of any of the foregoing business dateikny of the performance criteria may be used to
measure the performance of the Company, a subgidiad/or affiliate as a whole or any business ohit
the Company, a subsidiary, and/or affiliate or eosnbination thereof, as the Compensation Committee
may deem appropriate, or any of the above perfoceanteria as compared to the performance of ap
of comparator companies, or published or specd@xirthat the Compensation Committee deems
appropriate. The Compensation Committee also heatthority to provide for accelerated vestingrof a
Award based on the achievement of the performaritia specified in this Section 6.7.
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(d)  Application to Stock Options and Stock Appreciaights.Notwithstanding anything contained in this
Section 6.7 to the contrary, Stock Options and iSfgapreciation Rights need not satisfy the specific
performance criteria described in this Sectioni®.Grder to qualify as performance-based Awardsund
this section 162(m) of the Code.

(e)  Time for Establishing Performance Goalfie specific performance goal(s) and the applicable
performance criteria must be established by the ggmsation Committee in advance of the deadlines
applicable under section 162(m) of the Code andexthe achievement of the performance goal(s)
remains substantially uncertain.

() Committee Certification and Payment of Awartglsfore any performance-based Award (other thankStoc
Options and Stock Appreciation Rights) is paid, @mmpensation Committee must certify in writing (by
resolution or otherwise) that the applicable perfance goal(s) and any other material terms of tivard
have been satisfied. Unless otherwise providedh&yompensation Committee, performance-based
Awards shall be paid as soon as practicable dfee€Compensation Committee has certified that the
applicable goals and terms of such awards have ssesiied, but in no event later than the fiftée{is
™) day of the third month following the end of therfermance period to which the award relates (ahesen
timely election to defer such Award under a deféigempensation plan, if any, maintained by the
Company). Notwithstanding the foregoing, to theeekan amount was intended to be paid so as tidy
as a short-term deferral under section 409A ofdbde and the applicable regulations, then such paym
may be delayed if the requirements of Treas. R&PIA-1(b)(4)(ii) are met. In such case, payment of
such deferred amounts must be made as soon asabaspracticable following the first date on which
the Company anticipates or reasonably should patieithat, if the payments were made on such tiete,
Company’s deduction with respect to such paymentldvoo longer be restricted due to the applicabilit
of section 162(m) of the Code.

(g0 Terms and Conditions of Awards; Committee DiscretmReduce Performance Awardse
Compensation Committee shall have discretion terd@he the conditions, restrictions or other
limitations, in accordance with, and subject te, thrms of the Plan and section 162(m) of the Code,
the payment of individual Awards under this Section. To the extent set forth in an Award Certifica
the Compensation Committee may reserve the rigadjust the amount payable in accordance with any
standards or on any other basis (including the Gmsation Committee’s discretion), as the
Compensation Committee may determine; provided dvew that, in the case of Awards intended to
gualify as performance-based Awards, such adjussysrall be prescribed in a form that meets the
requirements of section 162(m) of the Code.
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(h)  Adjustments for Material ChangeTo the extent the Compensation Committee makesga@nts in
accordance with ARTICLE 7 that affect Awards inteddo be performance-based Awards under this
Section 6.7, such adjustments shall be prescribadorm that meets the requirements of sectiorfri52
of the Code.

ARTICLE 7. ADJUSTMENTS
7.1. Changes in Capitalization.

In the event of any stock split, reverse stocktsplock dividend, recapitalization, combinatiorsbfres, reclassification
of shares, spin-off or other similar change in tajzation or event, or any dividend or distributtito holders of Shares
other than an ordinary cash dividend, (1) the nurabe class of securities available under this R&nthe number and
class of securities and exercise price per Shaeadi outstanding Stock Option, (3) the numberair&s subject to ea
outstanding Restricted Stock Award, and (4) theaseof each other outstanding Award shall be equit@thjusted by the
Company (or substituted Awards may be made, ifiagiple) in the manner determined by the Compens&mmmittee
Without limiting the generality of the foregoindthe Company effects a split of the Shares by meda stock dividen
and the exercise price of and the number of Stwrgiect to an outstanding Stock Option are adjusseaf the date of
the distribution of the dividend (rather than ashaf record date for such dividend), then an optowho exercises a
Stock Option between the record date and the loligton date for such stock dividend shall be esditio receive, on the
distribution date, the stock dividend with respedhe Shares acquired upon such Stock Option segmotwithstandin
the fact that such Shares were not outstanding the @lose of business on the record date for stmtk dividend.

7.2. Change in Control.

(d)  Consequences of a Change in Control on Awards Qlfaer Restricted Stock Awards.connection with
a Change in Control, the Compensation Committel sthk@ any one or more of the following actions as
to all or any (or any portion of) outstanding Awsuather than Restricted Stock Awards on such tasns
the Compensation Committee determines: (1) protideAwards shall be assumed, or substantially
equivalent Awards shall be substituted, by the aggior succeeding entity (or an affiliate thergof
(2) upon written notice to a Participant, provitlattthe Participant’s unexercised Awards will terate
immediately prior to the consummation of the Chaimg@ontrol unless exercised by the Participanhin
a specified, reasonable period following the d&tguch notice, (3) provide that outstanding Awashall
become exercisable, realizable, or deliverablegstrictions applicable to an Award shall lapseyirole
or in part before or upon the Change in Contrgljf(holders of Shares will receive upon consumonrati
of the Change in Control a cash payment for eaeneSsurrendered in the Change in Control, make or
provide for a cash payment to a Participant equ#ie excess, if any, of (A) the consideration inesxk by
stockholders generally with respect to the Chandgéantrol (the “Change in Control Price”) times the
number of Shares subject to the Participant's Awral

SandRidge 2009 Incentive Plan, as amended on J@@1B Page 15




the extent the exercise price does not exceedlthade in Control Price) over (B) the aggregatea@ser
price of all such outstanding Awards and any applie tax withholdings, in exchange for the termorat
of such Awards, (5) provide that, in connectionhaatliquidation or dissolution of the Company, Adar
shall convert into the right to receive liquidatiproceeds (if applicable, net of the exercise piteseof
and any applicable tax withholdings) and (6) anmbmation of the foregoing. In taking any of theias
permitted under this Section 7.2(a), the Compenisd@iommittee shall not be obligated by the Plan to
treat all Awards, all Awards held by a Participamtall Awards of the same type, identically.

For purposes of clause (1) above, a Stock Optiait Bb considered assumed if, following consumnmatio
of the Change in Control, the Stock Option conflesright to purchase, for each Share subjecteo th
Stock Option immediately prior to the consummatiéthe Change in Control, the consideration (whethe
cash, securities or other property) received @&saltrof the Change in Control by holders of Shé&oes
each Share held immediately prior to the consununaif the Change in Control (and if holders were
offered a choice of consideration, the type of aeration chosen by the holders of a majority ef th
outstanding Shares); provided, however, that ifcthresideration received as a result of the Chamge i
Control is not solely common stock of the acquirangucceeding entity(or an affiliate thereof), the
Company may, with the consent of the acquiringuaceeding entity, provide for the consideratiobeo
received upon the exercise of Stock Options toisbeslely of common stock of the acquiring or
succeeding corporation (or an affiliate thereof)ieglent in value (as determined by the Compensatio
Committee) to the per share consideration recdyedblders of outstanding Shares as a result of the
Change in Control.

(e)  Consequences of a Change in Control on Restridmtk®\wards Upon the occurrence of a Change in
Control, except to the extent specifically providedhe contrary in the applicable Award Certifear
any other agreement between a Participant anddhg@ny, all restrictions and conditions on all
Restricted Stock Awards then outstanding shallraatecally lapse and be deemed terminated or sadisfi
as applicable.

ARTICLE 8. GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL AWA RDS.
8.1. Transferability of Awards.

Except as the Compensation Committee may othemgssmine or provide in an Award Certificate, Awasghall not b
sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwisarabered by the person to whom they are grantibere/oluntarily
or by operation of law, except by will or the laafsdescent and distribution or, other than in thgecof an Incentive
Stock Option, pursuant to a qualified domestictietes order, and, during the life of the Participahall be exercisable
only by the Participant. References to a Partidigarthe extent relevant in the context, shallude references to
authorized transferees.
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8.2. Termination of Status.

Except to the extent provided in an Award Certiigdhe Compensation Committee shall determineffeet on an
Award of the disability, death, termination or atleessation of employment, authorized leave of mt¥ser other change
in the employment or other status of a Particient the extent to which, and the period during Whilkie Participant, ¢
the Participant’s legal representative, conseryguaardian or Beneficiary, may exercise rights uride Award.

8.3. Withholding.

The Participant must satisfy all applicable fedestdte, and local or other income and employrreentithholding
obligations before the Company will deliver stoektificates or otherwise recognize ownership ofr8sainder an
Award. The Company may decide to satisfy the wiltlimg obligations through additional withholding salary or
wages. If the Company elects not to or cannot withfrom other compensation, the Participant magtthe Company
the full amount, if any, required for withholdingayment of withholding obligations is due before @ompany will
issue any Shares on exercise or release from tiaréedf an Award or, if the Company so requiregshatsame time as is
payment of the exercise price unless the Compatgyrdaes otherwise. To the extent not otherwiseigea for in an
Award Certificate or approved by the Compensatiom@ittee, a Participant shall satisfy such taxgailons in whole
or in part by delivery of a portion of the Awarceating the tax obligation, valued at Fair Market\éa provided,
however, except as otherwise provided by the Cosgitean Committee, that the total tax withholdingendstock is
being used to satisfy such tax obligations canro¢ed the Company’s minimum statutory withholdifdjgations
(based on minimum statutory withholding rates eatdral and state tax purposes, including paymeddathat are
applicable to such supplemental taxable incomegr&hsurrendered to satisfy tax withholding reeuéets cannot be
subject to any repurchase, forfeiture, unfulfilegsting or other similar requirements.

8.4. Conditions on Delivery of Stock.

The Company will not be obligated to deliver anya®&s pursuant to the Plan or to remove restricfimm Shares
previously delivered under the Plan until (a) alhditions of the Award have been met or removetti¢csatisfaction of
the Company, (b) in the opinion of the Company’srsel, all other legal matters in connection wiié issuance and
delivery of such Shares have been satisfied, imfudny applicable securities laws and any applecatock exchange
stock market rules and regulations, and (c) thédiaaint has executed and delivered to the Comgani
representations or agreements as the Company maideo appropriate to satisfy the requirementsngfapplicable
laws, rules or regulations.

8.5. Acceleration.

The Compensation Committee or its delegee mayatiae provide that any Award shall become immezljat
exercisable in full or in part, free of some orrafstrictions or conditions, or otherwise realizaiol full or in part, as the
case may be.

SandRidge 2009 Incentive Plan, as amended on J@@1B Page 17




ARTICLE 9. MISCELLANEOUS
9.1. No Right to Employment or Other Status.

No person shall have any claim or right to be grdr@in Award, and the grant of an Award shall notdrestrued a
giving a Participant the right to continued empl@mhor any other relationship with the Company. Tloenpany
expressly reserves the right at any time to dismisgherwise terminate its relationship with atiegrant free from any
liability or claim under the Plan, except as exphgprovided in the applicable Award Certificate.

9.2. No Rights as Stockholder.

Subject to the provisions of the applicable Awaastt(ficate and except as provided in Section 603Participant or
beneficiary shall have any rights as a stockhold#r respect to any Shares to be distributed wadpect to an Award
until becoming the record holder of such shares.

9.3. Amendment.

(@ Amendment of the PlaThe Compensation Committee may amend, suspendnoingge the Plan or any
portion of the Plan at any time; provided thattifay time the approval of the Company’s stockhalde
required as to any modification or amendment usdetion 422 of the Code or any successor provision
with respect to Incentive Stock Options, the Congpéion Committee may not effect such modificatio
amendment without such approval. Unless othervwiseiied in the amendment, any amendment to the
Plan adopted in accordance with this Section 98 apply to, and be binding on the holders of, all
Awards outstanding under the Plan at the time theralment is adopted, provided the Compensation
Committee determines that such amendment, takiogaiccount any related action, does not materially
and adversely affect the rights of Participantsauride Plan.

(b)  Amendment of AwarThe Compensation Committee may amend, modify onitexte any outstanding
Award, including but not limited to, substitutinga@her Award of the same or a different type, cliang
the date of exercise or realization, and converimgncentive Stock Option to a Nonstatutory Stock
Option; provided, however, that no outstanding Advaray be amended, without the approval of the
Company’s stockholders, to (1) reduce the exemmige of a Stock Option, Stock Appreciation Right o
other similar Award or (2) cancel an outstandingc&tOption or Stock Appreciation Right in exchange
for other Awards or Stock Options or Stock AppréoiaRights with an exercise price less than the
exercise price of the cancelled Stock Option oclstppreciation Right (except in the event of atock
split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, recapiation, combination of shares, reclassificatdshares,
spin-off or other similar change in capitalizatimnevent, dividend or distribution to holders ola®s
other than an ordinary cash dividend or Businessl@aation). The
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Participant’s consent to such action shall be reguiinless the Compensation Committee determirags th
the action, taking into account any related actwoyld not materially and adversely affect the
Participant’s rights under the Plan.

9.4. Compliance with Code Section 409A.

No Award shall provide for a deferral of compensativithin the meaning of section 409A of the Caddess the
Compensation Committee, at the time of grant, $igady provides that the Award is intended to lodjgct to section
409A of the Code. If an Award is intended to bejectto section 409A, the following provisions stegply except to
the extent that a contrary provision is includethiea Award Certificate: (a) such Award shall begdalg on the earlier of
a “change in control” or the Participant’s “sepamatfrom service” with the Company and (2) any payinmade to a
Participant who is a “specified employee” of then@any shall not be made before such date as ma@iths after the
Participant’s “separation from service” to the exteequired to avoid the adverse consequencesatib8el09A of the
Code. For purposes of this Section 9.4, the tegharige in control,” “separation from service” asgécified employee”
shall have the meanings set forth in section 408d\tae applicable Treasury regulations. The Comséayl have no
liability to a Participant, or any other partyaii Award that is intended to be exempt from, or gitant with, section
409A is not so exempt or compliant or for any actiaken by the Compensation Committee.

9.5. Governing Law.

The provisions of the Plan and all Awards made inadler shall be governed by and interpreted in @eguare with the
laws of the State of Delaware, excluding choicdaef-principles of the law of such state that wordduire the
application of the laws of a jurisdiction otherthsuch state.
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SANDRIDGE ENERGY, INC. SUBSIDIARIES

Entity Name

State of Organization

Exhibit 21.1

4th Street Properties, LLC
Black Bayou Exploration, L.L.C.
Braniff Restaurant Holdings, LLC
Braniff Restaurant, LLC

d/b/a Kitchen No. 324
Cholla Pipeline, L.P.
Cornhusker Energy, L.L.C.
FAE Holdings 389322R, LLC
Integra Energy, L.L.C.
Lariat Services, Inc.

d/b/a LARCO

d/b/a Chaparral Drilling Fluids

d/b/a Hondo Heavy Haul
Midcontinent Resources, LLC
Mistmada Oil Company, Inc.
Sabino Exploration, LLC
Sagebrush Pipeline, LLC
SandRidge CO2, LLC
SandRidge Exploration and Production, LLC
SandRidge Holdings, Inc.
SandRidge Midstream, Inc.
SandRidge Operating Company
SandRidge Realty, LLC
Sierra Madera CO2 Pipeline, LLC
WTO Gas Gathering Company, LLC

Oklahoma
Louisiana

Oklahoma
Oklahoma

Texas
Oklahoma
Oklahoma
Texas
Texas

Texas
Oklahoma
Texas
Colorado
Texas
Delpav
Delaware
Texas
Texas
Oklahoma
Texas
Texas



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéncde Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N88-184561-01, 333-184562-01, 333-
180781, and 333-173185) and Registration StatentenBorm S-8 (Nos. 333-185440, 333-177004, 333-260833-155441, and 33348299

of SandRidge Energy, Inc., of our report dated &atyr 28, 2014 relating to the consolidated findnsti@ements and the effectiveness of inte
control over financial reporting, which appearshis Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
February 28, 2014



Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PETROLEUM ENGINEERS AND GEOGISTS

We hereby consent to the use by SandRidge Energy(the “Company”)of our name and to the inclusion of informationeiakrom the repor
listed below in the Company’s Annual Report on FA®K for the year ended December 31, 2013, includmgamendments thereto, filed w
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission onboutaFebruary 28, 2014, as well as to the incotporeby reference thereof into 1
Company’s Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nis. 333-184561-01; 333-184562-01; 333-180781 28®173185) and Registrati
Statements on Form S-8 (File Nos. 333-185440; 33304; 333-160527; 333-155441 and 333-148299):

December 31, 2013, SandRidge Energy, Inc. Intémesertain Properties located in the United StateSEC Price Case

CAWLEY, GILLESPIE & ASSOCIATES, INC.

3 G Pl

Fort Worth, Texas
February 28, 2014

J. Zane Meekins
Executive Vice President



Exhibit 23.3

I NETHERLAND, SEWELL
PN & ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PETROLEUM ENGINEERS AND GEOGISTS

We hereby consent to the use by SandRidge Energy(the “Company”)pf our name and to the inclusion of informationelakrom the repor
listed below in the Company’s Annual Report on FA®K for the year ended December 31, 2013, filed whthh U.S. Securities and Excha
Commission on or about February 28, 2014, as veetbahe incorporation by reference thereof in® @ompanys Registration Statements

Form S-3 (File Nos. 333-184561-01; 333-184562-®B3-380781 and 333-173185) and Registration Statesmen Form S-8 (File Nos. 333-
185440; 333-177004; 333-160527; 333-155441 and138299):

December 31, 2013, SandRidge Energy, Inc. IntémeSertain Properties located in the United StateSEC Price Case
December 31, 2012, SandRidge Energy, Inc. IntémeSertain Properties located in the United StateSEC Price Case
December 31, 2011, SandRidge Energy, Inc. InténeSertain Properties located in the United StateSEC Price Case
NETHERLAND, SEWELL & ASSOCIATES, INC.
By: /s/ C.H. (Scott) Rees lll, P.E.

C.H. (Scott) Rees Ill, P.E.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dallas, Texas
February 28, 2014

Please be advised that the digital document yowiaming is provided by Netherland, Sewell & Assaiess, Inc. (NSAI) as a convenience to our cliefite
digital document is intended to be substantivelyshme as the original signed document maintaigediSAl. The digital document is subject to the

parameters, limitations, and conditions statedhédriginal document. In the event of any diffeesbetween the digital document and the originaudent,
the original document shall control and supershdealtgital document.




Exhibit 23.4

LEE KEELING AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
PETROLEUM CONSULTANTS

First Place Tower
15 East Fifth Street « Suite 3500
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103-4350
(918) 587-5521 « Fax: (918) 587-2881
www.lkaengineers.com

February 28, 2014

SandRidge Energy, Inc.
123 Robert S. Kerr Avenue
Oklahoma City, OK 73102

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We hereby consent to the use by SandRidge Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013, filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on or about February 28, 2014, including any
amendments thereto, of our name and to the inclusion therein of references to our “Estimated Proved Reserves and Future Net
Cash Flow Constant Pricing of SandRidge Energy, Inc. Effective December 31, 2012"; “Estimated Proved Reserves and Future Net
Cash Flow Constant Pricing of SandRidge Energy, Inc. Effective December 31, 2011"; and “Estimated Proved Reserves and Future
Net Cash Flow Constant Pricing of SandRidge Energy, Inc. Effective December 31, 2010” and to the incorporation by reference
thereof into the Company’s Registration Statements on Form S-3 (File Nos. 333-184561-01; 333-184562-01; 333-180781 and 333-
173185) and Registration Statements on Form S-8 (File Nos. 333-185440; 333-177004; 333-160527; 333-155441 and 333-148299).

LEE KEELING AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

by T 'y ’ 7
e Rlebung dnd Hddocialie /| Jae

By:




Exhibit 31.1

Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive Offcer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (183JC. Section 7241)

I, James D. Bennett, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FornKl@F SandRidge Energy, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does ndiadomny untrue statement of a material fact ort éonstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nigiaglisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))2nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Ace Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andéhav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proeedoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingared;

(b) Designed such internal control over finanogdorting, or caused such internal control oveartial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataree with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presentai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period covmréklis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual mgpleat has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, tlegistrant’s internal control over financial repogj and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal obotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the ttegig’s ability to record, process, summarize abrt financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inked management or other employees who have aisatifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ James D. Bennett
James D. Bennett
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 28, 2014



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (183JC. Section 7241)

I, Eddie M. LeBlanc, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FornKl@F SandRidge Energy, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does ndiadomny untrue statement of a material fact ort éonstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nigiaglisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3nd internal control over financial reportirg defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andéhav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proeedoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingared;

(b) Designed such internal control over finanogdorting, or caused such internal control oveartial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataree with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presentai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period covmréklis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual mgpleat has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, tlegistrant’s internal control over financial repogj and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal obotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the ttegig’s ability to record, process, summarize abrt financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inked management or other employees who have aisatifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Eddie M. LeBlanc

Eddie M. LeBlanc
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

Date: February 28, 2014



Exhibit 32.1

Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive Offcer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (183JC. Section 1350)

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, the undersignedenffiof SandRidge Energy, Inc. (the “Company”), hgreertify that the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembe@13 (the “Report”), fully complies with the regeinents of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as
applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1884 that the information contained in the Repdrhfgresents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations & @ompany.

/s/ James D. Bennett
James D. Bennett
President and Chief Executive Officer

February 28, 2014

/s/ Eddie M. LeBlanc
Eddie M. LeBlanc
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

February 28, 2014



Exhibit 99.1

CAWLEY, GILLESPIE 8 ASSOCIATES, INC.

PETROLEUM CONSULTANTS

302 FORT WORTH CLUB BUILDING
306 WEST SEVENTH STREET
FORT WORTH, TEXAS 76102-4987
(817) 336-24961

January 30, 2014

Mr. Lance J. Galvin

SandRidge Energy, Inc.

123 Robert S. Kerr Avenue
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102

Re: Evaluation Summary
SandRidge Energy, Inc. Interests
Proved Reserves
As of December 31, 2013

Dear Mr. Galvin:

As requested, we are submitting our estimates ofgat reserves and our forecasts of the resultiogaic:
attributable to the SandRidge Energy, Inc. (“SaddRT) interests in certain oil and gas properties locatddansas ar
Oklahoma. These reserves include those from itsalwated subsidiaries, SandRidge MississippianstTiuanc
SandRidge Mississippian Trust Il. It is our undansling that the proved reserves estimated in #p®rt constitut
approximately 65 percent of all proved reservesexvby SandRidge. This report, completed on Jan8@yy2014 has
been prepared for use in filings with the U.S. $@ies and Exchange Commission by SandRidge.

Composite reserve estimates and economic forefcadtse proved reserves are summarized below:

Proved Proved

Developed Developed Proved

Producing Non-Producing Undeveloped Proved
Net Reserves
Oil/Condensate - Mbbl 39,278 4,098 36,052 79,4
Gas - MMcf 506,958 41,093 359,138 907,188
NGL - Mbbl 27,780 1,872 19,872 49,525
Revenue
Oil/Condensate - M$ 3,695,981 385,596 3,392,816 7,474,392
Gas - M$ 1,558,666 129,328 1,105,803 2,793,797
NGL - Mbbl 860,620 57,726 612,647 1,530,994
Operating Income (BFIT) - M$ 4,019,581 352,189 2,580,555 6,952,329
Discounted @ 10% - M$ 2,007,047 183,969 1,02D,2 3,211,217

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Ussiwm guidelines, the operating income (BFIT) bast
discounted at an annual rate of 10% to determmépitesent worth”. The discounted value, “presentti’, showr
above should not be construed to represent anastiofi the fair market value by Cawley, Gillespiéd&sociates, Inc.




Evaluation Summary
SandRidge Energy, Inc.

The annual average Henry Hub spot market gas pfi&3.67 per MMBtu and the annual average Plaind
posted oil price of $93.42 per barrel were usdthimreport. In accordance with the Securities Brchange Commissit
guidelines, these prices are determined as an ghteel arithmetic average of the first-day-of-thenth price for eac
month of 2013. The oil and gas prices were heldstaont and were adjusted for gravity, heating vapeality.
transportation and regional price differentialseTddjusted volumereighted average product prices over the life e
properties are $94.10 per barrel of oil, $30.91hzerel of NGL and $3.08 per Mcf of gas.

Operating costs were based on operating expensedeseof SandRidge. For namperated properties, these ¢
include the overhead expenses allowed under egigbimt operating agreements. Drilling and completcosts wel
based on estimates provided by SandRidge and redigor reasonableness by Cawley, Gillespie & Asdes
Abandonment costs used in the report are estinpaggmred by SandRidge to abandon the wells andiptiod facilities
net of salvage value. As per the Securities andh&xge Commission guidelines, neither expensesnwesiments we
escalated.

The proved reserve classifications conform to gatef the Securities and Exchange Commission. é8tenate
of reserves in this report have been prepareddordance with the definitions and disclosure guigk set forth in tf
Securities and Exchange Commission Title 17, Cddeederal Regulations, Modernization of Oil and Gagporting
Final Rule released January 14, 2009 in the Fedeeglister (SEC regulations). The reserves and ec@soart
predicated on the regulatory agency classificatiomes, policies, laws, taxes and royalties ireelffon the date of tf
report as noted herein. In evaluating the inforomatat our disposal concerning this report, we hexauded from ot
consideration all matters as to which the contglinterpretation may be legal or accounting, nathan engineering a
geoscience. Therefore, the possible effects of ggmim legislation or other Federal or State retstg actions have n
been considered. An asite field inspection of the properties has notrbperformed. The mechanical operatiol
conditions of the wells and their related facibtibave not been examined nor have the wells bestadtdy Cawle
Gillespie & Associates, Inc. Possible environmetibility related to the properties has not beamestigated nc
considered.

The reserves were estimated using a combinatitimegbroduction performance, volumetric and analogyhods
in each case as we considered to be appropriat@ecebsary to establish the conclusions set fatbim All reserv
estimates represent our best judgment based onadatiable at the time of preparation and assumgptas to futul
economic and regulatory conditions. It should balized that the reserves actually recovered, thvermae derive
therefrom and the actual cost incurred could beenooiess than the estimated amounts.

The reserve estimates were based on interpretatiofestual data furnished by SandRidge. Ownergtiigrest
were supplied by SandRidge and were accepted aslied. To some extent, information from publicorels has be¢
used to check and/or supplement these data. Thedagneering and geological data were utilizeojestt to third part
reservations and qualifications. Nothing has cooneur attention, however, that would cause us liewx®that we are n
justified in relying on such dat

Cawley, Gillespie & Associates, Inc. is independesith respect to SandRidge as provided in the Stah
Pertaining to the Estimating and Auditing of Oilda@as Reserve Information promulgated by the SpaePetroleur
Engineers (“SPE StandardsNeither Cawley, Gillespie & Associates, Inc. noy af its employees has any interes
the subject properties. Neither the employment a&erthis




Evaluation Summary
SandRidge Energy, Inc.

study nor the compensation is contingent on thelte®f our work or the future production rates tbe subjec
properties.

Our workpapers and related data are available for inspeaia review by authorized parties. The tech
person responsible for the preparation of this nepeets or exceeds the education, training, aperéence requiremer
set forth in the SPE Standards.

Respectfully submitted,

W,W& [ HOYITIN /N DY

CAWLEY, GILLESPIE & ASSOCIATES, INC.
Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-693

JZM:rtp



Exhibit 99.2

January 24, 2014

Mr. Lance J. Galvin

SandRidge Energy, Inc.

123 Robert S. Kerr Avenue
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102

Dear Mr. Galvin:

In accordance with your request, we have estimated the proved reserves and future revenue, as December 31, 2013, to the
SandRidge Energy, Inc. (SandRidge) interest in certain oil and gas properties located in Louisiana, Texas, and federal waters in the
Gulf of Mexico. These reserves include all proved reserves from SandRidge's consolidated subsidiary, the SandRidge Permian
Trust. We completed our evaluation on or about the date of this letter. It is our understanding that the proved reserves estimated in
this report constitute approximately 21 percent of all proved reserves owned by SandRidge. The estimates in this report have been
prepared in accordance with the definitions and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and conform to
the FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 932, Extractive Activities—Oil and Gas, except that per-well overhead expenses
are excluded for operated properties and future income taxes are excluded for all properties. Definitions are presented immediately
following this letter. This report has been prepared for SandRidge's use in filing with the SEC; in our opinion the assumptions, data,
methods, and procedures used in the preparation of this report are appropriate for such purpose.

We estimate the net reserves and future net revenue to the SandRidge interest in these properties, as of December 31, 2013, to be:

Net Reserves Future Net Revenue (M$)
oil NGL Gas Present Worth
Category (MBBL) (MBBL) (MMCF) Total at 10%
Proved Developed Producing 27,234.2 2,675.7 69,626.9 1,395,154.0 957,818.1
Proved Developed Non-Producing 8,341.2 1,199.5 48,040.1 605,536.2 369,800.0
Proved Undeveloped 21,824.2 2,220.3 60,101.9 1,162,543.0 546,142.4
Total Proved 57,399.5 6,095.5 177,769.0 3,163,233.3 1,873,760.5

Totals may not add because of rounding.

The oil volumes shown include crude oil and condensate. Oil and natural gas liquids (NGL) volumes are expressed in thousands of
barrels (MBBL); a barrel is equivalent to 42 United States gallons. Gas volumes are expressed in millions of cubic feet (MMCF) at
standard temperature and pressure bases.

The estimates shown in this report are for proved reserves. As requested, probable and possible reserves that exist for these
properties have not been included. This report does not include any value that could be attributed to interests in undeveloped
acreage beyond those tracts for which undeveloped reserves have been estimated.

4500 THANKSGIVING TOWER - 1601 ELM STREET - DALLAS, TEXAS 75201-4754 « PH: 214-969-5401 « FAX: 214-969-5411 nsai@nsai-petro.com
1221 LAMAR STREET, SUITE 1200 - HOUSTON, TEXAS 77010-3072 « PH: 713-654-4950 « FAX: 713-654-4951 netherlandsewell.com




Reserves categorization conveys the relative degree of certainty; reserves subcategorization is based on development and
production status. The estimates of reserves and future revenue included herein have not been adjusted for risk.

Gross revenue is SandRidge's share of the gross (100 percent) revenue from the properties prior to any deductions. Future net
revenue is after deductions for SandRidge's share of production taxes, ad valorem taxes, capital costs, abandonment costs, and
operating expenses but before consideration of any income taxes. The future net revenue has been discounted at an annual rate of
10 percent to determine its present worth, which is shown to indicate the effect of time on the value of money. Future net revenue
presented in this report, whether discounted or undiscounted, should not be construed as being the fair market value of the
properties.

Prices used in this report are based on the 12-month unweighted arithmetic average of the first-day-of-the-month price for each
month in the period January through December 2013. For oil and NGL volumes, the average West Texas Intermediate posted price
of $93.42 per barrel is adjusted for quality, transportation fees, and a regional price differential. For gas volumes, the average Henry
Hub spot price of $3.670 per MMBTU is adjusted for energy content, transportation fees, and a regional price differential. All prices
are held constant throughout the lives of the properties. The average adjusted product prices weighted by production over the
remaining lives of the properties are $98.14 per barrel of oil, $33.93 per barrel of NGL, and $3.595 per MCF of gas.

Operating costs used in this report are based on operating expense records of SandRidge. For nonoperated properties, these costs
include the per-well overhead expenses allowed under joint operating agreements along with estimates of costs to be incurred at and
below the district and field levels. As requested, operating costs for the operated properties include only direct lease- and field-level
costs. Operating costs have been divided into per-well costs and per-unit-of-production costs. For all properties, headquarters
general and administrative overhead expenses of SandRidge are not included. Operating costs are not escalated for inflation.

Capital costs used in this report were provided by SandRidge and are based on authorizations for expenditure and actual costs from
recent activity. Capital costs are included as required for workovers, new development wells, and production equipment. Based on
our understanding of future development plans, a review of the records provided to us, and our knowledge of similar properties, we
regard these estimated capital costs to be reasonable. Abandonment costs used in this report are SandRidge's estimates of the
costs to abandon the wells, platforms, and production facilities, net of any salvage value. Capital costs and abandonment costs are
not escalated for inflation.

For the purposes of this report, we did not perform any field inspection of the properties, nor did we examine the mechanical
operation or condition of the wells and facilities. We have not investigated possible environmental liability related to the properties;
therefore, our estimates do not include any costs due to such possible liability.

We have made no investigation of potential volume and value imbalances resulting from overdelivery or underdelivery to the
SandRidge interest. Therefore, our estimates of reserves and future revenue do not include adjustments for the settlement of any
such imbalances; our projections are based on SandRidge receiving its net revenue interest share of estimated future gross
production.

The reserves shown in this report are estimates only and should not be construed as exact quantities. Proved reserves are those
guantities of oil and gas which, by analysis of engineering and geoscience data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty to be
economically producible; probable and possible reserves are those additional reserves which are sequentially less certain to be
recovered than proved reserves. Estimates of reserves may increase or decrease as a result of market conditions, future operations,
changes in regulations, or actual reservoir performance. In addition to the primary economic assumptions discussed herein, our
estimates are based on certain assumptions including, but not limited to, that the properties will be developed consistent with current
development plans, that the properties will be operated in a prudent manner, that no governmental regulations or controls will be put
in place that would impact the ability of the interest owner to recover the reserves, and that our projections of future production will
prove consistent with actual performance. If the reserves are recovered, the revenues therefrom and the costs related thereto could
be more or less than the estimated amounts. Because of governmental policies and uncertainties of supply and demand, the sales
rates, prices received for the reserves, and costs incurred in recovering such reserves may vary from assumptions made while
preparing this report.




For the purposes of this report, we used technical and economic data including, but not limited to, well logs, geologic maps, seismic
data, well test data, production data, historical price and cost information, and property ownership interests. The reserves in this
report have been estimated using deterministic methods; these estimates have been prepared in accordance with the Standards
Pertaining to the Estimating and Auditing of Oil and Gas Reserves Information promulgated by the Society of Petroleum Engineers
(SPE Standards). We used standard engineering and geoscience methods, or a combination of methods, including performance
analysis, volumetric analysis, and analogy, that we considered to be appropriate and necessary to categorize and estimate reserves
in accordance with SEC definitions and regulations. A substantial portion of these reserves are for behind-pipe zones, non-producing
zones, undeveloped locations, and producing wells that lack sufficient production history upon which performance-related estimates
of reserves can be based; such reserves are based on estimates of reservoir volumes and recovery efficiencies along with analogy
to properties with similar geologic and reservoir characteristics. As in all aspects of oil and gas evaluation, there are uncertainties
inherent in the interpretation of engineering and geoscience data; therefore, our conclusions necessarily represent only informed
professional judgment.

The data used in our estimates were obtained from SandRidge, public data sources, and the nonconfidential files of Netherland,
Sewell & Associates, Inc. and were accepted as accurate. Supporting work data are on file in our office. We have not examined the
titles to the properties or independently confirmed the actual degree or type of interest owned. The technical persons responsible for
preparing the estimates presented herein meet the requirements regarding qualifications, independence, objectivity, and
confidentiality set forth in the SPE Standards. We are independent petroleum engineers, geologists, geophysicists, and
petrophysicists; we do not own an interest in these properties nor are we employed on a contingent basis.

Sincerely,
NETHERLAND, SEWELL & ASSOCIATES, INC.
Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-2699

[s! C.H. (Scott) Rees llI

By:
C.H. (Scott) Rees lll, P.E.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
/s/ David T. Miller /s/ Richard B. Talley, Jr . /s/ Edward C. Roy Il

By: By: By:
David T. Miller Richard B. Talley, Jr. Edward C. Roy llI
P.E. 96134 P.E. 102425 P.G. 2364
Vice President Vice President Geologist

Date Signed: January 24, 2014 Date Signed: January 24, 2014 Date Signed: January 24, 2014

GSC:CLM

Please be advised that the digital document you are viewing is provided by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. (NSAI) as a convenience to our clients. The digital
document is intended to be substantively the same as the original signed document maintained by NSAI. The digital document is subject to the parameters,
limitations, and conditions stated in the original document. In the event of any differences between the digital document and the original document, the original
document shall control and supersede the digital document.




